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ABSTRACT
Presented in this bulletin is the test of the hearing

before the Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee of the
Committee on Government Operations, United States House of
Representatives, ninety-first Congress, concerning a national
inventory ot industrial wastes. The hearing was held September 17,
1970, to examine the long delay of the executive branch in
instituting a much-needed inventory of industrial wastes, and in
utilizing the inventory to facilitate enforcement of the Refuse Act
of 1899. Further, they sought to scrutinize what the Corps of
Engineers is doing concerning enforcement of the Refuse Act and how
the Interior Department's inventory relates to the Corps' program.
Statements and letters are submitted for the record by members of the
Federal Water Quality Administration (FWQA), Department of the
Interior, Corps of Engineers, and Bureau of the Budget. Appended
material includes various correspondence between the subcommittee and
federal agencies, policy statements and guidelines, and the proposed
FWQA industrial waste questionnaire with accompanying instructions
and definitions. Henry S. Reuss chaired the subconunittee. (BL)
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THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL
WASTES INVENTORY

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 1970

HOUSE OP REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMIITEE

Or TUE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., in room 2247,
Rayburn I louse Office Building, Hon. I Ienry S. Reuss (chairman of
the saconmiittee) presiding.

Present : Representatives Henry S. Reuss, Guy Vand2r Jagt, and
Floyd V. I licks.

Staff present: Phineas Indritz, chief counsel; David B. Finnegan,
assistant counsel; Josephine Scheiber, research analyst.; and . P.
Carlson, minority munsel, Committee on Government Operations.

Mr. REUSS. Good morning,
The SubCommittee on Conservation and Natural Resources of the

House Committee on Government Operations will be in order for its
hearing on a national inventory of industrial wastes.

In this hearing we shall examine into the long delay of the execu-
tive branch in inst ituting a much-newled inventory of indust ri mil wastes,
and in ntilizingthis in'ventory to facilitate enforcement of tile Refuse
Act of 1899.

We shall also examine. what the Corps of Engineers is doing con-
cerning enforcement. of the Refuse Act and how Al le Interior Depart-
ment's invenlory relates to the corps' program.

It has been more than 7 years since this subcommittee and its prede-
cessors first urged the executive branch to undertake, in cooperation
with the industry, an inventory of industrial wastes. In that time none
has been established, and the "7-year itch" of this sulwommittee con-
inues.
Instead, the interior Department and the Bureau of the Budget,

at the urging of industry, have toyed with the contents of a question-
naire form, while industrial pollution of our waters increases daily.
This pollution of our waterways continues to degrade the environ-
ment., but the executive branch under several administrations refuses
to utilize fully the tools at its commaild to bring it to a halt.

Like the Department of Justice, which has failed to follow the
mandate of the 1899 Refuse Act to "vicrorously" enforce the law
against continuing sources of pollution, the Interior Department has
failed to ask industry to supply voluntarily the industrial wastes data
needed to help clean up our waterways.

Both measures, if fully utilized, could substantially aid in stem-
(1)
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ming the tide of pollution that threatens our environment and to do so
with little cost to the Government and the American taxpayer.

Section 5(a) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act has,
since 1956, 14 years ago, authorized and directed the Secretary of the
Interior to "conduct * * * investigations, * * * relating 'to the
causes, control, and prevention of water pollution." It also authorizes
him to "collect and make available, through publications and other
appropriate means,the results of and other information" obtained
from such investigations. Thus the Federal Water Quality Administra-
tion already has broad authority to establish an industrial wastes
inventory.

Yet, instead of establishing a voluntary inventory of industrial
wastes, Interior has been seeking new legislition, such as MIL 15905
in this Congress, to require industry to provide the information it
onld get voluiltmily. Further legislation may, in fact, be needed, but

every utiy-That Interior fails to utilize the vohintary method now
available to it means another day of unchecked pobution of our
waterways.

The Federal Water Quality Administration has considerable data
on waste discharges from municipalities and from Federal installa-
tions. But it woefully lacks data on wastes discharged from indus-
trial plants. It needs this data from all these sources to make mean-
ingful esthnates of the costs of clean water.

The volume of industrial waste is growing daily. Secretary Hickel
on September 10, 1970, said in a news release that industries use "over
17 trillion gallons of water a year from ground and surface sources
but treat less than 5 trillion of this total before discharges."

In addition, new kinds of industrial discharges create new forms
of pollution.

Secretary 1-Eckel's press release of September 10 noted that "55 new
chemicals are developed each year by chemical and allied industries."

Congressman Robert E. Jones, of Alabama, the formqr chairman
of this subcommittee, made the first request for au . industrial wastes
inventory in a letter of June 10, 1963, to the Secretary of HEW who
then administered the water pollution control program.

In 1964, HEW, agreeing on the importance of the inventory, pre-
pared a questionnaire form and requested the Budget Bureau to ap-
prove it under the Federal Reports Act. But the Budget Bureau
refused to approve the form because many industries ovposed it.

After eight major industries at the Lake Erie Water Pollution Con-
trol Conference agreed in 1965 to provide waste data, the Interior
Department., in 1967, asked the Budget Bureau to approve a questions
naire revised to meet industry objections.

Again the Bureau refuses approval, saying that the Interior De-
partment should first complete two studies which Congress had re-
quested in the Clean Water Restoration Act of 1966 concerning the
costs of controlling pollution and possible, economic incentives for
industry to abate pollution.

These studies were completed in March 1968. They pointed .out that
the "lack of a current inventory of waste loadings from industrial
sources" made it virtually impossible to develop adequate estimates
concerning the costs of industrial pollution control.
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Over 2 years ago the House Committee on Government Operations
issued its report (H. Rept. 90-1579, June 24, 1968) entitled "The
Critical Need for a National Inventory of Industrial IVastes."

That report recommended that Interior establish a national in-
dustrial wastes inventory and that the Budget Bureau approve the
questionnaire form proposed by Interior. The Bureau met in August
1968 with the Advisory Council on Federal Reports, which is or-
ganized, financed, and its members appointed by the chamber of
commerce, the National Association of Manufacturers, and other na-
tional business organizations. When the council opposed the inven-
tory, the Budget Bureau withheld its upproval.

During 1969, this subcommittee corresponded with the Interior
Department several times about the status of the inventory. In July
1969, we were told that the only remaining question was whether
all data received would he held as confidential, and that this question
would be resolved in a few weeks.

After further correspondence we lealmed early this year that the
Interior Department was, in effect, abamloning the inventory recom-
mended by the committee. In his letter of May 7, 1970, to us, Secre-
tary Ifickel said that Interior was going to reexamine "the plan"
for such an inventory.

Congressman Vander Jagt, the ranldng minority member joined
with nie on May 28 in letters to both Secretary nickel and the Budget
Bureau Director concerning this latest turn of ev mits. On June 30,
the Budget Bureau said it "suspended consideration of the survey '
Nick in February 1970. We have not yet received a reply from
Interior.

At this point I want to note that the Interior Department has
failed to respond to ninny letters from our subcommittee. Several
days ago we learned that the replies had been prepared long ago, but
are apparently being held up in the office of Assistant Secretary Carl
Klein. I shall now insert into the record a copy of our letter of
September 10 to Secretary llickel about hi.s Department's failure to
respond to our inquiries, which thereby delays the work of this
committee.

I hereby, under the rule and without objection, incorporate into
the record my letter of September 10, 1970, to Secretary nickel.

(The September 10; 1970, letter from Chairman Reuss to Secretary
Nickel follows;)

HousE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SITHCOMMITTEE

OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., September 10, 1970.

Hon. WALTER J. IimicEL,
Secretary of the Interior,
IntertorDepartment,WasMngton, D.C.

DEAR MR. SECRETARY : The subcommittee has written eight letters to you and
the Commissioner of the Federal Water Quality Administration since last May,
to which we have received no reply. We understand that replies had been pre-
pared by FWQA, but are being held up in the office of Assistant Secretary
Carl Klein.

In view of-the impending transfer of FWQA from the Interior Department
to a new agency, we would appreciate prompt release a the replies to our
letters. The matters raised in each involve issues which occurred while that
agency continues to be in the Interior Department and subject to your policy
and direction. Further, tbe delay in replying is substantially hindering the
work of this subcommittee.

(.;
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The eight subcommittee letters are its follows :
Four letters addressed to Commissioner Dominick (dated May 12, June 3,

Pily 23, and July 31, 1970) concerning FWQA's activities in connection with
enforcement by the Corps of Engineers of the 1899 River and liarbor Act (30
Stat. 1151 ; IJ.s.c. 401, et seq.).

Two letters addressed to you (dated May 28 and July 23, 1970), concerning
the failure of the Interior Department to establish a national industrial wastes
inventory.

One letter addressml to Commissioner Dominick (dated July 28, 1970), con-
cerning FIVQA's Investigation of mercury discha rges.

One letter addressed to Commissioner Dominkk (dated July 31, 1970), con-
cerning FWQA.'s investigation of discharges of lead and arsenic into the Nation's
wn terways.

Sincerely,
HENRI' S. Rmss.

Chairman.

[Narr..The coruspondence referred to above is printed in the ap-
pendixes of this hearing record.]

Mr. ThaTss. The Interior Department has repeatedly agreed that an
imlustrial wastes inventory is needed. The Federal Water Quality

97Administration's report. to 'Congress of March 10 entitled."The Eco-
nomics of C]ean Water" stated (vol. 1, p. 8) that the "lack of an in-
dustrial waste inventory precludes meaningful improvenient" of
FWQA's estimate of the cost of clean water. FWQA on page,18 lays
it on the line as follows, and I emphasize what it says:

"7'1, e lark of reliable information on indust rial water pollution con-
trol activities might be considered to be intolerable, if the Nation had
not become quite habituated to it. The guessing process has gone on
for so long fhat it, is considered quite normal ; and erery effort to
initiate an industrial waste inrentom has been frustrated without
noticeable public comment." (Italic supplied.)

Well. wnre iidtiating what I hope will be "noticeable public com-
ment" this morning on why "every effort to initiate an industrial wastes
inventory lias been frustrated."

To abate water pollution, we must, have data as to the source, com-
position. quantity. freqiwncy, treatment. and points of discharge of
the wastes. As I said. Interior is getting that data for discharges from
numicipalities and Federal facilities. but not, for the gie;:- dischaiges
of wastes by industry into our streams and lakes. The cxecl.tive :a.anch
has failed to embark on a program that would previde data by
voluntary means.

The present mercury crises could have been largely averted if in-
dustrial polluters and the Budget Bureaumy candidate for the en-
vironmental booby prize of the environmental decadehad not been
so succ.essful over the years in preventing a national inventory of just
exactly what industries are dumping what. into which of our 'Nation's
waters.

If this national industrial pollution inventory had been imple-
mented when first proposed almost a decade ago, mercury discharges
would in all prolmbility have been stopped or curtailed then.

Some argue that industry will not cooperate with the Government
that it will not, provide this data fully and without restriction. We
beHeve That if industry is sinc,pre in wanting to abate' its pollution, it
will cooperate. We ought not, to assume that industry will not co-
operate.
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There should be. no further delay in our quest for environmental
qualit in the decade of the seventies.

We Invited Mr. Charles W. Stewart, chairnum of the Advisory
Council i)\Federal Reports and president of Machinery & Allied
Products Ins9tute. to testify today because the council has dealt with
this problem in great detail ns industry's spokesimul. We wanted the
benefit of their advice on behalf of industry, just us the Budget Bu-
reau has sought and received the, council's adv ice.

On September 4, Mr. Stewart wrote to ine declining to testify, or even
to tile a statement. lie said tlmt the nwmbers of the council "do not
have speNal expertise in the field of pollution, and more particularly
with resPect to the collection and interpretation of data on ii.dustrial
wastes.'

Despite the fact that 1- members of the council, representing some
of the Nation's biggest industries. met with the Budget Bureau in
August 1968 to d'scuss the inventory and to express industry's view on
it, Mr. Stewart wrote to us that the council does not feel that in a
congressional hearing it is the proper spokesman for inch istry at large.

I then wrote to Mr. Stewart on Septemlwr 8, urging him to recon-
sider, and again iii Vi lug I tim to cOil ue to our }miring today to give us
the benefit of the council's views..

But on September II he replied that his previous letter of refusal
was "conclusive" and be a gn in refused to accept our inv it at ion to par-
ticipate in Ilearing.

will now put this corr9spondence into the record trigether with
other eomwpondence which ckarly shows t he recalcitru lice of the ex-
ecutive branch in in it iating this inver tory.

(The correspondence referred to above is reprinted in the appel I dixes
of thi s. hearing record.)

Mr. Eruss. Our first witness today is Under Secretary of the In-
terior Fred Russell. Would you step forward, Mr. Secretary?

Ire is accompanied by lion. David D. Dominick. Coimidssioner,
FWQA, and by Mr. Raymond C. Coulter, Deputy Solicitor of the
Depart n lent of i I ie Interior.

You are very welcome. (rentlemen.
Secretary Russell, vouhave a prepared statement. I-nder the rule

it will be received i n tull into the record, s will that of Mr. Dominick.
Will you gentlemen now proceed in your own way ?

STATEMENT OF HON. FRED J. RUSSELL, UNDER SECRETARY OF
THE INTERIOR

Mr: RUSSELL. Mr. Chairman and members of this distinguished sub-
commi t tee. it is a pleasure to be here this morning to discuss with you
a significant part of the national water pollution control efforta
voluntary natioluti indnstrial waste inventory.

I have with me Coimnissioner David D. Dominick of the Federal
Water Quality Administration and Raymond C. Coulter, Deputy So-
licitor of the Department.

One of the major obstacles that. we must overcome if we are to be
successful in our fight against water pollution is the. lack of compre-
hensive information concerning the full scope of the problem. A large
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remaining gap in tht needed information is the extent and character
of industrial waste which affects the quality of our Nation's waters.
The Federal Water Quality Administration of the Department of the
Interior will go forward with a voluntary industrial waste inventory
to provide that needed information.

The information to.be obtained from that inventory will provide the
foundation for a substantial strengthening of Federal, State, and local
efforts to meet water pollution reohlems realistically.

Commissioner Donthiick will provide you with the details of our
national inventory and with the relevant background information.
We will be pleased to answer any questions you may have concern-
ing the voluntary national industrial yaste inventory.

Mr. REUSS. Thank you, -Secretary IN Ssell.
Before turning to Commissioner Dominick, let me say that we are

heartened to hear yoU say that the Depfutment of the Interior will go
forward with a voluntary industrial waste inventory. We await its
details :with considerable interest.

But if our 7-year itch is to be, relieved, this is a great way to do it,
and I am delighted to hear this.

Mr. Dominick.

STATEMENT OF HON. DAVID D. DOMINICK, COMMISSIONER,
FEDERAL WATER QUALITY ADMINISTRATION; ACCOMPANIED
BY RAYMOND C. COULTER, DEPUTY SOLICITOR, DEPARTMENT
OF THE INTERIOR, .AND LOUIS E. DeCAMP, DIRECTOR, DIVISION
OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT, FWQA

Mr. Domnncx. Mr. Chairman, Congressman Vander Jagt, we am
pleased to be here this morning. to testify on the questimmaire which
we propose to use to conduct ta in veutory.

As you have, requested, I will clarify our past efforts and-decisions
which have now resulted in the implementation of this voluntary
national industrial waste inventory.

During the past year we have carefully considered the feasibility of
using industrial waste data obtainable through existing and plaimed
departmental and State programs. We have concluded, on the basis of
a pilot study and a staff review of available data. sources, that an in-
dustrial waste inventory will substantially improve our capabilitks
for the enhancement of water quality.

This is especially true in the further development of a national
comprehensive plan for water pollution abatement. With tlw quality
of tne Nation's environment hnmediately at, stake, the, data on indus-
trial waste must be an integral part of realistic pollution control plan-
ning, and the ordering of priorities for the commitment, of billions of
dollars and substantial manpower to the water quality effort.

The data will be of great value in determining the costs necessary
in a realigic pollution abatement effort. The data should prove par-
ticularly valuable to the Congress in developing new legislative meas-
ures and to us in effectively administering water quality programs.
Industrial waste inkrmation is needed for effective basin-wide, pollu-
tion abatement programs and for metropolitan and regional plans.

9
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The data can significantly strengthen State pollution abatement
programs in every aspect of planning, funding, constructing, and
enforcement. Industrial effluent data will provide the foundation for
establishment of effluent requirements proposed by the President as it
part of the administration's water quality legislatiye program now
pending before the-congress.

RQfinement and improvement of our water quality standards and
their enforcement are largely dependent upon the availability of indus-
trial waste data. In short, the need for full industrial waste data per-
vades every major aspect of Federal and State efforts to prevent,
control, and abate water pollution.

In July 1968, the then Secretary of the Interior wrote Chairman
Jones that efforts were being made to establish an inventory and that
an inventory questionnaire form luid been submitted to the Bureau
of the Budget,.

That proposed form was considered at a subsequent ineeting with
interested Federal agencies and the Advisory Council on federal
Reports in the Bureau of the Budget The principal issue raised by
tho Council was whether and to what extent the data obtained would'
be confidential. The Bureau (it the Budget. did not approve the ques-
tionnaire atthat time.

The issue wits not resolved.
In late 1969 and early 1970, legislative proposals and regulations

were being formulated which related to the need for this inventory.
The President's message on the environment of February 10, 1970,

dealt in part with industrial pollution and outlined a seven-point
promram to control water pollution from industrial vs well as munici-
paCwastes.

1905,5 introduced on February 16, would provide for the
establishment of State-Federal industrial effluent standards. The
development of these standards, includinm implementation schedules
by the States, will require considerable iaustrial waste information.
In turn, the implementation of those standards will provide additional
data

In addition, construction grant regulations published in the Federal
Register on July 2, 19T0, call for basinwide plans which must include
data concerning industrial effluent, where appropriate. Basinwide
plans, therefore, will be an additional source of information on indus.
trial wastes.

Certification of facilities under the Tax Reform Act of 1969 for
the 5-year amortization of water pollution control facilities will also
give us industrial waste data.

Another source of such data will be the discharge permits which
the Corps of Engineers proposes to require of all dischargers.

While. these proposals and programs were king developed, it wr.s
not. clear to what extent a notional hulustrial waste inventory would
be needed. Accordingly, we deferred further action on the inventory.

It now appears, however, that with our other industrial effluent data
sources, it voluntary industrial waste inventory is essential to project
our needs end programs adequately. All the otfier sources of collecting
industrial waste data have limitationsincluding substantial time-
lagswhich make them inadequate as sources for a comprehensive
national inventory.

10
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The basin plan and regional or metropolitan plan regulations apply
only to areas where waste treatment facility construction grant pmj-
ects are contemplated. The data gathered through tlie tax certification
of air and water pollution control facilities will pertain only to limited
categories of industrial plants.

Effluent standards and the proposed Corps of Engineers permit
pmgram will have wider application, but as with the other sonmes,
lead time to implement these programs would be a factor.

Effluent data is needed now.. We can implement the' national in-
ventory now. Additionally, we helieve that each industry whicli vol-
untarily completes the questionnaire will lie prepared to meet the re-
quirements of ot her programs necessitating effluent data.

Access to more comprehensive waste data, will greatly facilitate the
Department's planning and the establishment of national priorit ies for
pollut ion abatement.

Theindustrial waste program is closely linked with municipal waste
treat n

Ifal f or more of the liquid wastes of,seven of the major water-
using manufacturing sectors--food .processing, textiles. rubber and
plastics, machinery, electrical machinery, and transportation equip-
mentis discharged into public sewers and treated in municipal waste
treatment foci] i t ies:

The largest manufacturing users of waterpulp and paper, chemi-
cals. and primary metalsgenerall y cannot Ilsc nil mIte facilities be-
cause of location, process or waste magnitude. Therefore, only abOut
one-fourth of all manufacturing wastes are t rented in ides.

However, urrtot estimates of the relative strength Of munic ipally
treat ed wastes f rom domestic. and industrial sources indica( e tha t about
45 percent of the biochemical oxyn deinand.of municipal sewage is
of hulustrial origin. In view of the desinibility of regional approaches

. to imlnstrhil and municiimi waste treatment, the industrial factor in
municipal waste treatment plants will undoubtedly increire in the
futiire.

The data that will be supplied by a national industrial waste in-
ventory will be of considerable help in the developnumt of baSinwide
plans recently required hy regubitions.

When those basinwide planc.have been developed, tbey will pro-
vide additional complementary information.

The, Department has studied the costs involved in industrial waste
tyeatment. The most recent assessment, pp 62-64 of "The, Economics
df Clean Water. 1970," a report to the. Congress by the Secretary of
the Interior, indicates that the most probable value of industrial capi-
tal expenditures over the next 5 years, 1970 to 1974, for maintenance
of Federal and State water quality standards is $3.3 billion, with up
to VA billion additional required for installation of waste water cool-
ing facilities:

Annual operating and maintenance charges associated with these
investments, and with the operation of facilities currently ir place,
are_ estimated to rise from about $600 million in the current year to
Over $1 billion by 1974. .

The most comprehensive discussion of this matter is reported on
pp. 57-153, volume II, of "The Cost of Clean Water," a report pre-
sented by the Secretary of the Interior to the Congress on January 10,
1968.
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The figures, in the 1968 "The Cost
r
of Clean Water" are based on the

1963 Census of Manufacturers in which the extent of industrial water
use was identified. .,

Estimates were then projected from that information together with
known charagteristics of waste watr and. pollutants associated with
the various industries. In view of/these sources and procedures, the
resulting data were not admplete.

The. additional data supplied by the mitional industrial waste ini-
ventory will provide a more complfte iind reliable cost figure for
industrial waste treatmeat needs.

Secretary Hiclwl expressed sonic of these concerns in a letter ad-
dressed to yon, Mr. Chairman, on May 7 of this year. At that time,
the Secretary also outlined a pilot study of the availability of indus-.
trial waste data for selected river basins in each of our.nine regiqns.

That study has clearly demonstrated the inadequacy of data from
existing sources and. the, absolute necessity for a comprehensive na-
tional industrial waste hiventory now.

On that basis the. Department of the Interior has developed the
questionnaire wilich I have presented to you today. The questionnake
informs the respondentls of the following terms of confidentiality :

First, sulnission of the information' requested is completely vol-
untary. .

Second, s tell inforiration will be considered confulential within
the meaiiin of 18 U.S.C. 1905 which provides penalties for unlawful
disclosure o trade secrets and other classes of confidential informa-
tion. Accordingly. release of such iirformation will, with certain ex-
ceptions, be' limited to statistical smnmaries which do not identify
individual plants. .

Third, the exceptions for which iii formation identified with individ-
ual plants may be released are descrilwd as including' all those needed
to carry out file provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act. Tiwse include specifically sections. 3(a) and .3(c) of the act
regardhig development and support of water pollution abatement
programs; sections 5 and 6 relatingto causes, control and prevention
cif pollution, and section 10, concerning water quality standards deter-
nnnations and al att enient actions.

Fourth, we provide foN full availability of information to State,
interstate, and local water pollution control officials and agencies
and to Federal officials and agencies subject to the safeguard that such
information will not be disclosed unlawfully.

Mr. Chairman, we believe that Amen= industry increasingly
recognizes the problem of environmental pollution and the need and
benefits of a truly comprehensive national industrial waste inventory.
The questionnaire that we have presented to ;you today provides us
with the means to achieve that comprehensive industrial. waste inven-

. .tory now. i
Thank you, Mr. Ch airman.
Mr. REUSS. Tl milk you, Comm issioner Dominick.
Needless to say, we arecertainly I ammost delighted that after

7 long .years the questionnaire which we have been asking for will
finally be circulated to industry.

When are. you going to do this ?
Mr. DomIxIcx. We will do this in the immediatelfuture.
Mr. REUSS. Within the next month?
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Mr. DOMINICK. Yest sir.
Mr. REUSS. I am delighted to hear that.
I also have already commented favorabIT on the report of your

FWQA to Congress earlier this year in which it was said that lack
of an industrial waste invehtory precludes meaningful improvement
as far as FWQA is concerned.

It then goes on to say, and I quote: "Every effort to initiate an in-
dustrial waste inventory has been frustrated." "

Who has done the frustrating? Certainly not this committee.
Mr. DOMINICK. No, not your committee, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. REUSS. Name the frustrators by name.
Mr; Domprics. The problem of achieving agreement within the

executive branch on the form and the procedures for impkmenting
voluntary industrial waste inventory has been one of 'continuing
breakdown in communication, continuing inability to find agreement
on essential portions and procedures to be followed.

I think the basic point that should be made here today is that agree-
ment finally has been reached, that we are presenting to the committee
end to industry a positive program which we intend to implement
immediately, and that after this long delay we are now proceeding, as I
say, in a positive fashion.

Mr. INI:ss. My question is: Would you pkase identify the frus-
tra tors by name ?

Mr. Donixicx." Mr. Chairman, I don't see that identifying either
persons Or officials within the executive branch serves any real purpose
at this point in time.

Mr. REUSS. I can suggest one purpose. Tfie public would like to
Imow who the marplots are so that in ways open in a democracy they
may do something about them.

So would you identiN themnames addresses, titles ?
Ir. IliTssELL. Well, Mr. Chairman,hasn't Mr. Dominick suggested

there have been differences of opinion between the parties ? Who
is say who is wrong? They have reconciled their differences.

fr. REUSS. Right. I would say the public should be entrusted to say
who is wrong.

Mr. ThcssraL. Anybody,who doesn't--:
Mr. Rialks. Ali we want is their names. The names of Russell-and

Dominick' are held in honor here this morning because we like very
much your decision to get out this long delayed questionnaire within
the next month.

,But without asking you to turn state's evidence against colleagues
in the adthinistration or in past administrations, we would like to
know, since it was in your report that frustrators are at large, who
they are.

Mr. RUSSELU. Well, anybody who doesn't agree with me is wrong.
That's the attitude I thirac that most people have, isn't it?

Mr. REUSS. Well, I would think that a large percentage of the public
would be willing to hold the view that anybody who tried to frustrate
the issuance of this inventory over the last 7 years has been in error.
And in a demoCracy it's not out of order to inquire as to their names
and addresses.
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Mr. RUSSELL. Well, isn't what you mean, Mr. Dominick, that the
conclusion has been frustrated by differeme of opinion which finally
is reconciled ?

Mr. Itsuss. Well, I don't want to be too inquisitorial. We will leave
a sufficient amount of white space in the record so that you may within
the m:gt few days fill in the names, titles, and addresses of those who
over the last 7 years have frustrated the industrial wastes inventory..

(NoTE.Commissioner Dominick's response of September 28, 1970,
a nd the enclosures transmitted therewith, follow :)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION,

Washington, D.C., September 28, 1970.
Hon. HENRY S. REUSS,
Chairman, Conservation. and Natural Resources Subcommittee, Committee on

Government Operations, House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MR. REUSS This is in reply to your letter to Secretary 'Hickel of May 28,

1970, and your letters of July 23, 1970, to Secretary. nickel and me, concerning a
national inyentory of industrial wastes.

I believe Under-Secretary Russell, Deputy Solicitor Coulter, and I answered
the questions raised in your letters when we appeared before you and the other
members of the Subcommittee on Conservation and Natural Resources. We appre-
ciate the opportunity you have afforded us to describe our national industrial
waste inventory in terms of its need, its implementation, and its anticipated
benefits.

During the hearings you referred to a statement which appeared in the Eco-
nomics of Clean Water (vol. I, p. 18) that "every effort to initiate an industrial
waste inventory has been frustrated." You asked me to name the "frustrators."
The frustrations to which the report refers were the result of differences of
()Onion ;Ind of the delays occhsioned by a consideration of options and alterna-
tives and the resolution of those differences. The report simply means that
there were frustrations, not individual frustrators.

Members of my staff have since met with members of the subcommittee staff to
refine the statement tO be included in the questionnaire concerning the use of
the solicited data.

Copies of the legal opinions of the Department's Solicitor which you re-
quested are enclosed.-

In answer to your additional request, three copies of the proposed regulations
regarding certification of facilities under the Tax Reform Act of 1969 are also
enclosed. These proposed regulations were published in the Federal Register on
June 10, 1970.'We plan to republish these regulations in final form, coordinated
with the regulations of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare con-
cerning the certification of air pollution control facilities.

As we stated before your subcommittee, we will keep you apprised of our prog-
ress in the implementation of the national industrial waste inventory.

Sincerely yours,
DAVID D. DOMINICK,

Commissioner.
EnclosuresCopies of Solicitor's opinions of September 1, 1970, and three copies

of 18 CFR, pt. 602.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF THE SOI1CITOR,

Washington, D.C., September 1, 1970.
Memorandum to Commissioner, Federal Water Quality Administration.
From : Solicitor.
Subject : Questions posed by Representatives Reuss and Vander Jagt relative to

requesting information about waste discharges.
In your memorandum dated June 16, 1970, you requested my views on two

questions raised by Representatives Reuss and Vander Jagt in their letter to the
Secretary dated May 20, 1970.

4
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The questions concern section 601.32 of the regulatoins on section 8 construc-
tion grants which were publiAed in the Federal Register as proposed rulentak-
ing on March 31, 1970 (35 F.R. 534(i). We note that tne proposed rules were re-
vised and published in the Federal Register as final rules on July 2, 1970 (35 F.R.
10756). There were no substantial revisions in that portion of the regulations
which are the subject of the Reuss-Vander Jagt inquiry.

QUESTION 1

The first question is the legal basis upon which the Commb.sioner (or, more
baskally, the Secretary) may request the information listed in subparagraphs
(1) through (6) of iS CFR 601.32(b)relating primnrily to the source, volume,
and composition of waste dischargesbefore. awarding n grant for the t.onstruc-
don of a treatment works under section 8 of the Federal Water Pollution Con-
trol Act.

My opinion Is thnt since the information is neeessary to enable the Secretary
adquately to perform hi.: functions under the net, his authority to request the
information is hnpl irk in the act.

141bsection 8(c) of the act provides that in considering the desirability of
projects and of committing Federal funds to their eonstruction, the Secretary
is required to give consideration to tlw public benefits to be derived from the
construction, and to the relationship of the ultimate cost of construeting and
maintaining the works to the publie interest and public necessity for the works.
Tile plain object of such an analysis is to attentpt to get the best treatment, and
the best results in terms of enhancement of water quality, for the least amount
of money. Implivit in the statute is the notion that funds are not unlimited and
that they should be spent where. they will dg the most good.

Experience has shown that a proposed 'Project cannot be adeqtmtcly evaluated
in terms of optiinum siting, adequacy of design, efficiency of operation, nnd
effectiveness in enhancing the quality of the receiving waters, unless extensive
inforntation is obtained about the source, volume, and composition of ali signifi-
cant waste discharges intO all or porf ions of IN. wa ters in question.

Since the Secretary is required by the act to UM ke a public benefit analysis of
a proposed woject before mnunitting Federal funds to that project, and since
suell att analysis requires that the obtain the information in question, the con-
clusion is inescapable that he not only has authority to request the information,
but may properly deny funding if it is not forthcoming.

QUESTION 2

The second question is whether the provisions of 44 U.S.C. 3511 would prohibit
the Secretary from denying a grant .application on the ground that the State
or municipnlity concerned refused or failed to provide the requested informa-
tion on waste discharges.

44 U.S.111. 3511 is as follows :
"A person failing to furnish information required by an agency shall be

subjeet to mutinies speOlically prescribed by law, and no other penalty may
be imposed either by way of fine or imprisonment or by the withdrawal or
dnial of a right, privilege, priority, allotment, or inununity, exeept when
the right, privilege, priority, allotmnt, or immunity is legally conditioned
on facts whieh would be revealed by the information requested."

My opinion is that 44 U.S.C. 3511 would present no bar to denial of the grant
application.

An examination of its legislative history is useful to an understanding of 44
U. S.C. 3511. :

44 U.S.C. 3511 is section 8 of the Federal Reports Aet of 1942 (5(1 Stat. lOTS).
This act 'win; enacted to curb certnin practices of Federal agencies such as the
Wnr Production Board and the Office of 'Price Administration, during the early
part of WOrld War H, in colleeting infornultIon from businesses and private
citizens considered germane to commodity rationing, the setting of price eeilings,
and other wartime economic policies. During debate en the bill, Senator Vanden-
berg of Michigan referred to the "almost insufferable burden upon American
business in respect to questionnaires, reports, regulations, and rules which are
descending upon it like a snowstorm, 7 days a week."' Section 1 of the act states

1 Congressional Record, vol. 88, p. 9078 (Nov. 22. 1942).
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the congressional policy that-information needed by Federai agencies should be
obtained with a ininhnum burden upon businesses and others required to fur-
nish the information, at a minimum cost to tiw Government, and without un-
neeessary duplication of effort.

Section 8 was not included in the bill enneted by tlw Senate, but was the
subjea of an amendment introduced on the floor of the House. Its purpose, ac-
cording to its sponsor (Representative Howard W. Smith of Virginia), WRI4 to
curb the practice of some Dgvneles of imposing extralegal pefutales for viola-
tions of tlwir directIvessueh ns the denial of ration cards or tiw right to buy
eerthin rationed commoditiesin addition to or in lieu of the tine and imprison-
ment authoriwd by statute.'

My reasons for believing that C.S.C. 3511 would not present a bar to denini
of a grant application11 re as follows :

1. It is not believed that the Federal Reports Act of 1942 has any applica-
tion to the Seeretary in his administration of the t refitment works construc-
tion grants program. As diseussed above, the sitimtion with which that act
wits designed to deal bea N no resemblance whatever to the FIVQA's eonstruction
grant activities.

2. Even if 44 U.S.C. 3511 did apply to the FWQA's construction grant aetivi-
ties, denial of a groat application due to failure to supply the requested in-
formation would Mit constitute a violation of 44 U.S.C. Xi 11 since a construc-
tion grant is not a "right" or "privilege." Wiwther or not construction grants
are a warded is euti rely dbwretio»nry with the Secretitry.

3. Even if 44 U.S.C. 3511 of Vied, and it were held that a eonst ruetion grant
eonstitutes a "right" or "privilege," denial of the application for failure to supply
the requested information would be proper because the right to the grant would
be "legally conditlimed on facts which would be revealed by the inform/01ml
requested." In other words, since. as discussed in eonnection with question 1,
the Secretary has anthority to nsk for the information, and shwe the informa-
tion is relevant to the deeision of whether or not to award the grant, the applica-
tion may be denied if the information is not supplh.d.

Mrrcif ii.i MELICII,
Solicitor.

PROPOSED RULE MAGINGDEPARTMENT OF TIIE INTERIOR, FEDERAL WATER QUALITY
ADMINISTRMON

[18 CFR Part 6011

GRANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF TREATMENT WORKS

Notice of Proposed Rule Making

Notiee is hereby given that the Seeretary of tiw Interior pursuant to the
authority in se(41on 6. 70 Stat. 502, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 466e, proposes to
amend Subpart B of Part 601 by revising §

The proposed amendment is intended to further strengthen the waste treat-
ment facility constnwt ion grant program by restating the adequate trentlIWIlt
requirement P ons I st ently with ivater pollution emit rol advances In related areas.
The improvement and modernization of the proposed treatment requirement is
essential to an effective, consistent cooperative effort to nehleve and implonent
water quality standards and to enhance water qnality. The proposwi trmtment
requirement is expressed in te:ms of uniform minimally lweeptable performamp
of a treatment work. The &slap, plans and speeificntions of a proposed treat-
ment plant, however, must take intfs amount seasonal temperature fluctuations
and other factors which will affect iterformanse, s» as to sstisfy the Commk-
stoner that the mthimuni level of treatment will be atniued year around.

Interested persons may submit, 111 tripliente. written data, or arguments in
regard to the proposed regulations to the Secretary of the interior, Washington.
D.C. 20240. All relevant material received not later than 45 days after publication
of this notice will be conside.vd.

*See remnrkg of ReprenentatIve Smith In Congressional Record, vol. 88, pp. 9104-9165
(Nov. 27, 1942) and pp. 9435-9430 (Dec. 10. 1942).

51-539-70---2
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Section 601.25 would be amended by revising paragraph (b) thereof as follows:
§601.25 Grant limitations.

*

(b) No grant shall be made for any project unless the applicant provides
assurance satisfactory to the Commissioner that the proposed treatment works,
or part thereof, will adequately treat sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid
natUre in order to abate, control, or prevent water pollution. No such assurance
will be satisfactory unless it includes assurance that the treatment works or
part thereof, if constructed, operated and maintained in accordance with plans,
lesigns and specifications, will result in: (1) Substantially complete removal
of all floatable and settleable materials; (2) removal of not less than 85 per-
emit of bieelwmical oxygen demand, determined on a monthly average, taking
into .account design flow, temperature fluctuations and such 'other factors as
the Commissioner deems approwlate; (3) disinfection or other methods to
produce substantially complete reduction of micro-organisms; (4) such midi-
t;onal trmtment as may be necessary to meet applicable water quality standards,
reccomendations of the Secretary or order of a court pursuant to section 10
of the Federal Act: Provided, That in the case of a project which will serve a
municipality with a population equivalent of 10,000 PeTROTIR, or less, the Com-
missioner may waive the assurance of subparagraphs (2) and (3) of this para-
graph if he determpes that different methods or techniques of treatment are
neeessary or appropriate: Provided further, That in the case of a project which
will discharge wastes into open oeean waters through an ocean outfall, the
Commissioner may waive the requirements of subparagraphs (2) and (3) of
this paragraph if he determines that such discharges will not adversely affect
the open ocean environment and adjoining shores.

Dated: June 4, 1970.
WALTER J. IIICKEL,

Secretary of the Interior.
[P.R. Doc. 70-7159 ; Fih.d June 9. 1970 8 :47 a.m.]

[18 CFR Part 602]

CERTIFICATION OF FACILITIES

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking

Notice is hereby given that the Secretary of the Interior pursuant to the
authority in section 301, 80 Stat. 378, 5 U.S.C. 301, proposes to revise Part 602.

The proposed revision is intended to implement section 704 of the Tax Reform
Act of 1969, Public Law 91-172, which provides for the amortization of air and
water pollution control facilities. The proposed regulations provide requirements
and procedures for obtaining certificationa from the gecretary for purposes of
the amortization.

Interested persons may submit, in triplicate, written data or arguments in
regard to the proposed regulations to the Secretary of the Interior, Washington,
D.C. 20240. All relevant materiai received no later than 45 days after publication
cf this notice will be considered.

PART 602CERTIFICATION OF FACILITIES
sec.
602.4 Applications.
602.2 Definition&
602.3 General provision&
602.4 Applications.
602.5 State certification.
602.6 General policies.
602.7 Requirements for certification.
602.8 Cost recovery.
602.9 Notice of intent to certify.

ArTHORITY The provisions of this Paft 602 issued under eee. 301, 80 Stat. 878 ;
5 U.S.C. 801.

§602.1 Applicability.
The regulations of this part apply to certifications by the Secretary under

section 169 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended.

17
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§ 602.2 Definitions.
As used in this part, the following terms shall have the meaning indicated

below ;
(a) "Federal Act" means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended

(33 U.S.C. 400 et seq. ).
(b) "State water pollution control agency" means the State health anthority,

except that, in the case of any State in which there is a single State agency,
other than the State health authority, charged with responsibility for enforcing
State laws relating to the abatement of water pollution, it means such other
State agency.

(c) "Applicant" means any person who files an application with the Secretary
for certification that property is fn compliance with the applicable regulation:3
of Federal agencies and the general policies of the United States for cooperation
with the States in the prevention and abatement of water pollution under the
Federal Act:

(d) "Secretary" means the Secretary of the Interior.
(e) "Facility" means property for which certification is sought under this

part.
11602.3 General provisions.

(a) Applicants shall file applications in accordance with this part for each
facility for which certification is sought.

(b) Applications shall be submitted to the Secretary through the State water
pollution control agency.

(c) No certification shall be rendered for any facility prior to the commence-
ment of operation of such facility in accordance with the application.

(d) An amendment to an application shall be submitted iu the same manner
as the original application and shall be considered a part of the application it
amends.

(e) No certification shall be rendered by the Secretary for any faellity prior
to the certification of such facility by the State water pollution control agency
in accordance with this part.

(f) The Secretary shall notify applicants whether or not a certification is
issued. If the Secretary determines not to issue a certification be shall advise
the applicant of the reasons therefor.
§602.4 Applications.

Applications for certification under this part shall be submitted in such manner
as the Secretary may prescribe and shall include the following information :

(a) Name and address of the applicant and Internal Revenue Service Iden-
tifying Number.

(b) Description of the facility for which certification is sought (including a
copy of schematic or engineering drawings), and a description of the function
and operation of such facility ;

(c) Address of facility location ;
(d) Description of the industrial operation in connection with which such

facility is or will be used;
(e) Description of the effort of such facility in terms of quantity and quality

of wastes removed, altered, or disposed of by such facility ;
(f) Dates of construction and operation of such facility ;
(g) The amount of profits to be derived through recovery of wastes or otherwise

in the operation of the facility ;
(h) Such other information as the Secretary deems necessary for certification.

§602.5 State certification.
No application shall be considered by the Secretary until it has been submitted

to the State water pollution control agency, and unless the application is accom-
panied by a State certification that the facility described in such application is
in conformity with the State program and requirements for control of water
pollution, including applicable water quality standards and effluent standards.
Such certification shall be executed by an agent or officer authorized to act on
behalf of the State water pollution control agency and accompanied by evidence
of such authority.



16

§602.6 General policies.
The general policies of the United States for

the prevention and abatement of writer pollution t
enhance the quality and value of onr weer rem
fiat polhitiou of interstate waters and tributaries tl
condition of surface and undergronnd waters ; to c
water supplies, propagation of ilsh, and aquatic
purposes, and agricultural, indnstrial, and otlwr le
Preserve, and protect tlw prim:try responsibilitl
preventing and controlling water pollution.
§602.7 Requirements for certification.

(a) Except as provided in § 602.8, if Vhe Secretary determines that n
for which application for certilkation has been made in accordance with flie
provisions of this part, is in contplhince with the applicable regulations of
Federal agencies nnd the genend polieles of the United States for cooperation
with the States in the prevention and abatement of water pollution under the
Federal Art, he shall so mrtify.

b) In del crediting whet her u facility complies with apt tlicable regulations of
Federal agencies and the general itollelps .of the United States for cooperation
with the States in the prevention and abatement of water pollution under the
Fedeml Act, the Secretary shall vonsider whet her such facility is consistent with
and meets the miniWitten Is of the following faetors, insofar as they are appli-
entb! to the waters which will be a irveted by ihe fneility :

(1 ) NVater quality standards, ineluding wa ter quality eritmin nnd plans of
inqilementation and en foreemen t estn Wished pursuant to section 10(e) of the
Federnl Act.
Attt!) U(44)10111(.11(111 t ions issned tursuant to section 10 (e) and (f) of the Federal

(3) State water polhition control programs established pursunnt to section 7
of the Federal Act and regulations under Subpart A, Pnrt 601 of this chapter ;

(4) Comprehmisive water pollution control programs established pursuant
to seetion 3 of the Federal Act;

() State, interstate, and local standards and requirements for the prevention,
control, and abatement of water pollution.
§602.8 Cost recovery.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this part, the Commissioner will not
certify any 'facility to the extent it appears that by reason of profits derived
through the recovery of wastes 'or otherwise in the operation of such facility,
its costs will be recovered over itS actulal useful life.
§602.9 Notice of intent to verify.

On the basis of applications submitted prior to the construction and operation
of a facility, the Commissioner may notify It pmiennts tIm t such facility will be
certified if :

(ii) Tlw Commissioner determines that such facility, if eonstructed awl op-
erated in accordance with such appliention, will be in eomplinnce with the
requirements identified in § 002.7, and in furtherance of the general policies
identified in §1M2Ai: and if

(b) The application is accompanied by a statement frem the State water
pollution omtrol agency that snch facility, If constructed and operated in accord-
ance with stwit appikation, Mil be in conformity with the State program or re-
quirements for abatement or control of water pollution.

Dated : June 5, 1970.

operation with the States in
mier the Federal Act are : To'
trees; to eliminate or reduce.
reof ; to improve Ow sanitary
serve such waters for public
fe and wildlife, recreational
timate uses; and to recognize,
and rights of the Status in

WALTER J. HICKEL,
Secretary of the Interior.

Wit. Doe. 70-7198 ; Filed .1une 9, 1970 ; 8 :50 a.m.]

Mr. REUSS. Let me now turn to the details of the questiommire. This
relates to pages 6 and 7 of your testimony, Mr. Dominick.

You say first that, the submission of the information requested is com-
pletely voluntary. Let me say that that's completely agreeable to this

19
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committee. We have suggested that it be completely voluntary. Any-
body unwilling to give you the information on what poisons, toxins or
pollutants are pouring into ouw streams and lakes would not, nnder
this questionnaire, be compelled to pmvide it.

The second condition is one that concerns me, however, and I will
read it :

Second, such information will be considered confidential Within the meaning
of 18 1903 which provides penalties for nnlawhl disclosure of trade
secrets amid other classes of confidential information. Accordingly, release of
such information will, with certain exceptions, be limited to statistical sum-
maries which do not identify individual plants.

Well, 18 U.S.C. 1905 prohibits unlawful disclosure not only for t rade
secrets, which I agree should be kept confidential, although I doubt
any will be threatened by the revelation of pollution data. But it
also applies to disclosure of just about everythingprocesses, op-
cent ions, style of work, or a ppa rah's.

And do I understand t hat t his questionnaire which you propose to
send out willin the case of an industry which is pouring, let us
sa, mercury nto an intrastate streamnot let the public in on the
secret of who is doing this: and 'die public thus will be unable to know
whether the US attorney is following the mandate of Congress
under the 1899 Refuse Act to "vigorously" prosecute the pourer-in of
the mercury ?

If so. I hope we don't have to wait anotlier 7 years to give the public
that. informatiOn.

What's with it ?
Mr. Domixicic I think the direct answer to your question is no.
Mr. REuss. I don't know whether that is a good answer or not.

No what? No, the Miscreant's identity is to be kept secret? Or, no, it is
to be made public ?

Mr. Duni:cu.:lc: As I understand the provisions of 18 U.S.C. 1905,
only that port ion of the information winch can be interpreted as fall-
ing under the definition of trade secrets, et cetera, is to be treated as
confidential within the provisions of that section.

Mr. Rsuss. I am delighted to hear that, except for the "et cetera."
What have we got in there?

Mr. DomiNicx. Since this whole question of confidentiality is ono
great legal complexity, Fd like to have the Deputy Solicitor speak to
that. question.,

Mr. REuss. Mr. Coulter, would you, please, I hope, confirm in the
most vigorous manner that you aren't going to cover up the industrial
miscreants who pour poisons into our waters except where there is a
trade secret involved?

Mr. Couurrat. Well, Mr. Chairman, I would affirm what the Com-
missioner has said, that public disclosure of miscreants will not be
a frected here by this.

If you remember, section 1905 provides among other things for
prohibition on disclosure of processes, trade secretsI can't remem-
ber the entire list.

Mr. R EUSS. I have it in front of me.
Mr. Commit Have you ? Oh, here it is. Operations. Style of
(18 U.S.C. 1905 follows :)
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TITLE 18.CRIMES AND CRIMINAL PRISCEDURE

SEC. 1005. Disclosure of confidential information generally.
Whoever, being an officer or employee of the United States or of any depart-

ment or agency thereof, publishes, divulges, discloses, or makes known in any
manner or to any extent not authorized by law any information coining to him
in the course of his employment or official duties or by reason of any examina-
tion or investigation made by, or return, report or record made to or filed with,
such department or agency or officer or employee thereof, which information
concerns or relates to the trade secrets, processes, operations, style of work,
or apparatus, or to the identity, confidential statistical data, amount or source
of any income, profits, losses, or expenditures of _any person, firm, partnership,
corporation, or association; or permits any income return or copy thereof or anY
book containing any abstract or particulars thereof to be seen or examined
by any person except as provided by law; shall be fined not more than $1,000,
or imprisoned not more than one year, or both; and shall be removed from
office or employment. (June 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 Stat. 791.)

Mr. REuss. It says woe bet ide the man who unlawfully discloses in-
formation which relates to, and now I'm quoting, "trade secrets"
and I interpolate "so far so good"but then it goes on to say
"processes, operations,:style of work or apparatus."

Well, now, the pouring of mercury or arsenic or anything else into
our streams is a process, an operation, a style of work. Are you going
to participate in covering that up ?

Mr. Coumn. No ; I don't think so, Mr. Chairman. As a matter of
fact, section 1005 includes, among other things, an exception wherein
this information cannot be disclosed except where otherwise author-
ized by law. We conclude that the various acts that constitute the water
pollution control law provide us with sufficient authority to take appro-
priate action in any case involving pollution.

Mr. REuss. Yes ; but what about acts like the Refuse Act of 1899
which mandates the U.S. attorney to "vigorously"that's Congress'
word, not mineprosecute the dischargers of pollutional material ?
Are you going to suppress the evidence that you obtain from these
question na i res ?

Mr. COULTER. No ; we are not. In that context of actually prosecuting
a given pollutery we would be utilizing this information, andy as a mat-
ter of fact, this is so stated in paragraph 3 that the Commissioner read
of our confidentiality statement where we would be utilizing this in-
formation for that very purpose.

Mr. REUSS. Yes. Lees come to that. And I'll read you paragraph 3
which has to do with the exceptions to the rule of confidentiality.

Mr. COULTER. Could I emphasize one other thing, Mr. Chairman,
before vou do?

Mr. IZEUSS. Surely.
Mr. COULTER. You will recall that the Commissioner stated this was

a voluntary disclosure.
Mr. REuss. Right.
Mr. Coutmn. And, being voluntary, the company is able to with-

hold certain information, if they so desire, on filling out the question-
naire. But to the extent that they provide that information, we are
entitled to use it, and this statement will be made to them as a part of
the questionnaire.

Mr. REUSS. Surely. But let us now turn to the exceptions and I will
read from Mr. Dominick's statement :
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Third, the exceptions for which Information identified with individual plants
may be released are described as including all those needed to carry out the
provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

Well, that's interesting, but since the Federal Water Pollution Con-
trol Act really doesn't do very much about intrastate pollution, it
doesn't mean very much.

In the Case given by me, where a polluter pours mercury into an
intrastate streamana ninny of our streams are intmstateand con-
lesses to you that he has done so, how is the public ever going to know
whether the U.S. attorney is doing his job to vigorously prosecute this
endangerer of the life and limb of our people?

Mr. Commi. Well, M r. Chairman, perhaps I don't understand your
question. But let me refer you to pa ragratili 4 of this confidentiality
statement which provides, among other things. that information that
we develop in connection with this inventory will be nuule available to
Federal, State, and local agencies that also are. charged with responsi-
bil ity under various acts for pollution control.

Mr. REUSS. True. But the thing which causes the publicthe people
who elect or don't elect usfor example, to be irate about the environ-
ment today is that the Federal, State, and local water pollution con-
trol officials have been sitting there not doing very innch, and the public
has lately been utilizing such methods as are at hand for prodding
public oflicials into doing their statutory duty.

If you conceal from the public the fact that x plant is pouring
mercurv, arsenic, and cylmide into Nine Mile Creek at the rate of
hundreds of gallons a day, and if the Federal, State, and local officials
are as lackadaisical as they have frequently been in the past, how is
the public to know whether its servants are doing their dut.y or not?

Mr. Couram Well, Mr. Chairman, you are assuming that we are
not going to tell them. But I think the Commissioner has indicated to
youand I would say the same thingtlmt where we have a known
polluter, that information is going to be made available to the public
as far as the name is concerned. Now, with regard to trade secrets and
p rocesse s

Mr. liEuss. Nobody suggests that you should make public trade
secrets but just.

Mr. COULTER. That's what I was going to
Mr. REUSS. It isn't a trade secret if factory, x discharges cyanide,

arsenic, and mercury into Nine Mile Creek as far as I can see. Yet in
your submission hereand let me follow this through again

Mr. COULTER. Certainly.
Mr. REuss (continuing). You say, one von are going to consider it

confdential if it's a trade secret, which is, tine, or if it otherwise conies
within section 1905, which relates to promsses and operations.

Now, it seems to me that the discharge of mercury, cyanide, and
arsenic into Nine Mile Creek is an operation and a process of the
plant and so that this will start out being secret and confidential.

Then we come to the exceptions. and exception No. 1 is that you
won't make it secret if it is needed to carry out the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act. But the trouble is the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act doesn't have much of anything to do with pollution on
int rast ate Nine Mile Creek.
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Then you sny, well. you'ee going to provide this information to
State. interstate, and local water pollution control officials. But they
are the, people who have been sitting on tlwir oars not doing anything
about it for. Jo. these many years. And the publicappreliensive about
big goverimwnt, in geiwral, and particularly upsa at the hanky-
pnnkr that has laTn going on for so many years Iwtween government
and polluterswill be kft out, of it. This is what roncerns me. And
while your answers, both Mr. Omber and Mr. Dominick, have been
somewhat retvsnring. they (nllide with the questionnaire and what,
von say here in your st lament. I th hilc MT have to get that straightened
out.

Mr. COULTER. T don't consider they collide, Mr. Cha I rinan, Let me
comment on several aspects.

Tlw Congress has btfore it. presently a legklative program snggested
by the administnit ion whkh, if enacted, T am sure would b highly
wneficial with respect, to meeting the problem that you suggest with

regard i 0 Nine Mile intrnst ate creek.
Second, the provisions of section 1905 have not. been adequately

construed by the courts. But to the extent that. public disclosure was
necessary under any one. of these exceptions, I think we wouhl have
the ability to do so.

Mr. IZErss. But. why in your presentation here do yon refer to sec-
tion 1905? Why don't yon simply say that, one, submission of the
information k voluntary and. t wo, t his information -be considered
confidential to) nil. extent and only to thin PxtPllt that it involves trade
semu,,--period ?

Mr. Comma. Well, No. 1, Mr. Chairman, section 1905 isn't related
only to trade secrets, and, second. sMion 1905 is a. criminal statute
with respect to employees of the Federal Government. and we have
to recognize statutory enactment. 1Ve can't do anything else.

Mr. IZEuss. Mr. Busse] l, if I just cnuld (nutmeat on that before reeog-
nizing von, section 1905 certainly doesn't have, anything to do with a
Federal employee who releases information which he obtains volun-
tarily from an industry which has been warned that, this information
will I w released. If they don't want to give that information, that's
t1nir business. They don't need to. But if they do, I can't imagine that
there's any Federal lawcertainly not section 1905which prevents
telling t he pliblic that XYZ coinlainy has now furnished the interesting
information that. it has been (lumping nwrenry, cyanide, and arsenic,
into Nine Mile Creek.

Mr. COULTER. Well, Mr. Chairman, if we examine 1905, and let me
read it here, it says:

Whoever, being an officer or employee of the United Sthtes or of any department
or agency thereof. publishes, divulges, discloses, or makes known in any manner
or to any extent not authorized by law any information coming to him in the
course of his employment or official duties * * *.

Tlwre's nothing 'in that section that says voluntary or otherwise,
Mr. Chairman. It's any information coming to him in the course of
his official duties.

--Mr. REUSS. Let me reread to you the law. What you have just read
in section 1905 does make it illegal. and I think properly so. for a Gov-
ernment employee acting on lns own and without authority of law
.to release information which he acquirs in the course of bis duties.
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Mr. CouurEn, Whether volnntarily or given otherwise.
Mr. REUSS. Bight. Section 1905 1)1.6161)4s disclosures to the, extent

not authorized by law. Now, let's look at what the law anthorizes.
And I call your attention to the Federal Water Pant hm Control
Act, section 5, subsection (e), whieh says, wile Secretary shall * * *
collect and disseminate basic data on chemieal, physieal, and biologi-
cal water quality :Ind other information insofar as sucli data or other
information relate to water pollntion and the prevention and con-
trol thereof."

Now, what clearer anthorization by law eoldd we have than that.?
So why go a mund Robin Hood's barn and talk abont keeping con-

fidential everything which is mentioned in section 1905? Because sec-
tion 19(15 is., of conrse, to be read in connection with section 5 ( e ) of
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

3f. Covurnt. Well, Mr. Chaimium, as I rend that section of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act. the Secretary is directed by
Congress to colleet and disseminate in fornmtion. Now, this particular
section of the statute did not. repeal. dhl not wodi fy. seet km 1905.

Mr. Rryss. It fleshes it. out. It fleslws ont the "extent not authorized
by law" portion.

Mr. Ccwi.TEn. As the Commissioner pointed mit, we will be utiliz-
ing this to make information available through .stntistieal summaries
and otlwrwise. and where necessary in the development and support,
of programs, and so forth in conneetion with the third point he mnde
under confidentiality this information will be utilized.

Mr. Rimss. Well, I don't, know how it's going to profit the 204 mil-
lion people of the United States to get a statistical summary. saying
that at various undisclosed points in the 50 States various miscreants
are diseharging however many liten; a day of mercury, arsenic, cya-
nide. or wliatever other poisons they are diseharging.

I donI think that's going to butter any parsnips whatever.
Mr. Coi-uri. I would agree with you, Mr. Chairman, :Ind equally

I would say it's not going to lw of any benefit to really divulge tech-
nical proeesses or fmlinical operations thatQ company might be en-
gaged in.

Mr. REuss. Stipulated. We have always saki tlw technical prwess
need n:it be disclosed. But do von call it a technical process to be asked
to state whether you are dise.harging mercury and the other things I
have been talking about?

Mr. Comma. No. I think the Commissioner has indicated that.
Mr. REUSS. Well, I don't want to prolong this further, blut 1 think

them is a considerable, job of cleaning lip and clearing up to be done
lw re, and I don't know why you don't simply say that, trade secrets will
be held inviolate and conficlential and anybody who discloses them
will, under section 1905, be fined $1,000 and imprisoned for 1 year or
both.

I'd like to see any public official who covers up mercury, cyanide, and
arsenic pollntion in Nine Mile Creek fined $1,000 and imprisoned for
1 year or both. But you want to protect him. And we have a continuing
disagreement.

Mr. Russell, I now want to hear from you.



22

Mr. Russm. Trade secrets as related to operations and processes
are how something is done. And there wouldn't be any problem under
the approach taken here about being able to identify the result of
what was done, what pollution was created, and who did it. So the
trade secret that needs protecting in order that it will not injure one
operator by revealing his methods to another doesn't interfere with
what is the amount, of pol lutio a and who did it.

So we are able to act. We'ei be able to act on the matter and not be
prevented from acting by yea s(in of the regard that we have to protect
the trade secrets.

Mr. REUSS. I'm delighted to hear you say that, Mr. Tinder Secretary.
And with what you say now I agree perfectly, and you're on all fours
with this subcommittee.

The only tronble is that, in Mr. Dominick's statement it says that
information will be considered confidential within the meaning of 18
U.S.C. 1905, which provides penalties for unlawful disclosures of trade
secrets and other classes of confidential information.

The trouble is that section 1905, after getfing through with men-
tioning trade secrets, refers to processes, operations, style of work,
or apparatuA.

Mr. BIISSELL. Again
Mr. RErss. So if you can amend that condition in Mr. DorninicVs

statement to just. refer to trade, secrets, it, would seem to me-everything,
would be, fine and we would be in complete agreement.

Mr. Rrssrur.. Well-
11r. PP.t-ss. We aren't interested in invading_ the necessary corporate

privacy on a trade secret, but we are interested in finding out whether,
secmt or no secret, they are dumping poisons into our waterways.

Mr. Bussnr,t,. But trade secrets which relate to operations, proc-
esses, and apparatus are no barrier to our identifying an amount of
pollution.

Mr. lb:rss. I absolutely agree. The trouble is, Mr. Tinder Secretary,
that if you read section 1905, it does not exclusively mention trade
secrets as the sole, kind of information which can't be released. It in-
c1ude:3 processes, operations, style of work, or apparatus. And if Eng-

lish grammar means anything, those processes and operations don't
have to he related to tra de secrets.

Mr. RUSSELL. IVell, they don't have to be related to it, but describ-
ingit isn't necessary to Identify the result by describing tbe proeess
that ereates it. So the' fact that we don't divulge the process isn't going
to be any handicap.

Mr. REUSS. Well
Mr. RUSSEIL. And if we dc,n't describe the apparatus.
Mr. RETTRS. Pm much encouraged at what you are saying Mr.

Secretary. And I think, based on what you say, if we can work co-
operatively in tbe next, few days at dotting "i's" and crossing "t's"
and I'm sure we canmaybe this is just a tempest in a teapot, and I
hope it will be.

But what you're saying is that, in the Nine Mile Creek case that 1.
put, you are not going to cover up for the XYZ manufacturing com-
pany which says that it is introducing these poisons into the stream.
Instead, you are going to make public, not just to public officials, but
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to the citizens and taxpayers, the name of the company and the stream
and place where the discharge is occurring and the elements dis-
charged? Is that true?

Mr. RUSSELL Yes, sir. Not how lie did it.
Mr. REUSS. I am most encouraged, and I think we can correct what

has consumed Quite a bit of time here.
Mr. Vander Jagt ?

JMr. VANDER AGT. Thanlc you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Like the chairman, I regret the 7-year delay in arriving at what I

think is a very commendaHe decisiOn and conclusion by the Depart-
ment. I am sorry for the delay, but I am tremendously thrilled and
excited by the decision to proceed immediately with tlm voluntary
industrial waste inventory, and I think you are to be commended and
congratulated for making that decision.

I think the chairman and this committee and its staff, by never
giving up the struggle for 7 years, are also to be commended over this
very happy result.

I will confess dint if I had to take a law examination bn this discus-
sion of the law right now, I would probrffily flunk the exam.. So I
just want to make sure in my mind of the facts. Is it your feeling,
under the provisions of this confidentiality outline which you have

, presented, that you would be authorized to, and will, publicize the
name of the discharger and the point of discharge and the quantity of
discharge?

Mr. COULTER. It would be my opinion that under this statute we
could do just that as long as we (lid not reveal the technical processes
and operations that went int( this.

Mr. VANDER JAM. Then I agree with the chairman again that we're
on the same beam and it's just a matter of working out the details. And
I'm g.lad that the problem is cleared up.

.1 have nothing further, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Rums. Mr. Hicks ?
Mr. Macs. No questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. REUSS. COlInsel Indritz.
Mr. Irmarrz. In light of the colloquy that has taken place between

the committee and yourselves, it may be f I need not pursue some
of the details of the precise language of your proposed confidentiality
clause. However, I call to your attention thatparagraph 2 of your
proposed confidentiality clause states that certain information will be
considered confidential within the meaning of 18 United States Code,
sectiOn 1905, and then states that there are certain exceptions in para-
graph 3 of your proposed confidentiality clause.

Paragraph 3 refers to sections 3 (a) and (c), sections 5 and 6, and
section 10, of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

Afy question is : ls this enumeration of sections intended to exclude
oat 3r sections such as, for example, section 7 of the act which relates

, to the States' programs of planning and enforcement? Will it exclude
sectiOn 11 which relates to oil pollution? Will it exclude section 12
which relates to discharge of hazardous substances? Or any of tbe
other 'sections of the act which invest in your agency the duty to deal
with the abatement and control of water pollution?

Mr. Doimarrics. Mr. Indritz, I think that is an excellent question
and goes to the heart of some of the drafting problems here.
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exclusive. I think you hal% raised an excellent point, and perhaps the
addition of words "including brit not limited to" or "for example"
would be a way of getting around this drafting problem.

A. direct answer to your question is: No we are not intending to ex-
clude the other provisions of the act. from the operation of section 1905.

Mr. Ixnurrz. If the chairman of the subcommittee were willing to
offer assistance to you in the drafting of that language, would you be
will ino. to accept such assistance?

Mr.P.DourxicK. We are always willing to accept assistance from the
Congress.

Mr. Wyss. If I may interject. I think we are uuuakiiug great progress.
and from the responses of all three of you gentlemeirI think that the
preliminary draft language which you have here ran be clarified.

For example, it would lw unfair to industry to send out a voluntary
questionnaire which seems to say to the lawyer fer that particular in-
dustry that anything having to do with processes or operations is go-
ing to be confidential. They would be justified in thinking that,
well, discharcring mercury is a process and olwrat ion "so we re pm-
tected" int tliey'd then find that, the Interior Department is maldng
it public, which you tell us, and which we're happy to hear, that yon
intend to do.

Therefore, I think, in fairness to industry, you ought to inalw it
clearand I'm sure you willthat what will he kept confidential is
the trade secret part of it; but, as Mr. Vander Jagt says, what is dis-
charged, who discharged it:into what waterway. awl when, will not
he kept confidential, so that if they want to say, "No ; i've'm not answer-
ing your questionnaire," they're entitled to say that.

Mr. Domixt,..,. We have no disagreement with tha t, Mr. Cl
Mr. Wyss. I f you can submit to us within the next couple of days

a little reworking of this, l'm sure that the members of the commit-
tee on both sides and our staff could get something that we all agree
on an(l which will be fair to industry and fair to the public and we'll
applaud it.

Mr. INDRITZ. My next question deals with your propovd paragraph
4 on your confidentiality clause. It, states that any in forma tioh sap-
plied may he made available to State, interstate and local water 1)01-
hition control agencies or officials or agencies of the United' States. but
then it goes on to say : "proviaq such agencies or officials arree that
the information will not he disclosed except as authorized by appro-
priate Federal, State, or local law."

Could you kindly explain, or amplify. the meaning that you at-
tribute to the phrase "will not be disclost;d except as anthorized by ap-
propriate Federal, State, or local law"? Will you require that there
be an affirmative provision hi State law ma ndatimr disclosure, or will
you impose nondisclosure rides on Federal or State agencies which am
more limited or restricted than your own broad disclosure authority?

Mr. COULTER. Mt% Indritz, I think that what .this paragraph 4 is
talking about, of course, is the existing law of the State and lochl
governments and the existing law in the Federal Establishment; and
in the Federal Establishment, of course, the same statutes control with
regard to other Federal agencies as they do to Interior. So that the
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release of this information and the use of it by a State or local agency
would be governed by their existing statutes, and this would be made
known to the industry when the questionnaire is sent out, and to the
same extent the Federal agencies would be subjected to the use of this
information by any curtailment currently provided by Federal
statute.

Mr. INDRI'PZ. For purposes of the record so that we may have pre-
cise knowledge as to the. format of your questionnaireyou have
transmitted to us two forms. One is FWPCA 120-5-Gs, and the other
is FWQA Form 120 (Rev. 4-70). Will you please specify the nature
of tlwse forms? Is one an early draft wliich is not going to be used?
Or are bot Ii going to k used ?

M. Domix mi. As I understand it, MI% Indritz, from our staff, your
staff requested that we submit to the committee forms that had been
previously considered, mid I believe the form which you first men-
tioned was one which had been previously considered.

The form which you have in your hand now, the FWQA form
what is it?-4270 ?

Mr. INDRITZ. Yes.
Mr. DOMINICK. It represents the form which we are intending to

proceed with at the present time.
Mr. INDRITZ. Have there ken ani modifications to Form FWQA-

120 (Rev. 4-70) since it was printed
Mr. DECAM 1% The answer is yes.
Mr, INDIUTZ. Will you p!ease state what those modifications have

ken ?
Mr. DECAme. To add on page 2 arsenic and mercury which were not

in the original list of heavy metals.
Mr. INDIUM Are those the only modifications to the form?
Mr. DECAMP. As presently I have it in my hands, those are the

only modifications we have made to the forth revised 4-70.
Mr. INDRITZ. Have there been any modifications to the instructions

which have been printed to accompany FWQA-120?
Mr. DECAMP. There is a modification in front of ine in subpara-

graph 4, "Submission of Reports," noted in ink. That should be on
your copy.

Mr. IxrauTz. Is that the addition of the words "and two copies"?
Mr. DECAMP. Yes.
Mr. INDRITZ. Have there been any other modifications to the form?
Mr. DECAMP. None on that page.
Mr. INDIUM. On any other page ?
Mr. DECAMP. On page 3 you will find in the diagram some red-

arrow modifications.
Mr. INDRITZ. Are there any other modifications besides the ones you

just mentioned?
Mr. DECAnir. I have no record of any other modifications.
Mr. INDR1TZ. IS it correct to state fhat Form FWQA-120 (Rev.

4-70), with the additions of mercury and arsenic on page 2, and the
instructions with the revisions you have mentioned, will constitute
the questionnaire and instructions which will go forth to industry,
together, of course, with whatever language on confidentiality may be
worked out?
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Mr. DECAMP. As it now stands ; yes, sir.
(The form referred to, and accompanying instructions, are printed

in appendix 3 of this hearing record.)
Mr. INDRITZ. The supporting statement that you submitted to the

Bureau of the Budget, as it was then callednow the Office of Man-
agement and Budgetfor clearance action on this forni, states that
the inventory is being planned in two phases, Would you kindly elab-
orate on that proposal ?

(The supporting statement referred to is printed in appendix 3
of this hearing record.)

Mr. DECAmr. If you will note, on page 5 of the supporting state-
ment, under section B, we state that the inventory is now planned in
two phases with a distinct time lag between the two phases to provide
time for analysis and any necessary modifications to plans and pro.
cedures.

The purpose of the phasing is to Use the form and our procedures
as a testa pretest, so to speakto determine the effectiveness and
efficacy of it.

Mr. INDRITZ. Will you advise the subcommittee, and keep the sub-
committee advised, on the progress being made on the inventory pro-
gram?

Mr. DECAMP. Yes, sir.
Mr. REUSS. Secretary Ruserll, Commissioner Dominick, Mr. Coul-

ter, thank you very much. No further questions. Good job. We appre-
ciate what you are doinff, and you have our full support, and I think
with a little fixing up of the language on that section 1905 business
you will have an excellent questionnaire form.

[NotE.A reVised confidentiality clause was transmitted to the
subcommittee on October 26, 1970. It is set forth in Commissioner
Dominitsk's letter of that, date in appendix 2 and on the revised
questionnaire form in appendix 3.]

Mr. REtTss. Our next witness will be Mr, Robert E. Jordan III,
General Counsel of the Army, and Special Assistant to the Secretary
of the Army for Civil Functions. You PTV very welcome, Mr. Jordan.
You have a 6-page statement which will be included in the record.
and we now would like to ask you to proceed in your own way. Will
you identify your associate for the record ?

STATEMENT OF ROBERT E. JORDAN III, GENERAL COUNSEL OF
THE ARMY AND SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE SECRETARY OF
THE ARMY FOR CIVIL .FUNCTIONS; ACCOMPANIED BY J. J.
LANICHORST, ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL, CORES OF
ENGINEERS

Mr. JORDAN. With n-le this morning, Mr. Chairman, is Mr. Lank-
horst, Assistant General Counsel, Office of the Chief of Engineers, who
is concerned with legal matters relating to permit functions in the
Corps of Engineers.

Mr. Chairman and members, it is a pleasure to be here today, and
I appreciate the opportunity.

I am Robert Jordan. I serve as General Counsel of the Army and
also wear a second hat as Special Assistant to the Secretary of the
Army for Civil Functions.
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In that latter capacity.-I stwervise, for the Secretary of the Army,
the Corps of Engineers' c ivilVorks program.

Earlier this year, in testimony before the Subcommittee on Energy
Natural Resources and Environment of the Senate Commerce Com-
mittee, I announced a policy of the Department of the Army to enforce
33 USC 407the so-called RefuSe Actagainst those discharging
into navigable waters, by requiring permits for such activity.

I noted then that,the Department of the Army's current permit
pronTam was in hnplementation of section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors
AcCof 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403) and that, historically, we have not had a
formal permit progyam implementing section 13 of the 1899 act (33
U.S.C. 407). As I indicated in my testimony, however, we are now
moving to develop a program which would require all dischargers
to apply for a Department of the Army permit.

We are developing this program in coordination with the Enyiron-
Mental Quality Council and other agencies, such as the Federal Water
QualitY Administration of the Departnient of Interior, which are
necessarily concerned with the relationship of our proposed permit
program to on-going programs, particularly in the water quality area.

The program is going to require detailed interagency agreements
and extensive new regulations; we are still in the pnit..ess of drafting
such agreements and regulations and identifying procedures for the
processing of the large number of permit applications that are antici-
pated. Although we recognize the need for the program and believe
that it should be made applicable, as soon as possible, to all who are dis-
charging or who pnipoFe to discharge into navigable waters, -we may,
because of limited resources, have to develop an initial system of
priorities in effect, to match workloiid to available personnel and fin,ds.
For example,. we might give more attention to proposed discharges
from new facilities and the discharge of hazardous substances which
may pose a significant danger to man or his environment.

There are a number of problems with which we are specifically con-
cerned. First, as I have already mentioned, we have a resources prob-
lem panicularly in the personnel area. In our 37 Engineer districts
widi civil functions, we have only approximately 110 people who work
in the permit area, and some of these are part time.

The U.S. Army Engineer District, Detroit, Mich., for example, has
only two men in its permits and enforcement office. Along with other
assigned duties these men have surveillance responsibility for over 3,000
miles of shoreline and they are fully occupied right now by dutiey
growing solely out of our section 403 permit program and othet-pfe-
ex isting programs.

Accordingly, in the development of our program, we are attempting
to anticipate and find solutions fonthe administrative and other prac-
tical problems which will result from the large number of permit
applications we expect.

Secoud, we recognize that the permit program envisioned has a
smnificant number of water quality implications. We are working
with the FWQA to insure that the program will complement existing
and prospective FWQA programs.

Also, recognizing the expertise of the FWQA in the water quality
urea, we, are developing procedures which will insure that water
quality considerations are addressed in detail in connection with the
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consideration of permit applications; and the formulation of pro-
cedures with FWQA. is somewhat cernplicated by the prospective re-
organization that is associated -with the proposed creation of the En-
vironmental Protection Agency.

Third; as required by the Environmental Policy Act of 1969, we
are reviewing existing and proposed procedures with the Environ-
mental Quality Council and other agencies to make sure that there
will be no duplication of effort.

We are convinced that the fight against pollution will require Fed-
eral, State, and private expenditures of a considerable magnitude and
believe that there is no room for wasteful duplication of efforteither
on the part of Government, or on the part of industriesin comply-
ing. with Government requirements.

These are some of the factors with which we are wrestling and ex-
plain, in part, the need to proceed intelligently and deliberately, but
I should emphasize, not slowly, in the establishment of what we ex-
pect to be a very important program.

You have asked what measures the corps will take under such a
program. to identify all discharges and require the discharger to ob-
tain a permit. Given adequate publicity, we would expect. and hope
to have a high level of voluntary compliance.

But those failing to apply for and obtain an appropriate permit
would be subject to prosecution and injunctive action under the
Refuse Act: Tim problem, of course, will be to identify those who, for
one reason or another, have failed to apply for the necessary permit..

In this connection a national inventory of industrial discharges
wouhl be most helpful since, in identifying those who discharge into
navigable waters, it would provide a data base froin which it would
be possible to identify dischargers who have not applied for required
permits. .

Conversely, it should be noted that the program we envision would
complement the effort to obtain a national mventhry of industrial dis-
chargas since an applicant will have to provide with his permit ap-
plication information identifying the character of his effluent.

You have also asked whether or not the information obtained on
the FWQA form would aid the corps in monitoring the nature and
quantity of the discharge after a permit is granted.

Our current regulations for outfall sewers and other similar struc-
tures under 33 U.S.C. 403 preclude a permittee from changing the
nature of his effluent without a permit modification. Such permittees
are also required to maintain adequate records of the nature and fre-
quency of discharges and to provide such information periodically to
the district engineer. We contemplate that similar regulations and
conditions will be applicable in the case of our 407, or Refuse Act,
permits.

Although this type of monitoring is inherent in the program envi-
sioned, the data provided the FWQA pursuimt tn the efforts of that
agency to establish a national inventory would be useful to tbe corps
in that it would represent a master list against which we could check
information provided to the corps. I think, however, that this is an .

area in which we would have to coordinate with the FWQA again to
avoid wastefffi thiprication of efforts in terms of the type of informa-
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tion to be provided, the frequency of reporting requirements, and the
data to be maintained.

It is very difficult for us to estimate the economies which might
accrue to us from a national inventory of industrial wastes. Clearly a
system of reporting by discharcreN will be substantially less costly than
any similar program that might be keyed to routine, plant-by-plant
-visits by Government personnel.

We would suspect., however, that. t he principal value of, and indeed
the need for, a national inventory of industrial wastes is related to
planning for the future. The absence of such information makes it
more difficult to initiate intelligent, long-range, cost-effect ive planning
for our streams and riyer basins because. not having a very clear
picture of what is going int o our waters on a day-by-day basis, there
is uncertainty as to what our goals aml methods ought to be,

Mr. Chairman, that completes my prepared statement. We would be
happy to try to answer ally questions which the committee has.

Mr. RE-uss. Mr. Jordan, I want to congratulate you and the Corps of
Engineers on a wonderful statement. and I want. to say that though in
the past upon occasion some of us have been critical of the corps, I
can't. think of an agency of Government which in the last year or so
has shown more forwara motion on environmental questions generally.

You've done so many good things. And-what yon are doing in this
particular area under the Refuse Act of 1g99 is particularly in the
public interest.

So I wish -von would convey my applause to Genend Clarke and all
of the other dedka.ted people in the corps.

Mr. JORDAN. We appreciate those remarks.
Mr. RELTss. We are proud of what you are doing.
Mr. JORDAN. I certainly will convey those remarks to General Clarke.
Mr. REUSS. I just have one question : You spoke of the fact, that you

are very shorthanded in terms of people who can go out and police
polluters of our streams. You mentioned, for instance, that in the
engineer district operating out of Detroit, Mich., you have got, just
two men with responsibility for 3,000 miles of shoreline.

Incidentally, that is the area in .which a lot of mercury pollution
came to public attention just a few months ago, isn't.ii?

Mr. JORDAN. Yes, sir. We are very much aware of that..
Mr. REUSS. Isn't it likely that. if yott lind an adequale amount of

personnel there you could Lave discovered that some time ago/
Mr. JORDAN. We might have, although the failure to have a formal

ReTuse Act permit program I think would have made it less likely.
But with the comlijnation of the program which we are, embarking

on, plus adequate people, I think it is much less likely that that kind
of thing would happen in the future. I certainlY hope so.

Mr. Ryas. Am I right in thinking that the COrps of Engineers
recently testified before the appropriations committees of the Con-
gress that. an additional $4 million to hire supervisory personnel would
be a great boost, for the environment ?

Mr. joimax. We did furnish information to the committees to that
effect. I believe that following the testimony in the Senate, Senator
Hart had a conversation with the chairman of our appropriations
subcommittee, Senator Ellender, and as a result we furnished informa-
tion to the committee staff.

51-539-70---3
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An additional $4 million would be a great boost. Obvious lv, yon
can't tool up oveniight and bring people on board. But with that
amount of money we anticipated we would be able to get off to a
running start.

Mr. Wyss. Has the Office of Management aml Budget approved
that extra $4 ?

Mr. JORDAN. They have not. In fairness to them, I guess there is
no formal piece oi paper before them now. We are processing a
request. There is some question procedurally in the budget mechanism
how this might to be liandled, whether as a supplemental or whether
it call be worked into the current. process.

refortunately, this whole thing came up late. The budget process
starts early, and it mune along fairly late in the scheme of things.
But We have been talking to them about this and hope we can find
a way to get. the money.

Mr. liEuss. I'm quite. clear that. I fully support your request, and
I suspect that all the members of this subcommittee would. I can't
think of a better use of $4 million.

Mr. Vander Jagt.
Mr. VANDER JAor. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I, too, hope

you get your $4 million.
Mr. JORDAN% Thank you.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. Alld I also add my voice to that of Chairman

Reuss in commending the corps for some of the new programs that
have been initiated and the very fine-directions it is beginning to take.

I particularly comMend you for the permit program to try to iden-
tify the discharges and the source of the discharge and the. amount
of the discharge. And I think the gist of your testimony was that the
voluntary indastrial waste inventory will be innnensely)ielpful t o ou
in terms of providing a data base to carry out your permit program
under the 1899 Refuse Act.

Mr. JonnAN. There is no que.stion about that, Mr. Vander Jagt. We
think it will be very helpful.

Mr. VANDER JAOT. Just one. final question. You were here for the
earlier testimony; were you not ?

Mr..ToneAN. Yes; this morning.
Mr. VANDER JM1T. And you heard the discussion regarding the con-

fidentiality clause?
Mr. JORDAN. I did.
Mr. VANWSR JAGT. Can you give us an opinion as to whether or not

after hearing the testimony, if FWQA made this information avail-
able to youabout the diKtharger, the point of discharge and the
amount of dischargeyou would be able to make use of that data ?
Is there any question in your mind?

Mr. JORDAN. I'd like to comment on that and on another related
aspect of the confidentiality problem that grows out of our program:

would not perceive any difficulty as a matter of law. I believe
that the section in question (18 U.S.O. 1905) is a criminal section. It.
is "hornbook law" that criminal sections are to be narrowly construed.
I don't believe that "processes" and "operations" include simply the
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act of dumping ont a particular kind of effluent at the end of t he pipe.
I think "processes and operations" refers to what t tikes place insitle

the plant that produces the effluent.
And if I had to interpret that. section in connection with our re-

sponsibilities, I would not. give "processes and operations" an expan-
sive interpretation bat a narrow one, which I think is wholly consist-
ent with what I understand to be the legislative history of that act.

So that solves a large measure of the. problem, because our basic con-
cern is with what is coming out at the end of the pipe and not how it
got to be that way.

Secondly, I don't believe that section was ever hitentled to apply
to a public official pursmult to a, lawfully estaldished public program
who, in discharging his responsibilities, found it necessary to) make
certain information available.

Our philosophy with respect to the Corps of Engineer permit. pro.
gram has been to try to operate it in public glare, and scrutiny. It
causes a hell of a lot of problems, frankly, bit we think it's in the
public interest.

We emphasize public hearings in the case of dispute where there is
substantial interest in a permit case.

In connection with our Refuse Act program, furnishing information
on effluent is not going to be voluntary. It's going to be required
required in the sense that if you want to get a permit, you must furnish
the information And I suppose it's somewhat like the statementI
think it was Justice Ifolmesmade in one free speech case, you know :

"This fellow has a, right to say whatever he wants to, but lie doesn't
have a right to be a policeman." We take somewhat the same position. '
We cannot compel someone to furnish information about the quality
of their effluent, but we are in position to say that "unless you do so we
will not consider your application for a permit."

So we're going to require the information and we're going to do
everything we can toprotect trade secrets, processes that really reveal
internal manufacturing things that might be of advantage to com-
petitors. I don't think this is going to be a serious problem.

But, on the other hand, we are not going to be prepared to protect
such information to the extent that public conmient on, and participa-
tion iii, tlie permit process would be precluded.

W ie think there s no inconsistency with the statutory section on this
point, and we think we can work it out.

Mr. VANDER JAM, I thank you very much for a. very candid and a
very helpful answer. Thank you, Mr. . Chairman.

Mr. REUSS. Mr. Hicks?
Mr. Him. No questions.
Mr. REUSS. Thank you again, Mr. Jordan. You're a great public

servant. We're deliglted to have you here.
Mr. JORDAN. Thank you.
Mr. REUSS. Mr. Paul F. Krueger of the Office of Management and

Budget. You are very welcome, Mr. Krueger. You have a written
statement which under the rule will be received into the record.

Would you proceed in your own way?
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STATEMENT OF PAUL F. KRUEGER, ASSOCIATE DEPUTY FOR STA-
TISTICAL POLICY, STATISTICAL POLICY AND MANAGEMENT
INFORMATION SYSTEMS DIVISION, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT
AND BUDGET

Mr. KiwEocu. Thank you, Mr. Chairinati.
I tun very happy to be here to throw any, light I am able to on the

kind of questions you have under consideration.
I think that in the interest of time I would suggest that the statement

not be read. If you. have any questions about it, I will be glad to
elaborate on them.

I might say simply that in preparing this statement we have
attempted to be responsive to the five points on which you requested
testimony in your letter addressed to Director Shultz of the Office of
Mamigement and Budget. If there are any questions about any of those
responses which you wish clarified, I would he happy to do so.

(Mr. Krueger's prepared statement follows :)

PREPARED STATEMENT OP PAIl. F. KIWEGER. ASSM !ATE DEPUTY FOR STATISTICAL
POLICY. STATISTICAL POLICY AND MANAGEMENT IN FORMATION SYSTEMS DIVI-
SION, OFFICE OF MAN AGEM EN T AND BuDGET

The following statement is given in response to I he rNuest of the committee
for Information on five topics pertaining to the industrial wastes inventory.

1. There is no provision of law which specifically authorizes the Office of Man-
agement and Budget to insist that an agency whieh desires to t.olled informa-
tion on a voluntary. nomontidential basis IT1 Mt insert in the questionnaire 1: COM
fidentia Ut y t a use. Our tvvIew id the prujw.:cd Iva; r
taken pursuant to authority given to tbe Director of the Bureau of the Budget by
sections 5 and 6 of the Federal Reports Act of 1942.

The Federal Water Quality Administration has no authority to require re-
spondents to furnish information. Rather, it must depend upon their voluntary
cooperation. Adequate responses are necessary in order to develop reliable data
for the use of the Federal Water Quality AdmInNtrat ion. It was our Judgment
that the Federal Water Quality Administration was not likely to obtain adequate
responses without a pledge of confidentiality of individual returns.

2. The scope of applicability of a confidentiality pledge depends on its word-
ing. In the absence of limitations specifying otherwise, such a pledge would pre-
stunably extend to all information supplied by the respondent. However, it could
be phrased to apply only to responses to certain questions or sections of the form.
In such cases. in order to avoid uncertainty and misunderstanding, it should he
made clear what part of the reply was not so covered, and what restrictions, if
am would be placed on the use of the exempted portion.

3. Documentations submitted by PWQA in support of their request for ap-
proval of the survey in 1988 described the need for, and use of, data on industrial
waste water disposal as follows :

(a) To provide basic data necessary to establish and/or review and judge
the adequaey of water quality standards.

(b) To provide ilata necessary for effective establishment and review of
state plans for carrying out their water pollution control programs.

(e) To provide necessary input to several annual studies directed by Con-
gress in the areas of the cost of administering the Water Pollution Control
Act, as amended, the cost of treating water to abate pollution nnd the eco-
nomic impact on affected units of the Government of tbe cost of installation
of treatment facilities.

(d) To provide data on which to base planning for research and devel-
opment programs.

(e) To identify what and where Federal assistance can be provided to
make the greatest contribution. Minutes of the August 13, 1968, meeting
state:

"Spokesmen for FWQA. said that they understood industry's concern
about confidentiality. It is not intended that the data be used for enforce-
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ment against individual companies. However, the data are needed for the
official records of enforcement conferences if the actions of the conferences
are to be legally sustainable."

The minutes, a copy of witkh was submitted to this committee, show the
names of FWQA and Interior representatives at the meeting but do not indi-
cate who made the statement. Staff of FWQA reviewed a draft of the minutes
and made no suggestions for changes in the record.

4(a). You refer to the "committee's view that voluntary cooperation by
industry in establishing the industrial wastes inventory can succeed and 'ought
to be given a fair trial'. . . ." If the purpose of the survey were to obtain data
for uee in ways which would require public disclosure of individual replies in
public hearings, or in enforcement proceedings, then giving a confidentiality
pledge wonld defeat the objective. However, as stated above, we understood
the purpose was to compile statistics on the nature and magnitude of the indus-
trial waste disposal problem. Thus, rather than defeating the objective, the
confidentiality pledge would have facilitated the conduct of a successful survety
and the compilation of an important body of information needed by both the
Congre; and the executive hranell.

4(b). Restrictions on disclosure by the collecting agency of information which
would linpair the respondents bona tide trade secrets would be appropriate. If
protection of trade secrets were the only basis for according confidential treat-
nient of individual replies, however, the effectiveness in obtaining adequate
responses would be limited.

5. The nwet Mg with the industry advisory panel in August 1068 dld rot include
representation by conservation, clean water, or similar groups. In addition to
people f rem industry and the Department of Interior, Miss Jodie Scheiber at!
tended as nn alternate for the Chief Counsel of the House Natural Resources
mai Po wer Subcommithp. At that Una-, it was not the practice of the Bureau of
the Budget to notify other interest groups of such meetings and no such groups
had expressed to the Bureau any interest In the fact that that survey was
being planned.

Sue h represNitation is nor now excluded from these meetings. Notices of
Meeting's are m,111 to anyone requesting them and anyone may attend.

nil lowing preliminarysdiscussion of the FWQA. proposal for taking this in-
ventory. on Tnegday, September 15, we informally approved the questionnaire
and the statement that will be made to respondents regarding confidentiality
and the circumstances under which uses of individual reports may entail dis-
closure to State or local govermnent bodies and to the public. Agreement is
expected on other aspects of the basic plan for the national industrial wastes
inventor3cso that within a few days FWQA can proceed with a field test as the
first phase of the survey.

Mr. KRUTDER. I might simply add that at the very eml of the
statenwnt in response to your letter enumerating the five points and
requesting some information on what procedures might be. required,
who might be consulted with in the process of review of any subse-
quent proposal for conducting the inventorythat rather than going
through that, I simply said that we have indicated to the Federal
Water Quality Administration our general assent to the conduct of
the proposal as they have presented it and we hope it will be mider-
way very shortly.

I trust that any further consultations with respect to the confiden-
tiality clause win not delay that unduly.

Ifr. Rrrss. Thank you very much, Mr. Krueger.
counsel, Mr. Indritz. later on will have some questions to ask you

about what seems unfortunately to he a difference of opinion between
yourself and the representatives of the Department of the Interior on
this trade secrets question, hut I'd like now to reco7nize Mr. Vander
Jagt.

Mr. VANDER JAGT. Thank you very mach, Mr. Chairman. You heard
the earlier testimony, Mr. Krueger?

Mr. KRUEGER. Yes.
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Mr. VANDER JAtrr. Did you hear the testimony that it is the intention
of the Department of the Interior to disclose the diseharger and the
point of discharge and the amount of discharge ?

Mr. KRUF.GER. S.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. In your statement on page 3 you are summarizing

a meeting, the minutes of which state: "It is not intended tlmt the
dat a be used for enforcement against individual companies. * * *''

Mr. Kat:EoF.u, Yes.
Mr. VANDrat .1mrr. Can von reconcile that with t he testimony about

which I have just refreshed your memory ?
Mr. Kat EGER. This response here is given in reply to the po rtiruli r

question which the committee asked in the letter to the Director,
which was, what was our understanding with respect to the use of
the survey, the use, of the data to be compiled by the survey, that wits

considenition in 1968 ?
The use of enforcement purposes was not a part of that. proposal.

VANDER bor. And further down on page 3 you say :"IIowever,
as stated above, we understood the purpose was t o compile statistics
on flue nature and magnitude of t lie imlust rial waste dispwal problem."

Mr. KRUEGER, Correct.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. 'Ms your agreement conditioned upon that

understanding?
Mr. KRUEGER. I don't understand what you inean by "agreenwnt
Mr. \TANI-wit JAOT. Well, let. Inc. pnt it this way : Yon have lward

how this information Is intended to be used ?
Mr. Icitur.orit, Yes.
Mr. VAN twit yrr. Do you anticipate any difficulty in having Office

of Managen lent and Budget approval for the voluntary industrial
was4e inventory?

Mr. Kut.comt. Well, as I have indicated, we have already given
informally onr assent to the proposal as it has been presented. I would
like to emplutsiw, however. tlte point that the proposal R g now pre-
sented is substantially different than the one that was considered
ea rl

Mr. VANDER boT. And that is why I asked you : Do you anticipate
any trouble in lmving OMB approval for this?

Mr. KuuEont. No.
Mr. VA x nEn JAwr. You do not ?
Mr. KRUEGER. NO.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. Even after havhig heard the purposes for which

the information will be used?
Mr. Knur.ona. The point, we are concerned with here is that the pur-

poses of the survey, and the uses of the information to be collected
shouhl be. made clear to the respondents so that they may decide
wliether or not they will furnish the information.

Insofar as our concern with the subject is concernedz we are, only
involved in the nature of the statement. We have many different kinds
of data collections that are, conducted by various agencies in the Fed-
eral Government. Some of them are specifically for the purpose and
for no other .purpose than to make public disclosure, to place the
responses in a public document room where anyone can have access to
them. That's perfectly appropriate and it's proper if that is indicated
as t he purpose of the survey.
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But I would like to repeat that the proposal that we now have and
to which we have given informal approval is different from the one
which was considered in 1968. The \earlier proposal was to compile
statistical data for the purpose of getting a measure of the nature, the
magnitude, and the geographic distribution of the pollution problem,
by river basins or other bodies of water, andfor that purpose it was
not necessary to indicate that data would be disclosed.

That's the reason we got into the discussion with respect to the
nature of the confidentiality pledge and the conditions under which
the-survey in 1968 was considered. There was a difference of opinion
between our office and the sponsoring agency as to the nature of the
confidential ity pledge.

We were, com*r d, having the understanding that the purpose was
to obtain a statist ensure of the pollution problem, that the best
el 1:1DCOS for sueces tting that information were under a pledge
of confidentiality.

Mr. VANDER Jurr. I understand very well the different nature 'of the
requests in 1968 and now. I also understand and appreciate the con-
cern of your Bureau. I think it's a legitimate one and a very worthy
one.

But my question is: Having now heard the use to which this infor-
mation will be put, do you anticipateand understandincr now very
clearly what the nature of the reque,st isdo you anticipate any
difficulty in Office of Management and Budget approval?

Mr. KRUEGER. I repeat, 110.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. Thank you.
Mr. KRUEGER. We have informally said we have no question about

it. This is not a matter at issue any longer, they having stated what
the purpose is. And for this purpose it is entirely appropriate, as we
view it, to make this Mod of a statement with respect to the cir-
cumstances under which data will be disclosed.

Mr. VAxorm .1m.m. I am very pleased and happy with your answer.
Let me just explore one other subject, just one further question,

which may or may not be a footnote :
Would you anticipate any difficulty with the confidentiality clause

if it were to read differently than we have discussed today and pro-
vided that, instead of giving a blanket confidentiality clause with some
exceptions, there,avits no confidentiality unless the industry could af-
firmatively demonstrate that this involved a trade secret?

Mr. KRUEMR. I don't think the matter of disclosure of trade secrets
is tbe crux of the problem.
, Mr. VANDER JAGT. No, the way it stands now, the imiustry can
rather voluntarily, or at will, just say, "I'm sorry, I'm not going to
provide that information because it involves a trade secret." What if
there were a requirement that, in order to come under the trade secret
provision and not answer for that reason. the industry would have to
affirmatively demonstratethat the burden would be on them to
showthat this (lid in fact involve a trade secret, ?

Mr. KRUEGER. I think that would be appropriatR. But may I repeat
I (lon't think the principal deterrent. to atainilig responses is going
to be through the disclosure of trade secrets. It's (ming to be through
the disclosure of information which the mpondP'ent will consider as
self-incrimination, holding up to the public opinion. "Here is--the
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word has been used here befo re"a miscreant," somebody who is doing
something which in the public opbfion he should not be doing.

And they will not in many instances, I believe, voluntarily disclose
that kind of informat ion.

So I would have personally very grave reservations as to the success
of this kind of an approach m obtaining forthright, honest, complete
reporting in response to this questionnaire. But this remains to be
seen.

Mr. VANDER JAGT. BlIt FWQA has already said they are going to
disclose the information.

Mr. KRUEGER. That's right. And industry will then be faced with
the option of responding or not responding. And I would suppose that
in many instancessince this discussion has taken place here with
respect to the meaning of title 18, United States Code, section 1905,
there will be perhaps endless discussions in the general counsel's offices
of many manufacturing firms who will receive this report, as to what
that means and whether or not they will respond.

Mr. ITANDEn .TAOT. Quite apart from the issue or the question of the
success of the voluntary program, however, you would see nothing
inappropriate in putting the burden of coining under the trade secret
exclusion on industryof proving affirmatively that that's why they
aren't answering?

Mr. KRUECIER. No, except that I wouldn't assume that industry would
take that simply as a burden since their first option is to report or
not report. That's the first decision they make.

Mr. VANDER JAGT. 'Which. if the decision were negative, might ex-
pose them to some public pressure.

Mr. KRUEGER. Yes, but it avoids the second decision, too as to
whether or net the disclosure. would involve a trade secret. If diey de-
cide not to disclose, that becomes a moot question.

Mr. VANDEn .1./yrr. But wouldn't. the public have a clearer shot at de-
termining where their outrage ought to be directed if we conld just
remove that trade secret issue and it were squarely clear that industry
was not supplying the information because it would not do so volun-
tarily I

Mr. Knr-EoEn. Yes.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. Thank you very much.
Mr. REUSS.Mr. Hicks?
Mr. Ilmn-s. No questions.
Mr. RErss. I would have just one question, Mr. Krueger. You have

been here throughout the hearing this morning and heard the re-
sponses given hy the Department of the Interior ?

Mr. KRUEGER. Yes.
Mr. REUSS. Yon have indicated that the Office of Management. and

Budget has tentatively approved the Department of the Interior's in-
ventory proposal made and elaborated here this morning.

Mr. KRUEGV. The word I believe I used, at least in the statement
here perhaps, is "informally," which simply means that we have given
our verbal assent to the tifing. There has been no official passing of
papers.

Mr. REUSS. When can we expect the official passing of papers?
Mr. Knr-F.min. I would, assume the official passing of papers will

occur when the rema ininglpiest ions are resolved.
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Mr. REUSS. But you don't see any difficulty with 01413 approval?
Mr. KRUEGER. NO.
Mr. REUSS. Thank you very much, sir. We appreciate your coming

here.
Our remaining witness is Mr. Ralph Nader. Is Mr. Nader here
w ?
( No response.)
I am told by Miss Scheiber that Mr. Nader is on his way. There-

fbre, We will recess for a few minutes and then reconvene.
(Whereupon, a recess was taken.)
Mr. REUSS. The subcommittee will be in session again.
Welcome, Mr. Nader. Would you take your seat ?
Do you have a prepared statement or will you proceed a capella?

STATEMENT OF RALPH NADER, WASHINGTON, D.C.

11r. NADER.SO ; I don't have a prepared stanment.
Mr. REUSS. Very well. I don't know if you have been informed by

your associates oi what went on earlier this morning, but the sub-
committee is very pleased that finally, after many years, the executive
branch is about to send out a questionnaire Which should lead to the
listing of who is doing the industrial polluting in this country.

Mr. NADER. Well, at. the risk of being redimdant on a number of
points I would like to present my remarks as they would have been
made before the disclosures today, if this is permitted by the corn-
m it tee: ,

The national industrial waste inventory, which began mith a recom-
mendation in 1963 by your subcommittee, has undergone a history of
delay and obstruction which cannot be remedied by the disclosures
today that fhe inventory is now going forward.

I think it is incumbent upon this committee, or any other commit-
*tee of Congress which is interested in the kind of information required
to be obtained from industryin order to pursue statutorily sanctioned
recrulatory missions, to look into the reasons for this delay.

h e problem of the Bureau of the Budget and its administration
of the Federal Reports Art is that it has long transcended the basic
reasons for that act, which are to prevent duplication by various
agencies of questionnaires sent out to Industry, to prevent the need-
less burdening of industry and commerce with excessive numbers of
questions, and to simplify the questionnaires.

Beyond that, the Bureau of the Budget, in its very7 very occult and
secret office that has administered this act, has consistently engaged
in two violations of the purpose of the act :

One, it has gone very heavily into the poliry area running rough-
shod over the considered decisions of Federal regulaeory agencies and
the kind of questions that they want to ask industry.. This has oc-
curred, for example, with the Federal Trade Commission. For a long
time the Federal Trade Commission has been trying to get informa-
tion about concentration. in American industry. And with the rush
of conglomerate movements in the last 2 years, the Federal Trade
Commission has been caught up short without adequate data to form
sound public policy. This can be directly attributed to the delays and
the policy intrusions of the Bureau of the Budget.



38

The second area that I think has been,way beyond the intent of the
Federal Reports Act is the incredible delegation of the responsibility
of the Bureau of the Budget here to private industry and commerce
advisory systems. ,

It was only about a year and a half ago that the first request was
mule by a number of constuner spokesmen and Senator Metcalf to
participate in some of these panels where the decisions were made as
to what kinds of questions would be asked and in what form and the.
like. And even to this day, the Bureau has prevented open participa-
tion by consumer groups in these pa nels.,.

They send out notices to people who request to be put on the mail-
ing list, but basically these are still exclusive industry advisory panels.

Now, it would be interesting to see in detail for the past 10 years
all the minutes or transcripts or other memoranda indicatino- just in
precise form how intrusive, how decisive, has been the indirstry role
here.

It seems Aear to me' in surveying the history of this inventory that
the industry advisory setup has been so antagonistic to the concept
of the inventory that it has succeeded in delaying the distribution of
this inventory form for a goOd number of years.

We conie now to the. national industrial waste inventory itself, and
I think that there is a great deal of needless discussion because the
basic assumption of this data gathering has never been made clear.

Let me indicate what I think the basic assumption is. The basic as-
sumption should be that pollution is public information and at least
takes on the characteristics of public property.

:Now, I fail to see why the intrusion into citizens' environments of
lethal, toxic, contaminating ingredients that go ihto the water and
underground, and seep into the water that way, should be given any
protection whatsoever as private property.

And when we consider that almost all of the arguments of industry
about trade secrets and the like really stem from the concept of their
having a private property in these lethal contaminants, I fail to see
why industrial pollutants should be given any protection as to their
properties; as to the time of discharge; as to where they are dis-
charged; as to the effect they are having on fisheries and drinking
water ; to their precise chemical properties.

I fail to see why any of these contaminants should have a legal pro-
tection that contraband does not have. If anything, they should have
even less legal protection than contraband because contraband as such
doesn't harm people. It doesn't give them diseases. It doesn't poison
their drinking water. And it ',doesn't Contaminate food products such
as fisheries.

And I think that is the basic issue that has to be discussed.
Can pollation ever be considered as a commodity worthy of any

legal protection in terms of confidentiality, voluntary offering, or the
like? I think it is clear where I stand on this issue : That if pollution
is a form of environohntal violence, it should at least be given the
'characteristic of public property, and that any Federal agency which
purports to be taking the lead in establishing systems to prevent water
pollution must have the power to require the production of this
information.
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The whole concept of a voluntary industrial waste inventory re-
(haps its effectiveness very, very drastically.

For instance, take a polluter who.in his honest scheme of voluntary
cooperation with the Government gives out a lot of information. and
take a dishonest polluter who doesn't want to give out any inform-
tiov. What are tl ie controls here?

So the whole point of confidentiality and the voluntary nature of
the inventory is really at a very primitive level of consid.eration. Iii
fact, one almost has to get philosophic or jnrisprudential about this
to gain t he necessary perspective.

By what conceivable justification in 1970, after the ruination of
many of our great streams and lakes and bays; after the disclosures
of mercury poisoning dumped into the streams and lakes by compa-
nies who didn't want to improve their phmtbing processes, after the
d isclosn re of this mercury epidemic not by Government but by a rad-
uate student in zoology at Western Ontario University as an illustra-
tion of juSt how eandid and how on top of the subject Government
authorities are these days, and iii the light of recent disclosures before
the Senate Subcommiitee on Energy, Natural Resources, and the
Environment that tOxic maals in addition to mercnry, such as cad-
mium, lead, zinc, arsenie, and others presentin the judgment of one
expert before that committee hailing front 1)artmouth-111v a far
greater risk to human beings than the wholepesticide, insecticide run-
off situation. Now, a trainst an of this and against the fact that industry
is more likely to colaule to do nothing if it its protected by this kind of
voluntary confidential scheme and that, if anything, we want to try
to have the Government selectively lind out which companies are doing
better than others in order to spur the lagging companies. and for a
whole host of reasons why this inventory must be complete. accurate,
and timely, I..simply can'i see fooling around with issues of confiden-
ti ahity of vol ant at.y maim i ss

Just consider the functions of an,industrial waste inventory. First
'of all, it is vitin for cost planning, particularly since Goevrnment is
now enga (ring in wide-scale subsidies and wide-scale indirect subsidies
such as last depreciation writeoffs for- industries that adopt tlwse
controls

If the Government is going to engage in subsidies If it is going to
use taxpayers' money it has got to know the data that is integral to
cost calculations aml 'future planning.

The inventory is also vital for the development of standar6, of
course, by the States, and in terms of the residual standards respon-
sibility on the part of the Federal Government.

It is also important in order to anticipate new hazards at their
earliest inception..

If this waste inventory had been lauitcheil 3 or 4 years ago. it is
doubtful whether we would have had to wait until 1970 for the mer-
cury contamination issue to be brought to the public's attention.

A national industrial wa'ste inventory is also vital for uniformity.
Uniformity is not just something like coordination. Uniformity- in-
volves cornparability. Comparability involves a more facile capAility
on the part of law-enforcement officials to allocate responsibihty.

Such an inventory is also vital for the enforcement conferences that
are anticipated under the 1900, Clean Water Restoration Act. In fact,

42
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such data are very important in order for these conferences to be
legally sustai n able.

The inventory would also be lwlpful in the work of the Corps of
Engineers in administering the long forgotten and recently uncovered
1899 River and Harbor Act.

The colic iusion that might be drawn from the process of the last 7
yea N t simply another recognition that in fornmtion is the enrreney of
power in a democracy and that there is no need to use the rack and
screw or the mailed fist or more corrosive forms of bribery or political
influence when you have got control of the Khyber Pass of informa-
tion. And that Khyber Pass of information is the Bureau of the Bud-
get's office in charge of the Federal Reports Act, one of the least rec-
ognized, least publicized, least stildied. powers hi Government. The
kinds of information sheets that are sent out to a selective mailing
list, the whole phenomenon of birdwatchers, the really spectacular con-
trol over this process by emninereial and industrial representafives,
deserves an ac.ross-the-board scrutiny.

I have never come up against. a single discrete unit of governmental
power that has been so subvisible and so inneeessible to citizen or en-
vironmental or consumer interests as is the administration of the Fed-
eral Reports Act. I think if the subcommittee wanted to collect infor-
mation about what this is doing to our regulatory process, how it is
undermining the empirical or informational basis of a sound regula-
tory procedure and practice, the subcommittee only has to survey a
number of present and former commissioners of the regulatory agen-
cies such as the Federal Comimmications Commission, and the Federal
Trade Comm fssion.

Some of the more conservative commissioneN on the FTC wax in-
dignant when they hear the wprds "Federal Reports Act." That in-
chides Commissioner MacIntyre, who has devoted pOrtions of speeches
on this subject.

[The Federal Reports Act referred to is printed in appendix 4 of
this hearing record.]

But there is no point further in thinking that we can pass substan-
tive laws as a democracy, that we can articulate noble goals and then
in effect allow this bottleneck to stifle the process of information-gath-
ering from the regnlatees by the regulators.

I would also request that the subcommittee see if it can open lip the
process on a systematic basis over at the Bureanthat is, to permit
an equivalent consumer environmental advisory input and access to
information and access to the meetings.

Now, this inventory which has been seen in draft form would require
information dealing with the kind of discharges, where, they are dis-
charged, whether through public sewerage systems or in standing
pools or directly into the bodies of water. It wonld also involve some
information concerning cost in manpower requirements for pollution
control by the particular companies and a more detailed water analysis.

The objections by industrial spokesmen baskally reduce themselves
to the Hlawing points:

The inventory is not needed.
It will subject the industry to litigation.
It will cost too much.
And trade associations and States eji0lAr are doing it or will do it.

".1
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I think there hag been enough testimony over the past few months
to show that these simply do not hold water, so to speak, that the
inventory is need* that even if the facts subject these companies to
litigation, so be it. The courts still have to decide. They still have to
evaluate the evidence. The fact is that this is public information, that
there can never be I think in a civilized legal system a trath. secret in
lethality, and that the inventory will cost too much siMply can be
dispensed with by. asking: What is the cost of not produchig this
information to the public at large and to the preservation of natural
resources?

Finally, that trade associations are doing SODIC of it I think is 1.11
assertion that should be looked into. This isn't the first thne that
trade associations have developed a capability to forge a united front
to collea just enough hi formation for their own defense and basically
to make sure that Do other member of the industry breaks rank, that
no other company decides to give out more information or do the kind
of things that would embarrass the lowest rommon denominator of
performance on the part of the trade association.

The States simply neither have the capabibty nor the resourees to
do it. Furthermore, there would be all kiwis of problems of lack of
un i formity, temporal disparities, and the like.

Besides, if the States were to do it, the same problems would arise
which industry would object to. Are the surveys to be voluntary? Is
the information to be confidential ?

So it doesn't resolve the key problems here. It simply tries to post-
pone naying attention to ibk j110 by the redtbro :nt )101.j+ ;(,;: aild put
it in State authorities where further delays of years van be expected.

Thank you very much.
Mr. REUSS. Thank you, Mr. Nader.
The Department of the Interior report of March of this year be-

wailed the lack of an industrial waste inventory and said, and I quote,
"Every effort to initiate an industrial waste inventory has been,
frustrated."

I endeavored to find ont.who the frnstrators were but we have not
tgoten the answeN yet. Can you fill in any of the gaps in the

indictment?
Mr. NADER. I think you will find a good 'many frustrators in the

American Petroleum Institute's ranks the Mamifacturing Chemists',
Association. American Meat Institute:National Canners' Association.
U.S. Chamber of Commerce, and the National Association of
Manufacturers.

Look at the membership of the Advisory Council on Federal Reports
and the membership of the industry panel that has participated in
these processes.

And that's basically where the pressure comes from.
Mr. REUSS. Do you think thereis any correspondence between the

membership on the Advisory Panel on Reports and those who have
been doing the polluting?

Mr. NADER. 'Yes; I think there's no question that. they don't want
this inventory, and they have made themselves clear even on the
record. They give their reasons.

I don't think their reasons have any justification whatsoever. I
think also they are laboring under an 18th century misconception that
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they can have private property in poisonous substances that are un-
leashed on the public continually, systematically, and often without
the public knowing about it.

And that's really the basic issue.
Mr. REUSS. You don't think it is a legitimate trade secret, for

example, that a company keep secret the fact that it is pouring
arsenic, mercury, or cyanide into the public's streams and lakes and
keep it secret because the public would understandably be angry if it
ki w ?

Mr. NADER. I think that's one of the most impressive rhetorical
'questions I have ever heard. And the answer, of course, is "No." I mean
the way you phrased it is its own answer.

It's lust absurd to think that dumping of arsenic in water wliich now
is getting up to levels of concern according to a recent report in Science
magazine, the dumping of arsenic in water,and how much is dumped,

i'where it is dumped, what company dumps t, what machines produce
this kind of thing in terms of the process, can ever be a trade secret.

Mr. REUSS. You mentioned as candidates for the frustrators' award
the various private groups and people. Anybody in Government or
agencies of Government which you feel

Mr. NADER. I'd like to add the American Paper Institute as well
here.

In Government, it seems quite clear that a number of officials in
the Bureau over the years have been responsible for this kind of
secrecy.

Mr. REUSS. The Bureau of the Budget I
Mr. NADER. Yes, the Bureau of the Budgetfor this kind of secrecy

and for preventing access on the part of consumers, Even Senators
inquiring have been routinely rebuffed. Consider Senator Matcalf's
attempth over the last 3 years.

I think basically these officials should be called up before the sub-
committee and asked very, very detailed questions, and I think the
appointing of these officials by the heads of the Bureau to this job
has to be scrutinized as well.

I think that this has to be considered one of tgbe three most important
functions Of the Bureau. And to permit it that sublevel, subvisible con-
trol organization I think is justproductive of this kind of abuse.

And a lot of it, pf course, is simply a surrender. They simply sur-
render the public responsibility in this area to the business advisory
people.

Mr. REUSS. Mr. Vander Jagt.
Mr. VANDER JACT. I have )ust one question, Mr. Chairman:
Mr. Nader, you told us that the infomation on industrial pollution

is vitally important to any kind of effective program to combat pollu-
tion. You have told us that you fail to see why this information does
not belong in the domain of the public.
. Earlier this morning we heard testimony that Interior intends to
proceed immediately on a voluntary industrial waste inventory, that
they intend to make public the name of the discharger, the point of
discharge, and the amount discharged.

This has been the goal of this committee for 7 long years of a
never-ending struggle. We're heartened by it. We're encouraged by
it.

45



43

Would you agree that it is an important and significant first step?
Mr. NADF.R. No, I would not, Congressman.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. And why not?
Mr. NADER. First of all, you state that they have agreed to make this

information public.
Mr. VANDER JAM% That iS correct.
Mr. NADER. That penalizes the holiest polluterthat is, in terms of

being honest enough
Mr. VANDER JAGT. What is an "honest pollutet'l
Mr. NADER. A Whiter who is honest enough to disclose all the facts.

And-beeftitge-iif the. there is a disincentive to come forward because of
the voluntary nature of the questionnaire.

So what will happen is that there will .be a coordination of the
responses by the respective trade associations. They will coordinate it
so that there is ft kind of common demonminator level of response.
And I don't think any system of information procurement should
penalize the more candid regulatee among others.

Mr. VANDER JAGT. What you're saying
Mr. NADER. SO it is not going to work, you see, because no company

is going to say, "Well, quite apart from what the trade association is
saying or what others are doing, we are going to show in great detail
how we are contaminating America's waters, ' and then the Interior
Department will proceed to make this public according to what you
just said.

Well. how long do you think that's going to work ?
Mr. VANDER JAG'''. Well, for one thing, I think perhaps you can

provide an incentive to some industries to complythrough your cen-
ter. But in the absence of legislative authority today to have a com-
pulsory inventorythough there have been bills introduced that pro-
vide for a compulsory inventory, there is no legislative authority to
proceedis not this a helpful first step?

Mr. NADmi. Yes
Mr. VANDER JAGT. And if it doesn't work
Mr. NADER. In that sense it's a helpful first step to show that it is

not ft helpful first step.
Mr.. VANDER JAGT. That the compulsory inventory is necessary ?
Mr. NAmat. Yes.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. But is this not a significant first step in that

direction ?
Mr. NADER. Sometimes we have to learn by experience. And reason

isn't enough.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. And if it does work, which some of us feel it

might, so much tfie better?
Mr. NADER. Fine if it does.
Mr. VANDER JAGT. Thank you.
Mr. IZEuss. I would have one additional question suggested by Mr.

Vander Jagt's question. If, after 4 months or 8 months, the returns
come in and the Department of the Interior discloses, that X corpora-

Y corporation and Z corporation have such contempt for the U.S.
Government that tliey have refused to answer the questionnaire, would
you and your associates remain silent, calm, and do nothing?

I would think, to answer my rhetorical question. that thousands of
conservationists throughout the country would be very vocal at this
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contempt for the environmental interest of the United States and that
no better public opinion lobby for the immediate enactment of a com-
pulsory questionnaire could possibly be thought of. Isn't that whatis going to happen? Ii

Mr. NADER. Well, the past is not encoi 'aging for that prospect. I
mean, for example, this waste mventm has been bottled up for 7
years, and I daresay that the greatest proportion of the environ-
mentalists in this country were hardly aware of what waS going on
until very recently.

Now, you have this inventory being sent mit. What. is going to
happen is not that one company is gomg to give more information
than another. What is going to happen is that the inventory is going
to be "coordinated by the trade association." And this will give the
trade association an even greater role in this type of process, quite
clearly I think raising antitrust problems.

But why do we have to do sonwthing to raise further antitrust
problems and put. that burden on the Antitrust Division with all its
delays and complications?

That's why I think that we have just got to move right away with
proposals to require the submission of thie data, and if it involves
an enactment of legislation, then that should be commenced right
away. Just, if anything, as a standing alert to industry that this is
what is going to come to pass if they coordinate at too low a level of
responsibility in terms of their disclosures.

Mr. REUSS. Is the Center for the Study of Responsive Law prepared
to produce some responsive law by undertaking a draft of S uwh legis-
lation?

Mr. NADER. No; the center just studies and investigates these prob-
lems. It leaves the legislation up to Members of Gongress and the
Legishitive Reference Service and other skilled people who I think
could do the job.

Mr. REUSS. Thank you very much for your testimony. We appre-
ciate it, as always.

We now stand in adjournment.
(Whereupon, at 12:35 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned subject

to the call of the chairman.)
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APPENDIXES

APPENDIX 1.COMMUNICATION SFBMITTED BY WILLIAM IL RODGERS,
ASS0CIATRPROFESSOR OF LAW, UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON LAW

SCHOOL, SEATTLE, WASH.
SCHOOL OF LAW,

UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON,
Seattle, Wash., September 28, 1970.

Hon. HENRY S. REUSS,
Chairman, House Conservation and National Resources Subcomittee, Rayburn

House Office Building, Washington, D.C.
DEAR CONGRESSMAN REUSS : I understand that your committee is conducting

"hearings on the question of the prolonged delay in the hnplementation of pro-
posals to establish a national industrial water pollution inventory.,,I am en-
gaged in research on this and related issues and would hope that you would
include these observations in tbe record :

( I) THE NEED FOR THE INVENTORY

-There can be no greater insult to the depth of knowledge in Um field of water
pollution than to recite the frustrating, demeaning, and utterly unproductive
efforts to secure a national inventory of water wastes that have engaged the
energies of numerous Federal Officials over the past decade. "It seems quite clear
to we that au inventory, combined with the national inventory of water
pollution control facilities, is an essential step toward the initiation of correc-
tive actions."' So said President Dwight David Eisenhower in a memorandum
to his Secretary of State on May 13, 1960, calling for an inventory of wastes
from Federal installations, an undertaking that was concluded in just over a
year.

The need for an industrial inventory was stressed in 1963 by Murray Stein,
then Assistant Chief and Chief Enforcement Officer, Division of Water Supply
and Pollution Control, PHS, and now Assistant Commissioner for Enforcement,
FWQA: "Until you pinpoint your installations, your discharge, the type and
volume of waste, you really can't move." In full accord at the same hearings
was James M. Quigley, who was then an Assistant Secretary, Department of
HEW and is now a vice president, U.S. Plywood-Champion Papers, Inc: "I have
a feeling that this is one of the bald spots, this is one of the areas we do not
have as up-to-date and as complete and as informed information as we would
like to and as we need if we are going to make intelligent decisions on where
to act and where not to act"

Over the years, these and similar allegations have been monotonously con-
sistent. The "greatest deficiency in basic information on estuaries." reports the
Secretary of Interior in the 1970 National Estuarine Pollution Study "Is the
lack of water quality data."' Moreover, the same study points out that water
quality data are of "severely limited value" unless "coupled with data on the
sources of pollution which may affect water quality."' Unfortunately, informa-
tion on individual waste effluents is "extremely limited." In particular, "knowl-
edge of the, characteristics of individual industrial waste discharges is very poor,
and data on them are extremely scattered."

1 Hearings before the Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee. Water Pollution
Control and Abatement, 88tb Cong.. first sees., pt. 1A, at 81 (1963) (hereinafter cited as
"1908 hearings").

11903 bearings at 94.
11983 bearints at 61.

S. Doc. 91-58, 01st Cong., second sess. 549 (1970) (hereinafter cited as "estuarine
study").

5 Estuarine study at 540.
*Id. at 530.

51-539--70-4 (45)
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This informational chasm deserves special emphasis. The State agencies, now
the primary sources of effluent data, often are distressingly uninformed. A recent
examination by the Comptroller General of the State permit files on 80 indus-
trial plants discharging wastes into one river showed that many did not contain
information on BOD, volume of wastes or suspended solids. "Information on
BOD was contained in the permit files for only 30 plants and information on the
volumagif wastes was contained In the files for 52 plants. However, for 22 of the
52 plants, the files did not contain sufficient information * * to ascertain the
nature and v-olume of the wastes which were permitted to be discharged into the
river."'

As for the more, exotic compounds, our ignorance is abysmal. To choose one
illuEtration among many, recent questionnaire surveys of chemical industry
wastes show a variation in solid waste generation factor of almost 2 to 1.8 That
this is most ominous is indicated by a report of the Manufacturing Chemists'
Association in 1965 that waterborne wastes were produced by over 5,000 separate
chemical processes, a number obviously increasing in a rapidly expanding indus-
try with each passing year?

In short, the biological and chemical assault upon the Nation's water resources
poses complex, diverse, rapidly changing scientific and legal challenges. Our
current blindness makes prediction easylast year it was a DDT crisis, this year
mercury, next year cadmium, arsenic, lead, polyehlorinated biphenyis, one guess
is as good as the next.

(2) TIIE REASONS FOR TIIE DELAY'

I would like to recite some of th recorded obstacles to the pursuit of a Federal
inventory. not to air old grievances, but to highlight dangers that lie ahead. The
politics of procriephation In the Bureau of the Budget have been spelled out fully
by Mr. Vic Reinemer in the July 3 issue of Science." By 1968, the patience of the
House Natural Resources anti l'ower Subcommittee had worn sufficiently thin to
inspire these caustic comments: "[I]t is disgraceful, that the national industrial
wastes inventory proposed by [the subcommittee] lIOR been delayed and ob-
structed for over 4 years." n It is disgraceful, unconscionable and inexcusable for
such an inventory now to be further delayed after over 6 years. Though I under-
stand that Commissioner Dominick has informed the committee that FWQA will
initiate a voluntary inventory shortly, the problems are by no means overcome,

Some committee members may recall how the affected industries responded to
a question put by staff counsel during the 1963 water pollution hearings asking
whether they would cooperate with a Public Health Service sponsored inventory
of industrial waste sources and treatment practices. A. representative of the
National Coal Assoelation wanted no part of Uncle Sam: "A burned child fears
the fire. I ani very careful about how far I stick my neck out Inviting the bu-
reaucrats or giving them an exClIEW to use anything I may have to whip me over the
back." He would rather .work "as a team" with State officials "as compared to
having the hig Government walk in and say : 'Henceforth you do it this way or
that way.' " n The pulp and paper industry preferred flattery: "I don't think an
inventory would be helpful," said Richard M. Billings of Kimberly-Clark Corp.,
"because of the fact that most of the State agencies have that information al-
ready." " "We have grown to respect the firm, tough but fair men who serve in
the State agencies,"", volunteered a representative of Scott Paper Co. speaking

% Comptroller General's report to the Congress. "Examination Into the ERectireneas
of the Construction Grant Program for Abating. Controlling, and Preventing Wnter
Pollution." R-108500, November 1909, p. 00.

California Governor's task force on solid waste mnnngement, report of the hazardous
wastes working group, January 1970, p. 1St in hearings on S. 2005 before the Senate
Subcommittee on Air and Water Pollution

'
91st Cong., second Reim., pt. 5 at 2606 (1970).

National Association of Manufacturers, "Water in Industry" 58 (1905).
10 Budget Bureau "Do Advisory Panels Have an Industry Bina?" 169 Science 3R (19701.
Subcommittee note.IThe article cited in footnote 10 is reprinted in app. 5 of this

hearing record.
111i. Rept. 1579, "The Critical Need for n National Inventory of Industrial Wastes

(Water Pollution Control and Abatement)," 90th Cong., 2d sem, 13 (1968).
" 1903 bearings at 818.
1$Id. nt 734.
" Id. nt 704.
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without reference to the inventory. A representative of the Iron ml steel industry
bad several responses: "Well, I don't quite see what useGil purpose this [inven-
tory] might serve."

I think that in practically all instances the States in which the steel manu-
facturing facilities are situated are fully aware, through their perkxlic inspec-
tions, of the location of all these discharges. "Would your industry be willing
to cooperate [with HEW] in assembling such an inventory?" insisted a ques-
tioner. "Well, let me answer this in two ways. One, I can't commit the steel
industry to do anything. Thw4e surveys of the sort that you describe are very
expensive." The second answer, though it took some verbal jousting, was essen.
tinily, "we'll supply HEW with information the States already have."'

To these reasons of fear of Federal bureaucrats, utmost respect for the pre-
rogatives of State officials and concern about expense and duplication were
added. others in later years. Concern was expressed in 1984 that the data rouhl
be "misused for political purposes" by the press and others. And, of course,
there is a "real problem relating to the disclosure of confidential information." "
Not to be overlooked either was the fact that "industry would have to assume
that the data will be used against them and even be used in court" and that is
another way of saying no data will be forthcoming."

To this lengthy list of hackneyed make-weights could be included a funda-
mental philosophical objection to the disclosure of data about waste effluents.
Pollution is a "relative thing" according to this industrial explanation. "[It]
is the discharge of material that unreasonably impairs the quality of water for
maximum beneficial use in the overall public interest..."'s Explains the National
Association of Manufacturers, "This definition of pollution hinges on the word
'unreasonably.' Economic, sociological and political factors will inevitably in-
fluence any attempt to agree upon an interpretation."'s Over the years this
philosophy, still largely reflected in the Federal Water Pollution Control Act,
insists upon the premise that waste disposal up to the point of demonstrable
damage is a permissible use of the waterways. The message to FWQA has been
"look at the fish, look at the birds, look at the water, but don't look at the
source." It is this industry concept that has been challenged directly by the
committee, first, by urging strict public and private enforcement of the Refuse
Act of 1899 whose fiat prohibitions plainly contradict the view that a certain
amount of pollution is acceptable and, second, by insisting upon an inventory
of effluent sources. Also indicative of an abandonment of the fixation on water
quality dota at the expense of discovering what is going into the water Is the
administration's derision to back effluent standards. It deserves emphasis, then,
that this Federal inventory is coming at a time when control at llw sonre is
gaining new currency in water quality circles.

(3) INVENTORY snoctn uNcoNDITIoNAL

Given the demonstrated reluctanee on the part of affeetefl lialusf ries to disel.ISP
relevant Unto, I would urge the committee to resist any efforts 10 remler the
inventory useless for the purposes for which it can justifiably serve, If experi-
ence is a barometer, there will be suggestions that the data supplied to FWQA
be withheld from the general public. Recommendations may b made that FWQA
stipulate that the information never will be used in a goveranilla;11 pnforrement
proceeding. You may be told that the responses should be ended so that, though
the data is known, it cannot be connected up to a *Nine source. There may
be proposals that the information be published in survey form to) as to minimize,
once again, any onus on a particular plant.

All of these submissions wili be backed by allegations of trade secrets, irrespon-
sible media, meddling academicians and politically motivated enforcement of-

15 Id. at 747-748.
29 Minutes of the Panel on Proposed U.S. Public Health Service Survey of Industrial

Waste Water Disposal, June 9, 1964, la Heartags on Presidential Advisory Committees hefore
the House Special Stucllim Rubtlimmittee, filst .Cong., second SPAR., 143-144 (1970).

27 Minutes of the panel on proposed survey. Aug. 13, 1968, supra note 10. at 147.
" 1963 hearings at 742 (testimony of Richard D. Hoak. on behalf of the American Iron

& Steel Institute).
29 Water In Industry 22 (1995).
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ficials. In short, I suspect that efforts will be made to render the inventory
useless for enforcement, of dubious value for study and impossible to verify.

I would urge the committee to resist these pressures. Legitimate legal claims
to confidentiality can be litigated after the fact. Compromising on issues of
secrecy as a condition of securing the inventory would be misleading to industry
and a disservice to improved water quality control. Far better would it be to have
the plants surveyed reject a comprehensive, voluntary inventory than to embrace
a toothless, superficial proposal that will be used to fend off sterner measures
for still another decade.

It is understandable that the effluent from the atomic works at Hanford,
Wash., is classified information. It is incomprehendable that the pollution prob-
lems of other water-using industries are similarly classified. For too long, indus-
trial secrecy has barred responsible legal and scientific investigations into the
debauchery of the Nation's waterways.

Yours very truly,

14

WILLIAM II. RODGERS, Jr.,
Associate Professor of Law.

4



APPENDIX 2.CORRESPONDENCE BETWEEN SIIRCIIMMITTEE AND FEDERAL
AGENCIES RE: A NATIONAL INVENTORY OP I NDUS'Iltl.th WASTES

1. LETTER OF JUNE 10, 1963, FROM NATURAL RESOURCES AND POWER SUBCOMMITTEE
TO THEN SECRETARY OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE ANTHONY J. CELE-
BREZZE, FIRST RECOMMENDING ESTABLISHMENT OF A NATIONAL INVENTORY OF

NDUSTRI AL WASTES
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,

NATURAL RESOURCES AND POWER SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE
COMMITTEE ON GOVERN MENT OPERATION S,

Washington, D.C., June 10, 1963.
lion. ANTHONY CELEIMLZZE,
Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare, Department of Health, Education,

and Welfare, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MR. SECRETARY : On June 4 and 5, 1963, at the hearings held before the

Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee of the Committee on House Gov-
-ernment Operations, several representatives of various industries agreed to
cooperate with the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare in compiling
an inventory of industrial waste treatment practices and discharge points for
their respective industries.

These included representatives ot the Kimberly-Clark Corp., the National
Coal Association, the Manufacturing Chemists' Association, Inc., the American
Petroleum Institute, and the Pure Oil Co. The representative of the American
Iron and Steel Institute also Agreed to make available data already complied.

The subcommittee weldnnes and appreciates these offers of cooperation on
the part of industry. We have learned in our hearings (a) that the Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare has inventories on waste treatment practices
and discharge points for both munlclpalitie and Federal installations which
provide essential basis for dealing with Mel respective pollution problems, but
(b) that the Department does not have uch information as to individual
wastes, although such data is needed to pro ide a more complete and accurate
picture of existing and potential problem co werning Indust :ial pollution.

The subcommittee hopes that your Dep rtment will promptly initiate con-
versations with these industries for the pur ose of making cooperative arrange-
ments to compile suck inventories of Indus rial vimste treatment practices and
discharge points as you deem necessary.

We would appreciate being advised as to progress;aAhis matter.
Sincerely yours,

ROBERT E. JONES,
Chairman, Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee.

2. LETTER OF AUGUST 26, 1966, Fsou SUBCOMMITTEE TO THEN SECRETARY OF THE
INTERIOR STEWART L. UDALL, URGING THAT INTERIOR DEPARTMENT DEVELOP A
"CONTINUING AND COMPREHENSIVE INVENTORY OF INDZSTRIAL DISCHARGES CON-
TAINING DATA AT LEAST AS COMPREHENSIVE AS THE DATA" Now COLLEC'TED FOR
MUNICIPAL WASTE DISCHARGES ; AND REPLIES OF OCTOBER 29 AND DECEMBER 28,
1966, FROM pECRETARY UDALL TO SUBCOMMITTEE, AGREEING THAT AN INVEN
TORY IS NEEDED

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
NATURAL RESOURCES AND POWER SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., August 26, 1966.

Hon. STEWART L. UDALL,
Secretary of the Interior,
Department of the Interior,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ms. SECRETARY : If the national program of water pollution control and
abatement is to be effectively implemented in the years immediately ahead,
I believe it is imperative that your Department develop at this time a con-
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tinning and comprelwnsive inventory of industrial waste diselmrges eontaining
data at least as maniorehensive as the data yon now collect concerning municipal
waste d hclin rges.

Information on the nature and qaantity of waste discharges by industries
is essential to vigorous and decisive advancement of the water pollution pro-
gram. AS we move eioser to the core of the water pollutiod problem, it becomes
increasingly urgent that complete and up-to-date information on industrial
wastes Ii ! readily a voila ble.

In 1963, shortly aftr the Subcommittee on Natural Resources and Power
held its first series of hearings on water pollution, I urged the Publie Health
Servive to stablish an inventory of industrial waste discharges. The Public
Health Service then proeeeded to develop such an inventory program in coopera-
tion with the State water imilution control agencies, but the Budget Bureau
did not approve tlaa questionnaire form, largely because many industry repre-
sentatives oppowd the project. The Bmiget Bureau's negative action at that.
time has, in my jmignient, substantially hampered progress in abating water
pollution.

Certainly. the lack of an inventory on industrial wastes places the Federal
Water Pollutimi Control Administration at a disadvantage. For example, at
recent hearings on water pollution held by the subconnnittee in Rochester, N.Y.
(July 2'2, 1iN16), and in Syracuse, N.Y. (Aug. 19, 1906), charges were lexeled
against the FWPCA that data in its presentations concerning industrial waste
discharges mare erroneous.

Happily, thre is reason to believe that the attitude of our leading industries
has altered, and that they are prelmred, generally, to cooperate more fully with
Federal mid State pollution control agencies.

For example, at the Lake Erie water pollution almtement conference held in
Cleveland in August 1965, seven large industries situated in Ohio agreed to malw
available to the Public Health Service data on their industrial wastes discharges
Thew industries mare E. 1. Du Pont de Nemours & Co.. Inc.; Harshaw Chemical
Co.; Republic Steel Corp.; Sherwin-Williams Co.; Standard Oil Co. (Ohio) ;
Sun Oil; and the United States Steel Corp. Subsequently, the Jones & Laughlin
Steel Corp. also agreed to make industrial wastesjiata available to PHS.

I then wrote to Secretary Gardner of the Department of Health, Education.
and Welfare and to tiw Dinaetor of the Budget Bureau. pointing out that these
(.1glit large industries in the Lake Erie Basin had agreed to provide information
on their waste discharges to the Public Health Service. I urged that in light of
this dvelopment the time was ripe for another endeavor to establish a national
industrial waste diseharges inventory.

The Director of the Budget Bureau responded tina in view of the pledges
of cooperation by important industries in the Lake Erie region, it had :
couraged the Public Health Service to proced promptly with plans for under-
taking an inventory of IndustrIal waste in the Lake Erie area, with tlw
expectation that this may be used' as a model for covering all waterways in the
Nation. We will make every effort to expedite our review of the questionnaire
proposed."

Secretary Gardner responded in part as follows: "On tiw basis of this [Lake
Erie area l industry response, we plan to approach the Bureau of the Budget
again with a proposal for an inventory of industrial wastes. We are now studying
with our field staffs the various ways in which sneh an inventory could be carried
out. It may be best to approach this matter first. on a pilot basis, using the Lalw
Erie drainage area as a model '1% We will keep the subcommittee informed
of any significant drvelownents on this important probkm?'

If there have ben any developments in the preparation of nn inventory of
industrial wastes since Secretary Gardner's lettr of September 9. 1963. eithr
on a regional or a national basis; the subcommittee would appreciate your ad-
vising us about thmn. Three Years have elapsed since I proposed the industrial
waste disharges invontory program, and almost a full year hns elapsed situp
Secretary Gardner and the Budget IMriwtor looked with favor on establishing an .

Inventory program for industrial waste diseharge data. In view of tha ever-
inereasing nrgeney for adequate data coneerning industrial waste diseharges,
we believe that the arguments for prompt develoimlent of such an inventory on
a nal i mm I basis are stronger than ever.

1e that. today, due to inenaased interest in Congress. understanding
by Imsim.ss, support from the pane. and the inuwths Of the President's proltram
ti clean np W Nation's waters. the vaitAklijority of the imlast ries throughouta
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the country would cooperate with your Department in developing an inventory
of industrial waste diseharges. I note that thd inventory on Waste Water Disposal
by Connecticut. Industries eompiled by the ,Public Health Service and tb Con-
necticut Water Resources Commission (UM. Government Printing Office, 19011
contains considerable water flow and watftes infornration for 2.133 specifically
named Connecticut industries. Such inforivation, nationwide, and supplemented
by additional data about the character 'or the waste emissions and the resultant
water quality, would substantially aid the accomplishment of the national goal
of more effective water pollution control ;and nbatement.'The preparation of such
inventory would stimulate industriea to expedite their %rater pollution control
efforts. It would nlso enable our Department to deal more effmtively and in-
telligently with the pollution problems resulting from industrial waste discharges.

I have still anotlwr'reason for urging this proposal. I am supporting an amend-
ment to the pending Clean Rivers Restoration and Water Pollution Control Pro-
gram bill, to authorize'you to make grants for research and demonstration pro-
ects for preventing water pollution by industry, whieh will have industrywide
application. I believe that the availability or a national inventory of industrial
waste disposal practices would be essential to the most effective administration
of the research and demonstration grant program envisaged in my amendment.
If you don't know what the problems nre, how can you develop solutions?

Let me emphasize again my firm conviction that such an inventory on a na-
tional basis is essential if we are to make significant advances in our struggle to
improve and preserve our vital waterresources.

I hope you will give this mntter the urgent consideration it deserves.
Sincerely,

ROBERT E. JONEB,
Chairman, Nat ural Resources and Power Subcommit tee,

U.S. DEPARTAIENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF TIIE SECRETARY,

Wash ington, D.C., October 29, 1966.
DOM ROBERT E. JONES,
Chairman, Natural Resources and Power SubcoMmittec, Committee on Gor-

ernmeNt Operations, House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MR. JONES This is in further reply to your letter of August 26, 1966,

14 which you discuss the need for industrial waste information and urge that
n comprehensive inventory of industrial wnste discharge be undertaken on n
national basis.

I ngree wholeheurtedly With yonr views on the need for adequate information
on the industrial waste polIntion situation. In addition to the values of a
nationnl inventory cited in your letter, such datn are essential in meeting our
responsibilities for developing and managing comprehensive action programs
in river bnsins, support of Federal enforcement progrinns, administration and
complinnce activities in connection with the new water quality standards re-
quirements, nnd definition and planning reinting to research needs.

As I indicated to you in my Interim reply of September 2 on this matter, I
requested a review of your inventory proposal within the Department and an
appraisnl of the current situation. This has now been done and the information
provided me appears to bring out four bnsiclaets to be considered in action on
my part.

1. As a result of our cooperative comprehensive river basin planning activities
with State and local governments and industry, Federal enforcement aetions,
and technical assistnnce progrnms, the regional offices of the. Federal Water
Pollution Control- Administration have compiled n substnntial nmount of In-
dustrial waste datn. Considerable additional amounts of such dnta are experhg
to result from developing the implementntion plans required in connection with
the water quality stnndards due for submission June 30. 1967.

2. At the locn1 nnd regional level, the negative attitude of industry toward
revenling data on its wnste dischnrges is diminishing as a result of congressional
committee and other hearings that have been held across the country. Federal
enforcement nctions and their related public relntions impnct, and discussions

" 'with top management at their meetings nnd on an individual basis by myself,
-Assistant Secretary Di Luzio and Commissioner Quigley. In this regard. I am

pleased to say that hearings lwhl by your Suheonimittee on Nntural Resourees
and Power have been esitecially effective.



3. At the national level, there is 110 detectable change in the opposition of
industry to a national inventory of industrial wane discharges by the Ad-
visory Council on Federal Reports and certain of the larger industrial trade
organizations. The Advisory Council, us you will recall, advises the Bureau of
the Budget on such matters as national inventories and is the giboup that has
Pfrectively scuttled our previous efforts to obtain approval to establish a na-
tional Inventory. Their concern appears to center around a fear that data
from n national Inventory would present a distorted view of industry that
is ,doing a good job and mak mg progress, and that collective us of such
data would have an unfair public relations effect on industry as a whole.

4. In June of this year, I approved an organization for the Federal Water
Pollution Control Administration that provides for nine regions basd on
major river basins or major drainage areas which, I believe you agree, is the
logical way to organize and administer water resources programs. Previously,
the Federal water pollution control program was organized in accord with
HEW'S State-oriented regions.

I note with real Interest the decision of the Congress in considering the
new legislation last week to require industries to make a detailed disclosure
of their waste discharges at Federal enforcement conferences. This should
make the con feroic a more ffective instrumnt 811(1 contribute substantially
to information on imlustrial wastes.

In the light of nig (Move factors, I ha ve molsted that ach mglonal
office of the Federal Water Pollution Control Administration proceed immedi-
ately with the development of an industrial waste inventory for its region,
based on: (1) information already in their files, (2) information readily avail-
able from State and local governments; and (3) Information developed in
connection with implementation plans being developed to assure compliance
with approved water quality standards. In addition, I am requesting that
any problem areas or special gaps in information relating to the Inventories
hg defined. When these latter are defined, and if their significance requires it, I
propose to deal directly with industrial managenwnt to seek their voluntary

peration in these matters.
I believe there is a good deal of logic In developing these regional industrial

waste inventories and that this can be accomplished in a reasonable length
of time. They are a ntceseary instrument to meeting our program respon-
sibilities and developing real action programs. In their aggregate, the regional
inventories will constit ute a national inventory and will serve to meet national
needs for this information, including those outlined in your letter.

Your interest in a national industrial waste inventory and continued support
in all matters of water pollution and its control are very much appreciated.

Sincerely yours,
. SIENVART L. UDALL,
Secretary of the Interior.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE. INTE.RIOR,
Or THE SECRETARY,

Washington, D.C., Dreember 28, 1966.
Hon. Ronrirr E. :TONER,
Chairman. Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee. Committee on Gorern-

malt Operaf ions. House of Representatives, 1Vas1I ing ton, D.C.
DEAR MR. J0NE9 This is In reply to your letter of December 6, 1966, regarding

nur plans to develop an industrial waste inventory through each regional office
of the Federal Wnter Pollution Control Administration as set forth in my letter
to you of October 29, and your request for copies of instructions of compiling this
inventory as sent to each regional office.

Subsequent to my October 29 letter, a metting of all FWPCA. regional direc-
'ors wag held in Washington, D.C. At that time the matter of an industrial waste
inventory was given furl lwr detailed review and discussion in light of the water
-quality standards requirenwnts under the 1965 amendments. the Clean Water
Restoration Act of 194.6. and changes in program policy and direction being
instituted sifire the transfer of FWPCA to Int rior.
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III addition to the reasons given in your letter of August 26, 1900, this review
and discussion brought ont the following additional compelling reasons 'why a
comprehensive and coutinuing national inventory of industrial waste distharges
18needed.

1. Under the Water Quality Act of 1:963, the States v cc required to adopt water
quality criteria aPplieable to interstate waters or portions thereof within the
State, and a plan for their implementation and enforcement. If any State should
fall to do so, or should propose inadequate criteria, the Secretary of the Interior
is required to promulgate such standards. In either event, adequate industrial
waste discharge information will be necessary if a meaningful and effective job
of standardS-setting is to be done.

2. If the States adopt the criteria, and we believe most of them will, the
Secretary Is required to review and approve such criteria after which 'they
become the applieable water quality standards. In order to make an adequate
determination of the adequacy and applicability of the proposed criteria, and
the effectiveness of the implementation plan, I will need available to me good
information on industrial waste discharges.

3. The Clean Water Restoration Act of IMO inereased front $5 to $10 millkm
the appropriation authorization for grants to States and interstate agencies to
assist them in meeting the costs for establishing and nmintiiining ildeqintle water
pollution control programs. To qualify for its grant, emit state or interstate
agency 18 required to submit annually for ailiTmwal its plan for prevention and
control of water popution. With the increased grants, we intend to require tqleh
State or interstate agency to prepare a comprehensive-plan that shows extensior
and improvement of its pollution control program and that is in conformity with
its water quality stamlards implementation phin ml with river basin planning.
'The preparation and execution of such plans. and their revli'w and approval
by the Secretary will require the availability of adequate industrial waste dis-
charge data.

4. I.;nder the Clean Water Restoration Act of 1960 (sec. 17). the Secretary Is
required to furnish to the Congress a report by January 10. 1966, which inchides
a detailed estimate of the cost of carrying out tile act ; a comprehensiv st ady of
the economic impact on the afTet.h:d unit.: of Covernmeut of the cost of Installa-
tion of treatment facilities; and a comprehensive analysis of the national re-
quirements for and the cost of treating municipal, industrial, and other ellimoit
to attain the water quality standards established pursuant to the act or ap-
plicable State law. This will require adequate 111(11181H11 waste informat

5. Further, ttection 1S of the 1960 net requires the Secretary to conduct a full
aml complete investigation and study of methods for providing leventives de-
signed to assist in tlw construction of facilities and works by industry designed
to Yeduee or abate water pollution, and to report the results to the Congrt s by
January 30, 1968. As in the above, if this responsibility is to be effectively ac-
mmplisbed and helpful to the Congress, good industrial waste discharge dal:tare
necessary.

With these considerations and heeds in mind, therefore, we hare tlecided to
proceed with the development of a national inventory of industrial wa..te iIi
charges on a continuing basis through tile regional offices of FWBCA. We are
aireadY preparing the necessary forms mid procedures, and will seek their ap-
proval by the Bureau of the Budget at the earliest possible date, probaltly in
January. We would expect to shoulder the major share of the burden iu coup
piling the inventory because we do not feel we shOuld ask 1 he States to assault.
any further burden than they are willing, when at the same itime, they are
working toward the establkhment of effective water quality- eriteria and imple-
mentation phIlls. We would expect this to he a service to the States, to our-
selves, and to your coMmittee.

Should it prove to be necessary, we wouhl like to feel that we have your
Support in obtaining approval to proceed with this industrial waste inventory.

Sincerely yours,
S4EWART L. 1DAI.1..

Scerufgry of the Infrrim%

j^-1.
1../1
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.3. LrITER or JANuAux 4, 1987, FROM SUBcoMHITTEE TO THEN DIREcTOR OF THE
BIMGET BURFAC Clt muss L. SCHULTZE. INFORMING HIM OF INTERIOR DEPART-
MENT PLAN To ESTABLISH AN INTENTORY; 'AND REPLY OF JANUARY 12, 1907,
Pitom THEN DEPUTY BlitEcvon oF THE BUDGET BUREAU NUM!. S. lItaniEs To
TIIE SURCOMMITTEE. AtisURING THAT INTERIOR'S PROPOSAL 9VII.L BE ANALYZED
CAREFC I.Ly"

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
XA'rI1tl. RESOURCES AND POWER SUBcOM M mum OF TIIE

COM M rrrEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., January 4, 1967,

Hon. CHARLEs T. Scu 11.ra,
Director, Bureau of the Budget,
Executive OAT Waahingtor D.C.

DEArt Ma. ScHULTZE: The Secretary of the Interior has informed me that the
Interior Depart Meat Is planning to develop on a continuing basis a comprehen-
siVe inventory of industrial waste discharges into waterways.

Further, the Secretary said that the Department is "already preparing the nec-
essary forms and procedures and will seek their approval by the Bureau of the
Budget at the earliest possible date, probably in January."

I want to express my strongest support for the Secretary's proposal which is
In By consonant with the national program of water pollution control and abate-
ment as developed by President Johnson. Certainly, information on the nature
aml quantity of waste discharges by industries is essential to the vigorous and
decisive advancement of the water pollution program.

I am confident that the Budget Ilnrean will give this proposal the urgent and
favorable consideration it deserves.

If I. or members of the subcommittee staff, can be helpful in discussions of
the inventory proposal, please let me know.

Sineerely,
ROBERT 10. JoNES,

Chairman, Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee.

ExEcUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT,
BUREAU OF THE BUDGET,

Washingtmt, D.C., Jan nary 12, 1967.
Ilan. ROBERT B. JONES,
chairman, Natural licsourms and Power Subcommittee, Committee on Go tern-

went Operationst Bayhur7i Ilimse Office Building, Washington, D.C.
DEAR .NIR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you for your letter of .Tatmary 4, 1907, in which

you stated your support for the Secretary of the Interior's proposal to develop a
rowprehensive inventory of industrial waste discharges Into waterways.

Tile Bureau of the Budget appreciates and shares your cqncern for water pol-
lution control and abatement, and realizes that classification and quantification
of pollutants entering streams is a significant component of information required
to attack this grave problem.

Any proposals that. the Department of the Interior may submit to the Bureau
of the Budget will be analyzed carefully.

Sine( rely,
PHILLIP S. HUGHES,

Dusty Director.

4. LETTER or MARCH 14, 1967, Fitot.t SUBCOMMITTEE To SECRETARY UDALL, INQUIR-
ING AnouT STATUS OF INVENTORY ; AND REPLY OF APRIL 13, 1967, FROM
SECRETARY 1./per.t TO SUBccarsrITTEE, ADVISING THAT INTERIon WAS PROCEED-
I NG To PREPARE REVISED QUESTIONNAIRE .

HOUSE oF REPRESENTATIVES,
NATURAL RESOURCES AND POWER SuncomaarrEE

OF TUE COIIHrTTES oN GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS.
Washington, D.C., March 14, 1967.

Hon. STEWART L. UDALL,
Reerrtary of the Interior, Department of the Interior,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. SECRETARY : In your letter of December 28, 1966, you informed me
that you "hare decided to proceed with tbe development of a national Inventory . 0
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of industrial waste discharges on a continuing basis through the Regional Offices
of FWPCA [and] are already preparing the necessary forms and procedures,
MO will seek their approval by the Bureau of the Budget at the earliest possible
date, probably in January".

I would appreciate copies of the instructions you have sent to the Regional
Oakes concerning the developnwnt of the inventory of industrial waste dis-
charges.

In addition, I would appreciate knowing the current status of the Interior
Delmrtment's consultations with the Budget Bureau on this matter.

You will want to know that the Director of the Budget Bureau to whom I
wrote expressing my full support for your proposed national inventory of in-
dustrial waste discharges, has advised me that the Budget Bureau "appreciates
and shares" my concern and recognizes that the information to be developed
by such inventory "Is a significant component of information required to attack
this grave problem" of water pollution control and abatement.

Thank you for your cooperation.
Sincerely,

ROBERT E. JONES,
Chairman, Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TUE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF TUE SECRETARY,

Washington, D.C., April 13,1967.
II011. ROBERT E. JONES,
Chairman, Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee, Committee on Govern-

ment Operations, House Of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DzAn MR. JONES : This is in further reply to your letter of Mardi 14, 1967,

with regard to progress toward a continuing inventory of industrial waste dis-
charge practices.

Since my letter of December 28, 1966, the Federal Water Pollution Control
Administration has considered alternate forms and procedures aimed at secur-
ing a timely, meaningful response. The Assistant Commissioners for Research,
Comprehensive Planning, Technical Programs, Enforcement, and Program Plan-
ning, have met to consider the several proposals and have in turn directed key
staff to develop specific qnestions which will, when answered, assist in each of
these major program activities.

The technical Staff of FWPCA considered the form which was proposed some
three years ago by comparison with new legislative responsibilities mntained
in the Water Quality Act of 1965 and the Clean Water Restoration Act of 1900.
Using the old form as a guide, specific new questions are heing developed. The
technical staff is currently scheduled to meet 411 11, 1907, to coordinate ques-
tions which will make a meaningful input to the several FWPCA programs. As
soon as this coordination has been effected, a new form will be suhmitted to the
Ihweau of the Budget for approval.

Our inauguraLeffort as part of the continuing industrial waste inventory will
be directed at installations which account for 90 percent of the mamdacturing
industrial discharges to the Nation's streams. This percentage includes six 2-
digit manufacturing code-groups including the largest water users as identified
in the "1903" Census of ManufacturersWater Use in Manufacturing." By
limiting initial coverage to thhi group, approximately 0,000 plants, we believe
that a timely response will be developed which will give ns a ,hundle nn the in-
dustrial waste discharge situation in the United States, at least as it is related
to major discharges. Other manufacturing groups and imlnstries will be brought
under the umbrella as qnickly as Imssible to fill nut the picture hnth as regards
the quantity and quality of wastes being discharged directly to waterways and
the number of locations involved.

We beliere we both sense n change in the general attitude of hulustry toward
the need fnr a firm industrial waste discharge data base. Assistant Secretary Di
Lazio has spoken to several groups within the last nmnth, including the Cali-
fornia Munieipal Utilities Association and the North Ameriean Wildlife and
Natural Resourees Conferenee. In (tach instance, he has indicated that if in-
dustry expfs.ts us to help them, they must assist us by providing information
about the chemical composition of their waste li1in rgs and almnt the nature
of the processes whieh generate these effluents. We trust that we will be able
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to get their cooperation. This inventory will certainly give industry an oppor-
tunity to indicate the extent of cooperation we can expect in the yenrs to come.

We appreciate your continued interest on our behalf and will advise you just
as soon as we have submitted the industrial waste form to the Bureau of the
Budget

Sincerely yours,
STEWART L. UDALL,

Secretary of the Interior.

5. LETTER Or JULY 21, 1967, FROM STIROOMMETTIFE TO BUDGET BUREAU DIRECTOR
SOHULTZE, RE STATUS OF BOB's Ever-I:Tenon or QUESTIONNAIRE FORM SUBMTTTED
TO IT ON APRIL 21, 1967, BY INTERIM DEPARTMENT; AND REPLIES OF AUGUST 4.
1967, AND JULY 26, 1968, Paoli DEPUTY DIRECTOR HUGHES TO Suncommrrrv.E.
ADVISING THAT (A) Two STATUTORY eruorra Muer BR COMPLETED BEFORE BOB
"WILL BEGIN" ITEI REVIEW OF QUESTIONNAIRE FORM, AND (B) ADVISORY COUNCIL
ON FEDERAL REPORTS WILL REVIEW THE FORM ON AUGUST 13, 1968

HOUSE Or REPRESENTATIVES,
NATVRAL RESOURCES AND POWER SUBCOMMITTF.E.

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS.
Washington, D.C., July 21, 1967.

Hon. CnAnms L. SCHULTZE.
Director, Bureau of the Budget,
Executive Office Building, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. SCHuLTzE: I would appreciate your advising me as to the status of
the Budget Bureau's evaluation of the proposal, submitted to the Bureau on
April 21 by the Department of the Interior, to establish a continuing national
inventory of industrial wnste discharges into waterways. As you,know our sub-
commiltee has long urged the egtablishment of such an inventory.

Thank'Yon for your cooperation.
Sincerely,

Muer I. JosEs,
Chairman, Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee.

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT.
BURFAU OF THE BUDGET,

Washington, D.C., August 4, 1967.
Hon. RollERT E. JON Es.
Chairman, Subcommittee on Natural Resources and Power, Committee on Gov-

ernment Operations, House of Representatives, Rayburn House Office Build-
ing, Washington, D.C.

DEMI MR. JONES : This is in reply to your letter of July 21, 1967. regarding
the national inventory of industrial waste discharges.

As you know. the Clean Water Restoration Act of 1966 requires a comprelien-
Sire study of the cost of pollution control, including industrial ,pollution : and a
study of possible economic Incentives for Industry to abate pollution. Both of
these studies. due in January 1968, will require significant amounts of data and
cooperation from industry.

We do not believe it would he appropriate to request further information
from industry through the national waste inventory questionnaire during the
same period the other studies are underway. Not only would this be difficult for
the firms from which information is requested. but it might jeopardize the
cooperation the Department of the Interior receives from them on the two studies
underway.

We believe thnt once data is available from the cost and thcentive studies, we
will have a much better idea about what types of data are available from in-
dustry and how best to structure any potential questionnairelor the industrial
inventory. I can assure you that once the cost and incentive stodies are com-
pleted, we will begin such a review.

Sincerely,
(Signed) PHILLIP S. ROGUES.

Deputy Director.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDF.NT,
BUREAU OF THE BUDGET,

Washington, D.C., July 26, 1968.
lion. ROIIERT E. JONES.
Chairman, Subcommittee on. Natural Resources and Power, Committee on Goir

eminent Operations, House of Representatives, Wash ington, D.C.
DEAR Aln. JONES. Thank you for your letter of July 2, 1968, attaching a

report of the Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee entitled "The Critical
Need for a National Inventory of Industrial Wastes (Water Pollution Control
and Abatement )."

In that letter, you called our attention to the prilleipal recommendations of
the remrt, and asked us to advise you on the actions being taken to carry out
t he recommenda lions,

We have been working with the Department of the Interior on an industrial
wastes inventory for some time. In an undertaking of this magnitude It is
necessary to assure that this questionnaire is fully coordinated with data
gathering activities of other agencies, and that the data requests are clear and
reasonable. As a result of discussions between the Bureau of the Budget and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Administration and subsequent analysis by
PWPCA of its requirements, it was possible to simplify and Improve the ques-
tionnaire.

The revised questionnaire will be reviewed by an ad hoc task force on water
use data of the Water Resources Council on July 30, 1968. It will also be
reviewed by an industry advisory group of the Bureau's Advisory Council on
Federal Reports on August 13, 1968. Once this latter review has taken place,
it should be possible to take expeditious action on the industrial wastes
questi ouna I re.

We appreciate your interest and hope that ,Ols information indicates how
we are proceeding.

Sincerely,
PHILLIP S HUGHES,

Deputy Director.

. Lvrrot OF JULY 31, 1968, nowt SECRETARY UDALL TO SUBCOHMFrFEE, ADVISING
THAT "EXPEDITIOUS CLEARANCE OF THE FORM" IS ANTICIPATED AFTER MEETING
OF ADVISORY COUNCIL

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

Washington, D.C., July 31, 1968.
lion. Rouen E. JONES,
Chairman, Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee, Committee on Govern-

ment Operations, House of Representatives, Washington, D.O.
DEMI Alm JONES : I am pleased to advise you that significant progress is being

made toward initiating a national inventory of industrial waste water disposal
practices, which you have strongly supported and which YOU have 'again recom-
mended in your iet ter of July 2,1968.

I'ersonnel of the Federal Water Pollution Control Administration have been
in close touch with the Bureau of the Budget since early this year when the spe-
cial FWPCA studies, which caused that agency to defer approval of the proposed
1967 inventory, neared completiou. Subsequently, the 1967 form, which already
incorporated changes recommended by industry, was again reviewed extensively
within FWPCA and an improved but simplified version was submitted to the
Bureau of the Budget for clearance. We have been advised that the form must be
reviewed by other interested Federal agencies and by the Advisory Council on
Federal Reports and that meetings with the two groups have been scheduled for
July 30 and August 13, 1968, respectively. Department of the Interior representa-
tives will be present at these two meetings to help resolve differences of opinion
which may evolve.

It is anticipated that expenditious clearance of the form will be forthcoming
after conclusion of the above two meetings. On receipt of such clearance, I shall
personally sign letters to the heads ot a selected group of the Nation's largest
corporations urging their cooperation in this critical inventory. Corporations
selected will be those involving industries using the largest volumes of water as
identified in the Bureau of the Census' 1963 "Water Use in Manufacturing."

GO



58

The initial effort will be augmented by additimm I conimuni6itions from
FWPCA regional directors to survey 10,000 plants, Ileelmilting for about D:1 per-
cent of the Nation's industrial wa ter use.

In the course of reviewing the 1907 form, FWPCA consulted with the Bureau of
the Census, liepartment of Commerce. The FOVised form refleets nomenclature and
definitions of water supply and discharge points whidi are as compatible as pos-
sible with those Used III the census of manufacturers. In addition. collection of
data by the Bureau of Ciumus for our use, has been discussed. Under the "dis-
closure" rule, data collected by the Bureau of Census, is not releasable when
associated with a sof Ti Il c plant. We have been informed, however, that ways will
be sought to allow tlw Bureau to act us p contractor in the collecting enpaeity, and
to make the resulting data avail:11th! for unlimited use by the requesting ageiwy.
Needless to Hay, we feel the inventory is too urgent to imstpone pending this
development.

With respeet to reemnmemlation No. 3 of your July 2 letter, earlier this ymt r
FWPCA initiated an updating of the municipal waste treatimmt facilities inven-
tory as of Jpnunry 1, 1968, and this does call for some effluent quality data. We
are also devising nwans of keeping both munielpal and Fethqui iliventor up-
dated on a current basis. As we accomplish this:, we intend to include additional
inch.xes of treatment plant effectiveness in the form of influent and effluent
quality data.

Thank you for your continuing interest in establishing a realistic picture of
tlw amounts and types of wastes discharged into our national waterways.

Sincerely yours,
STEWART L. UDALL,

Secretary of the interior.

7. LETTER OF FEBRUARY 28, 1969, FROM CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
' SUBCOMMITTEE TO FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL, ADMINISTRATION COM-

MISSIONER JOE G. MOORE, JR., ENCLOSINO LETTER TO INTERIOR SECRETARY WALTER
J. HICKEL REQUESTING STATUS OF INVENTORY, AND STATING THAT BLANKET
CONFIDENTIALITY WOULD "SUBSTANTIALLY UNDERCUT THE USEFULNESS" OF THE
INVENTORY ; AND LETTER OF APRIL 22, 1969, FROM ASSISTANT SECRETARY CARL L.
KLEIN, STATING THAT HE IS GIVING "PRIORITY ATTENTION" TO RESOLUTION OF
"THIS COMPLEX ISSUE" OF CONFIDENTIALITY

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COM M ITTEE ON GOVERN M E NT OPERATIONS,

Washington, D.C., February 28, 1969.
MT. JOE G. MOORE,
Commi.ssioner, Federal Water Pollution Control Administration, Department of

the Interior, Main Interior Building, Washington, D.C.
DEAR M. MOORE; Enclosed are copies of letters I have today written to tlw

Secretary of the Interior, and to the Director of the Bureau of the Budget.
urging the prompt establishment of a national inventory of industrial wastes.

I have read with great interest your remark of February 18 before the imiwr
industry's Council for Air and Stream Improvement, in which you supported the
establishment of such a national inventory.

Your remarks also mentioned that the Department is consithqing whether to
adopt the position urged by some industry representatives that the information
obtained by such inventory be classified as confidential.

We believe that a rigid confidentiality provision would substantially undercut
the usefulness of an industrial wastes inventory. While there may, in some
unusual cases, be justification for holding such information confidential. we
believe that such information generally does not require confidentM1 treatment.
and that confidentiality should therefore be accorded only where there is clear
showing that the FWPCA's use or disclosure of the inventory information will
substantially impair bona fide trade secrets of the informant.

Sincerely,
HENRY B. REUSS,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.
[NoTE.The letter to the Director of the Budget Bureau, similar to that ad-

dressed to the Secretary of the Interior, is in the subcommittee files. The letter
to Secretary Hickel follows:1
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HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT' OPERATIONS,

Washington, D.C., February 28, 1960.
Hon, W.Avrca J. HICKEL,
Secretary of the Interior,
Department of the Inte:lor,
Washington, D.C.

Dust Ma. SecarrARY: On June 24, 1998, the House Committee on Government
Operations issued a report entitled "Tim Critical Need for a National Inventory
of Industrial Wastes" (H. Rept. 1579, 90th Cong.). Enclosed are three copies of
that report for your information. The report was based on a study by the
Natural Resources and Power Subcommittee, chaired by .Ilon. Robert E. Jones.

Because of increasing congressional obligations. Congressman Jones felt that
he could no longer continue as chairman of that subcomMittee Consequently,
the Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee, which. I have the honor
to chair, has been established in the 91st Congress to carry on this work.

We are concerned that the industrial wastes inveatory be estfOlished and
become fully operative as expeditiously as possible.

Enclosed for your information are copies of the letters I Late today sent to
the Director of the Bureau of the Budget, and to the Commissioner of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Administration, concerning this matter.

We would appreciate hearing from you at your earliest convenience as to
(1) your position with regard to the committee's recommendations (see p. 3
of the report), and (2) the present status of the national Industrial wastes
inventory.

We look forward to working with you on the many matters of mutual concern
in which this subcommittee and the Department of the Interior will be involved.

Sincerely,
IIF.NRY S. REUSS,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee,

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

lVashington, D.C., April 42, 190.
DOM HENRY S. REUSS,
Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee,
House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.

DEAR CHAIRMAN Rause : Your letter of February 28, 1969, to Mr. Joe G, Moore,
Jr., concerning the establishment of a national inventory of industriul wastes has
come to my attention. I wish to assure you that I share your sense of urgency
about the neeessity of undertaking an inventory as soon as possible.

I have been looking into this matter of confidentiality of the information, and
I am giving priority attention to means of resolving this complex issue in a man-
ner which will provide the most reliable and complete information with the least
restraint on its use, I plan to make recommendations to Secretary Ilickel as soon
as possible. You will be hearing further from the Secretary as soon as this Issue
Is resolved.

In his letter of March 17, 1969, Secretary Rickel extended his congratulations
to you on your new position of chairman of the Conservation and Natural Re-
sources Subcommittee, and I wish to add my good wishee to his. We look forward
to cooperating with the subcommittee.

Sincerely yours,
IS/ CAR!, L. KLEIN,

Assistant Secretary of the Interior.
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8. LETTER OF APRIL 22, 1969, FROM SUBCOMMITTEE TO SECRIMItY HICKEL, UliGINU
"EARLY AC? IoN" ON ESTABLISHMENT OF INVENTORy ; A:WI:CP:PLY OF JULY 30,
1969, FROM ACTING SECRETARY KLEIN, STATING THAT "WE EXPECT To REACH,
WITHIN THE NEXT SEVERAL WEEKS, A FINAL DECISION ON TIIE DEGREE OF
CONFIDENTIALITY THAT WE WISH To ALLOW"

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURcES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
IVashington, D.C., April 22, 1969.

MR. WALTER J. HICHEL,
Seemtary of the I ntertor,
Ikpartment of the Interior,
IVashing ton, D.C.

DEAR MR. SECRETARY: On February 28, 1969, we requested your views on the
recommendations of the House Committee .on Government Operations that the
industrial wastes inventory be promptly established. The committee's recom-
mendations were contained in its report of June 24, 1968, entitled "The Critical
Need for a National Inventory of Industrial Wastes" (H. Rept. 1579, 90th Cong.).
On March 17 you advised us that you would obtain your staff'a views as,soon as
possible and advise us of your views.

Industrial wastes are a major source of pollution of our Nation's wastes. In
view of the increasingly urgent need for establishing the necessary information
essential for governmental efforts to reduce such pollution, your early action to
establish such an inventory would materially aid the Nation's struggle to abate
industrial pollution of our waterways.

We hope that you will let us have your views on this important matter very
soon.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

Washington, D.C., July 30, 1969.
Hon. HENRY S. REUSS,
Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee, Committee on

Government Operations, House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DEAR Ma. REUSS: This letter is in further response to your letter of April 22,

1969, concerning a national inventory of industrial wastes. I am pleased to
furnish you the following information on the background and current status
of our efforts to develop the procedures and questionnaire necessary to conduct
such an inventory.

In July, 1968, the Federal Water Pollution Control Administration initiated
action to develop an inventory questionnaire by filing a formal application
with the Bureau of the Budget. As you know, all agencies of the executive branch
must secure the Bureau's approval prior to initiating inventories addressed to
non-Federal agencies or individuals. Subsequently, at the request of the Bureau,
meetings were held with representatives of interested Federal agencies and
industry to discuss the objectives and the proposed procedures and questionnaire
of the inventory.

The only point of contention arising from these meetings, which could not be
resolved, was the request by industry that data submitted via the questionnaire
be considered confidential. This request has been the subject of intensive study
by my staff and FWPCA, and we have carefully considered the effects that confi-
dentiality might' have on the inventory responses we would receive from industry
and on our requirements for use of the data collected. We have also examined
the effects that nonconfidentiality might have on mponses and our require-
ments, and we have taken cognizance of the position of your committee which
was expressed in your letter of February S. 19HS, to the former Commissioner
of FWPCA.

At the present time, we are giving final consideration to two alternative
approaches: noneonfidentiality and limited-contidentiality. With respect to the
latter, we have looked at the confidentiality clause currently being used by the
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National Air Pollution Control Administration in the survey of industrial air
emissions. We have had the Department's Solicitor review this clause and w
are now studying his opinion. We expect to reach, within the next several week ,

a final decision on the degree of confidentiality that we wish to allow, and iVe
will make our recommendation to the Bureau of the Budget. It is my under-
standing that this recommendation will enable the Bureau to take final attion
on our proposed questionnaire. I will inform you of the outcome of this/action
as soon as it is known.

Sincerely yours,
CARL L. KLEIN,

Acting Secretary of theInterior,

9. LETTERS OF FEBRUARY 9 AND MARCH 23, 1970, FROM SUB= lirrrEE TO SECRETARY
IIICKEL, AGAIN REQUESTING DRESENT STATUS OF INVENTORYA AND REPLY OF
MAY 7 , 1970, FROM SECRETARY BICKEL, STATING THAT INTERIOR DEPARTMENT
18 RE-EXAMINING FEDERAL WATER QUALTTY ADMINIEPTRATION'S PLAN TO CONDUCT
INVENTORY ,/

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF TILE COMM I TTEE ON GOVERSOENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D,C., February 9, 1970.

HOD. WALTER J. BICKEL, . ,
Necrctary ot the Interior,
Department of the Interior, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. SECRETARY : In 1968, the Committee, on Government Operations is-
sued a report entitled, "The Critical Need for a National Inventory of Industrial
Wastes" (II. iteport 1579, 90th Cong. June 24; 1068), which urged the Interior
Department to establish such an inventory promptly.

Last year we wrote to you several times (February 28, April 22, and July 30,
11,69) and to tbe Commissioner of the Federal ,Water Pollution Control Adminis-
tration (February 28,1969), asking your position on, and the current status of, the
national inventory of industrial wastes. We later received letters dated April
28 and July 30, 1969, from Assistant Secretary Klein on this subject. Mr. Klein's
July 30 letter explained that meetings with the Bureau of the Budget on a
proposed inventory questionnaire were held with the Department of the Interior
and other Federal agencies and that the "only point of contention was the
request by industry that data submitted via the questionnaire be considered con-
fidential." Ills letter then said in part:

"At the present time, we are giving final consideration to two alternative
approaches: nonconfidentiality and limited confidentiality. With respeet to the
latter, we have looked at the confidentiality clause currently being used by the
National Air Pollution Control Administration in the survey of industrial air
emissions. We have had the Department's solicitor review this clause and we
are now studying his opinion. We expect to reach, within the next several
weeks, a final decision on tile degree of confidentiality that we wish to allow, and
we will make our recommendation to the Bureau of the Budget. It is my under-
standing that this recommendation will enable the Bureau to take final action
on our proposed questionnaire. I will inform you of the outcome of this action
as soon as it is known."

We have not heard from either you or from Assistant Secretary Klein since his
letter of July 30, 1969. Over one nnd one-half years have lapsed since the Com-
mittee's report was issued urging the establishment of the National Inventory of
Industrial Wastes which would substantially aid your Department and the
States in establishing water quality standards and improving the quality of our
environment.

We would appreciate your promptly advising us :
(a) What has the Department done since July 30, 1969, toward establishing

the National Inventory of Industrial Wastes?
(b) What "degree of confidentiality" will you allow concerning the data, sub.

miffed pursuant to the proposed questionnaire? In this connectfon, I call to your
attention the following sentences in my letter to Commissioner of FWPCA of
February 28, 1969 :

"We believe that a rigid confidentiality provision would substantially under.
cut the usefulness of an industrial wastes inventory. While there may, in some
unusual cases, be justification for holding such information confidential, IVB
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beiWve that such information generally (huh; not require onaidential treatment,
and that conffilentiality shonhl therefore he ackalled .only where tiwre is clear
showing that the FWPCA's use or disclosure of the inventory information will
substantially impair Ihh, trade secrets of the informant."

Sincerely,
HENRI: S. ItEuss,

Chairman,Con.verration and Natural Resources sg beogimilfcc.

CoNGRESS OF TUE L.SITED STATES,
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,

CoNsuatv.vrioN AND NATURAL REHM:RUES Swim M lrrEE
OF TUE II.'OMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,

Washington, &C.I/arch .i.t? 197o.
Hon. WALTER J. RICKEL,
?Secretary of the Interior,
Department of the Inferior,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MIL SECRETARY : On February 0, 1970, we sent a letter to yon citing
the long-onitinned effort by our cionmIttee to have the Interior Department
establish a national inventory of industrial wastes (as recommended in II. Kept.
the long-eonthmed effort by our committee to have the Interior Department
and the States to establish and nforce water quality standards. Our letter
also itd the letters whkh I sent to you on February 28, April 22, and July 30,
1909, asking your position on, and the curreut status of, that inventory. We
have had no response from your Detainment since .Assistant Secretary Klein's
last letter over 7 months ago,

On Mareh 19, Senator Lee Metcalf testified More the Special Studies Sub-
committee of thk committee ecncerning the impact whieh business advisory com-
mittees have on the Budget Bureau's role in approving agency questionnaires.
During the t.ourse of his testhnony he cited and discussed the role of industry
advisory groups In obstructing approval of the Interior Apartment's proposed
inventory of imlnstrial waste discharges. He then testified as follows:

"Mr. Chairman. I want to advise your subcommittee on the status, as of yes.
terday, of this 7-yeAr effort. to obtain basic information from industry on
oolltakm. The Budget Bureau advised my Mike yesterday that OW HMV Adillin-
istrator of flw Water Pollution Control Administration had asked to look at
the proposed linestionnaire. 11e deehled this was not a proper Federal concern.
He wants to twe if the States can provide the information.

"That attitude by a Federal administrator, starkly illustrates the fact that
t ids administration does not b4dieve In law enforcenwnt against (.orporatIons. It
is or a pieee with the failure to enforce laws 81n1 regulations violated by oil
emnpanies which pollute our coastal waters. lt is of a piece with the tragie
Presidential Veto, a decade ago, which said that pollution Is 'a nnIque loeal

"And tlw Budget 13ureaw-4 was advised yesterdayhas withdrawn consid-
eration of the proposed inventory."

Until now. the Interior Department has repeatedly affirmed to our com-
mittee that the Derartment supported, and was working to advance the pro-
posed national inventory of Industrial wastes. In fact, Assistant Secretary

iii his letter of July 30. 1969, to our subcommittee said that the only
remaining issue invoh-ing the questionnaire MIS whether the industry data
would be conshlered "confidential" and he expected "to reach, within the next
several weeks, a final decision on the degree of confidentiality that we wish
to allow." He further said that this would "enable the Bureau to take final
action" on the questionnaire.

We would appreciate yoar immediately nelvIsIng its what has mimed the
Derailment's apparent reversal of position as reported by Senator Metcalf. Also
please respond to the questions asked In our letter of February 9.

Sincerely,
1.1E:cnY S. REuss.

Chairman,
conservation and Natural Resources Ruhermitngire.
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1 IENIt I 111.3.*Ss : Thls is in reply to your let ters of February 9. 1 970, and
31arch 23, 1971), eoncerning a national inventory of industrial wastt.s. As you
know. the forwarding of signithant legislative prottosals from this 1 Yepartment
pursuant to the President's messoge on environmental quality, submitted to the
Congress tia February 1 1. and 11w,reeent promulgation of proPosl'd regullitloas
by mt. on March 31, 1 1170, in the Federal Register on page 5340, bear direetly on
the question of au industrial inventory and on the subject of pollution erattrol
Information in general. Pertinent to tile question as to what we 1111 ye done,.ad-
tillionally, shwa .1 i t ly n r the act Ions deseribed in the following pa ragraphs.

iii eomteetion with tlw ngleral Watt's. ()minty Administration's annual report
to Congro.s on "The Cost of Clean Water," comprehensive profiles were prepared
Mt tIe, -q industrial calegork.s.using the greatest amounts of water and ermstit at-
ing the greatest pollutional threat. This information included current and pro-
jected discharges of %vasty %%-viyiN, amounts of pollutants :nal estimah41 costs of
abatement. The report Kovides tbe basis to analyz the overall abatemnt prob-
lem ill t Indust Ha I area.

ln August 1960 it decishm was made .to otTer limited confident int treatment for
data sulailittud by industry coneerning their plants hi response to our proposed
Invent ory form which bad previously submitt ed to the Burtmu of the Budget
without such a provishin. A chaise tiroviding the extent of confidentiality was
prepart41 and the form and related instructions were revised for resubmission
to the Bureau of the Budget. Meanwhile, we proposed new legislation deseribed
in the (unloving paragraphs and resulnnissimi %vn a delayed. Subsequently, tile
Boman of the Budget susitemled aetion on approval of the form.

l'Imding legislation and proposed changes to regulations dictated a reextunina-
thin of the Ilion of the Federal Wafer Quality Administration to conduct a na-
mom 1 inventory of industrial wastes. These-Tending din nges to regulations would
resin I re :

1 Tint O States provide data on fill waste discharges, including industrial,
alTeeting a proposed municipal trottment faellity in order to qualify it for Fed-
eral financial its,1-4 once for eonstriwtion. From this data provided by the States,
WI. expect to be able to project the desired national inventory of indultrial
%vast es.

2 1 That State or interstate agencies show that a proposed municipal treat-
ment facility is 11 part of a basinwide and a metropolitan or regional water
pollution abatement plan to obtain Federal financial assistance.

Other legislation or regulations would require :
(1) Industrial plant discharges to meet water quality standards and other

requirements estnblislied by the State to qualify for 5-year amortization of
the cost of the facility.

(2 1 Sulanission of effluent data to secure tut Army Corps of Engineers' permit
for discharges to navigable waters.

The Federal Water Qaality dministration has been working rapidly to accrue
industrial waste information consistent with the legislation and regulations
and proposals mentioned above. In order to obtain sufficient industrial waste
information to hnpletnent fully the proposed legislative and regulatory changes.
the Federal Water Quality Administration has proceeded to collect available
information within the agency and is planning for a full-seale effort to develop,
In-house, a total industrial waste inventory. Regional directors have been directed
to complete within 3 months a pilot settle inventory for one river basin seleeted
in Pus (is region. As soon as this pilot program is analyzed, the means for obtaining
a total industrial inventory will be developed hy the agency. A determination
will be made as to what nssistanee from the States, if any, in addition to that
routinely received under existing programs, will be required.

inform:0ton collected in the pilot program will he recorded on a form which
bis .en circulated to all regions and which has been reviewed by other interested
government agencies, a panel of industrial representatives appointed by the
President's Advisory Council. for Federal Reports and by numerous State and
interstate agencies. Since submission of the information to be obtained through
lits$ of this feral will be mandatory pursuant to flue proposed regulations, the
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requirement for confidentiality no longer appears to be relevant. in anticipation
of possible future needs, the form will be resubmitted to the Bureau of the
Budget without the confidentiality clauses.

This course of action, we feel, will best produce immediate results for this
critical component of our total water pollution control effort.

Sincerely yours,
WALTER J. RICKEL,

Secretary of the Interior.

10. JOINT LETTERS OF MAY 28, 1970, FROM SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIRMAN HENRY S.
REUSS AND RANKING MINORITY MEMBER GUY VANDER JAGT, TO SECRETARY
RICKEL AND BUDGET DIRECTOR ROBERT P. MAYO, URGING THAT (A) INTERIOR
DEPARTMENT IMMEDIATELY INSTITUTE INVENTORY, AND (It BOB APPROVE
QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

CONGRESS OF TIIE UNITED STATES,
HoUss OF REPRESENTATIVES,

CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE
OF TIIE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,

Washington, D.C., May 28, 1970.
BOLL. WALTER J. HICKEL,
Secretary of the Interior,
Department of the Interior,
Washington, D.C.

DrAn Ma. SECRETARY : Thank you for your letter of May 7, 1970, in reply to our
several letters urging that your Department establish a national inventory of
industrial wastes, as recommended by this subCommittee since 1963 and by the
Committee on Government Operations in its report of June 24, 1968 (H. Rept.
90-1579) entitled : "The Critical Need for a National Inventory of Industrial'
Wastes (Water Pollution Control and Abatement )."

Your letter indicates that the Federal Water Quality Administration will try
to as.semble industrial waste water data- through your methods, and that
the Interior Department rejects, at least for the next several months, the idea
of obtaining data from industry, by voluntary responses to questionnaires, about
the source, volume, composition, and points of discharge of its wastes.

We believe that the long history of the Department's delay in starting a
national inventory of industrial wastes, as recommended by the committee,
is not consistent with the public's interest in accelerating Federal action to control
water pollution and to prevent the degradation of our waters. In light of that
history, which we shall here briefly review, we believe your proposed four
methods, although good as far as they go, are riot adequate and that the commit-
tee's recommendations should be followed now.

A. History of delay in establishing a national inrentory of industrial wastes.
For nearly 7 years, this subcommittee (and its predecessor under Chairman

Robert E. Jones) has urged that a national inventory of industrial wastes be
established on a cooperative basis with industry. Our first request was made on
June 10,1963, when Chairman Jones wrote to the Secretary of Health, Education,
and Welfare (who then administered the Federal Water Pollution Control
program), urging such an inventory.

In 1964, that Department agreed with the subcommittee that such an inventory
was needed, and it requested the Budget Bureau to approve, Rs required by
the Federal Reports Aet of 1942 (as codified in Public Law 90-620, 44 U.S.C.,
supp. IV, secs. 3501-3511), a questionnaire form to lie se9t to all dischargers
of industrial waste waters. The Budget Bureau "refused to approve the form"
because of industry opposition, "thus effectively quashing the proposed inven-
tory." (II. Rept., supra, p. 10).

In 1967, after eight major industries at the Lake Erie Water Pollution Control
Conference agreed in August 1965 to provide data on their waste water dis-charges, the Interior Deportment asked the Budget Bureau to approve the
questionnaire form which was revised to overcome industry objections expressed
in 1964: But the Budget Bureau again refuSed approval on the ground that the
Interior Department should first complete two studies required under the Clean
Water Restoration ACt of 1966 (Public Law 89-573; 80 Stat. 1248) ; namely,
(1) a comprehensive study of the cost of cOntrollitig water pollution, including
industrial pollution, and (2) a study of possible economic incentives for industry
to abate pollution. In n letter of August 4, 1967, to the subcommittee, the Bureau's
Deputy Director said;
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"We ladieve that once data is available from the cost and incentive studies,
Wt. will have a much better Idea about what types of data are available from
industry and how best to structure any potential questionnaire for the industrial
inventory. I can assure you that once the cost and incentive studies are completed,
we will begin such a review."

The House Government Operations Committee criticized the Budget Bureau's
refusal to appreve that questionnaire form, as follows (II. Rept., supra, pp
12-13) :

l'he committee believes the foregoing reasons expressed bi the Budget Bureau
are largely unsound. It seems inconceivable that adequate studies can be
developed emicerning the costs of controlling industrial Pollution, and concerning
the incentives that will be necessary to enable industry to control and abate
pollution from its waste discharges, unless there is first obtained a thar gnd
adequate inventory of the extent and' scope of the industrial waste discharges
which it is intended to control and abate. This view of the committee is confirmed
by the Interior Department's first report to Congress on the national requirements
an(1 costs of water pollution control, dated January 10, 1968, and entitled "The
Cost of Clean Water." The Department * stated that it had great difficulty
in developing estimates concerning the costs of industrial pollution control * *
due to "the lark of current inventory of waste loadings from industrial sources,
the wide range of industrial pollutants and pollutant sources, and the scarcity
of data on existing treatment facilities, unmet needs, and iadustrial treatment
mats" (vol. I, p. 7). (Italic supplied.)

"The Department's report added (p. 8) : .

" 'The unavoidable uncertainties in the estlmates emphasize the necessity
for continuing to seek more accurate inventory data on ail sources of wastes.'

"It is Orig.-awful that the national industrial wastes inventory proposed by the
* * * 8ubcommittec * * has Dem delayed and obstructed Pr over 4 pears. Such,
aa inventory could, by now, tmve provided a very useful tool in the. national
effort to Combat water polluthm.' (Italie supplied.)

All of the studies required by the Budget Bureau were completed and trans-
mitted to Congress in March 1968.

After the committee'fa report was issued, the Budget Bureau's Deputy Director,
in a letter of July 26. 1968, to the subcommittee, wrote as follows

"Tim revised questionnaire will be reviewed by an ad hoc task foree on water
use data of the Water Resources Council on July 30, 1968. It will also be reviewed
by an industry advisory group of the Bureau's Advisory Council on Federal Re-
p(lrts on August 13, 1968. Once this latter review has taken place, it should be
possible to take expeditious action on the industrial waste questionnaire." (Italic
supplied.)

This promise was echoed bythen Secretary of the Interior Udall, in his letter
of July 31. 1968, to the subcommittee, that he "anticipated that expeditious clear-
ance of the form will be forthcoming after" these two meetings. During 1969,
this subeommittee wrote to you several times (February 28, April 22. and July
30. 1969) and to tlw Commissioner of the then Federal Water Pollution Control
Administration (February 28. 069), asking about the status of the inventory.
Assistant Secretary Klein's response of July 30, 1969, stated that, after meeting
with the Budget Bureau. only one issue remainedwhether and-the extent to
which the data submitted via the questionnaire would be cOnsidered confiden-
tialand stated that "within the next several weeks"-Interior would determine
"the degree of confidentiality that we wish to_allOw" and then request Budget
Bureau approval.

Having received no further word from the Department, we wrote to you on
February 9 and March 23, 1970. again urging establishment of the industrial
waste inventory.

B. Interior Department's substitute program as outlined in your letter nf May
7, 1970.

tour response of May 7. 1970, to tlw suocommittee, proposes the following
four methods whereby the Federal Water Quality Administration will attempt
to get industrial waste data :

1. Front the States, in crmneetion with applications for grants authorized under
section 8 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act to construct new munielpal
sewage treatment works, or upgrade or expand existing facilities.

The Intedior Department published on March 31, 1970 (35 P.R. 5346), as pro-
posed rulemaking, regulations adding five new sections (601.32-601.36) to title
36 of the Code of Federal Regulations concerning such grants. The proposed
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new section 601.32 states that the Commissioner of FWQA shall not approve any
such grant unless he determines that a proposed facility -*** is included in an
effective basinwide program for pollution abatement," In making this deter-
mhutt ion. 1 heCommissioner is authorized to 1 equire, apparently from the State hi
which the proposed new works will be located (although the proposed regulation
is not clear on this point), the following types of information:

(a) a list of all significant:waste discharges ;
lb) the average (hilly volume of discharge produced by each waste (1is-

charger ;
c) the major characteristics of each such waste discharge together

with a measurement of their r(lative strength or concentrations :
(d) a description of trontnlent 011iployed and degree Of treatment cur-

rently achieve(l ;
( c) a description of the effect of the discharges and abatement practices

upon water quality ill a basin mat the anticipated effeall;eness of the
t rent meat works on Improving water quality; aml

( f) an identification of all waste dischilrges for whieli Ilresent treatment
is inadequate.

llowever, the proposed regulation does not require the Commissitmer to ted:
ftir 511011 information in ally instance.

If the Commissioner requires this information in all hist a twos. and if the
States have it and are authorized to make it available. to FNVQ.1 for its program
use. il eould be very useful where new treatment works are i oroi losoil or existing
works are propoNed to he lwratiNl extailaled. The proposed regulation %itt
not, however. provide stuli information where 60 S11011 N111105111 is IMO'. Furl her.
there will be numerous munb-ipalities which will not make suelt proposals for
several yen rs.

We would appreciate your promptly providing to us ii legal opinion from. the
Dept rtm('lit's Solicitor concerning the following twb questimis :

(a) the statutory basis uuder which tlie Depart ment may mquire. in
of the legislative history of the Clean Water Restoration Aet of 1 daq. that, he
fore a Federal grant to construct municipal treatment works can he ma(1e. the
above information must be supplied to FWQA : and

b) whether 44 U.S.C. sec. nu, which prohibits an ageney from denying
a right, privAege, priority, or allotment to a person who faits to pv wide in-
formation in certain eases, would render ineffective this proposed method
of obtaining information on Industrial waste discharges, if a State or
municipality refuses or fails to provhle it when applying for a roost rnetion
grant.
From frill Hal owners of industrial plants serlehig to qualify under Srelio/1

7(0 of, thr Tar lli/oh/I Of WO (Publie Late 91-172: 83 Stitt. 667 I for on
amr/ent frit 5011011* anuirtizotion iif ong identifiable touter pollution treatment
WWI y.

The act applies only to any such facility constructed or acquirettafter Deeem-
her 31, 1998, and before January 1, 1974, and "used, in connection with a plant
or other property in operation before January 1, 1999." The facility qualifies for
aecelerated amortization only if the Interior Department certifies that it (1)M-
Oh's h regal:atolls of apttl icable Federal agencies," and that it is "in fur-
therance of the general policy" of the Federal Water Pollution Vont rot Act.

We would appreciate your providing to us toromptly the eitallim au ni three
ponies of the regulations of FNMA which are applicable to these facilities under
this statute.

3. From injormat ion Obtained by Me corps of Engineers under its rerised
regulations (Eli 1145-2-203 of April 23. 1070 570Vcrn1ng new applications for
corps permits for outfall sewers.

The eon*: recently adopted these regulations as rt.eoniniended loy the House
Connnittee on flovermnent Operations in its report (IL Rept. 91-917, March 18,
1970) entitled: "Our Waters and Wetlands: How the l'orps of Engineers Van
Help Prevent Their Destruction aud Pollution." But these regulations will not
provide Information concerning discharges from tielt s!..wers already under
corps' permit.

4. By co/tee/th within 3 onths available in-hou.se industrialy m waste informa-
tion on- a pilot scale for one rfter basin in each region of the Federal Water Quality
Administration.
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Your letter states that 1he inftwmation thus collected will be ilsed to develop
the means for obtaining a total industrial inventory." Bllt, Ill essence, it appears
to reject the committee's. recommendation Dint an effective industrial waste in-
ventory be established through questionnaires sent to, mid voluntarily answered
by, industry concerning the source, volume, composition, and points of discharge
of its waste waters. Although your letter states that the industrial waste
inventory questionnaire "form will be resubmitted to the Bureau of the Budget
without the eonfidentiality clauses," it does not state when this will be done, or
wlmther the Budget Bureau, will approve it when it is submitted without this
clause. Thus, your letter provides 110 USSUnince that Stich a voluntary inventory
will ever be undertaken by the Interior Department, even after completion and
subsequent analysis of FWQA's in-house pilot program.

C. Hshddish mud of voluntary industrial waste inventory should not be
d further.

The Interior Department's fenir methods outlined above for obtaining infor-
,ination concerning industrial waste discharges are good, as far as they go. They
should be pursued. But they are not a substitute for a total industrial waste
inventory to be obtained from each industrial discharger.

Snell an inventory is a basic prerequisite to FWQA carrying Out an effective
water pollution control program in tile nenr future. The immediate need for

ilivoltDry 1101 be diminished by the results obtained frfon the pilot
study or any of the other methods outlined in your letter of May 7.

The Interior Department submitted a Mil (S. 3472, pp. 21-22) last February
to authorize It to require industry to provide to it waste waterr data in con-
nection with its investigations under the water quality standards program. But
that bill is not justification for delaying further the establishment of an inven-
tory on the bosis of yoluntary cooperation by Industry. 'Similar authority was
requested by the Inferior Department when the Clean Water Restoration Aet
was being considered by Congress in 1960, but it was not inclnded in that mi.
As this eminnittee said in its report of June 24, 1908, supra (p. 171 :

"The executive branch has not yet made a converted and rigorous effort to yet
information by voluntary means. For compiling the industrial waste inventory,
voluntary methods ought to be given a fair trial. We believe they will be com-
pletely adequate for a large majority of industries. Industry is rapidly he-
miming aware of its responsibilities to help control and abate pollution caused
by its wuste discharges. The committee believes that industry will generally
cooperate with Federal. State, and local governments in their efforts to ameba,
the information needed to attain their COMMoll ObjeetiVeS.

"The committee believes that the common objeetive of eontrolling and abating
water pollution will be better achieved by fo.stering mutual eooperation between
industry and government. We have doubts only about a small minority of in-
dustries, who nevertheless my be,contributing a significant load of pollution to
our Nation's waters. If veluntary methods fail in such eases, tile committee will
have to reexamine Proposals to broaden FWPCA's authority to obtain, needed
information." (Italie supplied.) -

Ini Ieed. we believe the Interior Department's legislation request to Congress
fir hist February for nuthority to (41:nisei diselosure of industrial waste dit hi
would he more credible if the Department had tried :i vohnitary systeou nod
failed to obtain industry cooperation.

The executive liramdi's continued (May for 7 years. mai now itsi apparent
mjection of the eminnitteets longstan(1ing revommendation for the establish-
ment of a national industrial waste inventory on the basis of voluntary voopera-
I ion by imlnstry. ls indefensible.

We tiwrefore urge
II) that the Interior Departinent immediately reqiiest the -Budget Bureau

to approve the questionnaire ft irm. without eonfldentiality restrictions ex-
eept where the Informant demonstrates to the Interior Department's satis-
faction that public release of all or part of the infornintion voluntarily
supplied on the form would divulge- trade seerets or secret provesses, mid

(2) that the Interior Department immediately establish :in industrial
waste water inventory on a voluntary basis.

At tbe same time we wnnt to advise you that if the' Budget Bureau does not
appren'e the form, and if the Interior Department does not establish this inven-
tory, before mid-August 1970, this subcommittee will hold bearings beginning.
on August 17, 1970, to go into this matter in greater detail. At such hearings.
w.e would appreciate your testifying before the subcommittee on that date, and
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also make available to us on that date Mr. David D. Dominick, Commissioner
of FWQA, and a representative of the Solicitor's Office who is familiar with
legal problems associated with the "confidentiality clause."

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,

Chairman,
Conservation caul Natural Resources Subcommittee.

GUY VANDER JACT,
Ranking Minority Member,

Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE,

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., May 28, 1970.

Hon. ROBERT P. MAYO.
Director, Bureau of the Budget,
Executive Office Building,
TVashington, D.C.

DEAR MIL MAYO: Enclosed for your information is a copy of a letter we have
today sent to Secretary Hickel eoncerning the establishment of a national in-
dustrial waste water inventory.

For nearly 7 years, this subcommittee, Its predecessor subcommittee, and the
Committee on Government Operations have urged that the executive branch
establish a national industrial waste water inventory in cooperation with in-
dustry. A questionnaire form for that purpose was first submitted in 1964 by
the Public Health Service to the Budget Bureau for approval as required by
the Federal Reports Act of 1942 (as codified in Public Law 90-620, 44 U.S.
Code, supp. IV. 3501-3511). Because of industry opposition, 'the Budget Bureau
refused to approve the form. It was resubmitted on April 21, 1967, by the
Interior Department with revisions designed to overcome industry objections.

On August 4, 1967. the Bureau's Deputy Director, responding to the sub-
committee's request as to the status ot the questionnaire form, stated that the
Bureau would not begin its review of the questionnaire form until after the
Interior Department had completed two studies required under the Clean Water
Restoration Act of 1966; namely, (1 ) a comprehensive study of the cost of con-
trolling pollution, including industrial pollution, and (2) a study of possible
economic incentives for industry to abate pollution. The letter stated :

"We believe that once data is available from the cost and incentive studies,
we will have a much better idea about what types of data are available from
industry and how beat to structure any potential questionnaire for the in-
dustrial inventory. I can assure you that once the cost and incentive studies are
completed, we will begin such a review." (Italic supplied.)

These studies were completed and transmitted by the Intbrior Department
on March 7, 1968, to the Congress.

Subsequently, this committee in its report (H. Rept. 90-1570, June 24, 1968)
entitled: "The Critical Need for a National Inventory of Industrial Wastes
(Water Pollution Control and Abatement)" recommended that (P. 3) :

"The Budget Bureauwhich 4 years ago withheld approval of a proposed
questionnaire form designed by the Interior Department to compile a national
industrial wastes inventoryshould promptly review, revise If necessary, and
approve, the amended questionnaire form submitted by the Interior Department
for such an inventory, and thus eliminate a critical loophole in the national
program of water pollution control and abatement."

By letter dated July 26, 1968, the Bureau's Deputy Director advised us as
follows:

"The revised questionnaire will be reviewed by an ad hoc task force on water
use data of the Water Resources Council on July 30, 1068. It will also be reviewed
by an industry advisory group of the Bureau's Advisory Council on Federal
.Reports on August 13, 1968. Once this latter review has taken place. it should bc
possible to take expeditious action on the industrial wastes questionnaire."
(Italic supplied.)

Having heard no further word from your Bureau or the Interior Department
after that letter, the subcommittee sent letters to the Interior Department on
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February 28; April 22, and July 30, 1969, asking about the status of the inven-
tory. Assistance Secretary of the Interior Klein, in his response of July 30, 1969,
advised us that meetings were held with the Budget Bureau, at which the "only
point of contention" was whether and the extent to which data submitted via the
questionnaire would be, considered confidential. He also stated that "within the
next several weeks" the Department would determine "the degree of confidential-
ity that we wish to allow" and then request Budget Bureau approval.

After further letters earlier this year to the Interior Department from the
snbcommittw concerning the status of the inventory, Secretary Hickel in a let-
ter of May 7, 1970, advised us that "the Bureau of the Budget suspended action
on approval of the forni." (Italie supplied.)

Secretary nickel's letter also indicates that the eommittees longstanding rec-
ommendation for establishment of a national waste witterinventory is being re-
jected. We believe such rejection is not in the public interest. Until such an
inventory is establislwd. it will be impossible for the Interior Department to
carry out an effective water pollution control program and to estimate with any
reasonable tectiraey the total cost of this pmgram.

Furtiwr, on February 10, 1970, tlw Inftrior Deparbnent proposed a bill (S.
:1471, pp. 21-22) which would amend the Federal Water Pollution Control Act to
authorize that Departhwnt to require waste water data from industry in con-
nection with Its investigations under the water quality standards program. A
similar proposal was made by the Department in connection with the Clean
Water Restoration Aet of 1906, but it was not included in that act by Congress.

This committee's June 1968 report observed that the "executive branch has
not yet made a coiteerted and vigorous effort to get information" on waste water
discharges by industry "by voluntary means" (H. Rept. 1579, supra, p. 12). This
observation is true even today. The fact that the Federal Water Quality Admin-
istration does not have authority to compel industry to discloSe its waste dis-
charge data does not justify a rejection of the committee's recommendations (1)
that Interior establish an inventory on the basis of voluntary cooperation by
industry, and (2) that the Budget Bureau approve a questionnaire form for this
purpose. Indeed, the Interior Department's present request for authority to
compel disclosure would be more credible if the Department had tried a volun-
tary system and failed to obtain industry cooperation.

We therefore urge that the Budget Bureau promptly approve the Depart-
,' ment's questionnaire form, without couthlentiality restrictions except where
the informant demonstrates to the Department's satisfaction that public release
of all or part of the information voluntarily supplied on the form wpuld divulge
trade secrets or secret processes.

At the same time we want to advise you that if the Bureau does not approve
the form, and if the Interior Department does not establish this inventory, be-
fore mid-August 1970, this subcommittee will hold hearings beginning on Au-
gust 17. 1970. to go into this matter in greater detail. At such hearings, we would
appreciate your testifying before the subcommittee on that date.

In the meantime, we would appreciate the Bureau providing to us the follow-
ing information :

1. State thereasons for the Budget Bureau's notation, on February 5' 1970,
on the Bureau's standard form No. 83 submitted by the Interior Departniintt to
the Bureau on April 21, 1967, suspending action on the questionnaire form.

2. (a ) A chronological list of all meetings held concerning the questionnaire
form since April 21. 1967, in which representatives of tbe Bureau participated.

(b) The names of all persons who attended each such meeting, and their
affiliation.

(c) Three copies of the minutes, transcript, or summary report of each of
those meetings.

3. Please cite, quote, and discuss the precise provision of law which authoriws
the Budget Bureau to insist that an agency which desires to collect informa-
tion on a voluntary, nonconfidential basis must nevertheless insert in the ques-
tionnaire a confidentiality clause which will restrict the agency's use of such
information.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. Rmss.

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Re8ource8 Subemmnittcc.
Guy Vernon JAGT,

Ranking Minority Member, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcom-
mittee.
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I. LETTER or .11'NE 31:1970. Fuosi Durt!Tv lit.ncrr BUREAU DIRECTOR PAU1. F.
KRIT.GER TO SUBCOMMITTEE, ADVISING THAT (A) loWQA HAD "DECIDED To SEE
1101V MUCH or THE NEEDED DATA COULD BE OBTAINED FROM THE STATER." AND
(10 BUREAU OF THE BUDGET HAD "SUSPENDED CONBIDF:RATION or" QUESTIONNAIRE
F0RM

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT.
BUREAU OF THE BUDOET,

Washington, June 80,1970.
HMI. HENRY S.REUBS.
Chairmar, Subconinattcc on Conservation and Natural Resources. House of

Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN : T1118 Is to provide the information which you requested

in your letter of May 25 and which Mr. Julius Shiskin, Assistant Director for
Statistical Poiky, promised in his acknowledgement of .Tune 4.

Your first question asks the renstms for the Budget Burean's relutlary ti,
1970, notive of suspension of action on the proposal to collect data on waste
water discharges by industry. This was simply a formal notiflention given the
agency that this Office was not actively reviewing the proposed survey and that
responsibility for initiating further consideration of it rested with the agency.
Events leAing to this notice n re described below.

After the Advisory Council panel meeting in August 1965. agreement was
reached with the Federal Water Pollution Control Administration (now the
Federal Water Quality Administration) on all matters pertaining to the survey
except a pledge of confidentiality. It was our judgment, based on considerable
experience, that such a pledge was necessary if useful data were to be obtained
on a voluntary basis. FWPCA indicated to ns that they wore exploring the
issue and would make a recommendation in the near future. No further pro-
posals came from PWPCA. Part of the delay, we understand, resulted from a
change in the head of the agency. In February 1970 when we inquired about
what action FWPCA was planning to take, we were informed that they had
decided to see bow muzh of the needed data could be obtained from the States.
It was then that we suspended consideration of the survey until further word
from FWPVA. A request from the agency ean reopen thy matter at any time.
and we are prepared to give it prompt consideration.

Second. you ask for 8 list tit 88.018r.'s colDTC11111E he 41111.81101B1:11re sine
April 21. 1967. in. which Bureau representatives part kip(' ted. together with Ihe
names and affiliations of those (04.10111g and copies of the minutes. Only the two
meeting., mentioned in the .Thly 26. 194iS, letter from Deputy Direetor Hughes
were held after that date.

1. Au ad hoc task force of stall lepresenhitives of Interested Covernimmt
agencies met at the offices of the Water Resources Council on July 30, 1965.
Peolde attending thls meetinga list is enclosedtook such notes as they NM-
sidered bevessn6' fer their purpose. but mi minutes were prepared.

2. An advisory council panel of industry and Government representatives met
nt the Budget Bureau on August 13. 3905 Three collies of the minutes. Pontain-
ing the names and affiliation of persons attending, are et,telf wed. You may mite
that this record shows attendance by Jodie Scheiber. Natimi Resourees
and PoWer Subeommittee, as alternate for the Chief Vounsel who. had 111'01
invited.

With regard to your third question, there is .1to provision of law which spe-
cifically authorizes the Budget bureau to insist that an agency. "which desires to
collect information on a voluntary, nonconfidential basis," must use a confiden-
tiality clause fill a questionnaire. The aethm was taken under moloirity giveil
the Direetor of the Bureau of the Budget by simtions 5 and 41 of the Federal
W.ports Act of 1942. In administering that act. we apply certain criteria which
must 111' Met befirre a form is amoroved. Among these is feasibility of the colhl-
tion plan. We are concerned with the pledge of confidentiality of individual .

returns if such a 1)1edge is important in obtaining adtvate responses. This was
the situation in the survey to obtain information on waste water discharges.
The lederal Water Quality Administrntimi hns no authority to require Mai
respondents furnish information. but must depend upon their voluntary vooppra-
tion. We understand tbe data were not to be used, for enforcement or regulatory
purposes which might require public disclosure of individual reports. Under
these 'circumstances. ive consider it particularly important to pledge contidelc
tiality 80 118 to TriDore II1P deterrent to respondents reporting Duffy information

7 3
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which might otherwise be detrimental to their intrests. Without such a pledge,
Ow result:. or t survey would most likely be' of little value.

W. hotie this has been rt.sponsIve to the questions you have nisei!. Wi. shall
In. glad to supply any further information you may desire.

Sincrely, I

l'AuL 1'. KitURuEa,
Deput y Director, Office of Statistical Policy.

Enclosures.
The following persons attended the. interageney task force meeting on July

30. 1908:
.\aule Affiliation

Bruce Blanchard Water RPM/ I trees Council.
.1. II. McDermott Federal Water Pollution Control Administration,

rt went of the Interior.
.T. L. Lewis
O. Earl Jones. Jr Federal Housing Administration, Department of

Housing amt. Urban I n.velopment.
Carl It Fetzer Sidi Conservation Service, U.S. Department of Agri-

culture.
Sam R. Hoover. Agricultural Research Service. U.S. Department of

Agrieniture.
Charles P. Lamborn Solt Conservation Service, U.S. Department of Agri-

culture.
Fra nk A. Bell. .1 r, Consiinwr Proteetion and Environmental Health

Service, Department. of Health, Education, and
Wel fa re.

W. A. Smilh lave of Management Besmirch, Department Of the
Interior.

Alvin Pendleton. I oeological Survey, Department of the Interior.
John IV. Murray Burean of Power, Federal Power Commission.
Louis J. industry Division, Bureau of the Census.
William R. GrayI
K. T.. Kollar Business and Defense Services Administration, De-

partment of'Com nutree.
IN raid r,inga rd Intim. or Statistical Policy, Bureau of the Budget.

[NormThe minutes 'referred to on p. 70.nre reprinted on pp. 100-102.]

12. LETTER OF 'JULY 23, 1970. FROM SURCOM MITTEE 'TO SECRETARY HICKEL,
REQUESTING I NTERIOR DEPARTMENT COMMENTS ON Boll LETTER OF JUNE 30

lIorso OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COM M MEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
1l'08hington, D.C., July 23, 1970.

Hon. WALTER J. Thom,
rerctary of the Interior. Department of the Interior,
Washington, D.C.

DE.tu Mu. Sr.c4rAuv : Our sulieommittee has been corresponding with you
Mmcerning the establishment or o notional inventory or 11B111:41Tilli wit SITS. You
will recall that In your letter of May 7. 1970. you stated that the questionnaire
form proposed by, the Federal Water Quality Administration, on which the
Budget Bureau had suspended action, "will he resubmitted to the Bureau of the
Budget" by the Interior Department, lmt without ''t he confidentiality 'clauses"
which the Budget Bureau had previously required.

our stilicononittiVs letter of May 28. 1970. to you tiointed out that the "con-
tinued delay for 7:years" in adoptidg the long-standing recommendation of the
House Ct tittiti itt Pe on Government Operations to estaldish such an inventory
"ls indefensible." We therefore urged that your Department "immediately request
the Budget Bureau ta approve the questionnaire form nemfrd to establish the
inventory." Simultaneously, we wrote to the Director of the Budget Bureau;
urging that it "proniptly approve" your Department's questionnaire form.

Enclosed is a copy of the reply dated June 30 we received from Deputy
Director Krueger of the Budget Bureau (now the Office of Management and
Budget), which states:
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"In February 1970 when we inquired about what actiqn FWPCA was planning
to take, we were informed that they had decided to see 'how much of the needed
data could be obtained from the States. It was then that we suspended con-
sideration of the survey until further word from FWPCA. A request from the
agency can reopen the matter at any time, and we are prepared to give it prompt
consideration."

1. In view of OMB's willingness to "reopen the matter" and "give it prompt
consideration," we hope that you have now resubmitted the proposed form to
that office. We would appreciate your informing us when that was done.

Deputy Director Krueger's letter also said :
"There is no provision of law which specifically authorizes the Budget Bureau

to insist that an agency, "which desires to milect information on a voluntary,
nonecallidential basis, 'must use a confidentiality clause on a questionnaire."

2. In view of OMB's lack of authority to insist upon the use of a confidentiality
elause, will your Department request OMB to approve the questionnaire form
without this clause?

3. (a) nos your Department assured OMB or any other organization or
individual that the data obtained will not be used for "enforcement or repi .
latory purposes?

(b) If "Yes," please provide to us copies of any letters, memorandums, et
cetera, in which such assurances were given.

In view of the possible hearing by this subcommittee concerning the f!stablish-
meta of this inventory, as mentioned in our letter of May 28, we would appreci-
ate your early response.

Si ncerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.
[NoTE.Commissioner Dominick's letter . Septmber 28, 1970. responding

to Vie above letter and to that of May 28, 1970 (see pp. 04-08 of this appendix),
appears on p. 11, of the hearing record.]

13. SUBCOMMITTEE Lurnas TO INTERIOR DEPARTMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 18, 1970,
RE CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSE, AND OcTonza 15, 1070, URGING IMMEDIATE IM-
PLEMENTATION OF INVENTORY ; AND FWQA REPLIES OF OCTOBER 20, 1970

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., September 18, 1970.

. lluii. FRED RUSSELL,
Undcr Secretary of the Interior,
Department of the Interior,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. RUSSELL: We again commend you and Commissioner Dominick for
agreeing that within the next month the Federal Water Quality Administration
will initiate, pursuant to this subcommittee's recommendation, the long-delayed
national industrial wastes inventory on an annual basis.

We believe that the data obtained from this inventory will provide a significant
and important advance in controlling and preventing the further degradation of
the Nation's waterways. It will, for example, help the Corps of Engineers to
accelerate its new and progressive program of requiring that industrial waste

"dischargers who are polluting our waterways must apply for and obtain permits
from the corps under the Refuse Act and certificates from the States under sec-
tion 21 ( b) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act that water quality stand-

s' ards will be complied with.
We have carefully reviewed the language concerning confidentiality which

FWQA, at our hearing yesterday, proposed to attach to the questionnaire form
FWQAI20 (Rev.`4-70), in the light of the testimony by you, Commissioner David
D. Dominick and Deputy Solicitor Raymond C. Coulter. By such testimony, we
were assured that the following data obtained by the inventory would be made
available to other Federal agencies, including the Corps of Engineers, to State
and local water pollution control agencies, and to the public: (a) name and ad-
dress of the waste discharger, (b) waterway and point of discharge, (c) quality
of the discharge, (d) composition of the discharge, and (e) frequency and quan-
tity of the discharge.

Our review of the proposed confidentiality language reinforces the belief
expressed at the hearing that the language does not carry out your assurances to



us. Section 4(b) of the Federal Reports Act (now codified in 44 U.S.C. Supp.
3508(b) ) authorizes release of the data "to another Federal agency only

if the information as supplied by persons to a Federal agency had not, at
the time of collection, been declared by that agency or by a superior authority to
be confidential. ." (Italics supplied) paragraph II of the FWQA lan-
guage declares that the information "submitted * in response to this survey
will be considered confhh.ntial within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. 1905 with
the exceptions noted in paragraph III." Those exceptions relate only to FWQA's
use of that data. The provision permitting making the data available to other
Federal agencies and to State and local water pollution control agencies is in
paragraph IV, and is not one of the "exceptions noted in paragraph III." More-
over, paragraph IV also states that, to get the data, "such agencies or officials
[must] agree that the information will not be disclosed except as authorized by
appropriate Federal, State, or local law." The reference to such "law" creates
ambiguities as to what law controls and what is its relationship to 18 U.S.C.
1905 which is invoked in Paragraph II. Furthermore, no express provision is
made for disclosing the data to the public or Members of Congress or this sub-
committee.

Enclosed is a copy of alternative language which will adequately carry out
the understanding of this subcommittee concerning the assurances 'given to us
yesterday. We suggest that this language lw inserted in part A-1, of the "In-
structions for Completing Report of Industrial Waste Water Disposal" (Form
FWQ A 120-1 ).

We understand that the subcommittee's staff will meet with Commissioner
Dominick and his staff on September 21, 1970, to discuss the confidentiality lan-
guage and assist FWQA in getting the inventory under way promptly.

Our suggested language affirmatively eeited PWQA's statutory authority to
collect and disseminate the data provided on the form to anyone. Since 18 U.S.C.
1905 prohibits only unauthorized disc sure of data by Federal officials or em-
ployees, there is no need to invoke it h e, as FWQA is authorized to disseminate
the data.

In order to prevent the disclosurelof trade secretsalthough we doubt that
this problem will arise in connection with a questionnaire that is concerned only
with what wastes are actually being discharged into a waterwayour sug-
gested language provides that if the person supplying the information clearly
shows to the satisfaction of FWQA that diselo:sure of the data to the public
would divulge trade secrets or geeret processes, then FWQA would treat it as
confidential and limits its use.

When FWQA embarks on the first phase of the inventory please provide to us
a list of those to whom the onestionnaire form is sent.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS, Chair7)an.

ALTERNATIVE LANGUAGE SUGGESTED BY SunconnurrgE

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act authorizes the Federal Water Quality
Administration (FWQA) to conduct investigations and studies relating to the
causes, control, and prevention of water pollution and to collect and make avail-
able the .results of, and other information concerning, such investigations and
studies. The data provided iti this report will be used by FWQA to carry out
the programs authorized by that act, and will be made available to other Federal
agencies and to State, interstate, and local water pollution control agencies and
to the public as authorized by that act. If any person completing this/report
clearly showii that disclosure of any portion of the data therein to anyotre other
than to a Federal agency for use by that agency, would divulge such person's
trade secrets or secret processes, FWQA will treat such portion as confidential
and not so disclose it.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION,

TV oh Int/ton, D.C., October 20, MO.
MIL HENRY S. REUSS.
House of Representatives,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. REUSS : As indicated in your September 18 letter to Under Secretary
Russell the language concerning confidentiality, proposed to attach to the goes-
tionaire for the national industrial wastes inventory, has undergone substantial
revision.
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Pursuant to our discussions with
"
your committee stall', the following language

has been adopted: \
"Information supplied by individual responses to this inquiry will be used

by the Federal Water Quaiity Administ ation to carry out pmgrains authorized
by the Federal Water Pollution Control . ct und will be made available to other
Federal agencies and to State interstate, d local water pollution (ontrol agen-
des and to the public as authmhzed by that aq" .

We will be in touch as the preparations for ke inventory progress.
Sincerely yours,

DAVI I). DomiNicK, Coln mi881011er.

HOUSE OF REIM ENTATIVES,
CossERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COM MITTEE ON GOVERN. kENT OmaxrioNS,
1Vashington, DX., October 15, 1070.

Mr. DArtu D. DOMINICK,
Commissioner, Federal Water Qualit .1d m in istrut ion,
.trlington, Va.

DP:An Mn. DomiNuni Nearly a Month has passed since you testified on Sep-
tmber 17 1970, before our subcommittee and assured us that the Federal Water
Quality hministration would institute a national industrial wastes inventory
within a mont h. thi several occasions since then the subcommittee's staff has
inquired about tlw status of the inventory and received assurances from FWQA
that the questionnaire would soon be malied to industry. But Hub inventory
still Wu: not been instituted.

Moreover, we have not received a reply to our letter of Septemlwr 18, 1970,
emwerning a rvision in FWQA's proposed eonlidentiality clause to be ineluded
in the questionnaire form.

We also understand that Mr. Walter A. Hamilton, executive directer
the national industrial pollution control conneil, has raised some questions Im
behalf of tlw council about the applicability of 18 U.S.C. 1001 to the respimses
made by industry on.the questionnaire and that he intends to discuss the ques-
tionnaire with members of the council at Its closed meeting of th.loher 14, 1970.
We hope that you will not allow another industry group to further delay the
inventory, particularly when there Is no doubt that 18 1001 will apply
to the responses.

W ropest that you begin mailing the questionnaire to industry iwfore Oc-
tober 20, nao. and provide to use a list of those receiving the questionunire as
we requested On September 18.

Also please provkle to us your timetable for submitting the questionnaire
to all of industry whether or not a sufficient number of replies are received from
the initial mailing to 2:10 industrial plants.

Sincerely,
ITENny S. Itzess,

cos Consi rrat ion am/ Natural Resources Subcommittee.

DEPAR:rMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
FEDERAL WATER PouarrioN CoNTROL ADMINISTRATION.

Washington,. D.C.. October 26, 1970.
Hon. IIF.NRY REUSS.

. Chairman, Subcommittee on Conservation and Nat urol Resources, Committee on
On rernment Operations, Rouse of Representatives, 'Washington, D.C.

DE.ta MR. CHAIRMAN : We have received your letter of Oetober 171, 1970, and
herewith forward to you all the information you have requested:

(1) A ebpy of the questionnaire (-including the statement of nse of infor-
mation provided) being used in the Initial mailing;

[NoTE.The mailing list referred to above iS in the subcommittee tiles.I
(2) The list of those plants receiving the questionnaire in the initial

mailing :
(3) The projected plans for completion of the industrial waste inventory.

We trust you have received our letter of October 19, regarding the contidtm-
tiality statement, As we hw m. previously indiea t cil we will be in egmtact with
you as tln Inventory progresses.

Sineerely yours,
DAVID D. DOMINICK, COMM I8Rioncr.
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U.S. DEPAIIIMENT OF TOL ISTEUIOR,
FEDIMAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION,

Watth Milton, D.C., October.21,1970.
DEAR SIR: Preshient Nixon bas set forth a far-reaching and compkhensive

program for improving the qnality of lair environment. As a part of/ this pro-
gram, the Federal Water Quality Administration is undertaking at national in-
ventory of industrial waste water diseimrges. Your plant is included in the first
Increment to be surveyed.

Acquisition of the data requested on the enclosed form is critical to the support
of our activities for insuring the continued and improved qualty of our Nation's
water resources. The data are to be used for a variety of metivitieS ineludhig
river basin planning, water quality stalulards, and researeb and dovelopment .
to mention at few. Future decisions concerning pollution abatement programs
may well be based on data obtained from this inventory. We are soliciting these
data (m a vountary basis; the somulness of our decisions is dependent ou the
quality and quantity of data received. In this connection, should you wish to
give more detail on your pollution control and abatement, efforts, past and
Manned, please do so. Additional sheets may be used as necessaryilf the space
under item 13, "Remarks is insufficient.

If you have furnished any of the requested information to anoth r Federal or
State agency within the past Ii months, at copy of such reports may be snbmitted
ht ilea of completing the corresponding parts of the form.

Since the form is new, and you are among the first to be surve3ed, we would
appreciate yonr cooperation in noting any data items for which the,request is not
chstr. Coutplete such items, If you would, however; to the best of your under-
standing.

The qnestionna ire is furnished in quadruplicate. with three gromaings (If Image
2 to allow for reporting of separate discharges. Should you rewiire additionad

ur hil re any qlleati(Ms Idease write :
Federal Water Quality Administration,
()Melt a Opera clams, 1

nvision of Technieal Support.
Washington, D.C. 20242

or dad :11r. J. L. Lewis---Aren Code 17031 557-7037
iteconse the need for these data is so argent. I am requestlat,:, that yon omt-

Mete and return the original and two copies of the form in the enclosed self-ad-
dressed envelope within 30 days after reecipt.

I tiny(' also endoSell a copy of a letter I sent to yonr parent clarporalban.
nrge your participal lam and camperatilm in this most 11111)(aq:tat project.

Sincerely yonrs.
tAval It. Dom IN ICE, COW UI sNiOner.

C.S. DEPARTMENT Or THL INTERIOR.
FEVERAL WATER Pot.I.CTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION,

ll'amhinytn», D.C., October 19, 1970.
DEAU MR. I 11111 making this personal approach to you 111111 other

industrial leaders to reqnest your support and assistanee iml condacting at national
inventory of industrial wastewater diseharges. This is a vital part of one of
our programs through which we, plan to eventnally identify all municipal!.
industrial. agricultural, thermal and other wastewater discharges that may
:trivet low sumaly of clean water.

A municipal inventory has already been completed and is being.updated. A
survey of thermal discharges from lechic generating plants is being initiated
by thp Federal Power Conimission in cooperation with us. Our current effort.
as indicated above, is in the industrial wastes arca. We expect to initiate the
survey within the next 10 (lays with the mailing of questionnaires to the first
increment of the approximate 10,000 plants we propose to survey in the next
to S months. This mailing involves facilities of interest to you as identified in
nclosure 1.

To familiarize you with the scope of the survey, I am sending you a copy of
the questionnaire with instructions for completion (enclosure 2). The data
rquestd are vital to oar programs, including river basin planning, in which
your plants must necessarily be considered. and our long-range research and
development effort.
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Response to the questionnaire is voluntary. With the knowledge that the data
furnished will signifiCantly affect the future direction and effectiveness of our
programs, I am requesting you to nuthorize and encourage officials of your
plants to complete the forms in as mudi detail as possible.

It has been most gratifying to me to observe the increasing emphasis and
effort being placed by industry on control of water pollution. We can act"
together to eliminate ,water pollution, and I hope that through this inventory
we can attain this closer working relationship.

Sincerely yours,
DAVID D. DOMINICK, Commissioner.

OPERATION PLANFWQA NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL WASTE INVENTORY

INTRODUCTION

The industrial waste inventory will be conducted as a two-phase operation
followed by a continuous program of maintenance and updating of the total
record. Phase I will be a pilot survey of MO randomly selected plants with
response by industry to mailed questionnaires to be voluntary. Phase II will
embrace the principal collection effort necessary to establish the base inventory
with priority given to coverage of an estimated 10,000 plants which use more
than 20 million gallons of water per year and account for about 90 percent of
the total water used hy Industry.

PHASE I
1. Purpose

The objective of the pilot survey is to assess the quantity and quality of
response by industry to this type of survey. The results will be examined to
determine : (1) if the form or instructions need revision ; and (2) the basis
tor mailing and/or other procedural changes desired to insure the success of
phase IL
2. Exeeut ion of phase 1

A. Selection of industries
The 250 industrial plants to be surveyed in phase I were selected by o combina-

tion of random samplings (190 plants) and specific selection to insure covernge
of industries in areas of special interest (60 plants). They were selected from a
list compiled by FWQA of more than 6,500 plants which are considered essential
to establishing a basic inventory record.

B. Mailing inventory forms
The inventory forms and instructions, together with a return self-addressed

envelope, will be mailed from FWQA-headquarters directly to the selected plants.
A cover letter from the Commissioner will request that the completed form be
returned within 30 days.

C. Followup for nonresponses
If no reply is received from a plant by our suspense date (35 days after mail-

ing), another inventory form will bP mniled togethee with the original and
a new MIT letter. If no response is received within 35 days after the followup,
the industry will be indicated as a nonrespondent.

D. Processing of responses
The completed forms will lw oded as soon after receipt as possible. The re-

sponses will then be entered into the computer.
E. Analysis of responses

The responses will be reviewed (luring procftssing for the following :

(1) The percentage of the responses containing entries for each of the
data items, especially effluent data ;

(2) the amount of effluent data furnished;
(3) indications that the data tequests wee misinterpreted or not clear

to the respondent
(4) quality and technical validityof data furnished.

/ Following completion of alhotted response period the percentage of nonre-
spondents will be determined and the above items will he consolidated for the
total number of respondents. Analysis of these will then be made as previonsly
discussed in the objectives.

1963 *Census. of Manufacturers, Rurenu of the Cenqus, shows 8,925 plants in thiscategory. 4.4
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4, Schedule for phase I Weeks
Mailing I
Response period (I ) 5
Response period (2) 5 .
Analysis 2

4"----Total - 13

PHASE II
I. Purpose

The purpose of phase II is to establish the base inventory, to identify and
exploit data sources other than our own FWQA programs, and to establish pro-
cednies for continuously updating the base.
2: Execution

.1. Planning base
Certain aspects of phase II planning cannot he finalized until the results of

phase I are analyzed ; for example, it may be desirable to revise the report form.
and modifications to collection procedures to attain greater effectiveness may
become necessary. Basically, however, the data requested on the report form are
those required for FWQA functions and the form in its present or revised version
will be used regardless of collection procedures. The phase II plans are based on
this premise and on the strong probability that the principal collection effort
will be via direct mailing of the form to industry by FWQA. As previously stated,
priority will be given to coverage of those industries using the largest amounts
of water and the first effort will be so designed. Included, however, will be those
plants which have been cited in enforcement actions or are included in the imple-
mentation plans of the States water quality standards.

It Preliminary action
A listing of industrial plants classified within the following major water-using

industries has been extracted from Dun & Bradstreet's directory :
SIC Code

Food 90
Textiles 22
Paper 26
Chemicals 98
Petroleum 29
Primary metals 33
Transportation equipment 3, 711

The list, totaling approximately 86.000 plants, is arranged by SIC codes with
individual plants under each code appearing in descending. order of the number
of employees. Selection of plants to be included in phase II will be spread in
proportion to the pereentage of the total number of plants of those under each
code. and within codes in the order in which they appear on the list. The total
number to be incinded will be determined after the response percentage of phase

has been determined.
Inasmuch as the form may be revised when phase I is completed, printing in

quantity will be delayed. Numbers of forms desired will depend not only on phase
I experience but also on a final decision as to whether the Corps of Engineers will
use it as a part of the requirement on industry when submitting an application
for a discharge permit. In the interest of saving the procurement lag time for the
special paper (no carbon required) used in the form, it will be ordered on an
educated guess as to quantity 30 days in advance of the completion of phase I.

C. Survey methods
At the start of phase I, a letter will be dispatched to State water pollution

control agencies informing them of the survey and inviting their participation.
Three alternate methods are proposed generally as follows; Plan AHeadquar-
ters FWQA does all mailing, handling, and processing; plan Bsame as plan A
except States furnish us their forwarding letter to be sent to industry with the
forms; and plan CFWQA furnishes forms and address lists to States ; they
record data, and FWQA processes. The overall configuration of the survey will
probably be a combination of the three plans.

51-510-70--6
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nav the base inventory is established it is intended that maintenance and bp-
dating will be handled through FIVQA regional offices. Sources of data to be
utilized will include all FIVQA programs, the Corps of Engineers, tax certTlic--
tion processes and other Federal and State agencies.

D. Scheduling
It Is expected that phase I will be completed on or before January aJ, 1971,

During January, which ls the followup portion of phase I, we should be able to
determine the extent of revision, if any, desired in the form. Also, some indica-
tion of response percentage should be identifiable. Dependent ou printing lag

hue, mading of forms can be started in 30 to 00 days, that is, in March or April.

:
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A ITENINN. FEnt:11.11. IVATER QUALITY. AiiMINISTRATION's
QUESTIoNSA HIE INT 1 NI ius-rIti WAsTE WATEns

A. TUE grESTiONNAIRE FORM AND ACCOMPANTIm; tNsTRUCTIONS,
At ,:lo; hearing 1),ti Srplember 17, 1070. Hie Commissioner of the Federal Water

tjuality Administration presented the following questionnaire and instructions
wide!. he proposed to st;lid to industrial dischargers. The questionnaire form that
was subsequently sent to the initial group or 2710 (.1111W:11111'S ONDVIly
SalliP, except that Itlovhs DID! 30 a of the f?rm t a rsenie t As) and
mercury Ilg ; were repositioned ;Move bloeh ";.;:." and idle rid
was 1)1;1(141 al m, bottom bulb pages id.

NOTICE
/

Information supplied hy individual responses to;this inquiry will be
used by the Federal Water Quality Administration to carry out pro-
grams authorized by the Federal Water Pollution Control Act and
will be made availuble to other Federal agencies' and to State, inter-
state, and local water pollution control agencies'and to the public as
authorized by that Act.

(OMB No. 42-R1602APPROVAL EXPIRES JANUARY 31, 1971.)

/
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U.S. DEPARTMENT or THE I NTnuon
Ft:mt.% I. WATER QUALITY ADM INISTRAT ION

irash inglon, D.C.

N STRUCTIONS FOR COM PLETING REPORT Or INDUSTRIAL WASTE WATER I )IsrosAL

PART AGENEq AL
1. Pnrpo.ve of 114 is rcpwl

This report is .designed to implement a lintiO11:11 survey of manufact uring and
processing plants to Identify Mdustrial waste water discha rges, methods of dis-
posal, aim the types and effectiveness of trentotent powesses used to reduce the
waste (Imhoff of the water prior to discharge.

'rho ultimate objective is to obtain data on all plants discharging directly into
waterways,or to the various types of land disposal points. .First priority will be
given to roverage of tlpfse plank in Indust Het': using the largest MI:ORO ts of water
and to those where existing abatement needs ha ve been identifie(.
2. 1hr la coaraor

( a ) Itiport ftalaat and general inst ructions.
Page I of the report fori i. vontnining smtinus°I through III. calls for general

information about the jJI:liIt and about its wastejlisposal system and related costs
and manpower. Pap. 2 i,r he form calls for specific information on t he qnality
and quantity of both' boa ke and efflUent water 00 on treatment Ill'OEPSSPS used
for each "separated waste discharge." For purposes of this survey, a "separated
waste discharge" means a waste water effluent that has been isifiated f rom others

t issuing front the plant for purposes of applying special treatment or by reason
of its use where such use dictates the location of the discharge point (544. itOn
pt. If. for further definition and explanation I.

Where a plant has two or more separated waste discharges. a page 2
of the report should be completed for each discharge. Only page 1 of the report
need he completed. Under these circumstanCes, the multiple page 2'5 5110111(1 be
numbered collseCutiyely in the upper right-hand coiner luginning with sheet 2
and the total numhei of sheets in the report entered On eaell sheet. Please insure
that the plant name is enteriql on all page 2's if the report..

( b Quantitative data.
Cnik of measure for all quantitative data are specified for each item. Where

these data vary with seasons. or with plant utilization. etc., values. providtul
should in gem.ral reflect averages :is ofmosed III maxiniums or minimums.
3, Effcelirc -as 14" date of reportx

The "as or date for da ta entered in this rtlfort will he sp(4.1fied iii forwarding
correspoudene.
4. Su Imi8.5ion of rrports

The form is provided in quadruplicate with three assonblages I If page 2 to
provide for reporting separated discharges. (See general instruetion 2 above
and sgfecille hist-factions for sec. IV.) Please return the original and the eopies
of the completed form to :

Department of the Interior.
.deral Water Quality Administration.

Washington. D.C. 20242.
At tendon Code ill.

PART IISPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS AND DEFIN ITIONS

Instructions for Page 1 of FWQA Porot 1'20

Ne.ct ion .1-1'1u i1 lilcnlifica lion i
Item 1.Plant and eompany name and hwation.
Give plant name and, where applicable, company affiliation. Give exciet location

of the plant in terms or street address. city. county. or township. state. and ZIP
code. Where the plant is located in a rural area, give I In. Dame of the nearest town
or city 1111:1 the distance and direction of the plant from the city. Give correa
mailing address, if it differs from the above Ineu t ion data.

Item 2.Pa rent company or rorporation.

.)

;I

4
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If the Omit and/or company nained in item 1 is pnrt of a lnrger corporation,
indicate its status ns a branch, division, or sulxlivision, and give the unme nnd
address of the parent corporation headquarters.

Item 8.Officinl forwarding this report.
The individual named here will be considered a contact point for nny cor-

respondence which may arise in connection with the rerstrt.
Item 4.Date of report. .
Enter dnte on whWh the report is forwarded.
Item 5.Bidustrini classification.
Enter tiw principal products or processes of Muni. If the standord industrial

classification codes establisiwd by the Buren u of the Budget tire known, enter
limier "Primary" that whHi corresponds to the principal product and under
"Other" those corresponding to the second rind third principal products, if nny.

Item G.Plant operation
mficate by check whether the plant otiendes year mound or MI sen sonol

If seasonal show the period. e.g., 1)lity through Angust. Show avarrIge hours per
week of actual plant operitthm and under 'No. Weeks Worked" the amount of
time when operation is 'carried on by one, two nnd/or three shifts. Number of
employees should reflect avernge number of production workers, excinding oilht
force.
sCCtHifl 11;--Watcr souroes a»I lermle dixcharge points

Item 7.(; ve naine nod/or Ow of each source and elnck appropriate box (es)
to show imrpose of water intake. Where watrr source is a piddle water system
sin tw whether pnbliely or privatdy owned.

A trface water source (7b) nmy be nn ocean, river, lake, stream, ete., front
whieh company owlwd rind operrited supply sxstem draws water into the
plant. A ground Source (7c) is considereil Its company-owned with a company
system supplying Wnter to the pinnt. It may be a well, spring, ete. The type of each
sot 1 ree should be hulicated.

"Process** water. as used here, is defined as any water that eomes directly into
tl Intact with the prodnct or "Snnitary service" includes nil water
other than that falling under the -process:" In tiler feed." rind "noncontact cool-
ing," ea tegmrh.s sing! as that for drinking. hutch mans, or eo feterins, and dottiest le
sewage. "Iloilo o feed" is listed *specificiffly since this constitutes a specinl use
wii ie)! may or may not require pretreatment of the Intake Iater. -Noncom:let
eooling water" imludes all tooling rind mndensing water used for steam electrie
'lower generation. air tomtit inning. et eetera.

111,W 8.--G ive name and/or typo of discharge imint (s) and cheek npproiwinte
blocks to show typ( s) of discharge. Alm. where disehurge is to a puldie sewer.
indit.ate by ehrwking the nppropriate Imxes if it is imbliely or privately. owned
and. if a service charge is involved. Amount of (Shame need not he entered. For
this virpose. a service charge is defhwdms a fee I nil MI volume of discharged
wn ter. (nudity of the Water discharged, or n combinntion thereof. It does not

eliargts whih ore identifhol with properly or not] estate taxes. con-
neetion eharges, sewer zna intent] nee. levies. or fiat fees'unaithIsted by changes
in t iii ohmw or quality of the inhilio.or discharge.

Discharge to gronnd me:Ins discharge to a. iwint from which waste wnter
does: not 11Irpetly read] :t snrfact water body. Example:: Wduid lie holding and/or
oval toration iwauls and diked areas with no outlets to surface water !Indies: tile
beds: spray or ditA Irrigation : reeharge spray direelly into the gronnd: septic.
tanks: vesspools et cetera. Speeify type.

"Sanitary sewage" is defined as all, domestic or sanitary servkw-type wastes.
industrial" waSte water ineindes the proeess water, holler feed water and all

others involved in the industrial itrocess. exeluding the 11011(*Mallet cooling water
defined under item 7 above. "Trent ed" or "untrtted" applies to the sham: of
the effluent asIt reaches the disdia rge point.

/tem Iiisehargc of nonemitaet oling- water to n surfaN Miler body.
Where disehn rgo of noneontact t.otiling water Is' to n surface water body

temperatures :ire desired so that the ninnber of B.Lit.'s dilwbarged into n stn.am
van be determined. Temperuture of tin. source water is an importnnt fnetnr.
since It may differ significantly front that of the tvater receiving the effluent.
:111d the latter mny be either higher or lower than the receiving water. MI tem-
peratnres should be expressed in terms: of mutual nvvrages. Where reeirculation
is involved. ebeek lox and show other water quality impentors by eompleting
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a stiction IV for "blowdown" as a "separated waste discharge." See item 14 of
instructions. ..4111

Note : If total discharge is to a- public sewer and no pretreatment is provided
either for intake water or for waste water discharge, skip section III of the
report and complete parts of section IV where applicable.
Section 11 1-1Vaste treatment facilities costs and Manpower requirement!.

Item 10.Seleet from the treatment processes given in appendix A to these
instructions, those which, best describe the most advanced treatment capability
of the original treatment facility and of the subsequent improvements, if any,
and enter code numbers of these processes under "Type." Indicate the year the
facility or improvement was placed in operation and the cost at time of con-
struction. If more than three additions or improvements are involved, use
space provided under "Remarks" (item 13 of form) or add an extra sheet and
note this under "Remarks." Use space under item 13 also for any expansion or
explanation of entries in items 11 and 12. Describe any treatment facility under
construction at the time of this report.

Item. 11.Enter by the most appropriate category the numbers of employees
assigned to the management, operation and maintenance of the waste water
collection and treatment system. General descriptions of duties and qualifica-
tions for each category are given in appendix B to these instructions. Number
should include all individuals, full-time and part-time, who require specialized
sidils and knowledge in water pollution control technology.

Item 12.Expendltures and manpower levels for water treatment for past
Year and estimates for next 5 years.

"Give estimates in terms of the current dollar. Use "Remarks" space under
item 13 for explanation, if desired, If funding cannot be broken down by specific
years, give the average amount per year for the 5.year period or for the
lieriod covered by planned budget if less than 5 years.

In computing cost of operations and maintenance, include labor, materials
such as replacement parts and chemicals, and other costs which can be directly
related to the collection, control, and treatment system.

"Unger item 12c, the number shown in the 'past year block (1) should equal
the total of all entries in item 11. Project the numbers required over the next
5 in accordance with planned expansion, additions andfor changes to the
system.

Item 12d calls for an overall estimate of man-years devoted to pollution
control and abatement. Using an arbitrary figure of 2,000 man-hours as the
time worked in 1 year by a full-time employee, compute the total number of man-
hours expended (current year) or estimated to be expended over the next 5 years
by both full and part-time employees, and divide the total by 2,000 to obtain
equivalent man-years.

Item13.alemarks.
Use this space for any desired expansion or explanation of entries in items

10, 11, and 12.
Instructions for page 2 of FWQA fnrm 120.

At top of page 2 of the form enter the name nf the plant as glven on page 1 and
enter appropriate sheet numbers.
Secttnu, IVWater analysts -

A section IV should be completed for each "separated waste discharge," which
as used here, is a waste water effluent that has been isolated from others issuing
from the plant for purposes of treatment or by reason of its use where such use
dictates location of the discharge point.

Item 14.4:"Name nf separated waste discharge" meansthe iype. locatlon..or
other means of describing or diffentiating among discharges from any one plant.

Examples nf sepa'rated waste discharges are:
Waste pickle liquor
Oily water
Rinse water .

Waste flume effluents
Quenching wastes

Hot well effluents
Boiler blowdown
Cooling tower blowdown
Gas scrubber water

If two or more effluents containing different wastes are combined before treat-
ment into one discharge, the name should give some idea of what types have been
combined. Tf all wastes are combined into one discharge use the name "combined"

eC.
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and make out only oae section IV. Also, if for reasons of'volume, convenience, Con-
trol, nnd so forth, there are a number of discharges physically located separately
but discharging the same type of waste water, they may be treated as one dis-
charge, and only one section IV is requtred.

Item 14 Bo C, D.Self-explanatory.
Item 15.Equivaleat production. The purpose of this item is to provide infor-

mntion which allows correlation of product output with outflow of waterborne
wastes. Such .information is essentinl for determining: pollution control require-
ments that n re realistically related to manufacturing activity ; the waste to pro-
duct ratio of varioui production technologies: and assessments of the extent to
which process modifications might egeetively be substituted for waste treatment.

The unit entered here enn be one of input to. or output from the plant, which-
ever is the more convenLent or 'definitive. For instance, from the examples listed
Wow : it may be more, convenient for the "milk products" industry to use the
input unlit of ."1,000 pounds. raw milk," thnn it is to use the output in terms of
the various products; also, for the "brewery" industry, it may be more convenient
to t1Se the output unit, "barrels of beer." than to attempt to measnre the Input
ingredients.

List of examples
Induatry Unit

Meat slaughtering 1,000 pounds, live weight.
Ment processing 1,000 pounds, finished weight.
Poultry processing 1.000 pounds, dressed weight.
Fish 1,000 pounds, product.
Milk products 1,000 pounds, row milk.
Fruit and vegetable ennning 1,000 enses, No. 303 cnns.
Dehydrated potntoes 'Cons. raw potatoes.
Beet sugar Tons, sugar beets.
.Brewery Bnrrels of beer.
Pulp Tons, dried pulp.
Pa per Tons of pnper.
Petrole4un refinery Barrels of crude oil.
Phosphate fertilizer _ Tons of phosphate rock.
Nitrogen fertiliwr Tons per day of rnted NH1

synthesis capacity.
If the rated production cnpacity of the plant hns been published and the figures

nre still accurate, give the date and source nnd use the published dnta..
The amount per operating day should be a multiple of the basic unit rounded

off to the nenrest whole number, that is. if the unit for n meat slaughtering
pinnt is "1,000 pounds, live weight" and 22.000 pounds is the avernge handled
lwr filly, then the entry should be "22."

Item /11.Point` of dischnrge. Indimite by checking appropriate box whether
this separated wnste discharge is to n public or private sewer, a surfaee water
body, or the ground. Give Intitude and longitude of the actual point of discharge
if to surfnce water or ground.

Rem 17.If the discharge is to the ground, indicnte the type. If to n surface
water hotly, give the preCise location of the dischnrge point in terms of distance
from the shore or bank, and the distance below the surfnce if the outfnll is under-
water.

Item 18.Efiluent sample collection and analysis. Cheek appropriate boxes
to indicnte type of sample, frequency, and by whom nnnlyzed. Give dates tlw
snmples were taken.

Item 19.Water quality indicators. The indicators given under ltlit through
19f are not Intended to apply to all industries nor is it expected thnt all of them
will apply to any one industry. They were selected as representing. in genernl.
the most common measurements of wnter qunlity. Space has been provided under
19g for halcating other characteristics which mny apply to specific wnters, such
as !met-print content, turbidity. specific orgnnic chemicnls, radionctive elements.
et cetera. Where entries are made here, indicate the unit of mensnrement. (Note
Hint all measurements under lfif are to be expressed in milligrams per liter.)
Provision is made for recording quality of both the intake and effluent wnters
before and after treatment If it is not necessnry to trent intake wnter before use
or if waste water is not treated before discharge enter "none" in npproprinte
column. If byproduct removal or reuse is involved in the plant process, mnke
entries in the "before treatment" colunvi based on qunlity dfter the byproduct
is removed.
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If water quality data of the type requested in this item have been .compiled
within the,past year for a local, State or Federal Government agency, and the
data are still accurate, a copy of Finch report may be submitted in lieu of com-
pleting the item.

Item.20.--Using the list of treatment processes in appendix A, identify those
which best describe the scope and nature of water tree intent at this plant. List
the code numbers of the processes In the order in which the treatment oceurs
so that they can be reconstructed into a flow diagram. For example, the industrial
waste water treatment facility in the diagram shown below for one smatrat
waste stream would be reported as follows :

"Coded description of waste treatment process (es ) 103, 401, 304, 701, Sill,
810, 812, 841, 702, 833, and 830."

Serface Condensers

Lecal Trap

land Dscosia

I%
Rens., ot W.Ver

Slbdge Vacumn F titration

Item 21. Remari .
thb pae it. f.arbbh Aditnonal infmtnalwn olt explanation

0,,Iner for the Separate yjite Jig:barge reported.

Private treatment Faciiities

Scre, Pip

Neutralization

Chemical Treatment

Chemical Coaeulammi
and Sedbyentabon

Vito.c.p.11 r orient 1,r.illt

APPRNDIX A.INDUSTRIAL WASTE WATEW Pomarrlox AIIA'IE.SFNT MEASURES

IN-PIANT CONTROL MEASURES

100 ScriesEngineering Design Considerations

101 Installation of separate drainage systems
102 Segregation and collection of specific wastes
103 Use of surface condensers in place of barometric condensers
104 Use of various water conservation measures and facilities
105 Emergency storage facilities
100 Countercurrent use of chemicals and/or wash waters
107 Use of pumps and valves with special seals to minimize leakage
109 Not defined above

S9
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200 SeriesProcess Design Modifications

201 Use of reaction chemicals or feed stocks producing minimum waste
909 Continuous versus batch prOcesses
203 Chemical regeneration
204 Downgraded use of chemicals
205 Elimination of air blowing and water washing
206 Physical separators
207 Change in design basis for chemical recovery facilities
208 Modifying operating conditions
.209 Not defined above

300 SerlesReeovery and Unit:at ifm

301 Recovery of material for reuse in process
302 Downgraded use of spent chemicals in other processes
303 Use or sale of waste as raw matrhil for other lwocemses
304 Rwycle or reuse of water
305 Heat recovery
309 Not tletitwd above

400 SeriesLocal Pretreatment or Disposal

401 Local separators and traps
402 Evalloratian and incineration of noxious liquid wastes
403 Pse of emulsion prevention chemicals
409 Not defined above

500 SeriesOPeratlon Control

501 Automatic versus manual process eontrols
502 Control of production to minimize losses
riO3 Administrative control of waste water discharge
504 Monitoring sewer effluents
505 Management followup on losses
509 Not efined above

600 SeriesGood Housekeeping

(101 Conservation and cleamip programs
002 Publicity and educational releases
003 Employee training
0119 Not defined above

%A. AsTEW ATER DISPOSAL M EASURS

va, seriesDischarge In Treatment Facility
71)1 Private Nullities
702 Publi, facilities
703 Cooperative facilities
704 Cmit pact disposal
705 Transportation to more receptive environment
71s1 Storm water dra inage
7119 Not defined above

W A sTEW ATER TREAT M ENT UNIT IPEUATION S

81/O NerjrNPh ysim 1 Pretreatment

th) Dom t ion
Screening
Preoenttion -

$03 Sedimentation
S114 FMatiou
so Toni terature (:ontrol

Not.ileilnell above
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810 SeriflChemtcal Pretreatnwnt
816 Neutralization
811 primary chemical Coagulation
812 Chemical treatment
813 Odor control
814 Nutrient addition
819 Not defined above

820 SeriesBiologieol Treatment
820 Stabilization basins
821: Activated sludge
822 Trickling filter
823 Aerated lagoon
824 Anerobic contact (6 to 12 hours)
825 Anerobic pond (3 to 30 days)
826 Denitrificntion
807 Aerobic or a naerobie digestion or solids
829 Not defined above

SertesSludgc Handling
830 Thickening
831 Lagooning or drying bed
832 Centrif ugation
833 Vacuum filtration
834 Dry combustion
835 Wet combustion
836 Land disposal
837 Sea disposal
839 Not defined above

840 SeriesTerminal Secondary Treatment
840 Biological sedimentation
841 Final themical coagulation and sedimentation
842 Sand filtration
843 Diatomite filtration
844 Chlorination
8-19 Not defined above

ADVANCED WASTE TIREATMENT

850 SertesTemperature Change Processes
850 Evaporation
851 Freezing
852 Distillation
853 Eutectic freezing
854 Wet oxidation
855 Process residue, handling, and disposal
859 Not defined above

860 Series:All Other
AGO Adsori it ion
861 Electrodialysis
862 Ion exchange
863 Solvent extraction
864 Reverse osmosis
865 Foaming
866 Chemical treatment
867 Electrochemical treatment
868 Process residue, handling, and disposal
809 Not defined above
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900 ScriesTrrated Waste Water'DisPosal
901 Controlled discharge
902 Surface storage and evaporation
903 Deep well disposal
904 Surface (spray) irrigation
905 Ocean disposal .

900 Surface discharge
909 Not defined above

APPENDIX B.MANPOWER CATEGORIES EMPLOYED IN INDUSTRIAL WASTE WATER
TREATMENT PLANTS

A. Superintendent. Responsible to plant manager for supervision of water
pollution control function. Deals with Goxernment agencies on waste discharge
and water quality problems. Oversees design, operation, maintenance, and ad-
ministrative activities associated with waste .water, treatment facilities.

Enginevr.Desigas and/or supervises construction, operation, or main-
tenance activities. Analyzes problems caused in treatment and disposal of waste
waters ; formulates processes or reeminnendat hams fot alleviation of detrimental
conditions.

Sanitary engincer.Same as engineer but requires skills end knowledge that
mil best IW obtained through a degree in sanitary 'engineering.

C. Chemist.Performs qualitative and quantittitive chemical or physical
analyses of process waters to determine composititou and properties.. Provides
technical advice within his specialty for supervisorY or other management engi-
neering personnel. Assists In special problems, devidopment of test and process
methods, improves procedures for quality control of tests and their interpretation.
May supe Ise laboratory technicians.

D. Mies thiotayistPerforms laboratory analys
ts

to determine the presence
and cone( itration of certain microorganisms. .1afr fterform direct microscopic
examinations or other special tests-far evaluation if microbiological problems in
waste water treat nwnt processes. Within his area f specialization provides tech-
nical advice to engineers, chemists, and others cone rning interpretation of micro-
biological 1ind bacteriologieal data and observatio m and the handling of related
problems. May supervise laboratory- technicians.

E. Laboratory technician.Performs qualitati e and quantitative tests of a
physical, chemical, or bacteriological nature, Te. s are made on prOcess waters
according to prescribed procedures as designate( by his supervisors.

F. Senior operatorforrman (nonengineer) Supervises and coordinates
activities of workers in operation and maintenance of various elements of waste
water collection and t eatment facility.

G. Operator.Works with minimum supervsion. Starts, stopS, and adjusts
flows on the basis of bis interpretation of instrument readings and tests results.
May perform operational control tests. Performs or oversees preventive anti
breakdown maintenance. Gives direction to attendants and unskilled wotkers.

1T. Instrument repairman.Installs, repairs,' maintains, and adjusts indicat-
ing, recording, telemetering. and controlling instruments and analytical instru-
ments of waste water treatment facility.

I. Maintenance man.Skilled mechanic (includes general mechanics, plumbers,
electricians, pipefitters, machinists, etc.) who repairs and maintains machinery.
plumbing, physical structure. electrical wiring, mot lrs, and other components of
waste collection and treatment system.

J. AttendantOperates designated equipment according to specific instruc-
tions. Starts, stops, and adjusts flows and equipment in line with precise instruc-
tions. Performs routine maintenance tasks, e.g.. cleaning and lubrication, May
keep log of instrument readings.

K. Unskilled.Performs any combination of unskilled tasks, usually under
continous supervision. Removes waste material, cleans equipment or facilities.
He may perform operating or maintenance tasks under direct supervision of more
experienced personnel.

Other.All other employees engaged in administration, operation, and
maintenance of waste water treatment and collection facilities.
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11. swg.t's screowrixa STATEAI ENT ON /Ts nEQUEST Fon ncona:r ntIiE.%t, CU.:ASA ME
rts QUESTION NAME FOHNI 120 1 01 AND l'I.A N F1111 (111.1.KUTING liATA ON

IN DUSTHIA1, WASTE OI$C11AUCES

A. The Federal Water Quality Administnttion is responsible for carrying out
the provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amende(i therein-
after referred to as the net). A pilnie requisite to the aecomplishment of this
mission is an up-to-date, iloint-Ity-point 1.11011ilimIld011 of the location 11m1 nature
of waste discharges which could pollute or degrade the receiving wat('rs. These
data are equally vital to the States" water pollution control agencies whirli have
been termed the first line of defense against pollutiOn.

The Federal net specifically imposes a duty upon the Secretary in this regard.
The Secretary is directed iii section 51 e) of tbe Federal net to colleet and tits-
seminate basic date on chemical, physical, aud biologleal water quality and
other information insofar as such data or other information relate to water pol-
lution and the prevention tool eontrol thereof. These data are needed for n Iniost

every aspect of the Federal water polint ion control program, Including construc-
tion, research and demonstration grant programs, enforeement aetivitics, and
direct agency activities.

Specific needs and uses for these data inelude but are not limited to :
1. The need for identifying. I/waling. 0 nd investigating W11 sh discharges which

may adversely affect receiving waters for the plirpose popacing vom.
prehensive plans, for eliminating or reduehig pollution Id t he waters. and to
Identify, In advance, potential pollution problems so that necessary action to
conserve waters con be taken (Or 11111)1)5es of wet ions 2 la) and do of tile ad.

2. Need to provide basic data on the nature and types of wastes diseha mem In
support of the planning and execution of researell. Investigations, experiments,
and demonstrations relating to the muses, control. and prevention of water pol-
lution for plirposes of ScV1 IOUS 5 III 1, 41,1, and (dl of the net.

2. Need to provide in support Of the eongtroetion grows pc( tgraai roe
big Federal financial aid in the construction of muldeipal waste familities, the
Impact of the processing of industrial wastes through municipal systems for pnr-
poses of section 8 of the act.

Recently issued regulationsFederal Register. fitly 2, 1970. CFR, pa nt graph
(101.22 t (trough 601.211romire the (level/ aliment of basin plans. including Merida-
(lotion and impnct of all null-Istria) waste diseliarges in tile basin, prior to
amoroval of any Construction guild' for a mullicipal facilit y within the -basin.

4; Need to provide, in support of the maliptwer and training program. data
Ill Iitrn-nt levOS of, 11 MI forecasted relmirements fin% personnel to supt.cv Ise

wriitp waste treatment facilities. These data are reqnired ill the pi/inning
hor 11101 execution of the training grants and vont racts program and tla, award
of scholarships in this area for purple:es of so ctiom I g and! sections Ill
through 1 11 of the lot

5. Novels to Itrov hie inforination for annual n.ports III 0/tigress On existing
and It/4.dpi waste 'facilities, the (lost thereof, und other pollntlon emit rol apt
alonlement requirements for purposes of sectiom 2ti of the net.

The 1 wo greatest threats to water qua lily and municipal nuti industrial wastes.
For the former. adequate data lave been eollected to meet requirements of the
allow/. paragraph. For the latter, however. virtu:illy II data exist. lids look
or tlin,rolation has seriously hindered tile planning and eseention la (linthal
tont rot and abatement programs,

Speehd eongressional interest tit establishing. a eolltimting votoprI-la.nsive
industrial wastes inventory has limn prominent shove 19112. when hearings on
the silbieet were held by the Natural Resonrees and Power Suloeominittt.e of the
nonse Committee "on Government Owrations, Representative :Niles ( Ala Ionia),
who wos then elm inmni of this commit tee, et rongly nwonintended moll au ham

'tory in a series of -letters.. first to Seeretaries Celehrezze and (hiMner. when
Health. Education. and Welfare lad the wider pollution control function-, and
later to Secretary Udall when it was transferred to the Department of 'the In-
terior. In addition. the findings of this eolumittee were documented in the Thir-
teenth Itepoit of t he Committee on Government Operations--The Critical Need
for an Inventory of Indlistrial Wastes." dated Join. 24, 1968. This subcommittee.
now (IOW the Natural Resonrces and Consemition Subcommittee. aml ehairell
by 'Representative Reuss (Wisconsin) has registered its continmd interest in
several letters to Secretary nickel this year.

Three selarate applications lave previously heen made to smut, approval
for eonducting the subject inVentory. The first. initiated by til Public Health
Serviop ill 1 M. wag never implemented. sine/. tile nationwide effort pnoposed
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was redninatl toy the Borean of I he Itudget to a suggested Irbil un in one river
basin with resulting data to be treated us confidential nod l'IlS did not ponenr.
Tina sPeolod applieation. Initiated bY FWPCA iii Moil 31H17, wns based on use
of It revised vershm of the form proposed in the 1964 effort.

.0011ntation on the second submission mans deferred mall two Cfmgressionally
inrITted FWPCI studies involving Industry. could be vompleted. The form was
resubmitted in .luly ltHis and final netIon wits again deferred pending deeishm
by INTCA on acceding to n request la' industry 111.0 data submitted lw twitted

.as (.01111diantial. I it l'elornary 1970 action was suspended on this oladkadon.,
The 190s form has now been reviewed for inhatpute4to meet eurrent require-

ments. A draft of the revised form (4-70; has been prepared and Is submitted
liertawit h. ('hanges in the form from the 19I1S form are discussed in Section 1 ).

it is not antkipated that this form will be used on a regulnr. reinathlve basis
insofar as this may involve periodie mailings to indnstry..it may loa usell for
reciading additions or .ehanges to the inventory, when estnblished; Iii areord
with vontinuons update procedures to he mutunily established and agreed intim
Ily the t itt. s water puffin Ion control agencies and FWQA regional caves,

lhalleeting guidance received fnan the Office of Managenaant inul Midget.
The inventory Is now planned in two phases with a distinct lime to 1:14 between
the two phaSPS to provide time for Illinlysis and any neressary modifilaa Hon
to plans and pnieedures.

The first pions. will consist of an initial mailing to apprOximately 270 Indus-.
tries to proride a reasonable sannaling both in types of Industry and in the
various areas of the country. Upon renalla of the informotiondevialoped by this
initial mailing aft analysis will be naidend the amount and type of information
reetaived and thy rote of reply. At least one followup will be t ilrried out on
talaplies not revelved. The analysis of this initial phase will Ilrovide VWQA
with Inform:Won on Which itt bnse improved plans and procedures. Th. lot a i of
the tirst phuse shonid be accomplished in approximately 4 niont0.

The second phase of the Inventory will eonsist of a mailing covering 10.000
ii 12.1100 plants and will incorporate the improved proeedures diavehawd above.

It is tentatirely planned that mailing will. Ina direct to industry but with (base
eoordinalbut and cooperation' with any similar art lil has being conducted by
1 he StpteS.

Eventually. it is intended that 'Ow Inventory will be made as complete as
possible. !minding all. industrial classifhtt ions. The pilot survey thaseribed In.dow
was eolublehad on this basis. The eurrent. nationwide, proposed effort will plibla
priority on eoverage of : (1) industria: plants for which abatement Ingalls are
identiad in the impl: nentation plans and schedules of he Slates' 'water ono I I y
standards and (2) pi nits with the following standard industrial classilicat
c4 nles :

» third Ind ft ri
Indy gt cht,,si (leo ioti rod v

rood and kindred prodt Is :.!0
,..1Textile mill products

Paper and allied products 29
Chemicals and allied prodnets_
Petroleum refining and related industries 00
Primary metal industries 3:1
Transportation vqnipment (motor vehicles) 3. 711

The revised form has been used In-honse to assemIde and record data already
in PIVQA files on Indnstrial planfs located within one minor river basin of enelt
of the nine regions. This pilot survey wns vonducted to assess the scope and
.value of data on hand and to &termini. further action to be taken to establish
a notionwide inventory. Data received"mis woefully inadequate ana a need for
a direct approach to industry was clearly indicated. Clearance of the form' is
therefore requested in anticipation of further action on this basis.

C. Participation of industry in this survey and sainnission of ditta by i111111s-
try. will be purely voluntary. Data accumulated in the inventory will by edited.
Polled. Mid proecssed into a entral computer providing direet access thtaugh
telecommuni ations terminals to FNMA regional and field offices and throngh
them to Sta e. Interstate, lind local water pollution control agenries. Male:Ise
and/or otherldissemination of the collected data will be governed by the provi-
sions of title! 18. United States Code. section 1905. Other thna an aggregated
statistical summary. no faultlication is planned :It this time.

D. The f(frni submitted herewith has been revised from the 19118 version in that
several items have been debated or completion of the item is new optional. Qmas-



92

tions on the age of the plant, discharge permits, and sludge or other waste water
treatment solid residual have been added. Also, minor changes have been made
in some items mainly in format.

The 1068 version was thoroughly reviewed by the staff and fleld offices of
FWPCA and other organizations and individuals including ;

Other interested Federal water resources agencies ;
An industrial panel of the Presidential Advisory Council on Federal Reports ;
Ad hoc Task Force for Water Use Data Research, Committee on Water

Resources Research :
Joint Committee on Water Quality Management Data, Conference of State

Sanitary Engineers ;
Division of Sanitary Engineers, Department of Health, Pennsylvania ;
Director, Bureau of Engineers. State Board of Health, State of Indiana :
Director, Division of Water Resources, National Resources Department

State of Wisconsin ;
Executive secretary. MiSsouri Water Pollution Board ;
Mr. Owen C. Gretton, Chief, Industry Division, Bureau of Census ;
Mr. Harry A. Steele, Assistant Director for Planning and Research, Adyper,

Water Resources Council;
Mr. Ernest L. Hendricks, Chief Hydrologist, Geological Survey.

Time required to complete the form will vary according to the numbers of
"separated waFte discharges (see instructions) which exist at a plant. For-
warding correapondence will state that information reported should be that
already avallqble in plant records, hence, an estimate of 1 to 4 hours is made.
The correspohdence will also indicate that, if the water quality data requested
under section IV, item 19. has been recently (within the last 6 months) com-
piled for a regulatory agency or study 'group, a copy of the report may he ,.111)
mitted in lieu of completing item 19.

t-
r..



A PrEN-Blx 4.Fimr.BAL REpowcs ACT OP 1942, As ColnnED By Till,. AcT
or 0 (70Bmt 22, 1968 (PuBuc LAw 90-620; 82 STAT. 1302; 44 U.S.
Com:, Sum.. V, SECS. 3501-3509)

CHAPTER 35COORDINATION OF FEDERAL REPORTING SERVICES
Sec. .
35ot I Ioriia t ion far Pedern1 nommies.
35o2.
350:1. Duties or I n rectur of I he Bo rean of t he Budget .
3504. Design:it ion of central collection agency.
33113, Independent collection bv an agency prohibited.
3500. Determination of necessity for informalion ; bearing.
3507. Ciminero tion of agencies in making information nvallable.
:150S. l'idawf ill disclosure of informa tion ; penalties ; release of information to other

hgenvies.
509. Plans or forms for millecting information ; submission to Director ; approval.
510. Rules and reoulat inns.
511. Penalty for fall«re to furnish inform:100m

§ 3501. Information for Federal agencies
Information needed by Federal agencies shall be (obtained with a minimum

burden upon business enterprises, especially small business enterprises, and other
persons required to furnish the lefornmtion, and at a minimum cost to the Gov-
ernment. Unnecessary duplication of efforts in obtaining information through
the nse of reports, questionnaires, and other methods shall be eliminated as
rapidly as practicable. Information collected and tabulated by n Federal agency
shall, as far as is expedlent, be tabulated in a manner to maximize the witti-
ness of the information to other Federal agencies and the public. (See. 2 of
1942 Act.]

§ 3502. Definitions
As used in this chapter

Tedernl agency" men as. an executive departnwnt, commission, independ-
ent establishment, corporation owned or controlled by the United States,
board, bureau, division, service, ollIce, authority, or administration in the
exeentive branch of the Government; but does not include the General Ac-
counting Office nor the governments of the District of Columbia and of the
territories :Ind possessions of the United States, and their various oath-
divisions :

"persom" means an individual. partnership, assoeintion, corporation,busl-
moss trust, or legal representative. an organized group of persons, a State
or territorial government or branch, or a political subdivision of a State

or territory or a bra n eh of a pol i tient subdivision :
"information" means facts obtained or solicited by the Ilse of written re-

i uort. forms, application forms, schedules, questionnaires, or other similar
methods calling either for answers ta identical questions from ten or more
persons other than agencies, instrumentalities, or employees of the United
Slates or for answers to questions from agencies, instrumentalities, or em-
ployees of tile United States which are to he used for statistical compilations
of genera; public I ntee rst. I Sic. 7 of 1942 Aet.1

§ 3503. Duties of Director of the Bureau of the Budget
With a view to morryiug out the policy of this chapter, the Director of the

tureau of the Budget from time to tuuue
(1) investigate the needs of the various Federal agen('ies for information

from business enterprises, from other persons, and from other Fmlern
a:ZPIlvies :

12) investigate the methods used by ageneles in obtaining information :

Noordlnate rarddly us ion:slide the information-collecting servic('s
of ali agencies with a vfew to reducing the cost to the Government of obtain-

9:1)
7.1 7.39 70-
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ing Information and minimizing the burden upon business enterprises nlid
other persons, nnd using, ns far as practicable, for continuing organliation,

,tp files of infornmtlon and existing facilities of the established Federal agencies.
[See. 5(a) of 1942 Act.]

§ 3504. Designat ion of cent ral collect ion agenCy
When, after investigation, the Director of the Ibirenu of the Midget is of the

opinion that the needs of two or more Federal ageneles for information from
business enterprises and other perSons ilI be adequately served by a single
collecting agency, lie shall fix n time and place for a hearing at which the agenvivs
concerned and other inteyested persons nmy hit ve an mmertunity to present their
views. After the hearing,' the Director may issue an order designating a collecting
ngency to obtain information for two or mere of the ngench.s concerned, mid
prscribing (with i.eference to the collection of information) the duties and
fnnctions of the collecting agency so designated HIld the Federal agencies for
which it is to act as agent. The Direet or ma modify the order front tinu. to
time as riremnstnnees require, but Imalithlttion may not Inb made except after
investigation and Innrliig. [ SVC, 3(h) of 1942 Act.]
§ 3505. Independent collection by nn agency prohibited

While an order or modified order is in effect, a Federal agenc ). covered by it
niH y not obtain for itself information which it is the duty of the collecting ngncy
designated by the order to obtain. [Spc. 5(e) of 1942 Act.]
§ 3506. Determination of necessity for information; hearing

Upon the request of party having n substantial Interest, or upon his own
motion, Ow Director of' the Buren) of the Budget limy determine whether or.
not the collection of infdrInution by a Federal agency is necessary for the proper
perform fitl of the functions of the ngeney or for any other proper purpose. Before
nm king a th.termination, ht. may give the agency and other interested persons
au oimortnnity to be beard or to suinnit statenwnts in writing. To the extent.

any, t hut the Direetor determines the collection of inforination by the ngency
is m i tityessa ry, for any reason. the ageney may uot engage in the eollectitm Of
t he i nformn Hon. [ See. 5 ( d ) of 1942 Act.]

§ 3507. Cooperation of agencies in making information available
For the inirposes of this chapter. the Direct or of the Iliirean of the Budget

ma y require a Federal a gen*. to Inalw available to another Federal ngelley
information obtained from any m.rson tiller December 24, 19.12, aml all agencies
are dirt041 to cooperate to the fullt.st practicable extent at nil times in making
information :Iva Wilde to other twenties.

This eimpter does tiot apply to the obtaining or releasing of information by
the Internnl Revenue Service, the Comptroller of the Curi'elley, the Burenu of
the Public Debt, the Bureau of Accounts, nnd the Division of Foreign Funds
Control of the Treasury Department, nor to the obtnining by n Federni bnnk
supervisory ageney of reports nnd information from banks ns authorized by
law and in the proper performance of the ngeney's functions in its supervisory
eapncity. [Sec. 3 (c) of 1942 Act.]
§3508. Unlawful disclosure of information; penalties; release of information to

other agencies
( a if information obtained in confidenc by a Federal agency is released

by that agency to (mother Federal agency, all the prvisions of la w including
penalties which Mine to the- unlawful disclosure of infornmtion npply to the
officers and employees of tiu ngeney to which information is released to the
same xtent and in the same Hamner ns the provisions apply to the officers and
employees of the ngency which originnily obtained the information. The officers
and employees of the ngency to which the information is released. in nddition,
shall be snIdeet to the same provisions of Inn., including pennIties, relating to the
unlawful disclosure of information as if the information hnd been collected
directly by that agency.

( ) Information obtn ined by tr Federal ngency from n person wider this ehnpter
may be released to nnother Fethtrol agency only

(1 ) in the form of statist fral totals or summaries : or
(2) if the information ns supplied by persons to a Federn1 ngency hnd not,

at, the time of colleetion, been deelared by that agency or by a superior
authority to be confident ial : or



(3) when the persons snpiOying the information consent to the release
of it to a second agency by (he agency to which the information was origin-
ally supplied; or

(if when the Federal agency to which another Federal agency releases
the Information has authority to eolleet the information itself and the
authority is supported by legal provision for criminal penalties against
persmts fulImtg to supply tiw information. [See. 4 of 194.2 Act.]

§ 3509. Plans or forms for collecting information; submission to Director; appro-
val

A. Federal agency may not conthwt or sponsor the collection of -inforniation
npon identical items, from tell or more persons, other than Federal employees,
unless in advance of adoption or revision of any plans or forams to be used in
the colleel ion-

11) the agency has submitted to the Director the plans or forms, together
with copies of pertinent regulations and of other related materials as the

/keel or of the Boren u of the It midget has specified ; anfl
(2, the Director has stated t hat be does not disapprove the proposed col-

lection a information. [ Sec. 5 of 1912 Act.]
§ 3510. Rules and regulations

The Director of the Bureau of the Budget may promulgate roles and regula-
tions neeessa ry to carry out sections 3501-3511 of I hiS title. [ Sec. 6 of 1942
Act.]
§ 3511. Penalty for failure to furnish information

A person failing to furnish information required by an agency shall be sub-
ject to penalties specifically promeribed by law, and no other penalty may be im-
posed either by way of fine or imprisonment or by the withdrawal or denial 'of a
right, ptivilege, priority, allotment. or imnamity, except when the right, privilege,
priority, allotment. or humanity is legally conditioned on Incts which would he
revealed by the information requested. (See. 8 of 1942 Act.]

t.. J
m



APPENDIX 5.CORREISPoNDENCE ADVISoRy COUNCIL ()N FEDERAL
REPORTS, AND RELATED MATERIALS

ADVISORY COUNCIL ON FEDERM. REPORTS.
Washington, D.c., September 4, 1070.

HOn. HENRY S. ltErss.
Chairman, Conservation aml Nat ural Resources Subcommittee of the r!ononi t tee

on Government Operations, House of Representatives, Rayburn House Office
Building, Washington, D.C.

DE.ut Mu. ellAIRMAN Nly response lo your letter .1. Angus( 25 [an invitat ion
from Chairinon Reuss to testify ill the s: ol omm it tee's Septeniber 17, 1970.
hearing] ling been delayed as n result of my Imeing awn y on II brief vacation.

In behalf of the Advisory Council on Federal itelairts. of which I am eurrently
serving as Chairman, I should like to thank you for your invitation to partici-
Pate in the hearing of the Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee
of the Committee on Government Operations on Thursday, September 17. on the
subject of a national inventory of industrial wastes.

I think that everyone will agree that Government. industry, and the general
nubile are quite conscious of and greatly concerned about the prob'em of pollu-
tion in the United.States and internationally. Moreover. interested parties are
anxious to mato a contribution to solutha of minutia' problems and. whore
appropriate. to the development of Inform:1 tbm necessary to accomplNillig that
objeetive. In this conmiction. as you point out. a linnet of individuals organized
under the auspices of the Allyisimry l'ounell on Federal Reines Iller with repre-
sentatives of the Bureau of the Budget and other Government offieials on August
13, 1908, :Ind offered certain suggestions and comments with resioict to a pro-
posed questionnaire on industrial waste water disposal.

This panel met at the request 'if the Bureau of the Budget which utilizes the
Advisory Council on Federal net torts and committees and panels negolll'APd by
the Advisory I'mmcil for the purpose of obtaining comments on various ques-
tionnaires and reports proposed by Government departments and agencies. The
decisionnaking authority with rest wet to approval of suell yiestionnaires and
reports is placed in the Bureau of the Budget under the Federal Reports Act :
the Advisory Council performs simply an advisory function and presents VI MI-
inents and suggestions only at the request of the Bureau of the Budget.

In view of the limited role of the Advisory Council on Federal Reports and
the Net that it functions at the pleasure of the Bureau of the Budget. I have
serious question' as to whether it would be appropriate for an i mificin I repre-
sentative of tin: Advisory Council to participate in such a hearing as your sub-
commit,- ee is conducting. MoreoVer. as Chairman of the Advisory Council. I be.
I have it is fair to say that 1 and other members of time Connell do not Inlve Spe-
c101 expertise in the field of pollution. and MOW partieularly with respect to the
collection and interpretation of data on industrial NVfl stes, To put the matter
another way. lout ra ry to the suggestion which you make On page 3 of your
letter of August 25. tbe Advisory Council on Federal Reports does not feel that
in a congressional hearing it is the proper gpokesman for industry at large on
the liest means possilde to facilitate the establishment of II voluntary industrial
wastes inventory at the Federal level.

I ttust that in responding In this manner you will not attribute to the Council
or to any of its members a lack of interest in t11. work now being earried on
within Government and In industry on the subject of pollution control. On the
other hond. In deference to 'iii r combieting the Most 'informative meeting
possible and in view of tile limited role of the Advisory Council on Federal
Reports. I bale yo); miderst ml our reasoning in respeetfully requesting that
the Advisory romwd a mIll organizat1011 he I fOni participating in your
forthcoming hearing or filing a formal statement for the record.

Beyond this general response to your invitation with respect In making a
formal prlisentation to your subcommittee and reeognizing that. ns previonsly
acknowledged. a pine] uif tho Advisory Connell on Federal itelorrts met !II 190N

I )
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nt. the request of the Bureau of the Budget and mode certain suggestions to the
Bureau nod interested Govermnent agencies on a proposed questionnaire on
industrial wastes, I will give further eonsideration to submitting to you in
itdvanee of your subcommittee's hearing certain comments or questions which
might be taken into consideration during the course of your subeoulmittee's
proopedings. Perhaps in this way, in behalf of the Advisory Council, I can be
somewhat helpful to your subcommittee as it considers the eoneept and possible
implementation of a nal Iona! inventory of industrial wastes. Meanwhile, since
you have indicated that the hearing will be opernting on a tight stlushile and you
have asked for an early response, I am giving you this general reaction to your
invitation as soon as possible.

Respect f
l'IlAILLEs W. S'rEwAirr, Chairman.

IlorSE OF M.:141E8EN TATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOVIWES SuncommirrEE

OF TOE CommrrEE oN (10:Ity St ENT OPERATIONS,
Washin(/ton, 1);( 8eptember 1H70.. .

I Ion. en AillYS W. STED'Awr,
Chairman, Ad r Moo Council on Federal Reports.
1001 Con ?art irut Amor N
Wash ington,

1 SEA ii MR. STEw.uir: Thank you for your letter of Septemin.r 4,107o, resismding
to mir invitation to you to testify on behalf of the Advisory Council on Federal
Itopiwts at our solimminittee's hearing on September I 7 voncerning a national
inventory of industrial wastes,

Your letter requests that you be "excused from partlelintting ill our hearing
"or filing a formal statement for the revord." Your letter says that you and the
members of the Council "do not int ve spevial expertise in the field of imlintion,
and more pa rtielcidarly with restiect to the colleet ion and inierpretntion of data
on industrial wastes," Your letter also suys that the Council "does mit fet,1 that in
it congressional bearing it is the proper spokesman for industry at large on the
best means possible M facilitate the establishment of a voluntary indostrinit
wastes inventory at the Federal level."

Industry will, of course, be affected by the outcome of the hearing. We
invited the Advisotr Council because it is specifically orgaulaal and "finatieed
and its members appointed" by the national business organizations listed on the
Council's stationery to advise the Budget Bureau "on simplifying anti improv-
ing Federni questionnaires, reporting procedures and latIstical programs."
Further, the (.7ottlici) has, for years, advised the Budget Bureau on the very
topic which is t he subject of our hearing.

Minutes of your Council's meetings with the Budget Bureau sitow that
Connell members representing many types of industries have dealt with this
subject in great detail. They discussed and advised on -the ntpd for, anti the
desirability of, it national industrial wastes inventory. Their discussions and
advice also dealt In considerable detail with the specific format mid questions
of the proposed questionnaire,form as well as the Use to which the data would
he put. At the Council's urging the Federal Water Quality Administration
brought up to date its rtoport on the "Cost of CleaL Water" before initiating the
inventory. The minutes indicate that those discussions reflected considerable
industry experience with various problems both of pollution control and in the
collection and interpretation of data on waste discharges. However, since the
minutes are simply summaries, we believe it would be most helpful to our sub-
committee, and to the Congress to whom we shall report our findings, ihat these
Minutes be amplified and industry's views and testimony be expressed at our
hearing through the Council.

We therefore believe it is regrettable that you and the Council decline to
participate in our hearing. We hope you will reconsider and decide to participate.
We shall welcome your views. -

We shall appreciate your early response.
Sincerely,

HENRY S. RErss, Chairman.

1(0
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ADVISORY COUNCIL ON FEDERAL REPORTS,
Washington, D.C., September 11, 1970.

Hon, HENRY S. Thwss,
Chairmiut, Conservation and Natural ResmIrres Subrommittee of the Cononittee

on Government Operations, House of Representatives, Rayburn House Office,
Building, Washington, D.C.

Dr An Mn. Cu AIRMAN In areortlalwe with the request in your letter of Septem
her 5, we hove carefully reconsidered the question as to whether the Advisory
Cotnwil on Federal Reports should partieipnte in a ',Mille hearing to lie con-
ducted by the Conservn 11071 awl NoturnI Resourees Sulwommittee of the Com-
mittee on Glivernment Operations recording n proposed nationni inventory of
Indust riot mist es.

We believe the reasons stated in niy letter of Smotember ore minclusive and
that we should not, therefore, depart from our Judgment that it is not appro-
priate for the Advisory Council on Federal Reports. which functions only os
an advisory group to the Bureau of the ihniget mid its snevessor, the Moe of
Management and Budget, IA partieipate in congressional IwnrIngs.

In our previous communleation. we suggested Ihnt it might be helpful to your
subcommittee if we were to raise informally WIND. Illlos1101IS or ismws which
bear on the proposed national Inventory of industrial wastes. In brief form. we
set them out below:

1. Federal and State programs in the pollution field operate under stnnutes
with provisions authorizing rametions and penalties, as well Os proceedings wbielt
are regnIntory and adversary III character. These programs and t heir support-
ing statutes by their very nature are compulsory: there is no element of volun-
tarism. Under flwse circumstances. Is It nuiprimrinte mot (mnsistent with estnli-
lished prinelples In this country to rei tuest. industry to simply InfuurnintIon on a
voluntary basis without a complete of:stir:Imp of eoldidentiality? (We believe
statement of this issue is not at all inconsistent with the fact that many hulus-
t ries owl I Iles fii VP OH I lid I' Own initintive undertaken rosily and exten-
sive ant ipoll union programs and will continue t o

2. Is it not true that the mwsthull of eonlidentiolity is relOVOIll. Mid significant not
only for the reason stilted in point No. 1 lint ohm bemmse certnin of the informa-
tion called for lq ni questiommire to develop On inventory a 111(111st-rho wash's
might well be of a proprietary nature in a commercial sense?

3. Does the proposal for a national inventory of industrial wastes conforlh to.
or conflict with, the express policy of the Congress enuncioted in the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act to "recognize, preserve, and protect the primary
responsibilities and rights of the States in preventing and controlling water pol-
lution'? Further, would not the undertaking of a nntional inventory of Indus-
Will wastes Involve sulostantial duplication of informatbm already available
to the Federal Government from State sonrces'or from other stotrees? If there
are statistical problems in using State data, how ean they be solved?
. 4. The pollution problem Is not only a critical one from the standpoint of pub-
lic policy, it is also very complex, and its solution requires the applWation of II
wide range of professional disciplines, This raises the question as to whether
even in respect to obtaining basic information. a broadside effort such as a na-
tionWide Federal survey to obtain an inventory of industrial wnstes is prefer-
able to breaking the priblem down into specitie eat egories of information to
be sought and interpreted. Moreover, wouldn't tlie hitter approaeli us suggested
in point 3. take advantage of information available-to or obtainable by State
authorities, which are mach closer to the sources of pollution, the facilities in-
volved and alternative corrective approaches.

5. There is widespread information in the press and in annonneements by
Federal and State agencies that they are invoking enforcement procedures and
in some cases assessing penalties as to pollution. Would it not be masonallie
to inquire into the extent to which these enforcement procedures are developing
a body of information on Industrial wastes Irrolten down in such n manner that
it is much more meaningful than would be the general across-the-board informa-
tion collected by an overall Federal questionnaire?

As mentioned above, a number of State nuthorities are already being
furnished data by affected industries and companies. Does this not raise the
serious question of undue burden and cost. in addition to duplication and the
probability that data collected at the State leyel would lie more meaningful and
more effectively tailored to the requirements of the particular State anti-pollu-
tion program.
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7. Buying in mind that many States are already collecting data on pollution
and in view of n Federal questionnaire project already waterway ns referred to
below, should.not the Conservntion and Natural Resources Subcommittee of the
Committee on Government Operations niso give consiooration to other nspects
of the pollution problem including the question of adequacy and propriety of
incentives, tax and otherwise.

III stilling these questions, some of which Os you point out were discussed
:It the 1¶His panel meeting of the Advisory Council on Federal Reports, we offer
them in the spirit of encouraging a thorough re-evaluntion of the proposal, for
a national inventory of industrial wastes. Having in tnind our previously acknowl-
edged teehnical limitations in this conqiicx field, I think it is fair to say that
with I In, exceigion Itf one question, we make no prejudgment. The question on
whieh we do hove 0 conviction, as you might anticipate, is point No. 1 above
Mat ing to confident ia thy.

If the type of questionnaire which was proposed in 191IS, or a questionnaire
similar to that document, is employed in the present context of law and enforee-
ment in the pollut ion area and in the light of proprietary situations affecting
certnin companies in terms of their planning. olwrating procedures, equipment
installation and utilization, it would be entirely out of elmracter in the American
system to expect private companies to furnish voluntarily the pollution .informa-
tion in questimI wit Illmt an absolute and complete assurance of eonlidentiality.
Moreover, nnything less than a pledge of full confidentiality would be tmaecept-
able in our judgment.

as you may know, the Federal Water Polintion 'Control Adminis-
tration proposed a survey relating to water pollution control in 1909 to be con-
diwted by the National huinstrial Conference Board under mntract with
PWPCA. A panel of the Advisory Council on Federal Reports met on July 17,
1969, in accordance with custoinary proecdures of the Bureau of the Budget to
offer comments on the proposed survey. Thesewere received, considered and the
Bureau of the Budget biter approved a survey form. Just within the last several
weeks t his data remwst has been sent to some 2,500 companies.

FWPCA-poquised qto.stionnaire ctinsidered in 196S was designed to lie
a more comprehensive survey, both as to information sought and total numixr
of plants surveyed. This latter survey. we understand, is the one under current
consideration. Two paints would seem. logleally, to be signifimint in sueh con-
sideration, First, the experience gained in the survey now being condneted by
the NICB for FWPCA will be very valuable both in designing a questionnaire
of a broader chnracter. and in tabuluting and interpreting results, if such a
broad questionnaire is actually issued. Under these cireumstances, at the mlmi-
minn. it would seem that decision on a survey of the type to which your sub-
omunittee seems; to be addressing itself should be deferred to profit from this
exin.rience. Seemidly, from statements made by FWPCA representatives at the
Advisory Council panel session on July 1 7, 1969, the 'MITA chose the technique
of contracting with the National Industrial Conference Board to make the
survey for two principal reasons: first, that the NICB is a research organization
with long-standing and broad experience in survey work, particularly surveys
affecting industry: and second, by using the technique of the NICB as the
collecting and analyzing agent with full confidentiality pledged both by it and
the nypc.t. maximum response and, therefore, better data, was virtually as-
sured. If a further survey is undertaken of the type proposed in 1908 for water
pollution. or if' another survey is omsidered desirable relating to air pollution,
the twitnique, of using an independent contractor with experienee such as the
Nat hinal Industrial Confen.nce Board might well he followed. In this connec-
tion, is it not fair to conclude that the validity of the confidentiality issue has
been coneeded by the FWPCA by its adoption of the procedure involving use of
the NICB ns a collection and interpretation agent with fUll confidentiality
a win red.

May we say in closing that although we feel obliged to adhere to the judgment
previously vommunicated to you that it is not appropriate for the Advisory
Council on Federal Reports to participate in congressional bearings, and although
we continue to feel that Our experience and knowledge with regard to this
tremendously important and complex area of pollution is limited, we have raised
the question.s above in deferenee to the committee and in the spirit of trying
to cooperate in every way appropriate in the light of the character of the
Advisory Council and its relation to the Bureau of the Budget, We have also
attempted to relate the recent development, namely the current survey being

1
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taken by NICB In behalf of FWPCA, !I) the' Objctives which you espouse and
are set forth in the Thirtieth Report. of the House Committee on Government
Operationk entitled "The Critical Need for a National Inventory on Industrial
Wastes (Water Pollution Control and Abatement)" istmed under Mite of
July:14, 19681

These' elonments are int emled to Ill' informal as distinguished from a forinal
statement. However, if y011 feel that our exchange of correspondence should be
a louri of the reeord, we wouhl, of course, hove no objection.

I regret that we cahnot be of further assistance.
Respectfully,

CHARLES NV. STEWART, Ch a Irma n

Mixt/TES OF THE ADviSolly COUNCIL OS FEDERAL HEDDRTs

This information is snpplied for pair personal adininistrotive use HS an adviser
o LID U.S. Burenn of the Budget.

Meeting : Pone! on Proposed Survey of Industrial Waste Water I figinisid.
Date and t111H. :Tuesday, August 13, liHIS, 9 ;3011.m.
Place: Conference room 10211. New Executive Office Building. 17th Street

betmpn Pennsylvania Avemw and Il Street NW., Washington, D.C.
Pmiding officers : Edward 'I'. Crowder ; Ilarohl T. Lingo rd.
Present from imlustry : A. R. Bolden, Chrysler Corp.; It(Iliert R. -Balmer, E. I.

du Pont de Nemours & Co.; George E. Best. Mannfneturing Chemists' Assoein.
tion : A. I tewey Bond, Ameriran Meat Institute ; S. 0, Brady, American Pet roWnni
I nst itute; Everett R. Call, Nal lona I Paint, Va rnish & La eq twr Associa tion ; niel
NV. Cannon, National Association of Manufacturws; ,Tanws Ainerienn
Paper Institute; Jules A. Coelos, Jr., United States Steel Corp.: Jaek Coffee,
Chamber of Comnwrce of the United States: Win. G. DeWitt, Corn Refiners Asso-
tin Lion II. .T. Dunsmore. United St at(.s Steel Cprp; Floyd 0. Flom. Americon
Paper Instil ute; P. N. Onmowlgard. Americlui Petroleum Institme; W. II
Garman, National Plant Food Institnte: Fred J. Greiner. Milk Industry Founda-
tion; Ilnrry E. Korab, Nntionnl Soft Drink Association ; Fred Mewhinney.31illers'
National Foundation St(phen Palmer, Nationni Associat ion Frozen rigid Pack-
ers: Austin Rhoads, Notional Canners Association ; Harry E. Ibibbins. 3innnfac.
turing Chemists' Associatimi; J. H. Rook, Mnnufartoring Chemists' Associntion
Robert II. Shields, U.S. Beet Sugar Association ; Robert W. Smith. Ford Motor
Co.; G. Don Sullivan, American Mining Congress ; DeVaramn Wallnee. tlw
Youngstown Sheet & Tube Co.; Clmrles E.' Welch, Ma nnfficturing Chemists'
ASSOrillt1011.

from Government; A. L. Alin, Bureau of the Budget ; E. T. Crowder.
Bureau of tlw Budget II. T. Lingard, Bureau of the Budget ; Bregnian,
DepnrIment of the Interior; Peter (1, Kuli, Department. of the Interior; W. A.
Smith, I)Tiirtmelit of the interior: James II. NleDerrnott, FWPC, Department'
of t lw Interior ; Joe G. Moore, Jr., FWPC, Department of Ow Interior ; Jesse L.
TA.wis, VW PC, Department of the Interior ; Jodie Seheiher. House Natn
Rsourc s & Power Sulwommittee K. L. Kollar, BDSA, Demirtment of Com-
merce; L. .T. Own, Bureau of Census, Deportment of Commerce; 0. C. Gret ton,
Bureau of Census. Demi rtment of Commerce.

Mr. C'rowder as Chairman introdueed official: present from th- Governmen1
agencies mud then asked others pre,:ent to introduce thems!'lve,, t T.. briefly
explained the functions of the Ad viSory Cminci! ii Pedera' 7!,,1nr1 which spoil.
sored the meeting and the procedures to be followigl. Mr. lirezman. J Nmnty As-
sistant Secretary for Water Pollution Control, Department of I:1e
opened the diseieion with a brief statemnt on the results of a meet Mg of r-p
resentatives of inlerested Government agencies held in late:1111y. then turiiel
the discussion over to Mr. McDermott, a mentioer of the Pederal Water Po!Iii-
Hon Control Administration staff.

Mr. McDermott reviewed the history of the proimsed survey back to 1964 when
an early version of it was first submitted to the Bureau of the Budget for ap-
proval which highlighted data needs associated with lmsin Idarfning. Ile empha-
sized the needs of both the Federal it ml State GovernnwiiIi- fer the Mill. Ile
pointed out thnt, in addition to basin planning. subsequent l'ederal legislation

ith respect to water quality standards reemphasizes the need for specific point-
by-point data covering -Industrial wastewater disposal practices and costs. Sev-
eral recent reports required by Congress have also served to identify areas where
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data are lacking. Vim form, he sob], has been discussed with other Federal
agencies and- State governments. liaised on Gies( dkwasslons it has lanoi slat pli-
ned. The form requests the kind of data needed by both Federal and State Gov-
ernments, and it also makes it possible for industry lo report what it has (hale
to control pollation.

Mr. Moore, Commissioner of the Federal Water pollution Control Administra-
tion, staled that the need for adequate and accurate data is twooauing more
and more OPEL to. There is a need to know what tiw cost of pollution control is
going to be in order to permit intelligent planning. industry already is probably
spending more Omit is known, Mr. Moore noted a preferi.nre for a fsomeralivtk
approach rather than a am miatory legislative approaelt in order to Identify in-
dustrial pollution control progress and to ).atisfy the data needs of Stale and
Federal water laillution control agencies.

Preliminary -to an technical discussion of the form. panel members were in-
vited to raise any major Issues affecting the survey. Discussion) at this poi»t
()entered largely around: the need of the Federal Government for the data ; the
procedure for conducting the Rory oky ; and the istillP Of emithlenthility.

Panel members questioned the proposNi use of the data, stating that tiw Fed-
eral Water Pollution Control Art grants authority to the Federal Government
to establish water quality stamia rds only if the States fail to net. They also
made the point that, for establishing water quality standards. infoirmation on
actual discharges and waste loads ia not necessary. On the other hand, if the Fed-
eral Government needed to act, a more minprehen4ive survey than tio one prot-
posed would be necessary.

Smile lint ustry representatiM had misgivings about the need for the data in
view of the cost of providing thm. One suggestion was that the FWPCA report'
"Cost of Clean Water" be brought up to date. This report was based on profile
studies prepared by contraet consultants .knowledgenide a bout tollut ion control
efforts In specific industries. It was also suggested that there la' it (I'll/if 501114'
type so as to relieve some plants of reporting.

As to the proposed method of conducting the survey, it was argued that, sinee
the MPG Act Is quite specific in defining the role of the Slates in water pollu-
tion control, FWPCA should seek the data it needs from State agencies: firsl. Iii
State::i where the data are not available, the prottosed survey could ink um& to
obtain them. A number of industry representatives felt that thls was the more
logical way to promed. Many are already rootorting to the States, fled the Poql-
eral survey would in many instances result in duplicate reporting. It was sug-
gested that this procedure also would be helpful to FWPCA when jildLring $lt a to.
standards and to the Sta tes in developing their mobilities. Also, it was an id
that $one States have Indicated that the data to be collected in the Federal sur-
vey,wouldn't be of touch use to them.

Mr. lloore said tint he has met with 35 or 40 of the State ageneies and found
a wide variation in their statutes. procedures, and oatnibilitim lit view of this
situation, there is a real question whether or not the Sta tes eon develop uni-
form retiorting Wise. Many Stales are collecting data, but because of differero.es
in what is happening in each State, there is a wide varia that In t type of data
available. Adequate and strewn(' data are vital to the development of standards.
and in some eases State data lmve been questioned ati to accaracy. Also, some of
the larger coalmines would have to make separate reports to many Slates in hen
of one report to FWPCA f rom the central office. However. loWPCA said that they
have not done all they can lo Make full use of the Slate agencies, and they plat:
to work closer with the Stales and use their capabilities wherever feasible.
working through PWPCA regional offices.

Representatives of several industries stated that their trade associations have
made or are making similar surveys. Generally, these organizations got good co-
operation because tiwy pledged confidentiality. For this reason, they would not
be able to turn company data over to FWPCA, but they would be willing to
discuss with them their pmcedures and the problems encountered. They are
afraid that response to the proposed form will not be adequate to summarize.
FWPCA said that they had looked into the possibility of using trade association
data, but found that they lacked adequate comparability.

A major topic of discussion was the matter of confidentiality. As now proposed,
response to the survey is voluntary, but there is no promise that the data will be
treated as eontidential. Under these circumstances,' industry believes that re-
sponse will be limited and the data therefore misleading. It is their opinion that
there Is little need for disclosure of data except between the FWPCA and State
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water pollution control agencies. Furthermore, data supplied on a voluntary
basis should not serve as a basis for legal action against any plant.

Industry (foes not like to report effluents without some Indication of the effect
they will have. because the location of the discharge can make a difference.
There 18 always pressure from the public to release Federal data, and the coin-
im nies are afraid that the data may get into the hands et neWs media. They feel
that inthistry would have to assume that the data will be used against them and
even be nsed in court. This would force industry to refuse to cooperate. Reference
was made to the procedures used by the Public Health Service whey collecting
air pollution data. It pledges confidentiality except under certain circumstances.
FWPCA might follow a similar procedure.

Spokesmen for FWPCA said that they understood industry's concern about
eonfidentiality. It is not intended that the data be used for enforcement against
individual ecimpanies. However, the data are needed for the ofileial records 017
enforcement conferences if the actions of the conferences are to be legally sus-
tainable. In 11Mt1 amendments to the 111%*PC Act require that upon 0 1 qtroval of a
majority of State and Federal conferees at an enforeement conference, data
must be supplied for this purpose, Companies need not report any trade seerets.
Water qualit y is not something that is easily hidden, and if necessary FWPCA
(-mild dwelt on the dIseharges themselves. They agreed to reconsider the confi-
dentiality aspects of the survey.

A representative of the Bureau of the Census briefly described plans for a 1965
survey of water use in manufacturing and niineral industries which will request
some infimuntion in addition to that obtained hi previous surveys of the same
type. The eensits data will be lit broader aggregates than in the limit( ised FWPCA
$urvey and 'not too relevant 10 It.

The waste water disposal form was reviewed item by item. VWFCA said that
they had tried to make the form as consistent with census eoncepts us poiedble.
The form calls only for data that may be available and does not require any
special studies to provide them. It is their belief that the data are available,
although the aceuriley may vary f rom eompa ny to company. If a plant is dis-
eharging into a sewer. It is not necessary to report the information In sections
III and IV unless the con wally prefers to do so.

Qliestions were raised as to the need for data on number of employees and
I 11'0(11101m I ndustry generally VI insiders such information confidential, portico-
hirly if it is to be reqnested for more than 1 year. Also, they claim it is bard to
interpret been use of va ri a tions io operations between emnpunies and Aunts. These
data are used to project the magnitude of poi 1 n don hosed on the relationship of
pollution to employment and output. It was remounended that eheck boxes be
providN1 for various ranges of number of employees,

lit etainvetion with item 9tu of section II, it was pointed out that there may be
charges other than service charges. For item 10 it was suggested that tempera-
tures be obti tined both upstream and downstream to adequately judge the effect
of the disiha rge. Slam' referenee to Il.t.n.'s might be helpful. Also there is need for
SI PIM' imlleat ion of the tittle period to which the data relate.

A number of questions were raised about seetion III. FWPCA explained that
item II requests data back to 19 IS1because this period generally covers the life
of a plant and bemuse that was the year of the first Federal pollution control

w. One Industry representative said that he doubted whether this section would
be completed by many companies. For his Industry, however, this information
ean be obtained front a trade association. Some felt that answers to item 12
wonhl not be very meaningful becanse of the variations between Industries and
even between plants. Furthermore, hook accounts usually do not record this in-
formation separately. Consequently, there is need for better instructions. It was
suggested that FWPCA ebeek with individual industries about this item. Some
were critical of item 13 for covering too long a period. FWIN!A pointed out that
the law calls for data for this period. One suggestion was that the data la. re-
quested for 5 years lint not by years. FWPCA again said that companies need
report only data that are available.

At the end of the meeting panel members on invitation summarized their views
and spokesmen for Interior indicated their desire to review their plans care-
fully in the light of the discussion.

-The meeting adjourned at 1 :35 p.m.
Certification : I certify that these minutes are correct :

EDWARD T. CROVER.
Office of Statistical Standards.

Bureau of the Budget.
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ADVISORY COUNCIL ON FEDERAL REPORTS,
Washington, D.C., Nay 22, 1964.

Subject: IndustryBudget Bureau advisory meeting on proposed U.S. Public
Health Service Survey of Industrial Waste Water Disposal,

Attention The Advisory Council hus just received the attached letter from the
U.S. Budget Bureau. Therefore, a Meeting will lie held as follows: Tuesday,
;lune 9, BM, 9:30 A.M..Executive Office Building, 17th and Pennsylvania
Aveve, NW., Washington, D.C.

In vicw of the wide interest in the polIntion control probkm, this hd ter is being
sent to about 40 trade association executivs, several company officials and, of
cours, ACFR committee chairmen known to be concerned. While it is appropriate
to inform so many, the number attending the advisory meeting on June 9 must be
limited for practical purposes. Included in this mailing are the associations on the
roster of the National '.I'echnical Task Committee on Industrial 'Wastes which
were consulted by the Piddle Health Service last summer.

Enclosd is n copy of the proposed questionnaire and supporting statement.
Tlwse are the 'milers that will he discussed on June 9.

Please try th let me know by June 1 if you wish to -attend or be represnted at
tlw June 9 nnwling. I mil at tent ion to the limiget Bureau's th'sin, li Imve the
meeting at tended iirintikrily by compony (diktats as the purpose of the meeting
will be to hlentily :Hut Seek spotlit hms to repelling, 'problems. Let me lmve the
impost of those who you wish to attnd in ordr Mot the Counell no Midget
I in ma u may shwt and notify a representative panel. .

Sincerely yours,
Russw. Sc it NEWER,

Exceu t ice Secetay.

ExcurrtvE Ourwt: Tut: Par:storm.,
Itricrm, or Tit Ituismr,

Washington, .11a y 22, 196'i.
r, Iti-ssm.I. SCHNEIDER,

111 run cc Scrrelary. Advisory Council on For/coil Bcports,
1001 Connecticut Avenue NW., Waultington, D.C.

DEA ii Nlo. SelINrnirat: Th Burp.au of the fludget has loyn rewiested by the
Health Servley to approve, under thy Ieoderal Reports Avt, of 1942,

a survy 4.1- hnlustrin I waste water disposal for the purimse of eon; piling a nation-
wide Invent ory or Indust Hal wast e t E1III IIiPl I. prael bps.

Please nide thnt Iii I hP "Snpport ing gin tement for the Clearance of Report of
Industrial Water Itisposal prepored by lIu I %S. Public Health Service
and transferred lo y011 011 May 19. t hP point k nunb t lint ii considerable number
Of trade a ssoviations. whim advised or ow ,uvernment's interest in compiling
an invent I ory of Indust wuste practices. (offered their cooperat ion NO rould not
speak for their indiviihml member companies nor commit the companlys to di-
vukfe waste rge data.

In viyw of this it 1114.0111PS part ienlarly imporlani t hat. at the meeting you re-
quest or I he num, U rf I Billigt II) afford industry a n opportunity to comment
on Illy U.S. ['Mille Ilealth Service iroposol, ii prepomiern nye of industry repre-
sent:Ilion I ehosen f man actual respondnts to be (*livered In the survey. As Cus-
tomary we should like to obtain. t limugh the Advisory l'ouneil on Federal Re-
ports, industry emollients 011 114 ° reporting burden and Mated. teehnleal aspects
of the priumisol survey. W stimuli] Ince lo 1111%1. 1hP meet ing scheduled for .1 line 9.

Sineerdy yours.
Al.ExANDER (1,13.,

Ogler of Statistical Standards.

STATEN1ENT roll THE CLEARANCE or ItEORT 01, 1NDUSTRIAL WASTE
WATtat Dismwm.

A. 3 t's.rwnwrio* OP FORM IN ITS lEI.XEJ')NIO OPERATINC PROORAM

The rquest for clear:1m. of this form is a result Id an investigathm into the
;problms (If water thdlutIon in this country by the Na t urul lksourees and Cnver
Subcommittee of the House Committee on Government Operations, Congressman
Itollert K Jones, chni rinan.

c
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Hearings were begun by the slibcommittee in May 1903, and are continuing up
to the present time. One or the witnesses from the Public Health Service pre-
sented testimony regarding a provision ill Public Law 000, the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, covering tbe collection and dissemination of bask. data
Pertinent to water pollution control. He stated that information concerning munic.
Ipal waste treatment facilities is obtained on a routine basis from the State
water 1541111ton amtrol agencies. but pointed out that Inform t ion ahont t he dis-
charge of industrial waste to the Nation's waters has been difficult and in many
east's inqmssIble to obtain. As a result of the sparse information 00 tlw extent
of pollution from industrial waste, my attempt to evaluate the overall water
pollution situatimi in the United Slates Is, at best, very unsa tisfaetory.

Subsmuent testimony from ripresenlittives of a nundwr of M(11151010 trade as-
sociations on June 4 and 5, 1903, revealed that many industries would cooperate
with the Department of Healthy, Education, and Welfare in compiling an inYen-
tory of industrial waste treatment praetices and discharge points. In a letter to
the Secretary of Health, Eduration, and Welfare, Congressman Jones requested
that the Department initiate conversations with these industries for the purpose
of making cooperative arrangements to compile such inventories.

A letter was sent to those trade associations whicli were represented at the
hearings, asking that their menibi.r eompanies be advised of Congressman Jones'
Interest and requesting their eooperation. A similar invitation to cooperate in
compiling an inventory of waste treatment practices was extended also to the
30 trade associations comprising tlw mionbershlp of the Nalional Tedinleal Task
Comtnittee on Indust rial Wastes.

Responses from the trade associations indicated a willingness to advise all
of the member companies of the committee's interest, and in general offered their
cooperation insofar as they were able. It was recognized that the trade associa.
dons could ilot speak for their individual member companies or commit them to
divulge Industrial waste discharge data. Several Meetings wtwe held between
trade association representatives and representatives of the Division of Water
Supply and Pollution Control to discuss the implications of a national inventory
of industrial waste practices.

B. :JUSTIFICATION OF METHOD USED FOB CONTACTING INDUSTRY

The proposed method of securing the required information is as follows:
The Public Health Service would operate in its usual manner through each
State water pollution' control agency ; this inventory would thus lawome an
integral part of the State water pollution control operation.

Copies of the form would be sent to each State agency with the request that
where the State itself did not have all information needed. the forms be mailed
by the State to each Industrial plant discharging wastes to surface waters. The
plant would be requested to complete the form and mail it back to the State
agency. At that point, the State agency would add any supplementing information
from its own files to that itrovided by the plant, and make a ny statements it
found possible about the adequacy of treatment provided. After all forms had
been received, the State agency mould forward them to the Public .Health
Service for processing and preparation of summary evaluatiom.:.

Information requested on the form would be provided by each industrial plant.
Volumes of flow and analyses of wastes requested would he secured by the plant
if not already available from its files. The degree of completeness of this indus-
trial waste inventory would depend largely on what information is available
in the State files and on the willingness of each plant to acquire and furnish
missing information. The form was drawn up after careful discussion in division
headquarters in Washington and with the nine Public Health Service regional
offices.

C. DESCRIPTION OF PLANS FOR OMLECTION, TABULATION, AND PCMICATION

It is believed that the actual collection of the data for this inventory would
require from 12 to 18 months after the activity bad received formal clearance.

'During this time the following steps would be taken :
(1) Mailing of the forms to each State agency ;
(2) Remailing by the agency to each industrial plant for which the State

does not already have full information;
(3) Completion of the form and return to the State by the plant. Includ-

ing making of the necessary quality measurements;
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(4) Followup, including field visits, by State personnel where there is,
indication that the mall questionnaire approach needs supplementary
attention;

( 5) ReviKv and individual (-filament by each State agency :
(6) Return of forms by the States to the PUS regional offices for field

review; and
(7) Forwarding to Washington headquarters for proeessing. , .

Individual selective printouts and analyses of the data will be prdvided
to organizational elements Within the Division of Water Sapply and Pollution
Control as necessarY and to other a'gencies for -program operational purposes
in connection with comprehensive ptojects for water resource planning, tech- /
nical ,assistance, and enforcement activities. ,

D. DOCUMENTATION OF CONSULTATION WITH OTHERS INVOLVED

Preparations for yimplementing the industrial waste inventory included the
design of a sample form which was sent to the Public Health Service regional
offices and the State water pollution control agencies for their comments on
content and format. Suggestions for modifications were incorporated in a revised
form (the form now Anton-I-Red for clearanee) and that form was sent to each
State water pollution control agency for discussion purposes. Each State agency
was asked to comment on the final format and to express its willingness and
capability to administer the inventory in the manner described in paragraph B .
above. A siunmary of State acmptance shows that 41 States expressed it will-
ingness to cooperate, including 32 States who indicated d desire to modify the
form further in various minor ways. Eight States indicated that they were
unable to cooperate extensively because of limitations of State budgets or
sonneL No resphnse was received from one State (Hawaii). Some of the 41
willing States indicated a need for direct assistance from the Public Health
Service in the frm of asslIned personnel to enable them to assume thest addi-
tional tasks. So e States agreed to make limited followups by mail; seveFal felt
they would want to send their own personnel out to assist industrial plant manag-
.ers acquire the necessary facts.

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE BRESIDEN FFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
N.,.

UTILIZATION OF ADVISORY COMMTMVeISCAL YEAR 1970

Executive Order No. 11007, section 10(a), provides that "each department
and agency utilizing advisory committees shall publish in its annual report, or
otherwise publish annually, a list of such committees, including the names and
afliliations of their members, a description of the function of each committee
and a statement of the dates of its meetings." The Office of -Management and
Budget does not publish an annual report, and the following information is
provided relating to the utilization of advisory committees in lien thoreof. The
period covered is July 1, 1900,-to June 30, 1970.

CO M MITTEES A ND SUBCOMMITTEES

Name of conimittee or subcommittee:
American Statistical Association Advisory Committee on Statistical Policy.

Names and affiliat ions of members:
Ralph .T. Watkins, Survey and Research Corp. (chairman ).
Leon:Ill C. Anderson. Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis.
'1% A. Bancroft, Iowa State University,
Daniel H. Brill, Commercial Credit Corp,
Jerome Cornfield. Federation of American Societies for Experimental Biology.`-
.Tohn T. Folger. Tennessee Commission on Higher Education.
Martin R. Gainsbrugh, National Industrial Conference Board,
Douglas Greenwald, MeGraw-Hill Publications.
Morris H. Hansen. Westat Research, Inc.
Philip M. Hauser. University of Chicago.
isador Lubin. Twentieth Century Fund.
Alma rin Phillips. University of Pennsylvania.
Richard Ruggles. Tale University.
Elegnor B. Sheldon. Russell Sage Foundation.
Willard L. Thorp. Amherst CoPege.
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Pane/ion:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget, and through it the Federal

statistical sYNtelll, in I nuu1 mil tees of public policy In the statistical area.
bates of meetings: October 1960.

Name of eommitlw or subcommittee: Labor A dvisi ivy Conimitt ye on Statistics.

Names and afflillotions of members:
Mr. Rudolph S, Oswald. AFL-( IO (elm Irma ).
Mr. Otis Brubaker. United Stettl Wi irkers of A nwrico.
Mr. George Ciwich. Railway Employees' Delmrtment. A FL-C10.
Mr, Donald D. Danielson, United Bnitlterlonsi or Carpenters and JOhlers of

America.
Mr. Ronny G. Fisher. United Rubber. Cork. Linoleum and Plastic Workers of

America.
Mr. Walter 0. Froh, United Federation .of Plistal Clerks.
Mr. Nat Goldthiger. AFIJ-CIO.
Mr. Reese Hammond, International Union of Operating Engineers,
Mr. Thomas Hannigan. I Myrna tlia1111 lirotlierins al of Electrkal Workers.
Mr. Vernon Jirikowic, International Association of Machinists.
Mr. Lawrence Kenney, Washington State Labor Council.
Mr. Stephen Koczak, American Federation of Government Employees.
Mr. William 0. Kuhl, International Brotherhood of Boilermakers, Iron Ship.

builders, Blacksmiths, Forgers& Helpers,
Mr. Joseph Madison, Transport Workers Union of America.
Miss Vera Miller, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America.
Mr. Abraham Merganstern, Intermt tonal Union of Electrical, Radio & Machine

Workers.
Mr. George Perkel. Textile Workers Union of Anterka.
Mr. Ralph D. Scott, International Printing Pressmen & Assistants' Union

of North America.
Mr. Boris Shishkin, AFL-CIO Housing Committee.
Mr. Eugene Spector, National Maritime Union of America.
Mr. Chic St. Croix, Oil; Chemical & Atomic Workers International Union.
Mr. Lazare Teper. International Ladles' Garment Workers' Union. ,

Mr, Donald S. Wasserman, American Federation of Mate, County & Munic-
ipal Employees.

-
Function:

To advise the Office of Management and Budget on the Federal statistical
program by apprpising the collection and analysis of statistical data by goy.
ernmental agencies and identifying deficiencies in the statistical program.
Dates of ineettrigs: May 1970.

Nome of commitirc or subcommittee: Advisory Connell on Federal Reports
Names and affiliations of members:

Charles W. Stewart. Machinery & Allied Products Institute (Cha Irma n
Leo V. Bodine, National Association of Manufacturers
T. M. Brennan. Brennan & Val lone
Burton N. Belding, Association of American Railroads
A. Arthur Cbarons, Sears, Roepuck & Co, /
Walter Conner, Federated Department Stores. Inc
William E. Dunn, Associated General Coatractors of America
:Minos G. Ellis. Automobile Manufacturers Association

TT. Finigan, the National Cash Register Co.
E. W. Gaynor. Chrysler Corp. /
Benjamin F. Tfolcomb. United States Steel Corp.
Wayne E. Kuhn. Om a rk Industries. Inc.
John E. Lewis, National Small Pusiziess Association. ,

Carl H. Madden, Chamber of Commerce hi' the United States.
:Toseph F..Miller, National Electrical Manufacturers Assocition.
Robert IT. North, International Associa tion of Ice Cream Manufacturers.



Dania W. Potrer, Raymond Engineering, Inc.
Robert S. Quig, Ebasco Servces Inc.
James J. Rutherford, Gillen Industries, Inc.
William II. Shaw, E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc.
James NV. Shields, Judd and Detweiler, Inc.
Robert H. Stewart, Jr., Gulf Oil Corporation.
T. E. Veltfort, Copper & Brass Fabricators Council, Inc.
Vineetit T. Wasilewski, National Association of Broadcasters.
N. It. Wenrieh, Merck & Company, Inc.
Donald F. White, American Retail Federation.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on simplifying and improving

Federal questionnaires, reporting, recordkeeping requirements and statistical
programs ; and to organize committees and panels for utilization by the Office as
may IIP requested.
Dates of meetings:

t moiler 22. 1909.
May 14. 1970.

Name of 'committee or subcommittee: Committee on Air Transportation.
Names and affiliations of members:

John A. Paine, Pan American World Airways, Inc. (Chairman).
G. R. Harms. United Air Lines, In&
Gmrge James. Mr Transport Association of America.
Walter F. Johnston, Airport Mail Facility.
Lionel M. Rogers, American Airlines, Inc.
Walter J. ShortAllegheny Airlines. Inc.
Harry B. Sheftel, Office of Management and Budget.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget with regard to opportunities

for paperwork reduction in reporting and recordkeeping requirements of Federal
agmiies and on any opportunities to effect improvements in the accuracy and
usefulness of Federal Atatistics.

Dates of meetings: No meetings were held in fiscal year 1970.

Name of connnittee or subeomntittee: Committee on Banking.
Names and affiliations of mcmbera:

Thomas R. Atkinson, the American Bankers Association.
CIL Baumhefner, Bank of Ameriea.
Frank Forester, Jr.. Morgan Guaranty Trust Co.
Denton A. Fuller, Liberty Trust Co.
Franklin A. Gibbons, Jr., the Riggs National Bank.
William T. Heffelfinger, American Bankers Association.
David T. Hulett, Office of Management & Budget.
Saul B. Ma man, National Association of Mutual Savings Banks.
WPstlNy TAndlow, Irving Trust Co..
A rtlmr Ringlr. Chemical Bank New York Trnst Co.
Edward T. Shipley, Waehovia Bank & Trust Co.
Paul L. Sin it IL Security First Nathmal Bank.
Walter F. Thomas, Manufaeturers Hanover Trust Co.

Funetion:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on Federal reporting and

record retention requirements for the purpose of reducing the Imrden imposed
upon the banking Industry and to improve statistical and other informtion to
be colleeted by Fetb.ral a amides.
flutes of meetings: October 9, 1909.
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Name of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Chemicals.
Names and affiliations of members:

N. R. Wenrieh, Merck & Co., Inc. (chairman ).
Marjorie V. Campbell, Manufacturing Chemists' Association.
Dr. Jack D. Early, Monsanto Co.
George K. Graeber, Union Carbide Corp.
Dr. Ai mison Jonna rd, Esso Chemical Co., Inc.
Harold T. Lingard, Office of Management & Budget.
Lewis E. Lloyd. the Dow Chemical Co.
John J. O'Donnell, Allied Chemical Corp.
H. W. Powers, American Cyanamid Co.
Dr. S. C. Turnbull, Jr., E. I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc.
Edgar H. Vent, Jr., Celanese Chemical Co.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Bnflget in regard to opportunities to

reduce the paperwork burden on industry resulting from the reporting and
record keeping reqniremcats of the Federal agencies, and to make reeommenda-
Bons to improve the accuracy and usefulness of Federal statistics.
Dates of meetings: April 20, 1970.

Name of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Communica tions Industry.
Names and affiliations of members:

Frank U. Fletcher, Fletcher, Ileald, Rowell, Kenehan & Hildreth (Chairman).
Arthur W. Arundel, WAVA.
Joseph E. Baudino, Westinghouse Broadcating Co., Ine.
Alfred Beekman, American Broadcasting Co.
Wally Briscoe, National Cable Television Association, Inc.
Robert Cochrane, TV Station WMAR-TV.
Harold J. Cohen, American Telephone & Telegraph Co.
Joseph DeFranco, Columbia Broadcasting System.
George j. Gray, AVCO Broadcasting Corp.
Bruce E. Lovett, American Televion & Communications Corp.
Howard Monderer, National Broadcasting Co.
Roger Neuhoff, Eastern Broadcasting Corp.
Roger B. Read, Taft Broadcasting Co.
Harry B. Sheftel, Office of Management and Budget.
Tohn Summers, National Association of Broadcasters.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on reporting procedures, mainly

Federal Communications Commission questionnaires, directed to the communica-
tions industry including radio and television stations and cable television com-
panies, and to make recommendations towards the simplification, consolidation
and improvement of such reporting.

Dates of meetings:None in fiscal year 1970.

Nome of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Equal Employment Oppor-
tunity Surveys.

Names and affiliations of members:
W. L. Barnes, North American Aviation, Inc.
Joseph E. Bandino, Westinghouse Broadcasting Co.
Harry S. Benjamin, Jr., General Motors Corp.
Charles G. Caffrey, American Textile Manufacturing Institute.
David D. Doughty, Air Transport Association.
Paul M. Haskins, Health Insurance Association of America.
W. R. Hill, Jr., Public Service Electric & Gas Co.
Arthur F. Hintze, Associated General Contractors.
Alfred E. Langenbach, First National Bank of Chicago.
Roye L. Lowry, Office of Management and Budget.
S. W. Mahon, Westinghouse Electric Corp.
Donn H. Marston, Machinery & Allied Products Institute.
Lambert H. Miller. National Association of Manufacturers.



109

Charles F. Mulligan, Eastman Kodak Co.
Eugene F. Rowan, J. C. Penney Company, Inc.
Melvin Sandler, American Hotel & Motel Association.
S. W. Seeman, Penn Central Co.
Mrs. Jean Slsco, Woodward & Lothrop.
Robert H. Stewart, Jr., Gulf Oil Corp.
N. R. Wenrich, Merck & Company, Inc.
1)on White, American Retail Federation.

Function:
To advise the Offiee of Management and Budget on problems which will arise

in connection with equal employment opportunity reporting and record keeping
requirements and special surveys, and to make recominendations as to ways of
avoiding or minimizing such problems.
Dates of meetings: None in fiscal year 1970.
Name of committee or subromm Wee: Committee on Fats and Oils.

MeR and affiliations of member":
T. J. Totushek, Cargill, Inc. (Chairman ).
Chn ries II. Bergstrom, Anderson, Clayton & Co., Inc.
Arval L. Erikson, Oscar Mayer & Co.
Herlwrt Harris, National By-Products, Inc.
Martin Hilby, Riverside Industries.
C. H. Keirstead, The Glidden Co.
Harold V. Knight, Lever Brothers Co.
Harry H. Kriegel, J. Howard Smith, Inc.
Harold T. LIngard, Office of Management and Budget.
R. E. Miller, Procter and Gamble Co.
J. W. Moore, A. E. Staley Manufacturing Co.
Maleolm R. Stephens. Institute of Shortening & Edible OBS, Inc.
Boardman Veazie, Swift and Co.
i ham hi B. \Volker, RalstonrPurina.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget concerning opportunities to

reduee the paperwork burden Imposed upon establishments engaged in the pro-
duction. proeessing and consumption of oils, and

To advise the Office on ways to improve Federal statistical programs to better
serve the needs of Government and industry users of Federal staustics.
Dates of meetings: None in fiscal year 1970.

Name of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Industrial Classification.
Names and affiliations of »wmbers:

Riehard R. McNabb, Machinery & Allied Products Institute (chairman ).
John Aiken. Federal Statistics Users' Conference.
Burton N. Behling. Association of American Railroads.
Edward Bloom, Sun Oil Co.
A. Arthur Charous, Sears, Roebuck & Co.
Robert T. DeVany, National Industrial Council.
Robert Eggert. RCA Corp.
William H. Flnigan, the National Cash Register Co.
Martin Gninsbrugh. National Industria 1 Conference Board.
B. F. Holcomb, United States Steel Corp.
Pa ul F. Krueger, Office of Management & Budget.
Carl II. Madden, Chamber of Commerce of the United States.
Albert G. Matamoros, Armstrong Cork Co.
A. J. Nesti. National Electrical Manufacturers Association.
Milo 0. Peterson, Office of Management & Budget.
Arthur Schmuhl, Associated General Contractors of America.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget and the Technical Committee

on Industrial Classification on matters relating b the review of the Standard
Industrial Classification.
Dates a meetings: June 9, 1970.

51 -539-70------5
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Name of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Meat Packing.
Names and affiliations of members:

A. C. Bruner, East TennesSee Packing Co.
I toward Dexter, the Rath Packing Co.
Earl R. Frank, the E. Kahn's Sons Co.
E. A. Holloway, Cudahy Co.
Robert B. Hunter, Tobin Packing Co., Inc.
J. Russell Ives, American Meat Institute.
J. W. Kelly, Armour & Co.
J. B. Kilgore, Wilson & Co., Inc.
L. J. Kurkowski, John Morrell & Co.
L. Blaine Liljenquist, Western States Meat Packers Association.
Harold T. Lingard, Office of Management and Budget.
John Mollay, the National Independent Meat Packers Association.
Leonard II. Pedersen, Oscar Mayer & Co., Inc.
Robert F. Potach, George A. Hormel & Co.
James W. Seifert, the Wm. Schluderberg-T. J. Kurdie Co.
Jack It. Sulliva n. Stark Wetzel & Co., Inc.
W. G. Torrace, Hygrade Food Products Corp.

Function
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on reporting, statistical, and

record keepi ng problems arising from the requirements which Federal agencies
prolutse for issuance to the meatpacking industry, and to assist the Office in
developing needed statistical programs relating to the industry.

Dates of meetings: None in fiscal pear 1970.

Name of committee or subcommittee:Committee on Natural Gas Pipelines.
Names and affiliations of members:

B. II. Ilaseuberg, Natural Gas Pipeline Co. of America (chairman).
W. Page Anderson, Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Co.
Daniel L. Bell, Jr., Columbia Gas System Service Corp.
I. D. Bufkin, Texas Eastern Transmission Corp.
Robert L. Cramer, Florida Gas Transmission Co.
J. D. MeCa rty. United Gas Pipe Line Co.
Harry A. Mitt. Consolidated Gas Supply Corp.
C. W. Radda. Northern' Na tural Gas Co.
Walter E. Rogers. Independent Natural Gas Association of America.
Harry B. Sheftel. Office of yanagement and Budget.
Robert H. Stewa rtTr.. Gulf Oil Corp.
Lloyd M. Varenkamp. El Paso Natural Gas Co.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on report forms and related

recordkeeping requirements issued by Federal agencies to companies in the
rattural gas pipeline tleld in order to improve such forms and to make recom-
mendations to simplify reporting requirements and reduce the burden of
reporting.
Dates of meetings

December 4. 1969.
December 1Ft. 1909.
January 0. 1970.
February 2. 1970.
February 14, 1970.

Name of comm Wm or subcommittee:
Committee on Petroleum and Natural Gas.

Names and affiliations of members
Robert H. Stewart. Jr.. Gulf Oil Corp. (chairman).
A. J. Bradford. Tt-xaeo. Inc.
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C. J. Carlton, Standard Oil Co. of California.
James S. Cross, Sun Oil Co.
E. Wilson Fry, Atlantic Richfiehl.
E. II. Hanenberg. Natural Gus Pipeline Co. of America.
Edward R. Heydiner. Marathon Oil Co.
John E. Hodges. American Petroleum Institute.
0. B. MeGillibray. Mobil Oil Corp.
Harold T. Linga rd. Office of Management and Budget.
Melvin L. Mesmt rd. Independent Petroleum Association of America.
Carl E. Richard. Ilnmble Oil and Refining Co.
Frank Young, Continental Oil Co.

Function:
To advise the Oiliep of Management and Budget on report forms relating to

the petroleum and not mai gas producing and processing industries ; to reduce
the burden imposed upon these industries as a result of Federal reporting and
recordheeping requirements; and to advi:le the Office of Management and Budget
in conneetion with opportunities to improve Federal statistical programs to
serve t he !weds of Intth government and industry.
Itates of ni eel infix: None in fiscal year MO.

New of Committee or subcommittee: Committee on Public UtilitiesCoordinat-
ing Committee.

Names end affiliations of members:
Ri ibert S. Quig. Elitism Services Ine. ( (Ihairman).
Miles .1. !)4 ian. Th Cincinmt ti Gas & Electric Co.
0. II: McDaniel, Amerkan Eleetric Power Service Corp.
Iarry B. Sheffel. I Hiles, of Mamgement and Budget.

John Thornborrow, Edison Electric Institute.
Function:

To advise the Office of Management and Budget and to coordinate, as may be
desirable. tbe wtork of the Connuitt ocx on Financial Reports flnd Operating
Reports to better serve the purposes of the Advisory Council on Federal Reports
and the needs of the Office and the gas and electric utilities industries ; also to
assist in the selection of special advisory panels qualified to advise the Office
on any reporting forms and plans concerning which the two committees would
not be adequately qualified to advise the Office.
Mfrs of meetings:

November 1 11. MOW
DINT110)(4* 7i. 1909.

Name of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Public UtilitiesFinanclal
Reports.

Names alutaffiliations of members:
Robert S. Quig, Ebasco Services Inc. (Chairman).
C. M. Allen, Panhandle Eastern Pipeline Co.
A. J. Brodtman, New Orleans Public Service Co.
Miles J. Doan, The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Co.
Robert R. Fortune, Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.
Arthur E. Gartner. Consolidated Natural Gas Co.
John Geiger, Pacific Power & Light Co.
John S. Graves, Columbia Gas System, Inc.
Robert A. Jeremiah, Long Island Lighting Co.
J. C. Johnson. Southern Serviees, Inc.
Albert J. Klemmer. Rochester Gas & Electric Co.
Frank H. Roberts, Northern Natural Gas Co.
William E. Sauer, Peoples Gas Light & Coke Co.
Harry R. Sheftel. Office of Management and Budget.
Alfred E. Softy, Edison Electric Institute.
William T. Sperry, Public Service Gas & Electric Co.
Douglas M. Tonge, American Electric Power Service Corp.
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Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on financial nporting forms

and related requirements issned by Federal agencies to companies in gas and
electric utilities field in order to improve such reporting forms and plans and
where possible to simplify them and reduce the burden of reporting.
Dates of tneetings:

November 19, 1909.
December 5, 1969.

Names of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Public UtilitiesOperating
Reports.

Nantes and affiliations of members:
Robert S. Qulg, Ebasco Services Inc. (Chairman).
Fred W. Braga, The Detroit Edison Co.
Theodore I. Gradin, American Gas Association.
G. H. McDaniel, American Electric Power Senile(' Corp.
James I. Poole, Jr., Natural Gas Pipeline Co. of America.
Francis Quinn. Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corp.
Donald E. Rose, New England Power Service Co.
Harry B. Sheftel, Office of Management and Budget.
John Thornborrow. Edison Electric Institute.
B. A. Willson, Northern States Power Co.
R. C. Wilson. Washington Gas Light Co.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on utilities operating tworting

forms and related requirements issued by Federal agencies to companies in gas
and electric utilities field in order to improve such reporting forms and plans
and where possible to simplify them and reduce the burden of reporting.
Dates of meetings:

November 19, 1969.
December 5, 1969.

Nornr of roniinittee or subcommittee: Committee on Railroads.
Names and affiliation of members:

Burton N. Behling. Association of American Railroads (chairman).
L. W. Adidns. Louisville & Nashville Railroad.
P. L. Conway, Jr., Association of American Railroads.
W. R. Divine, Southern Railway System.
W. N. Ernzen, Chicago. Burlington & Quincy Railroad.
J. T. Ford, Jr., Chesapeake & Ohio/Baltimore & Ohio Railroads.
C. E. Fuller, Genesee & Wyoming Railroad Co.
Charles S. Hill, Penn Central Co.
H. A. Nelson, Southern Pacific Co.
Harry B. Sheftel, Office of Management and Budget.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget with respect to Federal re-

porting and recordkeeping requirements applicable to railroads and subject to
review by the Office under the Federal Reports Act, and to such related problems
of coordination and planning of statistical and reporting programs covering
railroads as the Office may refer to the committee.
Dates of meetings: None in fiscal year 1970.

Name of eonimittce or subrommittee: Committee on Retail Trade
Names and affiliations of tnonbers

Eugene A. Keeney, American Retail Federation . (chairman).
A. Arthur Charons, Sears. Roebuck and Co.
S. Kent Christensen. National Association of Food Chains.
Don J. Debolt. Menswear Retailers of America.
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Nathan B. Epstein. Lerner Stores Corp.
William Girdner, Melville Shoe Corp.
Elias S. Gottlieb, II. II. Macy & Co., Ine.
Robert C. Heller, F. W. Woolworth Co.
Thomas II. Jenkins. National Retail Hardware Association."
Paul F. Krueger. Office of Management and Budget.
Alfred E. Kuerst. L. S. Ayres & Co.
Herbert S. La adman. Federated Department Stores, Inc.
Eleanor G. May. Woodward and Lothrop.
Iping Phillip, National Retail Merchants Association.

Function
To advise the Office of Management and Budget with respect to Federal report-

ing and recordkeeping requirements applicable to the retail trades and subject
to review by Ow )(flee ander the Federal Report Act, and to such related prob-
lems of (s lordimm don and planning of statistical and reportng programs covering
the trades as the Office may refer to the onnmittee.
Dates of meetings: None in fiscal year 1970.

Name of committer or subrommittre: Committee on Scientific and Research
Activities

Names and affiliations of members
John W. Reynard, E. I. (in Vont de Nemours & Co., Inc. (chairman).
C. A. Church, General Electric Co.
C. C. Coyne, Gulf Research & Development Corp.
R. C. Cunningham, Westinghouse Electric Corp.
Virginia A. Dwyer, Western Electric Co.
N. 0. Heyer, International Business Machines Corp.
B. F. Holcomb, United States Steel Corp.
Wayne E. Kuhn. Omark Industries. Ine.
Margaret E. Martin. Office of Management and Budget.
George E. Norman Jr., Burlington Industries, Ine.
David Novick. The Rand Corp.
John II. Pond. Martin Marietta Corp.
Harry B. Siwftel, Office of Management and Budget.
Robert M. Smith, General Motors Corp.
Robert H. Somnwr, National Assn. of Accountants.
G. N. Virgil, Nort h American Rockwell Corp.
N. R. Wenrich, Merck & Company, Inc.

Punet ion :
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on the improvement and

simplification of Federal Government reporting forms and related procedures
concerned with scientific and technical personnel and research and development
expenditures in industry, and to advise the Office as to statistical programing in
these fields, with particular reference to industry needs for statistical information.
flutes of meetings: Nene in fiscal year 1970.

Name of committee or subcommittee: Committee on Wholesale Trades.
Names and affiliations of members:

James E. Allen, The Henry I3. Gilpin Co. (Chairman).
Gilbert Campbell, Albemarle Motor Co.
Paul L Cotirtney, National Assn. of Wholesalers.
W. D. Jenkins. Radio Supply Co..
Frank J. Mulvey; National Auto Service Co., Inc.
Hugh N. Phillips, Frank Parsons Paper Co.
Harold 0. Smith, Jr., U.S. Wholesale Grocers Association.

Puna fen :
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on reporting, recordkeeping

and statistical problems arising from the activities and recommendations of

f;
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Federal agencies relating to wholesale industries, to reduce the burden of paper-
work imposed upon the wholesale industries by these requirements, and to
mike recommendations for the Improvement of Federal' statistics needed by
Government and industry.
Dotes of meetings:None in fiscal year 1970.

Name of committee or subcommittee: President's Advisory Council on Manage-
ment Improvement.

Names and Affiliations of members:
General Bernard A. Schriever, U.S .Air Force (retired), Schriever & McKee

Associates, hie.
Dwayne 0. Andriqui, First interoceanic Corp.
Waym! M. Hoffman. the Flying Tiger Line. Inv.
Gail M. Me lick, Continental Illinois NatiOnal, Bank.
Allen W. 3Ierre1l. Ford Motor Co.
Rufus E. Miles, Jr., Population Reference Bumn.
john W. Rollins. Sr., Rollins International. Inc.
Thonins Staudt. General Motors Corp.
Wayne E. Thompson, Dayton-Hudson Corp.
Chtt ries j. WYIY, Jr., Univrsity Computing CI I.

Function:
To advise the Office of Management and Budget on ways in which to improve

managmnt and efficiency in Government and to provide for an in!rhange
of ideas with private industry on applying effctive management teehniques to
Government operations.
Dates of meetings:

March 13-14,.1970.
May 8-9,1970.

[From Science nuignzlne. July 3. MD. pp. 36-391

BUDGET BUDEMI: Do Anyrsony PANELs 11AvE AN XDUSTRY BIAS?

(By Vie Reinemcr)
Editor's note: Vic Reinemr, author of this article on certain

lath-known but a warently influential advisory committei.s to the
Fedend Bureau of the Budga. serves as executive secretary on the
staff of Senator Lee Metealf (D-Mont.). Both lw and Metcalf believe
the shadowy committees have neglected the pubik. good to benefit
busimss and industry. Metealf 1ms even suggested that the com-
mittees might best be abolished. A vont rary view of the emumittees*
value is presented on plige 39 in a brief Ma:flat by Roliert P. Mayo,
Director of the Bureau of the Budget. which has recent ly betoi reor-
ganized Ills tlIP Office of Management and Itiulget. Reinenier. a Sen-
ate staffer since1955, has served as assoeinte editor of tlw Charlotte
( N.C. Nws and has had artieles publislwd iii stern I na !tonal
magazines. Reinemer and Metcalf coauthored Overcharge, a eriti-
cal examination of utility regulation (reviewed in the 10 February
ma issue of Seience).

Early in World War II, many small busines.anen appealed to tbe elia int=
of the Special Semte Committee to Study Problems of A merien n Small Business.
Tin! Goernment. they complained. was sending them too many cpiestlonnaires.
The chairman introduced a bill, which becalm! the Federal Reports Act of 1942.
specifying that information neeffisl by Federal agencies would be obtained with
a minimmn burden upon lmsiness. e:qweially small business. The law also em-
powered the Director of the Bureau of tlw Midget to coordinate the eollection
information front ten or more busines firms or persons.

The Budget Director asked some of his big-business friends to help him ad-
-minister tbe new law. They formed the Advisory Council on Federal Reports.
They asked some of their industry friends to help them help the Budget director.
Soon they had formed la Budget Bureau advisory committees, dealing with



banking, broadenstim ebentleals, (spud employment. fats and olls. meat pack-
ing, nutural gas, oil, ralironds, trade. a mi ntllities. The Cl)st of the conneil and
its 16 committees Is borne entirely by industry, The. eouna terms Itself the
"official IMAM'S:: consultant to the Federal Bureau of the Btufget",yet notes that
it is "appointed by and is responsible only to the business community."

The advisory committees did not represent small businesses. for whom the law
was enacted. Tim t. law was not violated, however, shICP the law said nothing
about setting up advisory committees.

The. law did say that information was to In. 44)114414.11 in a way that W011111
Its usefulness to the imblie, But the imIdic was exeluded from the

committees. Indeed. the imblic W11S 111111 wa rt. of the commit tee.' existence. No Sep.
orate advisory committees Were est111111Slioll hoc environmental, (.M1,11111(.1%
busillesti, labor, or other groups,

The advisory committee system. In effect now for 27 years. gives large Indus .
tries and their trade assoeiations excejitiomil advantages. The proceQs ill Ms.
closing or withholding information goes to the heart of Government decision-
making and law enforeement. Members of the eommittet.s hove a vantage point
deep within an extraordinarily powerful Homey. They eon anticipate and affect
government policy. They can better proteut their own interests and adct.rsely
affect the interests of others. And they doest oecially with regard to pollution.

Few people thought or eared nitwit about pollution during the 1!Cill's. In 111641.
President Eisenhower vetoed a federal water 11011101011 el11111.1l1 ill, ierming
pollution a "uniquely local blight." Attitudes imgan to change during the early

in Juin. 17 Federal oflielais, most of them froill Health S('rviee
(PDS) or the Budget Bureau, met with a 27-noon panel frton tile Budget 1 lit .
rcau's advisory connulttees to discuss a imiln wed federal inventory of water.
contaminating industrial Wa ste aisposal. The l'ilS was required Ily law to eollect
Information, develop conqirebensIve programs for water polint ion 111Ia lenient, and
to initiate regulatory action. Planning and regulatkm wouhl be difibmIt it' the
officials did not know who polluted what, and where. Information 1111111leilial
waste disposal had been available for yours, but, according tll 4111kiais,
Information on industrial waste disPosni was inadequate.

All 27 members representing the Budget Bureau's advisory committee. al the
meeting enme from industryU.S. Steel, Consolidation Coal, Anterkan Paper &
l'ulp, American Meet tic Power, the American Petroleum Institute. the National
Association of Manufacturers (NAM), and others. They objected to the inventory.

The informution that the Government pmisised to they said, would Ile
IlleollIplete and outdated, misused by politidans and the press. They explained
that the NAM was already eollecting data on this matter Ina that moot. cion-
patties had not even reslsauled to the NAM request. Thlise emninuiles would be
oven nmre reluctant to respond to another surveywhich would be ant.
and Might reveal trade Secrets. The electric utility sliokesman w4mdered w hy
his industry I which causes thermal pollution) was even hiellided in the puo
posed inventory.

After 7 hours, the meeting adjourned and the Budget Bureau pigeonholed the
proposed inventory.

BLOCKED AGA'TN

The following year, the question of the inventory was raised again, and again it
was blIalced by industry. At. a conference on pollution of Lake Erie and its tribu-
taries, eight major industries said they would provide (luta on disellarged waste
water to Federal and State agenek,s. Acting on this indication of eoolsoration,
Chairman Robert K Jones (D-Ala.) of the Douse Subcoonmittee on Natural Re-
sources and Power urged the Iludget director and the new Secretary of Health,
Ethic:Mon. 1Ind Welfare (HEW) lo approve the nationwide inventory. They
moiled that perhaps a pilot study should be made a mutat Lake Erie: a study was
made ina. produced little information.

'1'114. next year (19(16) federal! restionsibility for water Imilution abatement was
shiftomt front PITS, in HEW, to the new Federal Water Pollution Control Admin-
Ist rat ion (FWPCA) in the Department of the Interior. The Clean Water Restora-
tion Act approved in. 1966 called for comprehensive studies by the Interior
Department of the cost of controlling industrial pollution nnd of possible economic
Incentives to induce industry to abate pollution. In 1967 the House subcommittee
again pressed the Budget Bureau to npprove the inventory. But the Bureau
recommended delay.

I 8



"We believe," wrote the Bureau, "that once data is [sic] available from the cost
and incentives studies, we will have a much better idea about what types of data
are available from industry and how best to structure any potential questionnaire
for the industrial inventory." The Bureau did not want to collect information
until it had information!

in contrast. the Interior Depatrment held that the egg must come before the
chickenbefore it eouhl count the elist of industrial pollution it would hare to
have an inventory.

In the summer of 1968, the Budget Bureau advisory panel again eonsidered
the proposed inventory. The 26 advisory participants represented most of the
companies and trade ilsbioelations that bad been at the 196-1 meeting and included
several of the same individuals. None of the 13 federal participants had attended
the 1964 meeting. At the meeting, FWPCA officials reported that the need for
iulequa to and necurate data on industrial water pollution was becoming more
and more matte at both the Shite and tho Federal levels. The iulvisory eommittee
mentiwrs reiterated the argument that they had previously made to other federal
°tibia hi. After 4 hours of discussion, the meeting adjourned and tile Budget
Buren» again returned tile inventory to the pigeonhole.

And that is where it remains today. The new FWPCA commissioner, David D.
Dominick, blames the Budget Bureau for halting the inventory. But lie is not
pushing It, having retreated to industry's position that the information should
be colleeted at the State level, where it is unlikely ever to be collected. And so the
Federal Government marches imek down the hill. whip!) is still securely held by
industry and its advisory eommitt PPS.

Air pollution control hat; also been slowed by a Midget Bureau advisory com-
mittee. In Marril 1968 the National Air Pollution ('ontrol Administration
(NAPCA) submitted a proposed Air Contaminant Emissions Survey to tile
Budget Bureau. The advisory eommittee objected to disclosure of data relating
to specific plants and set up a negotiation team, inelnding representatives from
the NAM, U.S. Chamber of Commerce. American Paper Institute, Ameriean Petro-
leum institute. National Coal Association. and Manufacturing Chemists Associa-
tion. At the industries' urghig. NAPCA submitted weaker, general drafts. Last
year lite survey was finally innocuous enough to obtain industry approval, and the
Budget Bureau cleared the form.

Nevertheless, NAPCA asked further restrictions on the use of the informa-
tion it would collect, according to the Task Force Report on Air Pollution
issud late this spring by the Center for Study of Responsive Law (Nader's
Raiders). The Chattanooga Manufacturers ktsociation urged its members to
withhold information sought through the emissions survey.. NAPOA Commis-
sioner John T. Middleton thereupon promised the Chattanooga manufacturers
that the data they diselosed would never he made public', even in administra-
tive or judicia1 proeeedings. Government, said the Task Forty Report, was indeed
a junior partner to industry.

OTHER INFORMATION WITITTIEUI

Pollution is but one of the areas in which Budget Bureau advisory committees
foil collection of information on which enforcement and legislation are based.
In 1963 the Federal Trade Commission submitted to the Budget Bureau a ques-
tionnaire designed to obtain information on ownership and interlocks of the
nation's 1000 leading corporations. The advisory comnlittees strongly objected,
then carried their inside information to Capitol Hill, where they obtained prohi-
bition of expenditures on the survey. Electric and gas utilities used the advisory
committees to weaken Federal Power Commission (FPC) attempts to obtain
more information on utilities' expenditures for professional services, including
payment made to law firms, advertising, public relations, and lobbying.

The budget of the advisory committees' parent organization, the Advisory
Council on Federal Reports, is approximately $60,000 a year. This eost is borne
by the American Society of Association Executive's, the National Associationof
Manufacturers, the U.S. Chamber of Commerce, the American Retail Federation,
the Financial Executives Institute, and a few individual companies. Expenses
includes a Washington office (1001) Connecticut Avenue, N.W.) and occasional
picnics and dinners honoring the Budget Bureau officials who work with the
advisers.

Many advisory committee members hat:re served with the same Budget Bureau
career officials for years. The Budget IThreau staffers are usually at grade 14
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or 15 ($19,643 to $2),752 per year) ; some junior numbers may be as low as
grade 9 ($9,881 to $12,842 per year). They could Int awed by association with
prestigious industry oliWittis who serve on the committeesfor insiance, Roliert
S. Quig, vice president of Ebaseo Services, Inc., a utiiity servire organization.
Quig has chaired the three elmtric and gas utility advisory eonunittees for years
and also serves on the Im rent. Advisory Council on Federal Reports.

Canumiderie between industry and Government blooms into soft policy. One
Budget Bureau official eased industry auxieties by rmoinding them of the policy
on corporate disclosure that he had la hi down 7 years earlier:

When you are in doubt, resolve th doubt to your own advantage. Even
when instructions aro implicit there are eases wlwre tiw reporting require-
ment may not be consistent with tiw itionliVr in which sonw of you maintain
your records. In that VIISe report the data you havein most eases it will Ile
acceptable.

Until revently, the advisory round! 111111 commit tWS have enjoyed anonymity.
A long-standing advisory committee "principle" has prohibited publication of
"recommendations which have been made to the Bit min of the Budget lint on
whieh aetion by tlw Bureau has not yet lawn taken." Outshiers have thus been
prevented from. (Attaining information until it wos too late to act on it. Until
ii few months ago, the Budget Bureau's limn d circulation "yellow siwet"a
daily list of relmrting forms ami plans received for approvalwas ma rk(si "Not
for Publication." Congressimml inquiry as to the reason for vonfldentiaility
prompted removal of the restrietion.

Representattives of nonindustry organiza t bins, who only reeently have Mt molts!
advisory eommittee meetings as observers, have not felt welcome. Dud yar, whoi
an advisory committee began conshieration of Fre forms relating to plant poi.
lution control at steam-electric generating plants, entry was sought by the
National Wildlife Federation. It represents the interests of Fdate mul local
affiliates throughout the country and is deeply interested in water quality
standards. Louis S, Clapper, conservation director of the National Wildlife
Federation, described the experience of his organization's representative in
these words from his 3 December1909 letter to Budget Direetor Robert P. Mayo:

on Nov. 1069, a member of our staff, Gera hi W. Winegrod, an attorney,
was told by Mr. Harry B. Sileftd of your offiee that he would have. to (dar
attendanee at this Public Utilities COMM it tee Illeeting with a Mr. Dana
Barbour, Acting Director for Clearance Operations of the Bureau of til
Budget. Mr. Winegrad on calling Mr. Barbour was advised that "we just can't
have any more people," that there was no more seating room. Mr. Winegrad
advised him that he would stand during the meetini, but was still told he
could not attend. Mr. Barbour advised Mr. Wingrad that he would send
him a copy of FPC Form 07 in lieu of his attending the nwel&g. At the
meeting which Mr. Winegrad did attend, there were no less thaW14 empty
chairs in the room at all times.

Sheftel made a point of stressing to Mr. Winegrad on the phone
that "no policy was being considered" and asked : "What is your interest?"
and "110v did yoUltoow of the meet ingr

However, the Budget Bureau's assistant director for statistival policy, Julius
Shiskin, says that under recently adopted policies there will be plenty of seats for
all interested parties at advisory rommittee meetings and that "any American
including Rap Brown" will be weiconw. (Shiskin later said use of this quote by
singling on ii U eontroversial individual, inaccurately refleet etl his attitude.)

Revision of the Budget Bureau advisory committee system was suggeste(l last
year by Senator Lee Metcalf (1).-Mont.). His bill ( S. 3067) would rquir
consumer, labor, and small busineas representation 4111 the conunittees awl
"timely, conspicuous public notice" ef their meetings. In March Senator Metcalf
told the Rouse Government Operations Speeini Studies Subcommittee timt the
publie interest might best be srved by abolition of the committees.

The Budget Bureau opposes the Mettmlf hill. Discouffitted by the attention
given its advisory comMittes, the Budget Bureau now emphasiws "the need for
agency consultations with user and other interested groups" prior to submittal
of agency requests to the Bureau. The disadvantage to the publie in that approach
is the same as the one it has with the Budget Bureau commiftees--"user and
other interested groups" do not ha V( t he entree with agencies that industries
hrtve. Edison Electric Institut ( EEI ), trade 'association of the investor-owned
eleetrie utilities, quietly Wanned a meeting in March of this year with the FPC
staff. The EEI wanted to discuss, privately, the plant pollution control data
reports, which had interested the National Wildlife Fedeeation last winter. Only
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after congressional and press comment on the closed nature of the planned
meeting with industry did the ITC invite the outsiders who had sat in on last
winter's discussion.

The Budget Bureau has specifically refused to include on its advisory com-
mittees represmtathps of the Consumer Federation of America. Instead,. the
Bureau has invited Virginia Knaner. special assistant to the President for
consmner offairs, to send staff members to some advisory ccmmIttee miPtings.
Mrs. Knauer's small staff has neither the expertist nor the zeal to offset the
representatives Of large industries and their trade associations.

On 9 April, President Nixon annotInced still anotl,er committee through whieh
tusinessnwn van "eommunieate regularly with tte President, the Commit on
Environtnentol Quality, and other Government of1Hals and private organizations
whieh are working to improve the quality of die mivironment." The new com-
mittee, the National Industrial Pollution Control Council. Is composed of board
chairmen or presidents of major till, automobile, eleetric utility. mining, timber,
eoal. alrline. and manufacturing emmm ides plus presidents of the U.S. Chamber
of Commerm the National Association of Manufacturers, and the National In-
dustrial Conferenee Boa rd, Administrn Hon wen tly vontracted with the
National Industrial (7onfenbnee Board to make a selective studyelectrie utili-
ties are not to be ineludedof industrial pollution costs.)

The President's eholee for chairman of the eouneil is Bert Cross. board ehair-
man of Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing. His vompany still has not vom-
plied wit Ii a 19(10 State order in Wisconsin to stop disOmrging sulfurous waste
into municipal sewers.

The Presidential couneil headed by Cross is composed exelusively of polluters.
Informed eeologists, old-fashioned imnservationists, vopal students, or silent niaz
jorities are not represented.'nor do they have separate advisory councils. They'
are excluded, at the Presblential and the Bmiget Bureau levels. They can get
their information from industries' anti-pollution advertisements. Meanwhile, in-
side the White House and the red briclt Execntive Offiee Building of the Bureau
of the Budget. the raiffilts guard the wit ling tuee.

Tiu Binow'r Dm:croft RSPRNDS

We appreciate the generous offer to reply to your article on the Bureau of the
Budget, but there is so much half-truth earefully interwoven through the article
that you leave us with almost no relokttal except to say the artivie is unfair and
in i sleading. Furthermore, i t is in large pa rt ancient and not very accurate
history.

First, liere is the satiation as it exists today. Meetings with committees and
panel of the Advisory Cohncil on Federal Reports are open to all intereste.d
parties, without exeeption. Anyone who wishes to receive advanee notice of these
meetingla may simply request that his name be placed on onr mailing list. Write
to Nike of Statistkol Polley, Bureau of the Budget. Federal Office Building
No. 7, Washington, D.C. 20503.

Tho important point your article misses, I feel, is that it is only in the last
year or two that the Bureau has been reeeiving for revie* an Increasing number
of forms and reporting requirements involving vomplex and Pont r n v ersial sovio-
ponomi issues. such as consumer protection. pollution. pill] rights, equal em-
ployment opportunity. and so forth. We were responsive to the need for broaden-
ing vonsultation with gioups wishing to present their views.

The Advisory Connell on Federal Reports provides a channel through which
varions SeginentS of the business community ndvise and eonsult with the Budget
Bureau on reporting problems attendant to requests of government agencies
for information from business.

You make the point that small business has not been represented. The Na-
tional Small Business Assodation has been a member 'of the Couneil for the
last 10 or 15 years. Furthermore, the U.S. Chamber of Commeree has been a
full-fledged member since the inception of the Advisory Council, and the majority
of the Chamber's membership is vomprised of small business.

The 'Bureau, now reorganized as the Office of Management and Binlvt. is
composed of dedicated public servants with a long tradition of dealing fairly
with all who are claimants on the national reSources. AR for the annual ban-
quets. Budget Direetors and some of their aides have attended them. as did
President Truman and Prmident Johnson. To suggest an Akio] of the Bureau
could be eorrupted by a meal Is slimly beneath the dignity of so fine a publica-
tion as Science.Robert P. Mayo, Director, Bureau of the Budget.

1
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APPENDIX G.Co Bps or ENGINarts' NEW POLICY OF FIThi. ENFORCE-
MENT OF 1899 ltErust: AcT (33 U.S. Com 107), AND It'a..1TEO COR-
RESPONDENCE

[txcerpt frlim the CongrmotIonal Record of July 29, 1970]

JULY 28, 1970.
Lt. thin. F. .1. CLARKI:.
nit hi of Engine( Ir., Drparlmeni of thy Army,
Washington, D.C.

!WAR GENERAL CLARI:4:: Your letter of lune 24, 1970, enclosed at our request
data in tabular form on existing inwnilts issued by the Corps of Engineers for
industrial waste discharges into navigable Wa terwoys shire enactment of the
1899 Refuse Art (Table A), and for dredged materials since anuary 1, 1965
(Table 11),1

Table A shows that there art. M: existing Corps pertain; for industrial wastes
in '22 States ( Arizona, Colorado, Connecticut. Iowa, Kansas, Maine, Maryland,
Michigan, Montana, Nebraska. Neva(Ia, New Hampshire, New Mesko, North
Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Utah, Virginia, West

and Wyoming). In Massachusetts, the only existing Corps permit was
suspended on loebruary 13. 1979, because of unspecified complaints by State
officials. Except for New Jersey. California, and Louisiana, there are less than
25 existing Corps permits for industrial waste discharges lii each of the re-
maining States and Puerto Rim The distthargers rovered include some of tile
Nation's producers of pulp and paper, synthetic fibers, rhemirals, petroleum prod-
ucts. stM and aluminmn.

This meager number of existing Corps permi: issued for the discharge of
industrial wastes is disgraceful, when one conteinm.-tes the numerous industries
in each State that undoubtedly discharge pollutants into our waterways. The
time.has lopg passed for these industries to stop flouting the 1899 law and to

'either comply with it and the regulations issued thereunder, or to muse dis-
charging I heir wastes into oar waterways,

As we have said time and time again, the MOO law affords an opportunity
to determine whether these disrhargers are. in fart. In compliance with appli-
cable water pollution control laws. Section 21 (h) of the Federal Water Pollu-
Hon Control Act, its amended by Public Law 91-224 of April 3, 1970, and the
recently revised Corps regulations I Cong. Rec. (daily issue) pp. TI5731-5736,
.Tune 17, 1970), require that an applicant for a Corps permit prov ; the Corps
with a State certification. The State must certify "that there is rei.sonable as-
surance" that the applicant's activity "will be conducted in a manner which will
not violate applicable water quality standard0 No Corps permit "shall be
grunted" until such certification is obtained or waived. Presumably, a State
will not issue a certification without careful review of the applicant's activity.
But, unless the Corps minireti dischargers to comply with the 1899 law, section
21 (b) will not become operative.

We therefore urge the Corps to begin now to notify all present and future
dischargers of refuse materials into this Nation's waterways about the require-
ments of the 1899 law and section 21(b) of the FWPC Art. This notification
should be done as expeditiously as possible. through the news media, rorre
spondence with various indu-arial and trade associations, the Chambers of
Commerce, the NatioLal Association of Manufacturers, and other appropriate
means of disseminating this information.

Please advise us when you initiate such notification.
Recently, the following notice was brought to the Subcommittee's attention :
Corps of Engineers, Department of the Army, P.O. Box 1715, Baltimore,

Maryland 21202, Telephone 962-4646.

lirables are available in subcommittee files.
(110)
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a.

Warning Notice.Federal Acts Prohibit The Discharge Or Overflow Of
Any Oil, Sludge, Bilge Oil, Dirt, Dredgings, Ashes, Cinders. Mnd, And Refuge
Of Any Kind Into Navigable Waters That. Lie Within The Jurisdiction Of The
United States.

Violation Of These Regulations May Result In A Penalty Of Not More Than
$10,000, Or Not More Than One Year Imprisonment Or Roth.

Applicable United States Laws: The Oil Pollution Act of 1924, As Amended,
The Act of 29 June 1888, River & Harbor Aet of 3 March 18P0.

The notice fails to advise the public that, tinder the 1899 law, one-half of the
tine imposed hy the court under that law shall "be paid to the person or persons
giving information which shall lead to conviCtion." (33 U.S. Code 411 ). As the
Committee on Government Operations said in its recent report (House Report
No. 91-917, March 18, 1070, pp. 17-18) :

"The informer payment provides a ,monetary incentive to citizens to furnish
information to the Corps concerning violations of the Refuse Act."

Information supplied by citizens can aid tlw Corps, not only in the enforce-
ment of the criminal provisions of the Act, bnt also in obtaining injunctions re-
quiring a violator to cease future discharges or to Miply for a Corps permit in
the manner mentioned above. Further. such inforniation can be useful to the
Corps in requiring the discharger to remove pollutants already discharieed. In-
forming the citizen about this little-used provision of the law will undoubtedly
result in greater information being provided to tlw Corps or the U.S. attorneys
and some savings to the Govermnent of the cost of investigations of violations.

We therefore urge the Corps to revise the above notices by adding the follow-
ing:

"One-Half of the Fine imposed For Violation of the 1899 Act is Paid To Any
Person or Persons Giving Information Leading To Conviction."

Since these notices must be revised anyway because the Oil Pollution Act of
1924 was repealed by section 108 of Public Law 91-224 on April 3. 1970, the
addition of this language to the not ires should not be too costly to the Corps.

Please advise us when the Corps revises these noticeuk
Sincerely.

HENRI' S. REISis.
Chairman, Cramerra I ion and Nat tonal Button men :4alormoo obitIce.

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE JULY 30, 1070

DEPARTMENT OF TIIE ARMY,
OFFICE OF TIIE CHIEF OF ENGINEERS,

WashIngton,

CORPS OF ENGINEERS AN NOVNCES NEW PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

The Corps of Engineers today announced new permit requiremwats under
the Refuse Act (33 U.S.C. 407) concerning all discharges into navigable waters.
Permits will be required for all industrIal discharges into navigable waters and
their tributaries. New permits will be required where existing permits were
granted without adequate consideration of the quality of the effluent Permits
will also be required for current discharges into navigable waters wl:are no
permits have been granted.

Applicants for new permits are now required to identify the character of the
effluent and to furnish pertinent data such as chemical content, water tempera-
ture differentials, toxins, sewage, quantity of solids involved, and the amount
and frequency of discharge.

The corps' revised requirements are in compliance with the Environmental
Policy Act of 1960, which requires agencies to consider environmental impact in
the administration of public laws, and with the Wnter Quality Improvement Act
of 1970, which requires applicants for Federal permits to ffle a certification
from the appropriate State that the discharge "will not violate applicable water
quality standards." Under the revised procedures, the effects of discharges on
water quality will be considered in processing the permit.

While permits will be required for all future discharges into navigable waters
aad their tributaries, the Corps of Engineers will initially concentrate on major
sources of industrial pollution not covered by existing permits. The corps hopes
that through widespread knowledge of its new permit requirements including
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State certification, it will, along with other Federal, State, and local antipollu-
tion activities, encourage industries to accelerate their own antipollution efforts.

All actions under the Refuse Act having Water Quality implications are being
closely coordinated with the Federal Water Quality Administration to insure
unity iv the Federal water antipollution program.

DO17sE OF REPRESENTATIVES, .
CONECERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SITU( OMMITTEE,

COMMITTER ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., August 19, 1970.

Lt. Gen. F. -J. CLARKE,
Chief of Engineers,
Corps of Engineer',
Washington, D.C.

DEAR GENERAL CLARKE: Enclosed for your information is a copy of my state-
, went ,(Cong. Rec., Aug. 14, 1970, pp. 118362-8306) concerning the. Corps of En-
gineers new Policy of full enforcement of the 1899 River and Harbor Aet (30
Stat. 1151). .

commmal the eorps edopting a policy of full enforcement of the law. I hope
that it will now follow up on this announcement of July 30. 1970. and adopt my
recommendations set forth in my letter of July 28, 1970. to the corps. I also hope
that the corps will publicly support current fforts in the Senate to provide funds
to implement more fully your new policy.'

I am greatly encouraged by this new corps policy. But I want also to caution
against any dilution of that policy through the adoption of a memorn ndmn of
understanding with FWQA that would give it more than a technical, advisory
role in enforcenwnt of the 1899 act. The FWQA should not be asked for recom-
mendations concerning enforcement of the corps' act. Nor should the corps, or
the Department of .histice, weaken enforcement of the act on the basis of the
relationship of Such enforcement to any program or proceeding of FWQA.

We would appreciate receiving a copy of that memorandum for our review
before it is adopted and n reply to our letter of May 13. 1970. concerning this
subject before the corps agrees to such memorandum of understanding.

Sincerely.
HnNav S. REUSS.

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resource., Subcommittee.

I ElvisDt from Concressional Record of August 14, pm
WATER POLLUT1DN AND THE REFUSE ACT OF 1899: THE CORPS OF

ENGINEERS IS DOING ITS DUTY. WHY NOT THE DEPARTMENT OF
JUSTICE?

The SPEAKER. Under a previous order to the House, the gentleman from
Witzeonsin f Mr. Rev slO is recognized for 00 minutes.

Mr. REUSS. Mr. Speaker, I reported to the Members of this House on June 17,
1970, "about the significant step forward" taken by the Corps of Engineers In
recently revising its regulations pursuant to the recommendations of the House
Committee on Government OperationsHouse Report No. 91-917, March 17.
1970. 'l'hese regulations govern, among other works. applications for Corps per-
mits to conduct filling. dredging, and refuse disposal in navigable waterways.

Today, I am again able to report to the Members of the House another progres-
sive step taken by,the Corps in announcing a policy of enforcement of the 1899
River and Haisbor Act (. Stat. 1151). Equally, I must point out the total abdi-
cation by the Department of Justice of its statutory duty "to vigorously enforce"
that act. The Attorney G nerd, whose sworn duty it is to enforce law ::nd order.
is a scofflaw where water pollution is concerned.

A review of a tabulation of existing Industrial waste permits issued by the
Corps since March 3. 1899, which was prepared by the Corps at the request of
the Subcommittee on Conservation and Natural Resources, of which I am chair-
man. showed : First. thnt there are many industrial polluters in this Nation who
are discharging refuse materials into our waterways without a Corns permit
and in violation of the 1899 law : and second, thnt even where n permit exits
there :liqueurs to be little. if any. treatment of the refuse before it is discharged.
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I therefore wrote to the Corps on July 28, 1970, and I urged that it "begin
now to notify ail present and future discharges of refuse materials into this
Nation's waterways about the requirements of the MOO River and Harbor Act."
I informed the Rouse about this on July 29CONGRESSIONAL RECORD, page
H7410.

I am very pleased to report that the Corps on July 30, 1970, has annonneed a
policy of full enforcement of the 1899 law as follows:

"Permits will be required for ail industrial discharges into navigable waters
and their tributaries. New permits will be required where existing permits were
granted without adequate consideration a the quality of the effluent. Permits
will also be required for current discharges into navigable waters where no
permits have been granted."

I commend the Corps for recognizing its responsibility for vigorous enforce-
ment of the Refuse Act. With the adoption of this new policy by the CorilS, the
polluter will either have to apply for and obta4n a permit, or face proseentIon
under the Refuse Act, or cease discharging its wastes.

No longer will the Nation's polluters be able to gala substarafal profits through
the use of our publie waters as the:r private sewers. The public's right to cleao
waters is now recognized by the Corps as superior to the polluter's profits.

With this new polley, the discharger who applies for a Corps permit must also
obtain a certification from the State in which the discharge originates, as re-
quired under section 21 (b) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Aet, as
nmentkd by Public law 91-224 enacted April 3, 1970. When n State grants a
certificate, after notice and an opportunity for piddle hearings, it certifies that
the applicant's activity "will be conducted in a manner which will not violate"
applicable Federal, State, or local water quality standards. Under the Corps re-
cent revised regulationsCircular No. 1145-218, expires June 30, 1971It will
not begin to process a permit appliention until the certificate is granted.

In addition to the vertifiente. the Corps recently issued regulations requiring
that appliennts for dredging, filling. and disposal operations list first, the type
and quantity of solids to he removed or deposited second, the proposed method of
mensurentent : third, alternate nwthods of disposal: and fourth, the economic
and enviromnental hamlet of alternate methods. Applicants for permits for oat-
fall sewers from Industrial and other plants and similar work "wldelf may affect
the ecology of a waterwa y are required to furnish data to identify the (diameter
of t he eflInent."

In tin- latter ease, the aptilletiat in list inelude "data pertaining to chemical
eontent, water temperature differentials, I.:rills. sewage, amount and frequency
of disehurge and the type and quantity of sol:ds involved and provide informa-
tion on plans to abate pollution of solids." The Corps regulations also encourage
the holding of public hearings "whenever thero appears to be suffieient public
inte rest."

Finally, the "decision RS to whether a permit will he issued will he based on
an evaluation of the impact of the proposed work on the public interest." in-
eluding such factors ns navigation. fish nnd wildlife, water qaality, eennemb's,
conservation. estheties. recreation, water supply. flood damage prevention, cm-
systoins and, in general. t he needs and welfare of the people.

One can readily see that, when the Corps applies these new requirements to
applicants who arc now diseharging wastes without a permit and to existing
perlaittees, the dischargers may find it difficult to comply. They will have to
either cease discharging wastes into our waterways or provide effective treat-
ment before the discharge occurs. But that. fitter all, is the very objective of all
our pollution control laws. T'atil this objective is achieved, we cannot expect
clean water.

Again I commend the Corps for announcing this Policy. Its action is con-
sistent with the recent decision by the U.S. Court Of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit
in Zabel v, Tubb (C.A. 5. July 10. 1970, No. 27555) which hAlpage 2:

"We hold that nothing In the statutory structure compels the Secretary (of
the Army] to close his eyes to all that others see or think they see. The establish-
ment was entitled, If not required, to consider ecological factors and, being
persuaded by them. to deny that which might have been granted routinely five.
ten, or fifteen years ago before man's explosive increase made all. including
Congress. aware of civilization's potential destruction from breathing its own
polluted air and drinking its own infected water and the Immeasurable loss
from a silent-spring-like disturbance of nature's economy."

1
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I hope, however, that the Corps will do more tha n just issue a press notice of
its intentions, I hope the Corps will follow up on this announcement by conduct-
ing, as I urged in my letter to the Corps of Jti ly 28, a vigorous campaign to
notify all polluters of the requirements of the 1899 law and section 21 (b) of the
Federal Willer Po llut ion Cont rot Ah.

I also hope that the Corps will support the current effort by Senator Him and
others to odd 84 million to the publb woilis at opropriation bill for fiscal year
1971II.R. 18127--which passed the House on June 24, 1970. for the Corps to
carry out this work on an accelerated -pace. I urge my colleagues in the House
to:4/11)1mM this etTort.

The Corps' imlicy of enforeing the Refuse Art is being applied soinewhat
gradually, hmalse of personnel shortages.

Mr. Robert E. Jordan III, Special Assistant. to the 8(4-rotary of the Army for
Civil Functions who supervises the CI irps civil works program. testified on
July before the Senate Subcommittee on Energy, Nntural ltesourees und
En vi hannent of the Commerce Commit t ee, as follows :
."Specitically, we art instructing 1111 District. Engineers that permits will be

rettnired for flit ore disclmrges into navigable waters and thnt applications for
such permits must be accomIninied by an appropriate State certithmtion.

lallOve will have to coneentra h. on applying the permit ond certification
requirement to discharges from new facilities where the cert ification requirement
is immediatelYseffective and, with the assistance of FWQA, to discharges which
aro known to a significant adverse a ffect on water quality. It will, of course,
loe impos,ibl t.6. individually notify all eompanies who now discharge into
navigalole waters of the reoluircmeut to amoly for a permit. We will, however,
through the Federal Register and other joublic nu.ans, atto.mpt to make industry
aml nimeerned is.rsons aware of our regulatory changes,"

Similarly, Chairman Russell E. Train of the Council on Environmental Quality
testified on August 11, 1970, loefore OW Sella Le P WO- Works Subcommittee on
A iu ii tat Water Pollution. Mr. Train said that the Council was working with the
Interior andlustive Ilepartments and the Corps in formula t ing a "new program"
to lab ianouuined in about a month concerning enforcement of the 1899 law, re
gardit permit applications for "new faeilitks." .

Mr. Sismker, I urge that the Corps' new policy uf liii I enforeement of the 1899
law 1 made npplkable, as soon as possible, to existing permittees, new facilith.s,
and t o existing dischargers who have failed to r Alibi a Corps permit. The dam-
age to our miters and environment must be r medled with 'urgem-y.

Thi i is oho diseordant item in the Corps .ss release of July MI, 1970:
"A actions uqer the Refuse Act having Wui ter Quality Duplications are being

closti coordhutted to insure unity in the Federal Water anti-pollution program."
supplied.)

'1' is statement appears to reiterate the doctrine of limited enforcement of the
1899 law mlopted by the Justice Department on July 10, 1970. That doctrine
favors the polluter over the public's interest in preventing the pollution of our
wat erways.

The Jusfice Dlthrtment 1ms said that a polluter can continue to violate the
1899 law, if he is subject to sonicp unspecified proceeding of the Federal Water
Quality Administration. No oint knows what this proceeding is. I doubt that even
th Justice Department of FWQA have any understanding of 'what it might be.

But, most importantly. it IS a doctrine that has no relevance to the 1899 law
or sectiou 21 ( b) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

The Federal Water Fount ion Control Act specifically disclaims that it, in any
way; effects the 1899 law. To discharge refuse material into a navigable water-
way without a Corps permit, even if treated, is a violation of the 1899 law, the
law says that U.S. attorneys must vigorously prosecute the violator.

I wrote to Att orney General Mitchell on July 8, 1970, urging him to abandon
Amt pdlution-oriented doet rine, and I informed the House about this on July 15,
1970CosonEssioNAL RECORD, pages 116797-H6798. However, I lmve not yet
received a response from the Department. ,

The Corps' press release mirrors that doctrine when it states
"All actions under the 1 899 act with water quality 'implications are being

closely coordinated' with FWQA to /mare unity in the Federal Water anti-
pollution program." (Italie supplied.)

Last May the Corps and Federal Water Quality Administration announced
they were preparing a memorandum of understanding on enforcement of the 1899
act which would, In effect, give the Federal Water Quality Administration, not
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the Corps, responsibility for enforcing that act. Under the proposed memorandum,
the Corps would ask the Federal Water Quality Administration to make recom-
mendations on each proposed enforcement action to see how the Federal Water
Quality Administration "proceeding" would be affected.

As I have stated time aml time again, the responsibility to enforce the 1S1111
act belongs solely to the Corps and the U.S. attorneys, not the Federal Water
Quality Administration. The recommendations a the Federal Water Quality
Adtninistration do not alter that responsibility.

It is my hope that the Corps will not repeat the errors of the Justice Depart-
ment. The Corps should resist the pressure to tle its hands through such )-

ordination. Its only course must be to enforce Dar 1899 law as announced
above. It mnst require, through all appropriate means, including criniinal sanc-
tions and eivil actions. that all waste dischargers obey the law and stop the
degradation of oni waterways to the public's detriment and the polluter's profit.

The Congress recently stated a new tuitional policy for protecting the environ-
ment. This polim and the procedures to carry it out. are carefully detailed in
the National Epvironmentill Polley rAet of 1969Pubile Law 91-1:10, lipprovod
.Tanuary 1. 1970and the Environmental Quality Improvement AetPuhlie Law
91-224, title II, approved April 3. 1970.

Seetion 102(C) directs all Federal agencies including the Justice Department.
to include, in ail "major Federal a etians signifimmtly affveting the quality of the
human environment," a detailed statement on

First, the environmental impact of the proposed action :
Second, any adverse environmental effects which cannot be avoided should the

proposal be implenwnted ;
Third. alternatives to the proposed action :
Fourth, the relatinnship between local shortierm uses of man's envIrommnt -

and the maintenance and enhancement of long-thrm prodiutivity;
Fifth, any irreversible and irretrievable eommitments of resources which

would be involved in the proposed action should it be implemented.
Section 5(a) of the interim guidelines issued by the Council on Environmental

Quality dated April 30, 1970 (35 P.R. 7390 7391) defines the term "actions." for
the purpose of determining whether a "detailed statement" is required to Inelude
"policy-and-procedure-making" activities of an agency.,

In its "Guidelines for Litigation Under the Refuse Act (33 U.S. Code 4071"
of July 10. 1970, the justice Department states as followspage :

"tr. roticy
"1. The policy of the Department of Justice with respect to the enforcement of

the Refuse Act for purposes other than the protection of the navigable capacity of
our national waters, is not to attempt to use it as a pollution abatement statute
in competition with the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or with the State
pollution abatement procedures. but rather to use if to Ruppirtnent that Act by
bringing appropriate actions either to punish the occasional or recaleitrant pollii-
(or. or to abate continuing Rources of pollution which for some reason nr other
ha:re not been stibjected to a proreeding conducted by the Federal Water Quality
Administration or by a state. or where in the opinion of the Federal Water
Quality Administration the pollutor ha* failed .to comply with obligations under
such a procedure *.' " (Italie supplied.)

Thus. the .Tustice Department. In issuing its guidelines, established n 'polley"
as that term is defined t,y the Council, but it did not, to our knowledge, prepare
and send to the Council n "detailed statement.": as required by thy Nation:1i En-
vironmental Policy Act, on that policy.

'Air Speaker. how can the public believe that Its Government will relentlessly
follow n course of proteeting and enhancing the quality of the environment. wlyai
the Govermnent's chief law-and-order ngency violates one of the most important
environmental protection laws of this conntry?

The Justice Department Is quite willing to enforee the law againq the occa-
sional polintor. but not against the big corporate pollutors who continuously vio-
late our pollution laws. It Is this type of ragged enforcement that hreeds contempt
and disrespect for the law.

I urge the Chairman of the Council to review this violation with the .Tustioo
Department and to seek the prompt resession of this nnfortunate

Section 21(h) was added to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act by the
Water Quality Improvement Act of April 3, 1970, Public Law 91-224. That sec-
tion requires. as I have said, that an applicant "for a Federal license or permit
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to conduct any activity, which may result in any discharge into" a navigable
waterway, nmst obtain a "certification from the State in which the discharge
originates or will originate." The State must certify "that there is reasonable
assurance, as determined by the State, that such activity will be conducted in
a manner Which will not violate applicable water quality standards" before such
license nr permit may be granted.

Many Members of the How and Senate have joined with me in pointing out
that, if the Corps and the U.S. attorneys vigorously enforce the 1899 law by
requiring polluters to get_Corps permits, it will trigger the certification provi-
ions of section 21(b). We expect these eertiflcates will not be granted until
the State is satisfied that there is, in fact, a firm basis for such assurances. In
the absen ts. of such an application for a permit, section 21 (b) will not apply.
Further, applicants for Corps iwrmits must also comply with its new regula-
tions which are designed to protect our environment.

Mr. Shiro Kashiwa, Assistant Attorney General, Lands and Natural Resources
Divislim. does not yet seem t understand the law.

In a letter he sent to the C nservation Foundation on July 27,1970, he said:
-I cannot agree with yot that the licensing procedure you advocate would be

au effective way to abate pôlution. The chief defect of the plan is that it does
indirectly, and requires fin extra step to do, what may now be done directly
and without further licensing. No person or firm at the present dime is exempt
front the requirement of compliance with water quality standards, where those
standards have been established; and it is therefore completely unnecessary for
the federal government to license a person's activities to subject him to those
standards. Thus your statement on page 3 of your letter that 'of no permit is
rtspilred by the Corps of Engineers, then the guarantes of Section 21 (b) cannot
he applied* misses the point entirely, for it supposes that the States cannot impotte
their own laws on their eitizens except through the medium of a federal license.
The purpose of Section 21 (b) of the Wafer Quality Intprovetnent Act 18 to prevent
the fcderai government from licensing polluting activities which, are unlawful
under the laws of the state where the activities occur; it is unnecessary to bring
this ,Seetion into play where a federal license has not issued and the polluting
(al irity ix therefore illegal under federal as well as state law.'" (Italic supplied.)

I respectfully suggest tlmt Mr. Kashlwa, not the Conservation Foundation,
misses the point entirely.

First, not all polluters are subject to water quality standards under seetion
10( e) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. The only polluters who are
subject to water quality standards are those who discharge wastes into interstate
watiqs covered by section 10(c) or into those noninterstate waters for which the
Sta te has adopted its nwn standards.

Second, Mr. Kaslihva states that the purpose of section 21(b) is to prevent
the Federal Governnient from licensing polluting activities in violation of State
la ws. That is far too narrow an interpretation of the law.

Its purpose is to assure that all activities, which, in order to discharge law-
fully into a navigable waterway, must obtain a Federal license or permit, will
also comply with applicable Federal, State, or local water quality standards.
Congress sought to assure this through the use of a certifleation issued by a State,
or. If appropria te. by the Secretary of the Interior.

Clearly. a discharger who has failed to obtain a Corps permit under the 1899
Act is not "lawfully" discharging into ii waterway. Yet that discharger is dis-
charging into a waterway, probably without consideration of applicable water
quallty standards. There is no assurance that a State is aware of the dis-
harger's violation of its standards. let alone the Federal law. But, if the dis-
charger is required to obey tbe law and apply for a Corps permit, it will soon come
to light whether the discharger is or is not complying with applicable fita Tula rd

Third, and most importantly, as we have stated time and time again, the 1899
law is a valid Act of Congress. it must be enforced. No polluter may discharge
refuse into a navigable waterway without a Corps permit. The responsibility
of the polluter to get a permit IR not diminshed or eliminated by the fact that the

pollnter may be violating a Federal or State law too.
Mr. Kashiwa, In his July 27,1970. letter to the Foundation, also said as follows
"Let me here assert that where tbe Department is supplied by a United States

Attorney or any other source with bard evidence of a violation of the Refuse Act.
and where the violation is of a type which the United States Attorney cannot
under the Guidelines initiate on his own authority. this; Department will author-
ize the initiation of the action. unless effective measures to abate that pollution

51- r,no-70
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are already being taken by the Federal Water Ouct lity Administration or by a
State through court action.' " (Italie supplied.)

I am very puzzled by Mr. Knshiwa's statement when viewed in juxtaposition
with the Justice Department's Guidelines.

Does he really mean that where any U.S. nttorney requesting authorization to
institute an action against a violator of the 1899 law shows first; that the violator
is continuously discharging wnstes into a navigable waterway; second, thnt he
has hard evidence of a violation; and third, that the Federal Water Quality
Administration or a State has not already taken steps "to abate that pollution
through court action," the Justice Department will authorize such action? If the
answer to that question is "yes," then I congratulate Mr. Kashiwa for, in effect,
sacking the guiderines by defining "proceeding" to mean kbere must be underway
a FWQA or State instituted "court action."

This would be a far cry from the totally non-public-interest position of the
Justice Department, its stated in its guidelines. While it does not conclude that a
Corps pe.rmit must be obtained regardless of the Federal Water Qunlity Admin-
istration's or a State's court action, it has the same effect. Why? Because there
are no Federal Water Quality Adthinistration abatement actions now in court
under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, nnd, to my knowledge, none is on
the horizon.

Mr. Kashiwa's letter explains that one of the purposes of the gui(lelines was to
acquaint the U.S. attorneys thnt actions not merely for fines and imprisomnent,

-
ut also for injunctive relief could be brought under the Refuse Act. The report

the House Government Operations Committee emphasized this aspect of en
foreement of tbe act. I am pleased that the Justice Department is now em-
phasizing it too.

I again enli on the Justice Department to respond to my letter of July 8, 1970,
rescind .the guidelines, and vigorously enforce the 1899 law as the Corps is now
doing.

I append the text of the Corps of Engineers press release of July 30, 1970;
Senator PirtuP A. Ilsicr's letter of August 7, 1970, to Senator &LENDER urging
that $4 million be addetrto the Corps appropriation for fiscal yenr 1971 ; and Mr.
Kashiwa's letter of July 27. 11)70. to the Conservation Foundation and the Foun-
dation's reply of August 7, 1970, for inclusion in the RECORD at this pOint:

NOTE.The Corps of Engineers press release of July 30, 1970, is printed on
p.120 of this appendix.]

"U.S. SENATE,
" ira.vb inYlon. D.C.. August 7, 1970.

"Hon. ALLEs J. ELLENIIER,
"U.S. Senate,
"Washington, D:C.

"Dritu SENATOR ELLENDER : In hearings last week on mercury pollution before
the Senate Subcommittee on Energy, Natural Resources and the Environment,
we discussed the potential usefulness of the Refuse Act of 1S09 to prevent further
crises of the kind experienced with mercury. The Corps of Engineers testified
that while the Act was a valuable tool for pollution control, it had not been used
as such in the Vast. The Corps pledged, however, to begin to administer the Act
aggressively if adequate staff and funding could be made available.

"The Act states that no waste mny he dumped into the navigable waters of the
United States without n permit from the Corps. It thus provides a msans to com-
pile an inventory of nil effluents heing discharged into our waters and to effect
pre-elearanee by Federal authorities of all potentially harmful pollutants in
such discharges. Such inventorying and pre-clearance mechanisms, I would
argue. ure essential to effective water pollution control.

"These mechanisms will operate. however, only if those discharging waste
are made phiinly aware of the permit requirements of tbe Refuse Aet. Increased
personnel will be needed both to pnss on applications nnd to police those who fail-
to apply on their own initiative.

"The Corps"faet sheet' of August 4 specifies additional personnel nnd
funds required to 'initiate expanded activity' under tbe Act. It is my hope that
your committee will include in the hill it reports their figure of $4.000,000 for
Neal year 1971. In light of the alarming evidence of nationwide water pollution
with which we nre Increasingly confronted, we must do what is necessary to
reverse the trend. Inerensed appropriations for the administration of the Refuse
Act. I believe, would lie n major step in that effort:

"Sincerely yours,
"PHILIP A. HART,

"Chairman, Subcommittee on Energy,
1 riaral Resources and the Environment."
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"Mr. ARTIItru A. DAVIS,
"Vire Pvcsiarnt. The Conservation Foundation,
"Washington, D.C.

"DEAR MR. DAVIS : I am lumpy to have this opportunity to answer the ques-
tions with regard to the enforeement of the Refuse Aet raised in your iftter of
July 15, 1970 to me, and to correct the misconstruction of our Guidelines for
Litigation under the Refuse Aet which have been publicized by certain persons
and whih are reflected in your lettr.

"The first thing which you must realize is that the Guidelines are instruc-
tions to the United States Attorneys. The reason for the issuance of the Guide-
lines was that many United States Attorneys were unfamiliar with the provisions
of the Refuse Act of lts90, mut those who were familiar with it were uncertain
as to how they might proeeed to prosecute violations. For example, Section 17
of the ItIVPCS and Harbors Art of 1899 (of whieh the Refuse Act is Section 13)
states that 'it shall be the duty of the United States Attorneys to vigorously
prospeute all offemirs agninst the * * [Refuse Aeti when requested to do
so by the Secretary of the Army or by any of the officials hereinafter designated
* *.' It has become increasingly common, however, for possible offenses of
the Refuse Aet to be reported to the United States Attorneys from sources other
than those designated in the statute, and the manner of proem, ding on Allese
eases, therefore, Was not clear. Very often, the reports of violations were in the
most general terms-41: Company is polluting'and nothing even remotely
resembling proof in support of the allegation was presented; the problem then
arose, how lo ObtatIl evidence to prove Ow charge in court.

"Furthermore, the Refuse Artthat is, 33 U.S.C. 407is in its exprss terms
of criminal statute, and the only sanctions specifically provided for the violation
of its provisions are fine and/or imprisonment. Obviously, thus to punish pollu-
timi without stopping it would not be of much aid to the environment.

-nn purpose of the Guidelines, then, was to advise the United States At-
torneys thot they might take action on violations of the Refuse Act reported from
any sourw, to imlivato to them what Federal ngencies could be of assistance to
them in securing proof of the allegations of discharges in violation of the Refuse
Act, and to acquaint tiuun with tiw Met that the Delmrtluent believed that actions
not merely for fines and imprisonment, but also for injunctive relief could, in
fi ppropria te eases, be brought under the Refuse Art.

"To this end, the first significant change in previous procedures instituted by the
Guidelines was to authoriw the United States Attorneys, when they luid acquired
what they deemed to he evidence sufficient to prove a case, to inithite on their own
initia tire and authority, with no need of approval tom the Deportment of Justice
in Washington, either criminal actions to punish violations of the Refuse Act, or
civil actions to enjoin such violations. Prior td the authorization to bring such
actions thus conferred by the Guidelines, any United States Attorney who wished
to bring any type of action under the Refuse Act involving shore-based pollution,
expept in New York Harbor, was required to secure the approval of the Depart-
meot of Justive. Thus the statement on page 2 of your letter, that prior to the
issuance of the Guidelines Departmental clearance for the initiation of an action
under the Refuse Act wns not required, simply is not correet, and the Guidelines
represent a significant decentralization of authority in the operations of the De-
partment.

"Now it is true that there are three significant areas wherein the requirement
for-Departmental elearance was continued. These three areas are tiet forth in
Paragraph 111-3, 4 and 5 of the Guidelines. These three exceptions embrace al-
leged violations of the Refuse Act by (1) State or municipalities, or persons whose
actions in violation of the Refuse Act are PurportNlly authorized by States or
municipalities; (2) persons or firms whose polluting activities are the subject
of an administrative proceeding conducted hy the Federal Water Quality Ad-
ministration, and 3) persons or firms who are the mihject of State, County or
Municipal civil or criminal litigation. (A fourth exception, involving foreign
vessels, is of minor consequence). In any matter falling within these three ex-
ceptions, the United States Attorney may not initiate action on his own; Instead.
as required by Paragraph 111-7 of the Guidelines, he must assemble the facts
and evidence Awing that a case EXJAS, OM then, after himself making the
initial decision as to whether injunctive or criminal sanctions would most be in

"DEPARTIOiNT OF JUSTICE,
"Washington, D.C., July 27, 1970.
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the public interest, forward the information either to the Criminal Division or
to this Division to secure authorization to bring the suit,

"Much of the criticism 1 have rend of the Refuse A ct Litigation Guidelines
appears to be based on the assumption that because the United States Attorneys
may not themselves initiate three types of actions, then the Depa rhaent of
Justice will not initiate actiOns falling within these three areas. lint this assmup-
tion is erroneous, and indeed could not have been arrived at by anyone willing
to read the guidelines carefully: the first sentence of Paragraph 11- 1 states:

"'The policy of the Department of Justice with respect to the enforcement of
the Refuse Act for purposes other than the protection of the navigable capacity
of our national waters, is

" '(1) not to attempt to use it as a pollution abatement statute in competition
with the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or with State pollution abatement
procedures, but rather

" ' (2) to use it to supplement that Act by bringing appropriate actions either to
punish the occasional or recalcitrant pautor, or to abate continuing sources of
pollution which for some reason or other have not been subjected to a proceeding
by the Federal Water Quality Administration or by a State, or where in the
opinion of the Federal Water Quality Administration the pollutor has fulled to
comply with obligations under such a procedure.'

-1 have added the brackets and underlining to this quotation to facilitate its
reading, since so many seem to have had difficulty in reading it 111 its ordina ry
form, and to emphasize that continuing industrial discha rgest are not a utianatically
exempted from prosecution by the Department. In your letter, you stated on
page three :

" 'We recognize that the Refuse Act does not itself constitute a wa t er pollution
control prograin. Rather it Is a ',leans by whieh federal Had state water quality
ilrograms can be enforeed.'

"This, I think you will agree, is substantially the same as the quoted hinguage
f rom our policy statement.

"But to Make the matter clear beyond doubt, let me here assort that whew I he
Department is supplied by a United States Attorney or any other SOIMP With
hard evidence of a violation of the RefuseoAct, and where the viola t ion Is of a
type whiell tbe United States Attorney cannot under the Guidelines initiate on
his own authority, this Department will authorlw the initiation of the actitm,
unless effective Inca SUITS to abate that pollution are already !Wing taken by
the Federal Water Quality Administration or by a State through court action.

"This brings us to your suggestion that the Corps of Engineers use its permit
authority to require pollutors to obtain licenses, thereby requiring them to muiply
with applicable water quality standards. What policies the Corps of Engineers
might adopt with respect to the issuance of licenses under tbe Refuse Act is, of
course, a matter for the Corps to decide, but I cannot agree with you that the
licensing procedure you advocate would be an effective way to abate pollution.
The chief defect of the plan is that it does indirectly, and requires an extra step
to do, what may now be done directly and without further licensing. No person
or firm at the present time is exempt from the requirement of cOmpliance with
water quality standards, where those standards have been established ; and it is
therefore completely unnecessary for the Federal Government to license a per-
son's activities to subject him to those standards. Thus your statement on page
3 of your letter tbat "if no permit ia required by the Corps of Engineers, then
the guarantees of Section 21(b) cannot be applied" misses the point entirely,
for it supposes that the States cannot impose their own laws on their citizens
except tbrough tbe medium of a Federal license. The purpose of Section 21 (b)
of the Water Quality Improvement Act is to prevent the federal government
from licensing polluting activities which are unlawful under the laws of the
state where the activities occur; it is unnecessary to bring this Section into play
where a Federal license has not issued and the polluting activity is therefore
illegal under Federal as well as State law.

"In my opinion, the policy we are pursuing is the one most calculated to obtain
the maximum results from existing statutes. Since, under our Guidelines, the
United States Attorneys now have considerable authority to initiate actions
under the Refuse Act. on their own, I do not know how many actions have been
initiated by them since June 15, and I expect that it may be some time before
we can have these figures. We have attempted to act promptly on the requests
for authorization which have been sent in to us pursuant to the Guidelines: as
you may hare read, we recently authorized the United States Attorney in New

1""
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Haven, Connecticut to initiate actions against the City of Bridgeport and five
firms within the city to enjoin their violations of the Refuse Act. We have given
similar authority to the United States Attorney in Cleveland with respect to
the continuing violations of the Refuse Act committed by a chemical company.
On Friday, July 24, having been supplied with evidence of violations by the
Department of the Interior, we authorized the United States Attorneys to hring
actions to enjoin the discharges into the navigable waters of the United States
of mercury issuing from ten plants. Other requests for authorization are under
study.

"One of the most important things for you to be aware of Is that the greatest
limitation on our ability to bring actiona under the Refuse Act is not that sta-
tute, or any other statute, or our policies thereunder, but the acquisition of sub-
stantial evidence to prove-the charge. It Is apparently your assumption that the
Corps of Engineers lms referred to the Department of Justice many alleged viola-
tions of the Refuse,Act, which the Department has failed to prosecute ; I think
that If you will cheek with the Corps of Engineers, and its regional offices, you
will find that in fact the United States Attorneys have asked the Corps of En-
gineer.: in supply data or evidence with respect/to many alleged violations, but
Mat th Corps, because of limitations of manpower, simply has not been able
to investigate these alleged violations, or to supply the required data. Lacking
proof of a violation of the Refuse Act, the United States Attorneya cannot go to
Court. Improvd ways of obtaining proof, and the opening up on the local level
of channels of communication between tho United States Attorneys, the regimed
offices of the Corps of Engineers, and the local offices of the Federal Water
Quality Administration, are subjects which are now under discussion. I believe
that the situation will improve considerably In the near future, and that if you
hut observe our implementation of the Guidelines, you will be more than satisfied
with the actions we take.

"Sincerely,
"SHIRO KASTIMA,

"A8sistanf Attorney General."

"THE CONSERVATION FOUNDATION,
"Woshington, D.C., August 7, 1970.

"11011. SIMI) KASHIWA,
".1Ysistant Attorney General, Lands and Notural Resources Division, Depart-

meot of Justice, Washington, D.C.
"DEsa MR. KAsHrws: We appreciate your response to our letter of July 15

regarding the Justice Department Guidelines for Litigation under the Refuse
Act. Your letter has, indeed, clarified the Department's position.

"The need to inform U.S. Attorneys about Refuse Act remedies is. as you
explain, understandable. Certainly we agree that the Refuse Act could be uSed
with more effect if U.S. Attormys were made more familiar with it.

"Our basic difficulty, which yqur letter has not dispelled, Is with the under-
lying policy' of the Guidelines. There is a difference between use of the Refuse
Act as a supplement to the federol and stat water quality program, and its
use as an enforcement tool to pursue t hot program.

"This difference Is highlighted by the statement In your reply that water
quality standards can be obtained without regard to the provisions of :iection
'21(1) of the Water Quality Improvenwnt Act. You note that 'no person or firm
nt the present time is exempt from the requirement of compliance with water
quality standards, where thow slumlords hove been established: and it is.
therefore, completely unnecessary for the Federal Government to license a
person's activities to subject him to those standards." Your letter goes on to
my that our reCommended use of Section 21(b) 'misses the point entirely, for
it supposes that the States cannot impose their own laws on their citizens except
through the medium of a Federal licenv.'

"The policy you articulate disregards the theory behind the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act; Federal leverage/IS required to force States to establish
and implement water quality standards: Mercury dumping Is only one example
indicating that while states now have a water pollution permit system, they
frequently neglect it. That the Federal Government should insist on such State
attention to individaal pollutoei is consistent with current Federal water pollu-
tion policy. Therefore, Section 21(b) requires States to implement their pollution
controls under Federal supervision over all U.S. navigable waters, whether or



not intrastate. Federal policing initiative under the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act is, of course, limited to interstate pollution.

"Use of Refuse Act permits under Section 21(b) likewise allows quick Federal
enforcement of State water quality standards through injunctive remedies, rather
than under the six month proeedures on which FWQA must rely. Where the
Federal Government alone has testing facilities capable of detecting pollution,
especially the toxic Variety like mercury, this injunctive use of Refuse Aet
remedies under section 21(b) is both logical and necessary. Once Corps permits
were issued In neeordance with Section 21 (b), the Federal Government would be
in a position to take quick abatenwnt action when it determines that State
water quality standards were being viola t l in U.S. no vit.:aide waters.

"We are hartened, of omrse, to know that the Justice Department has
taken netion against certain Companies now dumping mercury hi violation or
the Refuse Aet, We hope that the Dellart meat will take similar :lethal against
the unlawful discharge of other insidimis. less notorious substances in tlw future.
That such actWns have been diflieult to bring lwea use U.S. Attorneys hick infor-
mation on Refuse Act violations should be easily remedWd. It is true, as you
state 'that the Corps, because of limitations of nmnpower, shopIS, Ims not heel'
able to inVestigate these alleged violattions or to suilply the niquinid data.' But
although the Corim does require a larger staff in its district iwrialt offices,
expertise on these matters resides with the FWQA not the Corps. Vigorous
efforts of tlw Justice Department would Nem iet direeted to ensure Optimum
cooperation from the FWQA. We look forward to early and satisfactory reports
of your current efforts to improve the relations between Justke and the FIVQA.

'We were gratified to learn that the Departnient will authorize actions under
the Refuse Act 'unless effective measures to abate that pollution are already
being taken by the Federal Water ()minty Administration or by a State through
eourt action.' As we observe the Department's implementation of the Guklelines,
we share your hope that we will be Satisfied with the rsults.

"Sincerely,
"Ames A. DAVIN,

"Vice President for Operations."

Hon. HENRY S. REttss,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Conservation and Natural Resources, Comnattee

on Government Operations, Rouse of Representatives, Washington, D.r.
DEAR Ma. limes : In the absence of the Chief of Engifwers, I am responding

to your recent letter urging the Corps of Engineers to initiate a permit program
under the Refuse Act, 33 U.S.C. 407, and also urging the corps to revise its public
notices posted near navigable waters to apprise the public that one.half the
fines collected are payable to persons giving Information lending to mnvietion.

I am pleased to inform you that prior to receipt of your letter tiw Department
of the Army had announced the initiation of a new penult program under the
Refuse Act, 33 U.S.C. 407. This appears in the testimony of Mr. Robert E. Jordan
III, general counsel and special assistant to the Secretary of the Army for Civil
Functions, and from a news release dated July 30, 1970, copies of both being
enclosed for your ready reference.

I have considered your suggestion that notices posted by the Corps of En-
gineers near navigable waters should advise the public that under the Refuse
Act one-half of the fine imposed by a court shall be payable to the person or
persons giving information which shall lead to conviction. Till' courts have hehl
that payment ls made to an informer only when a fine Is imposed. Where tlw
Government pursues a civil remedy no payment is due the Informer. Normally
the Government proceeds civilly, rather than criminally, under the Refuse Act.
Most cases of illegal discharges involve either discharges from vessels, where
a civil penalty is assessed against the vessel or discharges from shore-based
industrial facilities, where the seeking of an injunction is the most effective use
of the Refuse Act. I am fearful that the public will be led to false expectations
if posted notices encouraged the 7eporting of violations for financial gain. How-

DEPARTMENT flF TIIE ARMY,
OFFICE OF THE CIIIEF OF ENOINEF.RR,

Washington, D.C., August 20, 1970.
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ever, I intend to explore this question further by consultation with the Depart-
'ment of Justice.

I thank you again for your interest in the role that the corps can play in
pollution control,

Sincerely,
C. H. DUNN,

Major General, United States Army,
Deputy Chief of Engineers.

U.S. MUSE OK REPRESENTATIVES.
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL itESOURCES SIDOCOMMITTEE,

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
.Washington, D.C., August 24, 1970.

Lt. Gen. FREDERICK J. CLARKE,
Chief of Engineers, Department of the Army,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR GENERAL CLARKE: The data furnished to this subcommittee in tabular
form by the Corps of Engineers on June 24, 1970, concerning permits issued by
the corps under the River and Harbor Act of March 3, 1899 (30 Stat. 1151), has
been quite helpful to us.

I.

The data provided to us in table A raises some points that need clarification.
That table is entitled : "Data concerning existing permits issued since March. 3,
1899, by the Corps of Engineers to any person for the purpose of discharging
industrial wastes into navigable waters within or bordering any State." We
would appreciate your response to the following, before September 8, 1970:

1. Many of the permits listed in table A show that the term of the permit
expired prior to the date that table A was prepared and submitted to us (e.g.,
New Jersey, p. 9) Shell Chemical Co. was issued a permit on Septenther 27,
1961, under section 10 of the n(t and the term of the permit expired Dec, 31, 1964).
In view of the language of the heading of table A, please state:

(a) Does the corps consider all permits shown on table A as still "exist-
ing?" ,

(b) If the answer to (a) is no, please state why these permits were so
listed in tabk! A.

(c) If the answer to (a) is yes, why does column 6 ("term of permit")
of table A state that some permits have expired?

(d) If the date specified in column 6 of table A 'refers only to the period in
which construction must be completed, to what extent does the corps
maintain control over the use and operation of the completed structure
under that permit?

(c) Does the corps require the permittee to obtain periodically a renewal
of the permit so long as the structure remains?

( f ) If not, please state why not?
2. Column 7 "Date of Last Inspection to Insure Compliance with Permit" of

table A KIIONVS the date of last inspection to insure compliance with the permit.
In many cases, there have been no recent inspections.

(a) Please state the vorps policies concerning inspection of activities
conducted under corps perliiit.

(b) Does the corps inspect tho work (1) during Rs construction, and (ii)
periodically after its completion?

(c) How many persons does the corps now employ to"perform such in-
spect ions?

(d) How many inspectors will the corps need to perform this work In
furtherance of its new full enforcement policies and regulations?

(c) Please provide to us a 5-year (fiscal years 1972-77) estimate of funds
and personnel needs (1) for such 'inspections, and (ii) for implementing
fully the policies set forth in the corps news release of July SO, 1970.

II.

Mr. Robert E. Jordan III, spedal assistant to the Secretary of Army or Civil
Functions, testified on July 29, 1970, before the Senate SubcOmmittee o 'Energy,
Natural Resources, and Environment that :

134



132

"Although our section 403 permit program is limited to applications for permits
for work in navigable waters and we do not have at this moment a program which
requires a permit for discharges or deposits into navigable waters, we are

, presently working on the establishment of a permit specifically relating to
discharges.

-* We are instructing all district engineers that permits required for
future discharges into navigable waters and that applications for such permits

must be accompanied by an appropriate State certiiicatiGn" (italic supplied).
Table A, whose heading refers to permits "for the purpose of discharging

industrial wastes into navigable waters," indicates that all except six of the
permits listed in that table were issued under "section 10". of the River and
Harbor Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403) .

3. (a) Does this mean that the corps construes all the permits ,listed on table
A, particularly including those listed as issued under section 10, as covering
both the construction of the structure therein authorized and the discharge and
deposit of refuse material?

( b) If the refuse to be discharged is solids, would the section 10 permit cover
such discharges?

(c) If the answers to (a) and/or (b) are yes, what is the statutory basis for
so construing these permits?

(d) Please provide to us a copy of each of the permits listed on table A.
1. l'ialer the new policy stated by Mr. Jordan, will the corps require that an

applicant who is applying- for a Permit to construct, for example an outfall
stAwir,iuiist also apply for' a permit to discharge refuse from such sewer ?

5. If there is any existing corps permit issued since March 3, 1899, authorizing
the discharge of industrial wastes into navigable waters within or bordering
any State under section 18 of the act (83 U.S.C. 407), other than those listed
on table A, please provide a supplemental table A, in the same format.

6. In its news release of July 30, 1970, the corps said that permits "will also be
required for current discharges *. * * whereno permits have been granted." Mr.
Jordan testified that permits "will be required for future discharges" (italic sup-
plied).

(a) Please explain the apparent discrepancy between these two statements.
(b) Das the corps developed and published regulations governing discharges

under section 13 of the act ?
(c) If the answer to (TO is uo, please tell us when such regulations will be

developed and published. ,

(d) If the answer is yes, please provide to us a copy of them.

Table B enclosed with your letter of June 24, 1970, to us provides data con-
cerning xisting-permits issued since January 1, 1905 by the Corps of Engineers
to any person for the purpose of discharging dredged material into navigable
waters within or bordering any State. Column "section of 1899 act under which
permit issued" of table B states that most of these permits were also issued under
seetion 10 of the act.

7.. (a) Please explain to lls why these permits were issued under section 10 of
tlw 1899 law and not section 13.

(b) Please explain to WI why some permits are listed under other sections
of the net?

(c) PleaSe provide to us a copy of each of the permits listed on table B.
(d) Why were permits listed on table B for New York issued under the 1899

law and not under the New York Stpervisory Act (33 U.S.C. 441-451) ?
8. As in table A, there appears to be a descrepancy between the heading of

table B which indicates thatall of the listed permits are "existing" and column
(3) "Term of Permit," which shows some permits have expired.

(a) Does the corps.conshler all permits shown on table B as still "existing"?
(b) If the answer is no, please state why these permits were so listed in

table B.
(c) If the answer is yewhy does column (.1) state that some permits have

expired? ,
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( d) Does the corps require the permittee to obtain a renwal of the permit
in order to continue dredging?

(e) If not, please state why not.
Sincerely,

Herm S. Reuss,
Chairman, Conscrvation and Nat HMI Ri'sourees On licntnni UP 0.

U.S. House OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CON SERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE,

COM MITTEE ON GOVFAN M EN T OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., August 25, 1970.

Lt. Gen. P. J. CIARKE,
chief of Engineers, U.S. Army,
Washington, D. o .

DEAR GENERAL CLARKE : We appredate Maj. Gen. C. H. Dunn's reply of
AugnSt 20, 1970, to our letter of July 28, 1970, coneerning the corps' enforce-
ment of the 1899 Refuse Act.

We were pleased to learn, as I stated in my letter of August 19, 1970, that
the corps adopted a policy of full enforcement of the law in accordance with
our recommendation I of July 28, 1970.

Our subcommittee's letter of July 28, 1970, to yon also suggested that notices
posted by the corps near navigable waters should advise the public that under
the Refuse Act (33 U.S. Code 407, 411) one half of the fine imposed on a violator
of that statute is payable to the person or persons giving information which
lead to conviction.

Maj. General Dunn's response of August 20 states:
The courts have held that payment is made to an informer only when

a flue is imposed. Where the Government pursues a civil remedy no pay-
ment is due the informer. Norma/fp the Government proceeds civilly, rather
than criminally, under the Refuse Art. Most cases of illegal disidtarges
involve either discharges front vessels, where a civil pcmilty Is ossessed
ngainst the vessel or discharges from shore-based industrial facilities, where
the seeking of an injunetiou is the most effective use of the Refuse Aet.
I am.fearful that the public will be led to false expectations if posted notices
encouraged the reporting of violations for financial gain. (Italics supplied.)

We would appreciate your providing tlw following information to us :
1. Please eite each case and provkle a copy of the opinion or judgment

therein, in which courts ruled that payment to informers is payable only
where "a fine" is imposed?

2. What is the Government's authority for the Government to assess
"a eivil penalty" against a vessel in the case of an illegal discharga. under
the Refuse Act?

We appreciate General Dunn's statement that you are consulting with the
Department of Justice concerning our suggestion about revising the notice. In
this connection, we point out to yon as follows :

(a) If 33 U.S.C. 411 provides the authority referred to in question 2
aboVe, it would certainly seem that such interpretation also applies to au-
thorize payment of ,a moiety to tbe informer where a civil penalty is assessed,
as well as where a flue is imposed.

Moreovr. recent publicity given to cases filed by the Justice Thpaxment in
the past year under the 1899 law would indicate that, In most cases, tip Gov-
ernment has sought erlininal, not civil, remedies.

(b) House Report 91-917, issued by the Home Committee on Go rnment
Operations on March 18, 1970, pointed out that a itizen may bri g a qui
tarn action for his moiety of the fine or penalty.

Both of these points support our suggestion for revision of the notice.
We would appreciate yottr response and comment.

Sincerely,
nErrst S. REUSS,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Ruhrommitter.
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY,
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF ENGINEERS,

Wasbingion, D.C., September 10, 1070.
Hon. Many S. REUSS,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Conservation and Natiiral Resources, Washing.

ton, D.C.
Mau Ma. REUSS : General Clarke has asked that I acknowledge your recent

letter requesting certain information on the data furnished your subcommittee
on June 24, 1970, on permits issued under the River and Harbor Act of March 3,
1899.

In .order to comply with your request, extensive research and review and
coordinaHon with the Office of the Secretary of the Army will be necessary,"'
Upon completion thereof, I will fUrnish General Clarke with complete informs'.
don on the matter for further communication with you.

Sincerely yours,
.T. B. NEWMAN,

Colonel, Corps of Engineers,
Ervecutive Director of Civil Works.

U.S. NOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES.
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUPCOM

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS.
Washington, D.C.. t4eptember 18,1070.

HOD. GEORGE II. MAHON,
rhnirman, House Committee on Appropriations,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ma. CHAIRMAN : I want to bring to your attention the urgent, need for,
and the great public benefit'whieb can result from, providing to the Corps of
Engineers the funds needed to finance the corps' newly announced program of
requiring that persons who discharge wastes into the Nation':= waterways, seek
and obtain corps permits.

The corps new program stems from the report issued by the Committee on
Government Operations (H. Rept. 91-917, March 18, 1970) prepared by our sub-
committee, entitled "Our Waters and Wetlanda: How the Corps of Engineers
Can Help Prevent Their Destruction and Pollution." Two copies of the commit-
tee's report are enclosed.

The committee's recominendations 6, 7, and 8, were as follows :
6. The Corps of Engineers should vigorouslY enforce the Refuse Act of

1899 which prohibits discharge of refuse into navigable waters and deposit
of polluting materials on their banks (p 17).

7. Both the Corps of Engineers and the Federal Water Pollution Control
Administration should request the Attorney General to institute Injunction
suits against all persons whose discharges or deposits (except minor ones)
violate the Refuse Act and are not promptly cleaned up or stopped by the
Polluter (p. 18).

8. The Corps of Engineers should proceed to increase its capability, in-
cluding seeking tbe necessary contingency funds, to enable it to promptly
remove or clean up pollutional discharges and deposits and to seek reimburse-
ment of the costs thereof from persons who willfully or negligently mode or
caused such discharges or deposits (p. 18).

Pursuant to these recommendations, the Corps of Engineers announced on
July 30,,1970, its new program to enforce the 1899 Refuse Act. Specifically, the
corps said. RR follows (See Congressional Record (daily issue) p. H8364) :

Permits will be required for all industrial discharges into navigable
waters and their tributaries. New permits will be required where existing
permits were granted without adequate consideration of the quality of
the effluent. ermits will also be required for current discharges into
navigable rs where no permits have been been granted.

We believe that t is new policy Is a giant step in the direction of controlling
industrial waste discharges that degrade our Nation's waterways. The corps has
informed us that there are 22 States in which there are no permits authorizing
the discharge.of wastes into our waterways. In other States only a few permits
have been issued. Thus, there are thonsands of industries now discharging wastes
without any corps permit and in violation of the 1899 law. Under tbe corps' new
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policy, the polluter will either have to apply for and obtain a corps permit, or
face prosecution under the Refuse Act, or cease discharging its wastes.

The executive branch, however, has failed to ask the Congress to appropriate
funds for the current fiscal year to implement this policy. Without such funds, the
new policy will be gravely hampered find have little capacity to prevent pollution:

Recently- the corps told Senator Hart's Subcommittee on Energy, Natural
Resources, and the Environment that $4 million would be needed tbls fiscal year
to implement its new policy.

We understand that Senator Ellender, chairman of the Senate Appropriations
Committee, will hold hearings for the purpose of including such .funds in .the
supplenwntal appropriation bill to be considered before Congress adjourns (Cong.
Rec. pp. S13992-93).

We hope your committee will favorably report the approprlition of the sum
needed by the Corps of Engineers to implement their new policy fully in this
fiscal year. We must not allow the momentum that has been built up since our
committee's report of last March to wither away because the executive branch
postpones the funding of the corps' new and positive pollution control efforts.

I shall be very glad to testify before your committee on this matter if you
hold hearings on it.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REttss,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SuncoIMITT,

COM MITTEE ON GOVERN RENT OPFItATIONS,
Washington, D.C., September 23, 1970.

The PRESIDENT,
The White House,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ma. PaasmENT: I want to bring to your attention the urgent need for,
and the great puhlie benefit which can result from, providing to the Corps of
Enginetrs the funds needed to finance the corps' newly announced program of
requiring that pensons who discharge wastes into the Nation's waterways must
ha ve corps permits.

The corim' new program is fully in accord with the objectives of your environ-
ment ifiessitge to Congress of February 10, 1970 (H. Doc. 91-225).

Jt also embodies the recommendations in the report issued on March 18, 1970,
by the Connittee on Government Operations (H. Rcpt. 91-917) ant! prepard by
our subconnaittee, entitled "Our Wnjers and Wetlands: HoW the Corps of Engi-
neers Can Help Premit Their Destruction and Pollution."

Pursuant to the committee's recomnwndations, the Corps of Engineers an-
nounced onJuly 30, 1970, its new program to.enforce the 1899 Refuse Act. Specifi-
cally, the corps said as follows (see Cong. Rec. (daily issue), p. II8364)

Permits will be required for all industrial discharges into navigable waters
and their tributnrieN. Nov permits will be required where existing permits
were granted without adequate consideration of the quality of the (diluent.
Permits will also he required for current discharges into navigable waters
where no permits have been granted.

We believe that this new policy is a giant step In the direction of controlling
waste discharges that degrade our Nation's waterways.

The corp..; has Informed us that there are 22 States in which there are no
corps permits authorizing the discharge of wastes. In other States only a few
permits have been issued. Thus, tlwre are thousands of industries now discharg-
ing wastes into our Waterways without any corps permit and in violntion of
the 1899 law.

Under the corps' new policy, the polluter will either have to apply for and
obtain a corps permit, or face prosecution under the Refuse Act, or cease dis-
charging its wastes.

LaSt week, Mr. Robert E. Jordan, III, General Counsel of the Department of
the Army and Special Assistant to the Secretory of the Army for Civil Functions,
testified before our subcommittee that in the 37 engineer districts with civil
functions only approxithately 110 people work in the permit area.
find some of these are part time." He said that in the Detroit District Engineer's
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office "only two men" are assigned to 'titles concerning the issuance and enforce-
ment of Corps permits.

Mr. Jordan indicated that the appropriation of $4 million in this fiscal year
before Congress adjourns "would be a great boost" and would allow the Corps
"to get off to a 'running start" on this important environmental program to pre-
vent further degradation of our Nation's waters.

Unfortunately, an official request for this amount from the administration
has not yet reached the Congress,

We understand that Senator El lender, chairman of the Senate Appropriations
Committee, will hold hearings for the purpose of including such funds in the
supplemental appropriation bill to be considered before CongresS adjourns. (Cong.
Roe. pp. S13992-93.) We have asked the chairman of the House Committee
on Appropriations to report favorably the aimropriation of this BM.

We urge that you instruct the Corps and the Office of Management and Budget
to necelerate the sending of a budget request to the Congress for this sum so
that it may be acted bn in this session of Congress.

To delay this program until the next Congress would be a serious setback
in your, and our, efforts to preserve out Nation's waters.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
FEDERAL _WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION,

TVashington, D.C., September 28, 1970.
HENRY S. REUSS,

Cha irman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.
Washington, D.C.

DEAR AIR. CHAIRMAN Thank you for your letter of March 23, 1970, trans-
mitting copies of House Report 91-917 by the Committee on Government Opera-
tions. entitled "Our Waters and Wetlands: How the Corps of Engineers Can
Help Prevent Their Destruction and Pollution." We have reviewed the report
and have a number of comments on the recommendations. I wish to express
at the outset our gratification that the committee has been addressiog the vital
issues of protecting out waterways and wetlands and the ,need to strengthen
the use of existing authorities as one means of dealing more effectively with
the developments that are threatening these resources.

It is through the dumping of refuse anti tbe destruction and other modifica-
tion of estuarine wetlands under Corps of Engineers permits that much damage
has been done in the past. Action by the Corps of Engineers within its oxi-ting
authorities would go far toward stopping further environmental damages. We
believe that the recommendations of the committee should be implemented, and
we are pleased to note that the Corps of Engineers has already taken a number
of steps to accomplish this through revised regulations and procedure,4.

Our comments on the speeific recommendations are as follows :

RECOMMENDATIONS 1 AND 2

The report states that the Corps of Engineers should "increase its considera-
tion of the effects which the proposed work will have not only on navigation,
but also on conservation of natural resources *." iVe agree wholeheartedly
with this emphasis, and with recommendation 1 regarding instructions to the
district engineers to increase their emphasis on how the proposed work will
affect the environment. We note that the Corps of Engineers is in the process of
making substantial revisions in its procedures to accomplish this.

Recommendation 2 places needed emphasis on a problem we have often
experienced in dealing with environmental issuesthe burden of proof has been
usually borne by those who are concerned about stopping a project to prevent
or mitigate environmental damage. We share the committee's view that the
burden of proof should he shifted to the permit applicant to demonstrate that
his work will not have an undue effect on the environment. We think the environ-
mental statements required by the National Environmental Policy Act will go
a long way towards shifting this burden.

Tbe Department of the Interior has made its expertke in a variety of environ-
mental areas available to other agencies, including the Corps of Engineers. We

1 39



137

have had specific talks with the corps on the makeup of revised procedures
regarding what data and analyses the permit applicant should present to assess
the tsivironmental impact of his proposed work. More recently, we reviewed
proposed regulations developed by the corps in this regard.

We were pleased to note in the corps press release of May 19, 1970 (a t.:opy of
which is enclord), that proposed regulations will require submission of more
complete information from applicants for permits to construct outfall works
and dredge and fill projects. We agree that the information required of appli-
cants for out fa Its will be very useful in evaluating the environmental impact of
sitsb Projects The information to be supplied by dredge and fill applleants on
the areas to be affected and the type and location of proposed structures will be
belpfni. II owPv er, as we have previonsly commented to the corps, more qualitative
information shonld be required hi order to assess the environmental impact of
dredge and fill projects.

We wonld suggest that the Corps of Engineers might n)vise its regulations to
require that applicant ti for permits for significant pruijmts prepare at the outset
a full envirtmmental evaluation of their propowd lwojects. This evaluation would
closely resemble the environmatal statements required by the National En-
vironmental policy Act.

e are presently looking at the feasibility of developing a comprehensive
inventory of all permits for work in coastal and estuarine areas. This might
strengtIten our ea's-Minty b) assess the cumulative Impact of all such work and

ilia. trends in development. A better understanding of these factors wonld lwlp
reviewing agencies identify and predict in advance the areas where dredge and
till and other work requiring a corps ptssoit would have a significant Impact on
water quality or other resonrees.

ItECOM MEND:MON 3

The iiounittee recommends a revision in corps regulations to reduce the Impor-
tance of harbor lines with respect to deckions on applications for permib4 for
work shoreward in navigable waters from harbor lines and to require that
permits issued for such work he subjected to such conditions as the corps deems
necessary to protect the public interest. The committee amplifies the latter
suggestion by recommending that the corps comply with the same interdelmrt-
mental rezh)w and commItat ion for proeedum as liave been used for applications
for permits for similar work in waters where harbor lines are not established.

We are pleased that the corps has issued revised regulations to implement the
eommittee's recommendation, and we coneur with the mops' actions. A copy of
thes(' regal/ill:His Is enclosed for your convenient reference.

RE:COM M EN DATION 4

We share the view of the committee that the public interest should be fully
explored in approving landfill, dredging or other work in navigable waters or
wetlands. The public hearing process can be very valuable in that regard, and
we concur with recommendation 4 (a) and (b) regarding revision of the Corps
regulations to encourage use of public hearings and full recording of recom-
mendations and objections on a particular project. It is our view that the revised
regulations discussed in the corps May 19 press release will satisfy this
recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION 6

This recommendation concerns provision by an applicant of full information
on the "nature, composition, amount and degree of treatment of wastes which
will be discharged from the outfall * a * " and consultation with this Depart-
ment. We concur fully with this recommendation and are pleased to note the
revised regulations proposed by the corps in this regard. This would greatly
facilitate compliance with the certification procedures under section 21 of the
Water Quality Improvement Act of 1970, wherein the State water pollution
control agencies (or, in some eases, the Department of the Interior) must certify
that a proposed project under a Federal license or permit meets applicable
water quality standards.

The Department of the Interior has consulted with the corps on an ad hoc
basis for some time concerning what information is necessary for assessing the
impact of waste discharges. The Department commented to the corps during
development of its revised procedures, and we believe the revisions proposed by
the corps are appropriate.
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RECOMMENDATIONS 6 AND 7

We agree with the committee that section 13 of the River and Harbor Act,
"the Refuse Act," constitutes a valuable, nnd hitherto little used, device for en-
forcing pollution abatement measures. The Department has been meeting with
the corps to determine the most effective means in which we can assist in en-
forcing this act with respect to pollution. The Federal Water Quality Administra-
tion regional directors have been asked to provide all possible assistance in
making field surveys and other actions attendant to prosecutions under this act.

As you tire aware we are also supporting amendments to the Federal Wnter
Pollution Control Act to strengthen our pollution abatement capabilities,
through increasing the scope of the water qluality standards program and au-
thorizing a penalty of up to $10,000 a day for violating the standards.

RECOMMENDATION 8

We concur with the intent of this recommendation to increase the Govern-
ment's capability to clean up refuse atid,.other pollutants in navigable waters
and obtain reimbursement of the costs from dischargers. This would, of course,
neeessitate appropriate congressional action. As a Federal department with thn
primary responsibilities for water pollution control and other environmental
Protection, the Department of the Interior would want to cooperate with any
agencies in this action, similar to arranguments that have been imule between this
Delmrtment and the Department of Transportation in cleaning np oil spills under
the Water Quality Improvement Act. We believe it will be appropriate for the
Departtnent of the Interior to review the methods propote,d for any such clean-
up program, to assun, that adverse water quality impacts were avoided.

The Corps of Engineers might be particularly concerned with cleanup netivi-
ties relating to projects under corps permits in navigable waters or wetlands.
On the side of preventing degradation, the corps might require that piers or
other structures built under corps permits be maintained in a suitable
condition when in use nud tiwn removed when the period of use is over.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the committee's report and rec-
ommendations. Should you require further information or comment, please let us
know.

Sincerely yours,
DAVID D. DoitINICK,

Commissioner.

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE.

COM MITTEE ON GOVERN M ENY OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., September 30, 1970.

HOD. STANLEY 11. REBOR,
secretary of the Army,
Wash inyton, D.C.

DEAR Mn. SecurrAny : On September 17, Mr. Robert B. Jordnn III, your Special
Assistant for Civil Funetions, testified before our subcommittee coneerning the
permit program which the Corps of Engineers will soon initiate under section 13
of the Rivers and Harbors Art of 1899 (the "Refuse Act"), and how thnt pro-
gram will relate to the national inventory of industrial wastes soon to be
established by the Federal Water Quality Administration.

Mr. Jordan's excellent and candid testimony was very helpful to our sub-
committee. The corps' jIrogram which he outlined deinonstrates that your
Department and the Corps of Enginea's are providing great leadership in help-
ing to protect our Nation's waters. not only for navigation, but also for environ-
mental, ecological, esthetic, and water quality purposes. Many members of
Congress share my belief that the corps' willingness to exercise its statutory
responsibilities in a manner which helps protect our environment is truly in the
public interest.

The landmark deeisioi: by the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circnit in
Zabel v. Tabb. which ruiNi on .7uly 16 "that the Secretary (of the Army) can
refuse on conservation grounds to grant a permit under the Rivers and Harbors
Act" should encourage your Department and the Corps of Engineers to increase
its emphasis on the environmental effects of its work and regulatory duties.
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We applaud tbe otitstanding professional manner in whkh the corps approaches
Rs responsibilifles. We' are confident in the corps' ability to carry out its .new
permit program effectively and promptly. The corps has a great tradRion of serv-
k to the country over the years. Its future work in protecting the quality of our
Nation's envhonment will enhance that tradition.

We have urged the President to support the supplemental appropriations for
this fiscal year whkh the corps will need to earry out its new permit program..
Enclosed is a copy of our letter to the President.

Please extend our thanks, and the appreciation of all the other members of
our subcommittee, to Mr. Jordan, Gen. Frederkk Clarke, and to the men and
women of the Corps of Engineers, both civilian and military, who make the corps
the great instRutiou that It is.

Sincerely, --
HENRY S. REUSS,

Chairman,Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.
Guv VANDER JAGY,

Ranking Minority Member, Conservation and Natural Resources
.S ubcommi Hee.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE,

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., October 23, 1970.

MIL JOHN N. MITCHELL,
Attorney General of the United States,
Department of Justice,
Washington, D.C.

liras Ma. ATTORNEY GENERAL: The Corps of Enginers on July 30, 1970, an-
nounced the following new permit requirements under the 1899 Refuse Act
(33 U.S.C. 407) concerning discharges hito navigable waterways :

"Permits will be requked for ail indisstrial discharges into navigable waters
and their tributaries. New permits will be required where existing permits were
granted wRhout adequate eonsideration of the quality of the diluent. Permits
will also be required for current discharges into navigable waters where no
permits have b(pn granted."

We coninwnded the corps for announcing this important new policy and
recognizing its responsibility for vigorous enforcement of the 1899 act. (See
Congressonal Rcord ( daily issue) p. 8362, Aug. 14, 1970.)

Mr. Robert E. Jordan III, General Counsel for the Department of the Army
and Special Assistant to the Secretary of the Army for Civil Functions, testified
before om Subcommittee on September 17, 1970 that the appropriation of $1
million in thls fiscnl year before Congress adjourns "would be a greater boost'
to the corps in implementing tbis important environmental control program.
When we learned that no official request for this sum from the administra-
tion had reached the Congress, we wrote on September 23, 1970, to the Presi-
dnt urging him to Uccelerate a request for this sum in this session of Congress.
A copy of your letter is enclosed for your Information.

The corps' program, as outlined by Mr. Jordan. demonstrates that the eorps
is providing a fresh breath of leadership in helping to protect our Nation'c
waters, not only 'for navigation. but also for environmental. eeologleal, estiwtic,
and water quality purposes. Many Members of Congress share our subcommit-
tee's belief that the corps' :lethal,: in revising its past polides to embrace fully
these other faetors and its expressed willingness and desire to exercise its statu-
tory responsibilities in a mannr which will help protect our environment are
truly in the public interest.

In view of this congreqsional interest, we are distressed to learn that lawyers
of Assistant Attorney Gsneral Kfit4hiwa's Division, at a recent meeting with
other Federal officials, objeeted to the eorps issuing permit: under the 199 act
to industrial disehargers and walked out of the meeting when the corps and
others insisted that its programs should promptly proceed.

1. We should appreciate your providing to us a statement of the Justke
Department's reasons for objecting to the corps' Permit program.

One of the bask reasons why our waterways are increasingly degraded today is
because of failure to stop pollutants at the source from being dischnrged, un-
treated or inadequately treated, into a waterway. Although some pollution (such
as oil, hazardous substances, or pollution controlled under approved plans im-
plementing water quality standards for interstate waters) can be controlled
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at the source under the Federal Water Pollution Control Aet, the net Is not
an effective tool for source control of most forms of industrial and Otiwr
twilution.

Until the House Committee on Government Operations issued its report which
was prepared by our subcommittee (H. Rept. 911.1)1,. Mar. 18, 1970) entitled
"Our Waters and Wetlands : How the Corps of Engineers Cnn Help Prevent Their
Destruction and Pollution," few realized that the 1890 act is an enforeement tool
that fills this gap.

Section 21 (b), which was added to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act by
.the Water Quality Improvement Act of April 3, 1970 (Public Law 1)1-224) and
which requires that an applicant for a corps permit obtain a State certification
that his discharge will be in nemrd_wiikapplIcalle_water_quality standards addl.
to-thUsiknifteance of the 1899 law. But until a corps permit is applied for, that
secthm is not operative.

The landmark decision by the U.S. Court of Appeals for tlw Fifth Circuit in
Zabel v. Tabb, which ruled on July 10 "there is no doubt that the Secretary [of
the Army] can rause on conservation grounds to grant a permit under the Rivers
and Harbors Act." buttresses the corps' ability to control pollution at the source.

Vigorous enforcement of the 1899 act by the Justice Department against con-
tinuing. as well as oceasional, dischargers who fall to obtain corps permits or to
comply with tlw conditions of a corps bermit, as the 1809 law requires, would
certainly help to control pollution. But no one can deny that if the polluters'
discharges are governed by a permit, whieh is issued only after full consideration
of the environmental effect of tho discharge and which carefully prescribes the
conditions of the discharge, greater pollution control at the source will be possible.

We believe that the Justice Departnwnt should vigorously support the corps'
efforts to implement its new program and require, when enforcing the 1809.law,
that all persons contemplating further discharges must seek and obtain corps
permits.

2. (a ) Please list each case under the Refuse Act handled by your Depart-
nwnt live January 1, 1970, in whkh future discharges are contemplated.

(b) Please identify on that list those cases in which the Department re-
qulred or requested tbe discharger to seek and obtain a corps permit for
fut ure discharges.

(c) Please explain why the Department did not require or request the dis-
charger in each of the other cases on that list to obtain such permit.

3. The Thquirtment's guidelines for litigation under the 1899 Refuse Act
were ismwd before the corps announced its new permit policy, and therefore
do not mention that the U.S. attorneys should require or request alleged dis-
chargers to seek and obtain corps permits. Please inform us when you will
revise the muidelines to include such direction to the U.S. attorneys.

SIncerely,
HENRY S. REUSS.

Chatrman, Conservatfon and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

HOUSE OF REpRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUncOMMITTEE

OF TIM COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., October 27, 1970,

Lt. Gen. F. J. CLARKE,
Chief of Engineers, Corps of Enyincers,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR GENERAL CLARKE : Enclosed for your information are copies of two
letters dated October 23. 1970, which we have sent to Chairman Train of the
Council on Environmental Quality and to Director Schultz of the Ofliee of Man-
agement and Budget in support of your efforts to carry out the corps poth.y
annonneed on July O. 1970, to require industrial disehargers of wastes to apply
for a corps permit under the 18911 Ref use Act.

II
The saeommittee has written six letters to you since last May on which we

have receIttal no rely. The delay in replying is subsbihtiallA hindering the work
of this subeommittee. We would appreciate your Talatobt jeply to our letters.

The six subcommittee letters are as follows :
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Two letters addressed to you (dated May 13, 1970, amd August 19, 1970) con-
cerning the corps enforcement responsibilities under the 1899 act and the ad-
visory role of the Federal Water Quality Administration in enforcement of that
net.

One letter addressed to you (dated August 0, 1970) concerning corps permits
issued since January 1900 to fill navigable waterways.

Ow letter addressed to you (dated August 24, 1970) concerning the data
snpplied on June 24, 1970, by the corps to us in tabular form.

One letter addressed to you (dated August 25, 1970) concerning Major General
Dunn's reply of August 20, 1970, to our earlier letter.

One letter addressed to you (dated October 2, 1970) concerning 50 "known
mercury dischargers."

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,

Clutirman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOUIWES SUBCOMiorrix

or THE Cosi M MEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., October 23, 1970.

Mr. GEORGE P. SHULTZ,
Director, Office of 'Management and Budget,
Executive Office of the President, Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ma. &tun : Pursuant to the recomnwndations in the report issued of
March 18, 1970, by the Committee on Government Operations (H. Rept. 91-917)
and Kepared by our subcommittee, entitled "Our Waters and Wetlands: How
the Corps of Engineers Cam 'Help Prevent Their Destruction and Pollution," the
Collis of Engineers announced a new policy to enforce the 1899 Refuse Act as
follows:

"Permits will be required 'for all industrial discharges into navigable waters
and their tributaries. New permits will be required where existing permits were
granted Without adequate consideration of the quality of the effluent. Permits
will also he required for 'current discharges into navigable waters where no per-
mits ha ve been granted."

This new policy is a progressive step forward in our efforts to prevent the
degradation of our Nation's waterways.

Mr. Robert E. Jordan III, General Counsel of the Department of the Army
ond Sptwhil Assistant to the Secretary of the Army for Civil innetions, testified
on September 17, 1070. before our subcommittee that the corps lacks funds a nil
in.r.sonnel to cam out this new policy .promptly. He indicated that a supple-
nwntal appropriation of $4 million in this fiscal year before the 91st Congress
fuljolirns "would h a grent boost" to gAting this important program off "to a
ronning start." -

We wrote on September 23. 1970. to the President urging him to accelerate the
process within the extwutive branch of sending a budget request for this sum
to tlw Congwss. A copy of the letter is enclosed for your inforthation.

We have i4inee learned that' the Secretary of the Army on September 19, 1970.
sought OMB clearance for such a request. Although more than a month has
passed since that action, the budget reqnest still has not been transmitted to the
Congress. In the meantime, full implenwntation of the corps' program is being
dela yed.

Please inform us when the OMB will clear the corps' budget request so that the
Congress can ennsider and act upon it before adjournment of the 91st Congress.
WP urge that you approve and transmit the supplemental request as soon as
Congrss rpconVenes on November 10. 1970.

Sincerely.
HENRY S. REUSS.

Chuirman. Conservution and :Volum! Resources Rubeommittee.
GUY VANDER JAGT,

flanking Minority Member, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcom-
mittee.

[NoTE.The ktter to the Prsident referred to above is printed mi 'pp. 135-1309
of this appendix.]
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HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF TIIE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., October 23, 1970.

Mr. RUSSELL E. TRAIN,
Ch a irmAN1,/puncil on Environment Q
Washiffton, D.C.

DEAR Ms. TRAIN : The subcommittee understands that the Corps of Engineers'
new policy of full enforcement of the 1899 Refuse Act, which it announced on July
30, pursuant to our recommendations, is not yet being carried out because it is
still under review at two levels. First, the Office of Management and Budget
has since September 19, 1970, not cleared the corps' budget request to finance the
new program. Second, your Council has not yet completed its effort to reconcile
the progressive corps policy with the negative guidelines of the Justice Depart-
ment.

The corps' new program demonstrates that it is providing a fresh breath of
leadership in helping to protect our Nation's waters, not only for navigation,
but also for environmental, ecological, esthetic, and water quality purposes.
Many Members of Congress share our belief that the corps' actions in revising Its
past policies to embrace fully these other factors and its expressed willingness
and desire to exercise its statutory responsibilities in a manner which will help
protect our environment are truly in the public interest. But to be effective, it
must be activated.

In support of the corps' request fqr funds to finance the new program, we have
today written to OMB Director 06orge P. Schultz, urging that OMB approve
and transmit Um corps' budget request to the Congress as soon as it reconvenes
on November 10. 40,4o p y of that letter and its enclosure are attached.

We wrote to you on August 19, 1970, concerning the Justice Department's guide-
lines and your own cfforts to coordinate enforcement of the 1899 act with the
corps, Justice, and the Federal Water Quality Administration. We hope we
shall soon receive a reply to that letter.

Every day of delay in carrying out the cores' new permit program consti-
tutes a serious setback in the Government's efforts to prevent pollution and
ha nee the quality of our waters.

We believe that the corps' program can and shonid proceed now. The Council's
efforts to reconcile the Justice Department's guidelines -with -the corps' pro-
gram can continue as the corps' program is being accomplished.

We are confident that the corps can and will carry out its new permit program
effectively and promptly, now that it is armed with the landmark decision by
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit in Zabel v. Tubb. The court's ruling
on July 10 "that the Secretary lof the Amyl can refuse on conservation grounds
to grant a permit under the Rivers and Harbors Act" should encourage the corps
to be ever vigilant in protecting the environment.

We therefore urge that the Council promptly "give the green light to the
corps' program.

We would appreciate it if the Couneil's staff would brief our subcommittee's
staff in the next few days concerning the new program. Our Chief Counsel, Mr.
Indritz. will call or Mr. Gibbons, the Secretary to the Council, to arrange
an appropriate time for such a briefing.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REITSS.

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

145



!

AITENDIX T.-DEPARTME!NT OP JUSTICE GUIDELINES AND RELATED
MATERIALS

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SuncomstrrrEs

OF TIIE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., July 8, 1970.

Hon. JOHN N. MITCIIELL,
.4ttorney General of the United States,
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. ATTORNEY GENERAL : We understand that the Assistant Attorneys
'General for the Civil, Criminal, Land and Natural Resources, and Internal Secu-
rity Divisions of the Justice Department will soon issue to the U.S. attorneys
"Guidelines for Litigation Under the Refuse Act (33 U.S.C. 407)." These "Guide-
lines" will establish the Justice Department's enforcement policy concerning
violations of the Refuse Act by industrial polluters.

We believe that these guidelines (1) are, in many respects, inconsistent with
the 1899 Refuse Act ; (2) indicate a lack of understanding of the provisions of
the Federal Water Pollution Control Mt, as amended (33 U.S.C. 466 et seq.) and
the policies and practices of the Federal Water Quality Administration which
administers that act ; (3) are, in some cases, ambiguous; and (4) are unduly and
startingly negative and discouraging toward any hope of vigorous enforcement
of the act.-Indeed, the "Guidelines" appear to establish a policy of nonenforce-
ment of the 1899 Refuse Act at a time when the Corps of Engineers has most
responsibly issued regulations, pursuant to the committee's recommendations
(see II. Rept. 91-917, Mar. 18,1970), concerning corps permit applications under
the 1899 law, which show a great concern for our environtntnt.

We believe that the adoption of these "Guidelines" with this policy is not in the
public interest and urge that you substantially revise those guidelines.

A-Section /I, paragraph 1 (p. 3) of the proposed guidelines states the Justice
Departnwnt policy as follows :

"The policy of the Department of Justice with respect to the enforcement of
the Refuse Act for purposes other than the protection of the navigable capacity
of our national waters, is not to attempt to use it as a pollution abatement statute
in competition with the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or with State pollu-
tion abatement procedures, but rather to use it to supplement that act by bringing
appropriate actions either to punish the occasional Or recalcitrant pollutor, or to
abate continuing sources of pollution which for some reason or other have not
been subjected to a proceeding conducted by the Federal Water Quality Admin-
istration or by a State, or where in the opinion of the Federal Water Quality
Administration the pollutor has failed to comply with obligations under such
Procedure."

Thus, rather than state affirmatively what enforcement actions Justice will
pursue under the Val act, this statement declares that the 1899 law is not a
pollution law.

As we have often stated, no one seriously contends that the 1899 law is a
"pollution abatement statute in competition with the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act." Rather, the 1899 aet complements that law, as we will demonstrate.

Seel km 13 of the act (33 U.S. Code 401) prohibits the throwing. discharge. or
deposit of "any refuse matter of any kind or description whatever other than that
flowing from streets and sewers and passing therefrom in a liquid state" into
any navigable waterway or tributary thereof. It also provides that corps. and no
other agency, "May permit the deposit" of any such material into any such water-
way "provided applieation is made * prior to depositing such material."
(Italic supplied.) Thus, under the 1899 Mw a person or corporation either
obtains a corps permit or is in violation of this section if he deposits or discharges
such material in a navigable waterway without a permit. It is that simple.
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When anyone applies for such a permit after April 3,1970, he must also obtain
a certitictite from the State "Iu which the discharge originates or will originate"
(or, as appropriate, from the Stwretary of the Interior). This certificate is
required by section 21( b) of tiw Fedemi Water Pollution Control Act, as amended
by the Water Quality Improvement Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-224 ; 81 Stat. 91,
108). The issuance of such a certitWate provides reasonable assurance from the
State or Secretary that such discimrge "will be conducted in a znanuer which will
not violate applicable water quality standards." We expect tiwse certificates will
not be granted until tbe State or tiw Secrtary k satisfied that ther is, in fact,
a firm basis for such assurances. Thus, by enforeing section 13 of the 1899 law,
and requiring ivich violator to apply for a corps permit, the Justice Departalent
will trigger the requirement of section 21 (b ) of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act. In tiw absence of such an application for a permit, section 21(h)
will not apply. Further, applicants for corps permits must also comply with its
new regulations whkil are designed to protect our (nvironnwnt.

The policy statement spmitically states (Section II, paragraph 1, p. 3) that
"significant discharges of a continuing nature resulting from the ordinary
operations of a manufacturing plant pose the greatest threat to the en-
vironment." But it then says ; "but it k precisely this tylw of discharge that
the Congress created the Federal Wahl. Quality Administration to decrease or
eliminate." (Italie supplied.) Aecordingly, the isdiey statenwnt of your De-
partment concludes that :

" * It is to tlw programs, poi Wies. and procedures of that agency that
Ire shalt defer with respect to the bringing of actions under the Refuse Aet.
Therefore, in order that we might coordinate our litigation with the programs
of the Federal Water Quality Administration, civil and criminal actions against
manafacturing plants which continuously aiseharye refuse into the navigable
waters of the United States are not among the types of actions which the U.S.
(alnenens num initiate on their own authority." 'Italie mamileil.)

Under the procednres set forth ill section III, paragraphs 3 to 5 (Intge 91 of tiw
guidelines, the U.S. attorney cannot, without prior approval, initiate (1) a civil
((Mon "where the defendant is or has been a party to an adminktrative proceed-
ing whidi has been or is being conducted hy "FWQA, or (2) a civil or criminal
action umler the act against " an3; person acting pursuant to a lieeniw"
frmn a Stale or political subdivision thereof, or (3) a civil or criminal action
under the law where the discluirger's unlawful activity "Is the subject of abate-
ment litigation or criminal prosecution" begun by a State or political subdivision
t hereof.

We believe that this policy and procedure are unwarranted for the following
masons:

First, neither the creation of the FWQA, nor the institution of some type of
proceedings under the Federal Water P(Olution Control Act affects or limits
the requirements of the 1899 net mentioned above. Regardless of what actions
FWQA takes against a polluter, it cannot relieve the pollnter of the obligation
to obtain a corps permit under the 1899 law or the duty of the United States "to
vigorously prosecute" (33 U.S.C. 413) all violators of that law.

The Committee on Government Operations recently pointed out, in its report
of March 18,1970 (H. Rept. 91-917, p. 10), entitled "Our Waters and Wetlands:
How the Corps of Engineers Can Delp Prevent Their Destrnetion and Pollution."
that the Federal Water Pollution Control Act specifically states (33 U.S.C. see.
430k) that it shall not be construed as (1) superseding or limiting the functions.
under any law of any other officer or agency of the United States, relating
to water pollution, or (2) affecting or impairing the provisions of * sections
13 through 17 of the River and Harbor Act of 1899, as amended (Le., the Muse
Act).

Thus, the Justice Department by administrative flat is, by its guidelines, sub-
jecting the permit requirements of the 1899 act to the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act and allowing a polluter to continue to discharge its refuse material
into a navigable waterway in violation of that law. There is no statutory or
legislative history basis for this administrative policy.

We request that the Justice Department not undermine the law by adopting
this unwarranted abdicative policy.

Second, the water quality standards program of FWQA applies only to inter-
state waters. Other navigable waters and their tributaries are not covered by
that program. The guidelines do not even recognize this fact, but simply assumo
that all navigable waters and their tributaries are subject to FWQA's water
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quality standards. Even if the policy expressed in the proposed guidelines were
correct, the guidelines should have stated that the U.S. attorneys should
"vigorously prosecute" unlawfull discharges in such waters.

Third, in many cases FWQA's sole effort to "decrease or eliminate" discharges
of a "continuing nature" into an interstnte water has been limited to a "con-
ference" proceeding under section 10 of its law. This proceeding is not part of
FWQA's water quality standards program. It is even difficult to classify it as an
administrative proceedings because of its informal nature.

In such conferences, FWQA attempts to get all polluters to agree to a timetable
under which they will abate their isulicies. All too often these timetables are not
met and the conference is reconvened and a new delayed timetable is adopted.

FWQA, in effect, follows a practice of trading time for persuasion. The effect
of thnt practice is illustruted Ily tlw recently teconvened Lake Erie Enforcement
Conference where it was announced that 44 of mir largest industries fulled to
redeem their earlier pledges to clean np pollution of Lake Erie according to
schedule. Of these, 38 nre reported to be more than a year behind, with one,
Mobil Oil, 32 months behind at its Buffalo, N.Y. plant. While the Department can
formulize them. prIceedIngs after n conference by holding a hearing and then
requesting your Department to institute an abatement suit, it has done so only
once since 1956.

Under these mhedules. n polluter, even if .he is expending substantial sums
to abate his pollution, generally proceeds at a leisurely pace and with no threat
of a eourt order or fine. During this period, the polluter can continue to diselmrge
his refnse material und befoul the waterways and, if he lacks a corps permit,
he will, under thls Justice policy and procedure, escape the requirements of the
1899 law. .

Fourth, the provision of the proposed guidelines . (sec. III. par. 3. p. II)
which forbids a U.S. attorney from initiating, without special permission. a
civil or criminal action to enforce the Refuse Act against a polluter who is con-
ducting an activity under a license front a State or local subdivision, is so itwptly
worded as to be virtually ludicrous. Under this guideline, any license issued to
the polluter for any purpose whatsoever (such as a State or local license for
the manufacturer to sell food to his work rs in his cafeteria) would preclude the
U.S. attorney from proceeding to enforc the Federal law. We fail to see any
basis In law for the Justice Department t . in effect, excuse violators of a Federal
law merely because they have a State or local license.

Throughout the proposed guidelims ill ins a highly negativist refrain which
will undoubt Uedly tend to discourage .S attorneys from enforcing the net. The
urgencies of stopping the dreadful polintion of our waterways should have in-
duced your Department, on the contrarY, to frame guidelines which would en-
courage U.S. attorneys to enforce a law1designed to protect our Nation's water-
Wil ys.

It is also curious that the proposed guidelines state (sec. I, par. 1 ) that the
Mguse Act authorizes only criminal actions and civil actions for an injunction
and fails to mention that it can be used also to secure reimbursement from pol-
luters for the Government's costs in cleaning up their pollution (see Wyandotte
Trans. Co. v. United Statec, 389 U.S. 191 (1907) ).

Without attempting here to enumerate all of the deficiencies and ambiguities of
these guidelines, we hope that your Department will revise these proposed guide-
lines to make them fulfill, rather than negate, the requirements of the 1899 law,
and to encourage, rather than discourage, the enforcement of the law.

We would appreciate your early response.
Sincerely, .

HENRY S. REUSS,
Chairman, Conservation and Natural ReRources Subcommittee.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE GUIDELINES FOR LITIGATION UNDER THE REFUSE ACT
(33 U.S.C. 407)

I. SUMMARY OF STATUTE

1. This statute authorizes :
A. A criminal action.to punish persons depositing refuse in the navi-

gable waters of the United States in violation of its provisions [the pen-
alty upon eonviction, as prescribed in 33 U.S.C. 411, is "a fine not ex-
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ceeding $2,500 nor less than WO, or by imprisonment (hi th..? case of
antural person) for not less than 30 days nor more than 1 year, or both
such fine and imprisonment, in the discretion of the court, one-balf of said
fine to be paid to the person or persons giving information which shall lend
to convictionl and /or

B. A civil action for an inlunction.to prevent the discharge of refuse
matter In violation of Its provisions, [Actions for injunctive relief are not
expressly authorized by this statute, but on the basis of the decisions of tbe
Supreme Court in United States v. Republic Steel Corp., 362 U.S. 482 (1900)
and Wyandotte Transportation Co. v. United States, 389 U.S. 191 (1967)
such actions are deemed to be authorized by necessary implication.]

2. Such actions may be brought where the following conditions exist :
A. (1) The defendant has

Thrown, discharged, or deposited ;
Or caused to be thrown, discharged or deposited ;
From any ship of any kind ;
Or from the shore, wharf, manufacturing establishment. or mill of any

kind ;
Any refuse matter of any kind or description whatever (other than that

flowing from streets and sewers and passing therefrom in a liqui(l state)
into any navigable water of the United Stntes, or into nny tributary of any
navigable water from which the same shall float or be washed into such
navigable water ; and

(11) The defendant Is not conducting operations in conneetion with the
improvement of navigable waters or construction of public works, eonsidered
necessary and proper by the U.S. officers supervising such itnprovement Or
public work ; and

(111) The defendant does not have a penult from the Secretary of the Army
or the Corps of Engineers authorizing such deposit ; or

B. The defendant bas
(1) Deposited ,
Or caused. suffered, or procured to ie deposited ;
Material of any kind ;
In any place on the bank of any navigable water;
Or on the bank of any tributary of anytavigable water ;
Where the same shall he liable to be washed into such navigable writer,

either by ordinary or high tides, or by storms or floods. or otherwise ;
Whereby navigation shall or may be impeded or obstructed; and
(11) The defendant is not conducting operations in connection with dm

improvement of navigable waters or construction of public works. eonsidered
neeeSsary and proper by the U.S. officers supervising such improvement of
public work ; and

(ill) The defendant does not have n permit from the Secretary of the
Army of the Corps of Engineers authorizing snch deposit.

II. POLICY

1. The policy of the Department of Justice with respect to the enforcement
of the Refuse Act for purposes other than the protection of the navigable
capacity of our national waters, is not to attempt to use It n n pollution
abatement statute in competition with the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act or with the State pollution abatement procedures, but rather to 'use it
to supplement that act by bringing appropriate actions either to punish the
occasional or recalcitrant polluter, or to abate continuing sources of pollution
which for some reason or other have not Wen subjected to a promeding (.on-
dueted by the Federal Water Quality Administration or by a State, or where
in the opinion of the Federal Water Quality Administration the polluter has
failed to comply with obligations under such a procedure. To this end, the
instructions in section III below encourage U.S. attorneys to use the Refuse
Act to punish or prevent significant discharges, which are either accidental or
infrequent, but which are not of a continuing nature resulting from the or-
dinary operations of a manufacturing plant. Discharges of this last type, of
course, pose the greatest threat to the environmentbut it is precisely this
type of discharge that the Congress created the Federal Water Quality Admin-
istration to decrease or eliminate, and it is to the programs, policies, and pro-
cedures of that agency that we shall defer with respect to the bringing of
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actions under the Refuse Act. Therefore, in order that we might coordinate
our litigation with the programs of the Federal Water Quality Administra-
tion, civil and criminal actions against manufacturing Monts which con-
tinuously discharge refuse into the navigable waters of the United States are
not among the types of actions which the U.S. attorneys may initiate on their
own authority. Similar reasons exist for the exclusion of other types of actions
which the U.S. attorneys may initiate on their own authority, and it is thus
Important that the U.S. attorneys read the instructions in section III below
cnrefnlly, and on their own authority initiate only such actions as come
clearly within the ambit of those authorized to be initiated by them. U.S.
attorneys are invited to call the departmental officials referred to in paragraph
10 of section III for advice and guidance in Refuse Act actions.

2(a) Within the Department of Justice, the handling under the Refuse Act
of criminal actions is the responsibility of the Criminal Division.

(b) Within the Department of Justice, the handling under the Refuse Act of
civil actions involving ships or vessels, is the responsibility of the Civil Division.

(e) Within the Department of Justice, the handling under the Refuse Act
of all other civil actions is the responsibility of the Land and Natural Resources

3. U.S. attorneys are eneouraged to bring criminal actions for violations of
the Refuse.Act within the limitations set forth in paragraph 1 in section 'III,

4. U.S. attorneWlre encouraged to bring civil actions to enjoin violations
of the Refuse Act within the limitations set forth in paragraph 2 in section
III below.

5. U.S. attorneys shall not initiate any action not within the purview
of paragraphs 1 and 2 in section III below except pursuant to an authorization
from the appropriate Assistant Attorney General.

W. PROCEDURES TO DE FOLLOWED RY U.S. ATTORNEYS

1. U.S. attorneys may, without prior authorization, initiate criminal prosecu-
tions or civil penalty actions to punish violations of the Refuse Act, where the
following conditions exist :

(A ) (1) The U.S. attorney bas received evidence from the Coast Guard
or Corps of Engineers, or is otherwise satisfied that he has adeonate evi-
dem. to prove that the defendant has, by his actions, caused to be deposited
or discharged into the nailgable waters of the United States or trilmtaries
thereof matter of the followinglypes:

Any matter of any kind discharged from a ship or vess e.7. of any kind
iDepnrtmeht memo No. 376 (June 3, 1064) and snpp. 1 thereto (May 24.

eontnin pertimmt Instructions with respect to actions involving
ships"!

Oil from any shore-baSed source ;
Any other material (other than a continuing indtistrial discliargel of

any 'kind. including but not limited to demolished lmildings. dirt. slag.
garbage, or finished items of manufacturer such as tires. bottles, auto-
mobiles, sinks, and refrigerators ; and

' (11) The U.S. attorney has peen advised by the local office of the Corps of
Engineers that the diseharge of such matter into the navigable waters was
not pursuant to any permit issued.by the Corps of Engineers.

2. U.S. attorneys mtry. Without prior authorization, initiate eivil actions to
enjoin violations of fho Rause Art, where .the lollowing conditions, exist :

(A) (1) The U.S. attorney has received eCidence from tlw Coast Guard
or the Corps of Engineers, or Is otherwise satisfied that he has adequate vi-
dence to prove that the defendnnt has, by his actions, imused to be deposited
or disellarged,,is pr4sently ausing to be deposited or disehargeti. or threatens
to mntinue- tneause to be. deposited or discharged, into the navigable waters
of the United States, or tributaries thereof matter of the following types :

Oil ; .

Any other material (ther:than a continuing industrial discharge)
of any kind, including but not limited to demolished imildings, dirt. slag,
garbage, or finished items of manufacture such ns tires, bottles, antomo-

iles, sinW and refrigerators t'and
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(II) The U.S. attorney has been advised by the local tap of the Corps of
Engineers that the discharge of such matter into the navigable waters was
not pursuant to any permit issued by the Corps of Engineers, foul

(ill) The U.S. attorney hns been advised by the Local office of the Federal
Water Quality Administration that the activities of defendant were not or
are not .the subject of any administrative proceeding widen' has been 'or is
being eondueted by the Federal Water Quality Administration, or .

(B) (1) The U.S. attorney has received evidence from the Coast Guard
or the Corps of Engineers, or is Otherwise satisfied Ulla he has evidence to
pnive, that the defendant has Waved on the banks Of 3 body or water material
of any kind, loci uding .a pier or other street u re which has deteriorated,
whre suh mutrial or structure, or a portion throf, is liaffle if be washd
inlo a navigable 1)04 of water, whereby navigatioh may be impeded or
obstrueted, fill d

The deposit.of the niaterial on till! bunk IS eat expressly nut horrd iv
tiw Corps of Engineers.

3. U.S. at hirneys shall in no ease, without prior authorization from the nppro-
priate Assistant Attorney General,Jnitiate either .a criminal or civil aetion
under the Refuse Act against a State, county, or municipality, or any oliwr

subdivision of a 8hrte, or any person acting pursuant to ft ileense from
surh State. county, munWipality. t r iither Political subdivision.

4. U.S. attorneys shall in no ease, without prior authorization from the A,.sistant
Attortwy General for the Land. find Natural Resonmvs Division. initinh. a civil
action for an injunetion where the defendant is or has ben a party to an admin.
istrative proceeding which has been or is being f7onducted by the Federal Water
t/uality Administration.

5. U.S. a ttormys shall in no case, without nut horization from the appro.
printe Assistant Attorny Genral, initiate either a civil or criminal action under
the Refus Aet where the defendant's allegedly unlawful activity is the subject
of aba touted litigation or criminal prosecution initiated by a State, comity,
municipality or other political subdivision.

0. U.S. attorneys shall in no case, without prior authorization from the Assistant
Attorney. General for the Internal Security Division, Initiate under the Refuse
Ad a criminal or civil action. involving a foreign vessel where it appears:

I i That the vesFel entered the territorial waters of the United States
without giving notice of its entry, in violation of the regulations issued
pursuant to 50 U.S.C. 191, or that the operator of the vessel violated any
of the otlwr regulations b4sued pursuant to 50 U.S.C. 191, or

) That the vessel was engaged in fishing or fishing snpport act ivit it's in
U.S. territorial wa ters in viola lion of 10 U.S.C. 10S1.

7. A. Should a U.S. attorney wish to initiate an action not speeifically author.
ized to be initiatd subparagraph:. 1 and 2 above, or specifically directed not
to be initiated by subparagraphs 3, t, .i and 0 above, he will,

(i) It he seeks authority to initiate a criminal action, forward a report
to the Assistant Attoriwy General for the Criminal Division showing the
existence of the necessary elements for action, and requesting authority to
bring the suit, or

(ii) If Ile seeks authority to initiate a civil action for an injunction,
forward a report to the Assistant Attorney General for the Land and
Natured Resources Division showing the existence of the necessary elements
and requesting authority to bring the suit.

S. A. Since citizens who supply information relating to violations of the
Refuse Act may be entitled to be paid one half of the fine collected upon convic-
timt for such violation, U.S. attorneys will keep records of all actions initiated
pursuant to information supplied by citizens, keeping in Mind that they may be
called upon to reeommend to the court for or against payment of bounties.

B. Where a U.S. attorney is advised by a citizen of an alleged violation of
which he already has notiee, he shall promptly so advise the citizen.

C. CitizentewhO in general terms inform the United States Attorney of Refuse,
Act violations should he advised that they can be eligible to receive the bounty
provided for under the set only upon their supplying specific information con-
cerning the alleged violations, which information is either used as the basis for
a criminal complaint or in the trial of the case, and results in-a conviction and
the levying of a fine.

4
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D. The authorizations to initiate action, and the limitations thereon, .set
forth in subparagraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 above apply to actions for violations
reported by citizens, as well as to actions based on information obtained from
official and other sources.

9. U.S. attorneys should tabe no position with respect to, 4.1' seek to inter-
vene or appear as amicus curiae, in any qui tam actions which may be brought
under the supposed anthority of the Refuse Act.

10. A. Copies of all complaints, pleadings, and other paPers filed by U.S. attor-
neys in criminal actions under the Refuse Act initiated by them pursuant to para-
graph 1 shore shall be sent to the Assistant Attorney General, Criminal
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C. All telephonic inquiries relating to
criminal prosecutions under the Refuse Act should be directed to Chief, Admin-
istrative Regulations Section, Criminal Division, WS 202 737 2070,

B. Copies of all complaints, pleadings and other papers filed by U.S. al torneys
In civil actions under the Refuse Act initiated by then: pursuant to paragraph
1 above. which actions involve ships or vessels, shall be sent to the Assistant At-
torney General, Civil Division, Department of Justice, Washington, D.C. All
telephonic Inquiries relating to civil actions under the Refuse Act involving ships
or vessels should be directed to the Chief, Admiralty and Shipping Section, Civil
Divisiom FTS 202 7373476.

C. Copies of all complaints, pleadings and other papers filed by U.S. attorneys
In all other civil actions initiated by them pursuant to paragraph 2 above shall
he sent to the Assistant Attorney General, Land and Natural Resources Division,
l aqui rtment of Justice, Washington, D.C. All telephonic inquiries relating to such
civil actions should be directed to the Chief, General Litigation Seetion. PPS
202 737 2705.

D. All inquiries relating to violations of the Refuse Act by shim which may
also be violating the provisions of 50.U.S.C. 191 or 16 U.S.C. 1081 (see paragraph
6 above) shall be directed to the Assistant Attorney General, Infernal Security
Division, Washington, D.C. Telephonic thquIries should be directed to the Crim-
inal Section, Internal Security Divielon, FTS 202 7372370.

E. The addresses and telephone /Umbers of the regional offices of the Federal
Water Quality Administration, and the district offices of the Corps of Engineiirs
and of the Coast Guard, are attached as Appendix 1. U.S. attorneys shall be re-
sponsible for coordinating their activities, and cooperating, with these offices
In initiating actions pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of this section.

SHIRO KASHIWA.
Assistant Attorney General.

[Approved July 10,19701

Land and Natural Bramwell Dirision.
WILL/AM D. RUCKELSIIAUS,

Assistant Attorney General.
Cirli

MIL It Wnsos.
Assistant Attorney General.

Criminal
J. WALTER YEARLEY, -

A saistant Attorney General,
Infcrnal Seenrity

APPENDIX 1

A. FEDER.AL )):ATER QUALITY ADMINISTRATION REGION OFFICES

Northeast Region, FWQA. room 2303, john F. Kennedy Federal Office Building,
Boston. Mass. 02203, Telephone : (617) 223-7210.

Middle Atlantic Region, FWQA, 918 Emmet Street, Charlottesville, Va. 22901,
Teleph "ne: (703) 290-1376.

Southeast Region, FWQA, Suite 300, 1421 Peachtree Street, NB, Atlanta, Ga.
30309, Telephone: (404) 526-5737.

Ohio Basin Region, FWQA, 4676 Columbia Parkway, Cincinnati, Ohio 45226,
Telephone:, (513) 871-6200.

Northwest Region, FWQA, room 570Pittock Block, Portland, Oreg. 97205,
Telephone: (503) 226-3915.

Great Lakes Region, FWQA, room 410, 33 East Congress Parkway, Chicago,
Ill. 60605, Telephone : (312) 828-5250.
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Missouri Basin Region, FWQA, 011 Walnut Street, room 702, Kansas City, Mo.
64106, Telephone: (816) 374-5493.

South Central Region, FWQA, third floor, 1402 Elm Street, Dallas, Tex. 75202,
Telephone : (214) 749-2161.

Southwest Region, FWQA, 700 Market Street, San Francisco, Calif. 94102, Tele-
phone: (415) 5564870.

B. CORPS OF ENOINEERE DIVISION AND DISTRICT OFFICES

U.S. Army Engineers Division, Lower Mississippi Valley, Corner Crawford and
Walnut Streets, P.O. Box 80, Vicksburg, Miss, 391:30, Telephone duty hours
(601) 636-1311, nonduty hours(601) 635-9357.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Memphis, 668 Federal Office.Building, Memphis,
Tenn. 38103, Telephone duty hours(901 ) 534-3221, nonduty honrs()01)
397-7501.

U.S. Army Engineers District, New Orleans, P.O. Box 60267, Foot or Prytania
Street, New Orleans, La. 70160, Wephone duty hours(504) 805-1121, nonduty
hours ( 504) 865-1041, (504) 861-2203.

U.S. Army Engineers District. St. Louis, 906 Olive St., Bt. Louis, Mo. 63101.
Telephone duty hours(314) 368-2817, nonduty hours(314) 726-4735.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Vicksburg, P.O. Box 60, U.S. postoffice and
courthouse,, Vicksburg, MISS. 39180, Telephone duty hours(601 ) 636-1311, non-..
duty hours(fl01) 636-7111.

U.S. Army Engineers Division, Missouri River, P.O. Box 103 Downtown Sta-
tion, USPO & Courthouse, 215 North 17th Street, Omaha, Nebr. 68101, Tele/thone
duty hours(402) 221-1221, nonduty hours--(402) 453-0202.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Kansas City, 700 Federal Office Building 601
E. 12th Street, Kansas City, Mo. 64106, Telephone ; duty hours(816) 374-3806,
nonduty'hours(913) 649-6086.

U.S. Army Engineers Distiict, Omaha, 7410 U.S. postoffice and courthouse, 215
North lith Street, Omaha, Nebr. 68102. Telephone: duty hours(402) 221-1221,
no:1May hours(402) 453-0202.

U.S. Army Engineers Division, New England, 424 Trapedo Road, Waltham,
Mass. 02154, Telephone: dub' hours(017) 894-2400, nonduty hours ( 617)
894-2404.

U.S. Army Engineers Division, North Atlantic, 90 Church Street, New York,
N.Y. 10007, Telephone: duty hours(212) 264,3311, nonduty hours(212) 269-
2491.

U.S. Arzny Engineers District, Baltimore. P.O. Box 1715, 31 Hopkins Plaza,
Baltimore, Md 21203, Telephone : duty hours(301) 902-3311, nonduty hours
(n1) 828,5105,

:.`.S. Army Engineers District, New York, 26 Federal Plaza, New York, N.Y.
10007, Telephone : duty hours (212) 264,3311, nonduty hours (212) 264,3311.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Norfolk. Fort Norfolk, 803 Front Street, Norfolk,
Va. 23510, telephone : duty hours(703) 625-8201, nonduty hours(703) 622-

.7043.
U.S. Army Engineers District. Philadelphia, U.S. Customhouse, Second and

CheStnut Streets, Philadelphia, Pa. 19106, telephone : duty hours(215) 597-
3311, nonduty hours-- (215) 649-5702.

U.S. Army Engineers Division, North Central. 536 South Clark Street, Chicago.
Ill. 60605, telephone : duty hours(312) 353-638, nonduty hours(312) 640-
2183.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Buffalo, 1776 Niagara Street, Buffalo, N.Y. 14207,
telephone : duty hours(716) 876-5454, nonduty hours(716) 870-5454.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Chicago. 219 South Dearborn Street, Chicago. Ill.
60(104. telephone: duty hours(312) 353-6406, non duty hours (312) 646-2183.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Detroit, Post Office Box 1027, 150 Michigan
Avenue. Detroit, Mich. 48231, telePhone: duty hours(313) 963-1261, nonduty
hours (313) 568-2840.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Rock Island. Clock Tower Building, Rock Island,
M. 61201, Mephone : duty hours(309) 788-6361, nonduty hours(309) 762-
0658.

U.S. Army Engineers District, St. Paul, 1210 U.S. Postoifice and Customhouse,
St. Paul, Minn. 55101, telephone: duty hours(612) 725-7506, nonduty hours
(312) 941-2060.
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U.S. Army Engineers District. Lake Survey, 630 Federal Building and U.S.
Courthouse, Detroit, MIA. 48226, telephone: duty hours---(313) 220-6161, non-
duty hours(313) 568-2840.

U.S. Army Engineers Division, North Pacific. 220 Southwest Eighth Street,
Portland. Oreg. 97209 telphone: duty hours(503) 220-3361, nonduty hours
(503 ) 224-3275.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Alaska. Post Office Box 7002, Anchorage. Alaska
99501. telephone: duty hours(007) 752-9114, nonduty hours(907) 279-1132.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Portland. Post Office Box 2946, 2850 Southeast
826 Avenue, Portlnnd. Oreg. 97208. telephone: duty hours--(503) 771-4441,
monduty lumrs--( 503 ) 771-1305.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Seattle. 1519 Alaskan Way, South Seattle, Wash.
981;34. telephone : duty hours(206) 682-2700, nonduty honrs(200) 682-2700.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Walla Walla, Bnikling 002, City-County Air-
port, Walla Walla. Wash. 99302, telephone : duty bours--(509) 52 5-5500, nonduty
hours SO9) 525-31 78.

U.S. Army Engineers Divi:4ion. Ohio River, Post Office Box 1159. 550 Main
Street. Cincinnati. Ohlo 45201. telephone: duty hours(513) 684-3001, nonduty
hours ( 513) 561-3758.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Huntington, Post Office Box 2127. 502 Eighth
Street. Huntington. W.Va. 25721. telephone: duty hours(304) 520-2318, non-
duly hours(304) 525-8332.

U.S. Army Engineers Distriet, Louisville. 830 West Broadway. Louisville. Ky.
40202. telephone: duty hours(502) 582-5011. nonduty hours(812) 256-3371.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Nashville, Post Office Box 1 0 70. 306 Federal
Office Building. Nashville. Tenn. 37202. telephone : duty hours--(615) 242-8321,
nonduty hours ( 01 5) 242-2709. (615) 352-2871.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Pittshurgh. 2032 Federal Building. 1000 Liberty
Avenue. Pittsburgh. Pa. 15222. telephone: duty hours(412) 644-3311, nonduty
hours ( 412) 306-094 7.

U.S. Army Engineers Division. Pacific Ocean Building 96, Fdrt Armstrong,
Honolulu. Hawaii 96813, telephone: duty hours(808) 404531, nonduty hours
(808) 54:12-033.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Honolulu, Building 96, Fort Armstrong. Hono-
lulu, Hawaii 90813. telephone : duty hours(808) 403711, nonduty hours(808)
808846.

U.S. Army Engineers Division, South Atlantic, 510 Title Building. 30 Pryor
Street SW., Atlanta, Ga. 80303, telephone: duty hours- -(404) 520-0111, nonduty
hours (401) 23:3-7817.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Charleston, Post Office Box 919, Federal Build-
ing, 334 1geeting Street, Charleston, S.C. 29402, telephone: duty hours(803)
577-4171, nonduty hours( 803) 700-5772.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Jacksonville, Federal Building. 400 West Bay
Street. Jacksonville. FM. 32202, telephone : duty hours(904) 791-2011, nonduty
hours ( 389 -8268.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Mobile. Post Office Box 2288. 2301 Airport Boule-
vard. Mobile. Ala. 36601. telephone: duty hours(205 ) 473-0311, nonduty hours
(205 ) 473-7302.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Savannn h. l'ost Office Box 889, 200 East Saint
Julian Street. Savannah. Oa. 31402, telephone : duty hours(912) =4822,
nonduty hours (912) 23:1-885.

U.S. Army Engineers District. Wilmington. I'ost Office Box 1890. 308 Federal
Building. U.S. Courthouse, Wilmington. N.C. 28401, telephone : duty bon rs(919 )
703-9971, nonduty hours(919) 762-7035.

U.S. Army Engineem Division. South Pacific. 630 Sansome Street, Room 1210,
San Francisco, Calif. 9411 1, telephone: duty hours(410) 550-9000, nonduty
hours( 415) r150-0014.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Los Angeles, P.O. Box 2711, 300 North Los
Angeles St., Los Angeles, Calif. 90053. Telephone duty hours(213) 688-5522,
n on d u ty hours ( 213 ) 688-5522.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Sacramento, 650 Capitol Mail, Sacramento,
Calif. 95814, Telephone duty hours(910) 449-2000, nonduty hours(910)
452-1535.

U.S. Army Engineers District, San Francisco, 100 McAllister Street, San Fran-
cisco, Calif. 94102. Telephone duty hours(415) 558-9000, nonduty hours(415)
556-3600.



1.7S. Army Engineers Divisimi., Southwestern, 1114 Commerce Street, Dallas.
TeX. 75202. Telephone duty hours(214) 748-5011, nomluty hours(214 )
526-5007,

U.S. Army Engineers District, Albuquerque, P.O. Box 1580, 517 Gold Avenue
SW., Albuquerque, N. Mex. 87103. Telephone duty hours(505) 843-0311, non-
duty hours(505) 29814550.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Fort Worth, P.O. Box 17300, 819 Taylor Street.
Fort Worth, Tex. 76102. Telephone duty hours(817) 334-3011, nonduty hours
(817 ) 451-4420.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Galveston, P.o. Box 1 229, Galveston, 'fey.
77550. Telephone duty hours(713 ) 763-1211, nomluty hours(713 ) 762-0314.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Little Rock, P.O. Box 807. 700 W. Capitol, Little
Rock. Ark. 72203. Telephone hours(501) 372-4361, nothluty hours(5m. )
372-2011.

U.S. Army Engineers District, Tulsa, P.O. Box 61, 224 South Boulder, Tulsa,
Okla. 74103. Telephone duty hours(918) 584-7151, nonduty hours(918)
587-0311.

C. GuAsr GUAM) DISTRICT OFFICES

Twelfth Coast Guard Distrkt, 630 Sansome Street, San Francisco, Calif.
04126, duty officer : (415) 556-5500.

Thirteenth Coast Gua rd Distriet, 618 2(1 Avenue, Seattle, Wash. 98104, duty
officer (206) 624-29112.

Fourteenth Coast Guard District, 077 Ala Moans Blvd., ilimoinlu. Dawn ii
98813. duty officer: (Bono) 588-841 (commercial only), ATM-Non (315 ) 732-4800
Drop 22:1.

Seventeenth Coast Guard District, P.O. Box 3-5000, .7 uneau, Alaska 99801,
duty officer: (907) 586-7310 (commercial only).

First Coast Guard.District, J. F. Kennedy Federal Bldg., Government Center,
Boston, Mass. 02203; duty officer: (6171 223-3645.

Second Coast Guard District, Federal Building, 1520 Market Street, St. Louis.
Mo. 63103, duty officer : (314 ) 622-4614.

Third Coast Guard District, Governors Islund, New York, N.Y. 10004, duty
officer : (212 ) 204-4800.

Fifth Coast Guard District, Federal Bldg. 431 Crawford Street,"-Portsmouth,
Va. 23705, duty officer : (703 ) 303-6081.

Seventh Coast Guard Distrkt, room 1018, Federal Bldg., 51 SW. 1st Avenue.
Miami, Fla. 33130, duty officer : (305 ) 350-5011.

Eight Coast Guard District Customhouse, New Orleans, La. 70130. duty, officer :
(504) 527-6225.

Ninth Coast Guard District, 1240 East 9th Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44109, duty
officer : (216).522-3983.

Eleventh Coast Guard District, Heartwell Bldg., 19 Pine Avenue, Long Iterfeb,
Calif. 90802, duty officer : (213) 437-2944 (FPS) (213) 437-2041 (eommerrial ).

TIIE CoNsFRIATION FaUNDATIoN.
Washington, D.C., July 15, 1970.

Hon. SHIRO KASHIWA,
Aimixtant Attorney General, Department of Justice, Lands end Natural Re-

sources Division,Washirgton, D.C.
DEAR MR. KASHIWA: As I am sure you recognise, the policies of the Justice

Department have a profound impact on the Nation's response to environmental
degradation. Among the most important duties of the Department in this regard
is its role in enforcing 'Federal laws against pollution. The 1899 Refuse Act
is one such law that U.S. attorneys are specifically charged to enforce. It is
commonly considered to be a potentially strong and vital tool to help insure com-
pliance with the Nation's water quality program and in the enforcement of key
provisions of the Water Quality improvement Act of 1970.

We were. therefore, concerned to rend your letter of June 2. 1970. to Congres.s-
man Henry Reuss expressing the Department's policy toward the nse and enforce-
ment of the Refuse Act. The policy of this letter has been subsequently detailed
by the Department in its Guidelines for Litigation under the Refuse Act, issued
to all U.S. attorneys on June 15, 1970. These guidelines appear to ignore the
statutory mandate of the U.S. attorneys to "Vigorously prosecute" violations
of the Refuse Act and to neglect the complementary role of the act in enforcing
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State water quality programs approved by the Federal Water Qunlity Admin-
istrat ion.

In your letter to Congressman Reuss, answering certain questions about the
181/9 Refuse Act, you state t hat :

"It would be patently poor prosecutive judgment as well as lacking in com-
mon sense to bring proseeutive action under the Refuse Act where such enforce-
ment aetivity would have a disruptive or devitalizing effect upon programs
ilesigned or approved by the Federal Water Quality Administration * *"

You then state that you would not seek injuntIons against persons dischnrg-
ing refuse in U.S. navigable waters where it would "disrupt" Federal water pol-
lution programs or wlwre it would be "duplicative of such action as the State lflfi

Dinive initiated to abate the s:une source of pollution." Your letter further notes
1 hat :

"It would not be in the genunw interest of the Government to bring an action
tinder the Refuse Ad to secure a criminal sanction ngainst a eompnny who ad-
mittedly is discharging refuse in the navigable waters of the United States. but
which. pursuant to a piligrain }wing (4noliwted by the Federal Water Quality
Administration, is spending ifi gui Ikil lit nmonnts of money to secure a batenwnt of
ha t pollution."

This new policy of the Justiee Department has been formalized in Its "Guide-
lines for United States At torneye In several compiex ways.

U.S. attorneys may not initiate civil and criminal 'actions under the Refuse Act
against "maimfacturing plants widen emitimuinsly discharge refuse" into U.S.
na vlgable waters.

U.S. nttowneys may not initiate lninnetive actions under the net wherever the
activities of the defoldant have been or are subject to "ony administrative pro-
eeedlng" of the FWQA.

Furthermore, U.S. atnirneys may not; initiate any criminal or civil action
"owl inst. a State, cimuty. or municipality, or any otlwr politicni subdivision of a
Stilte.,or any person acting pursuant to a license frlan sueh State. county. munic-
ipality. or other ilolitienl subdivision."

Only If U.S. attorneys obtain prior Justice Department apiwoval. In most en'ses
from two separate divisions in Washington. (:in I lwy orobl t Ilese ext remely broad
exceptions. Such clearance by U.S. attorneys is neither specified by the act nor
heretofore required by the Depnrtment.

NoTc.Assistant Attorney General Shiro Kashiwa's letter of June 2, 1970,
to Chairman RellsH hi printed in appendix 8 of this hearing record, pp. 175-177.]

We question whether by the above policy the Dtpartment recognizes tl impor-
tance of the Refuse Act. its enforcement mtindate to U.S. attorneys, and the aet's
critical role in providing effective remedies against violation of federally ap-
proved State water quality standards.

The Refuse Act generally requires thnt a person dmnping "refuse" into nnvi-
gable waters of tile Unitd States must first obtain a permit from the Corps of
Engineers. The term "refuse." which does not include municipal sewage, has
been broadly construed by the courts nnd the Demi rtment of Justice to include
oil. gasoline. other elleniknI iadintunts. and even hot water. It. Is one of the np-
parent strengt lis of the it(nise Aet that U.S. attUrneys are sowelfleally directed
to "vigormedy prosecute" any violntors and then to report the option taken to the
IT.S. Attorney General.

Since inismage of the 1S!)9 Refuse AO. Congress 1ii assed no law that does
anything but eontinue and exianal its applWation. The orps now uses its permit
authority to eover broad enviromnentn1 effects on U.S. navigable waters. The
National Environmentnl Polley Aet 1970 simply reinforces this eorps juris-
diction. And it is highly signitieant t hnt ;he Federal Wnter Pollution Control Act
specitiodly states that , where pollution is eoncerned the Refuse Aet and its
enforeenwnt p r ivislmis ore wit to be a ffeetell or impaired.

We reeognIze tIwt the Refuse Aet does not. Itself constitute wn ter pollution
eontrol program. Thither it i n means by wlikli Federal am', State water witty
pnarams en n he onforeed. Moreover. the Water Quiality Improvement Act of 1970
removes nny &midi; nhont appliention of Refuse Aet permits to water pollution,
nhntement. Its langunge makes elenr the intention thnt it he npplied to fc/Wrnlly
npnroved state weer quality programs in a vital. eomplonentary fnshion.

Seetion 21(h) of the Wnter Quality Improvement Act requires that nny
nppliennt for a Federal permit "whkh inny restilt in any diselinrge into the
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navignble waters of the United States" must provide the permitting ngency with
a certificate from the nppropriate State or interstnte ngency thnt the proposed
activity will not viointe applicable water qunlity stnndards. In general, only
after such certification is given may the Federal permitting ngency grant a
perm i t.

TIIP centrnl role of the Refune Act here is obvious; if no permit is required by
the Corps of Engineers, thn the guarantees Of seetion 21 (b) cnnnot be applied.
TII1A rPsult would effectively vitiate the strong water pollution provisions of the
Water Quality Improvment Act.

Tim corps, of course, is not in a position to require Refuse Act permits if the
.Tustiee Depnrtment does not prosecute those discimrging refuse without iiermils.
or those violating the conditions of the permits.

It should be clear thnt the Corps of Engineers can use its permit authority
under the Refuse AO in n positive, ninnngerini sense to see thnt the npplicnnt
nbides by npplicable State or interstate wnter pollution control regalations. If
the applicant is. in your words, "n company which admittedly is discharging
refuse into navigable waters," then th water qunlity certificate now required
would specify the nppropriate pollution nimtement scheduh. necessnry to em-
pty with nppilnble wnter quality stnndnrds. The permit given by the corps
would never need to be n "license to pollnte stn ts. it would require complinnee
with the nbntement schedule. Viointion of this Stnte or interstnte schedule
would, under seetion 21 of the Wnter Quality Improvement Act, require
tion of the twits permit.

This same section mikes clear that Federal permits nre to require complinnee
with the purposes of the Federn1 Wnter Pollution Control Act, ns nmended. even
"in the case of nny netivity which will nffeet qunlity but for which there fire no
npidleable wnter quality standnrds." The imimrtnnce of this mnndate to use the
Refuse Aet ims been highlighted repently by the reveintion flint mereury htis
been contimumsly dumped by mnnnfneturs in the Notion's rivers and lnkm
The drendful poisonous effects of these netions on aquatic life find man is now
known to us nil, butt questions hnve been rnised ns to whether the mereury
intuiting that hns oecurred is elenrly or hnmediately prohibited by npplienble
water quality standards. Fortunntely. section 21 of the Wnter Qunlity Improve-
ment Act ninkes this uncertninty irrelevnnt with respeet to enforeement of the
Refuse Aet : mercury dumping in U.S. navignbie wnters tun be simply stopped
by the Corps of Engineers. But here the policy of the Justice Depnrtment is
erucinl. Surely U.S. nttorneys should be nllowed to invoke the injunetive nnd
Priminal remedies of the RPflISP Act, find do so quickly, whether or not the
diselmrge is of a "eontinuous" nnture.

Seetion 21 of the Witter Qunlity Improvement Act is. therefom designed to
ensure Pomplinnee with the Nation's nnti-polintion policies and npplienble wnter
quality stnninrds through vnrious ,existing meehnnisms. Tt elenrly, stntes flint
"nothing in this section shilll b eonstrued to limit the authority of nny deport-
pwnt or ageney purstmnt to nny other provision of inw to require compihince with
hpplimtble wair qunlity stnndn rds."

For the rensons stnted. RPflISP AM is wholly consistent whit the Federni
miter qunlity progrnm. We believe that n legni polley hnsed on nuy other eon-
stritetion would result in 11 nationni writer pollution effort shorn of n most vital
enformment tool.

W. have hnd innny inquiries from citizens nnd eonservntion groups nbont the
effectiveness of the Refuse Apt nnd nsicing why 17.S. nttorneys do not Ilse it more
extensively. In the lnst yenr. however. we have nofrd thnt T7.S. nttorneys hnve
nttmided more to the net, nnd nfter pnssnge of tbe Water Quality Improvement
AM it appeared thnt this trend mold neeplerne. Now NIT n re coneerned nt the
signs that the Department of Justiee would limit the initintire of P.S. attorneys
in enforeing the Refuse Act nnd that the Department mny he ignoring section 21
of the Water Quality Improvement Act ns it reintes to the Refuse Act.

In ordi4 to answer our oWn inquiries nnd give n fair explinntion of the new
policy of the Justiee Department. we would like your response to the following
questions :

(I) How ninny netIons hnve been Bled by P.R. littorneys under the Refuse Aet
in the yen r prior to issua nee of the new Guidelines?

(2) WIrtt in yObr opinion will be the effeet of the new Guidelines on the
number of netions filed by U.S. nttorneys in the future?

(3) Whnt is the statutory justifiention for eurWing the authority of
nttorneys to enforce the Refuse AM where there is :



a

155

(a) Continuous discharge of refuse in U.S. navigable waters.
(b) Discharge of refuse in U.S. navigable waters where the activity is

subject to FWQA "administrative proceeding."
(c) Such discharge of refuse by a State, county, or municipality or other

State subdivision.
(d) Such diseharge by "any person acting pursuant to'a license from Buell

State, county, or municipality or other ',oilfield subdivision."
(4) What is the effect of these restrictions on seetion 21 of the Water Quality

Improvement Act? In What way would the Refuse Aet have a "disruptive or
devitalizing effect" on the requirements of this section, and can this section retain
its intended effect if Refuse Act permits are not fl titre(' and enfoiced?

We would appreciate your attention to this reque ted information.
Sincerely,

ARTHUR A. DAVIS,
Vice President, Operathms.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
"Washington, D.V., Jniy 27,1h70.

Mr. ARTHUR A. DAVIS,
Vice President, The Conservation Foundation,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. DAVIS : I am happy to have this opportunity to ai the questions
with regard to the enforcement of the Refuse Act raised in your letter of July 1.
1970, to HIP, 11 tO correct the misconstruction of our guidelines for litigation
under the Refuse Act which have been publicized by certain persons and which
are reflected in your letter.

The first thing which you must realize is that the guidelines are instructions
to the U.S. attorneys. Tbe reason for the issuance of the guidelines was that many
U.S. attorneys were unfamiliar with the provisions of the Refuse Act of D499.
and those who were familiar with it were uncertain as to how they might pro-
eeed-to-prosecute_violations. For example. section 17 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act of 1899 I of whi ch tlte-Reffiki-Net-is-sec7-13 )--st tes-t 1 in t.-11.t_shalL t he
duty of the U.S. attorneys to vigorously proseeute all offenders against the *
[Refuse Act] when requested to do so by the Secretary of the Army or by any
of the officials hereinafter designated ." It bas become increasingly common,
however. for imssible offenses of the Refuse, Act to be reported to the U.S. at-
torneys from 1.;ources other than those designated in the statute. and the manner
of proeeeding on these cases, therefore, was not clear. Very often. the reports of
violations were in the most general ternis"X company is polinting"and
nothing even remotely resembling proof in support of the allegation was pre-
sented ; the problem then arose how to obtain evidence to prove the charge in
court.

Furthermore. the Refuse Actthat is. 33 U.S.C. 407is in its express terms
of criminal statute, and the only sanctions specifically provided for the violation
of its provisions are line and/or imprisonment. Obviously, thus to punish pollu-
tion without stopping it would not be of much aid to the environment.

The purpose of the guidelines, then, was to advise the U.S. attorneys that they
might take action on violations of the Refuse Act reported from any source, to
indicate to them what Federal agencies could be of assistance to them in seeuring
proof of the allegations of diseharges in violation of the Refuse Act. and to
acquaint them with the fact that the Department believed that actions not merely
for fines and imprisonment, but also for injunctive relief could. in appropriate
cases. be brought under the Refuse Act.

To this end. the first significant change in previous procedures instituted by
the guidelines was to authorize the U.S. attorneys, when they had acquired what
they deemed to be evidence sufficient to prove a ease, to thitiate on their own
initiative and authority, with no need of approval from the Department of .Tus-
nee in Washington. either criminal actions to punish violations of the Refuse
Act. or civil actions to enjoin such violations. Prior to the authorization to bring
such actions thus conferred by the guidelines. any U.S. attorney who wished to
bring any type of action under the Refuse Aet involving shore-based pollution.
except in New York Harbor. was required to secure the approval of the Depart-
ment of Justice. Thus the statement on page 2 of your letter. that prior to the
issuance of the guidelines departmental clearance for the initiation of an netion
under the Refuse Act was not required, simply is not correct. find the guidelines
represent a significant decentralization of authority in the operations of the
Department.
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Now it is true that there are three significant areas wherein the requirement
for departmental clearance was continued. These three areas are set forth in
paragraph III-3, 4, 3 and -the guidelines. These three exceptions embrace
alleged violations of the Refuse Act by (1) State or municipalities, or persons
whose actions in violation of the Refuse Act are purportediy authorized by
States or municipalities; (2) persons or firms whose polluting activities are the
subject of an administrative proceeding conducted by the Federal Water Quality
Administration, and (3) persons or firms who are the subject of State, county.
or municipal civil or criminal litigation. (A. fourth exception, involving foreign
vessels, Is of minor consequ(.nce). In any matter falling within these three exec!).
tions, the U.S. attorney may not initiate action on his own; instead, as required
by miragraph 111-7 ef the guidelines, he lutist assemble the facts and evidence
showing that a ease exists, and then, after himself making the initial decision
as to ((tether injunctive or criminal sanctions would most be In the public in-
terest, forward the information either to the Criminal Division or to this l)ivision
to secure authorization to bring the suit.

Much of the criticism I have read of the Refuse Act litigation guidelines
appears to be based on the assumption that because the U.S. attorneys may not
themselves Initiate three types of actions, then the Department of Justice will
taot initiate actions falling within these three areas. But this assumption is
erroneous, nnd indeed could not have been arrived at by anyone willing to read
the guidelines (awfully ; the first sentence of paragruph II-1 states:

The policy of the 1.partment of Justice with respect to the enforcement of the
Ilefusi Act for purposes other than the protection of the navigable capAcity of
tiur national waters, is

(1) not ti nttempt to use it ns a pollution abatement statute in competition
with the Federal Water Pellution Control Act or with State pollution abateuient
precedures. but rather

(2) to use it to supplement that act by bringing Appropriate actions either to
punish the occasional or recalcitrant polluter, or to abate continuing sources of
pollution which for some reason or other have not been subjected to a proceeding
by the Federal Water Quality Administration or by a State, or where in the
opinion of the Federal Water Quality Administration the polluter has failed to
comply with obligations under such a procedure.

I have added the brackets and underlining to this quotation to facilitate its
--remling-since_so many_seem to have had difficulty in reading it in its ordinary

form, and to emphasize that continuing industrial discharges are not automat-
ically exempted from prosecution by the Department. In your letter, you stated
on page 3 :

"We recognize that, the Refuse Act does not itself constitute a water pollution
control program. Rather it is ii means by which Federal and state water quality
programs can be enforced.

This. I think you will agnp, is substantially the same as the quoted language
from our policy statement.
, But to make the matter clear beyond doubt, let me here assert that where the

Department is supplied by a U.S. attorney or any other source with hard evi-
denee of a violation of the Refuse Act, and where the violation is of a type which
the U.S. attorney cannot under the guideiines initiate on his torn authority, thls
Department will authorize the initiation of the action, unless effective measures
to abate that pollution are already being taken by the Federal Water Quality Ad-
ministration or by a Sta te through court action.

This brings us to your suggestion that the Corps of Engineers use its permit
authority to require polluters to obtain licenses, thereby requiring them to (.0111-
ply with applicable water quality standards. What policies the Corps of Engi-
neers might adopt with respect to the issuance of licenses under the Refuse Act.
is. of course, a matter for the corps to decide. but I cannot agree with you that
the licensing procedure you advocate would he an effective way to abate pollu-
tion. The chief defect of the plan is that it does indirectly, and requires an extra
step to do. what may now be done directly and without further licensing. No
person or firm at the present time is exempt from the requirement of compliance
with water quality standards, where those standards have been established : and
it is therefore completely unnecessary for the Federal Government to license a
Person's activities to subject him to those standards. Thus your statement on
page 3 of your letter that "If np permit is required by the Corps of Engineers.
then the guarantees of section 21(b) cannot be applied" misses the point en-
irely. for it supposes that the States cannot impose their own le ws on their

eitizens except through the medium of a Federal license. The purpose of section
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21 (b) of the Water Quality Improvement Act is to prevent the Federal Govern-
ment from licensing polluting activities which are unlawful under the laws of
the State where the activities occur ; it is unnecessary to bring this section into
piny where a Federal license has not issued and the polluting activity is therefore
illegal under Federal as well as State inw.

In my opinion, the policy we are pursuing is the one most calculated to obtain
the maximum results from existing statutes. Since, under our guidelines, the U.S.
attorneys now have considerable authority, to initiate actions under the Refuse
Act on their own, I do not know how mank actions have been initiated by them
since June 15, and I expect that it may be some time before we can have these
figures. We have attempted to net promptly on the requests for authorization
which have liven sent in to us pursuant to the guidelines ; ns you may have read,
we recently nuthorized the U.S. attorney in New Haven, Conn., to initiate actions
against the city of Bridgeport nnd five firms within the city to enjoin their
violations of the Refuse Act. We have given similar authority to the U.S.
attorney in Cleveland with respect V the continuing violations of the Refuse Act ,

camanItted by a clwinical company On Frain y, :July 4, havi»g been supplied with /
evidence of violations by the Delmetinent of the Interior, we authorized the U.S. /
attorneys to bring actions to enjoin the discharges into the navigable waters/
of the United States of mercury issuing from 10 iiinnts. Other requests for
authorization are under study.

One of the most important things Per you to be aware of is that the greatest
limitation on our ability to bring actions under the Refuse Act is not that
statute, or any other statute, or our policies thereunder, but the acquisitiOn of
substantial evidence to prove the charge. It is apparently your assumption that
the Corps of Engineers has referred to the Department of Justice many'rdleged
violations of the Refuse Act, which the Department has failed to prosecute. I
think that if you will check with the Corps of Engineers, and its regional (dikes,
you will find that in fact the U.S. attakneys have asked the Corps of Engineers
to supply data or evidence with respect to many alleged violations, hut with the
corps, because of limitations of manpower, simply has not bren able to investigate
these alleged violations, or to supply the required data. Lacking proof of a
violation of the Refuse Act, the U.S. attorneys ennuot go to court. Improved
ways of obtaining proof, and the opening up on the local level of channels of
communication between tlie U.S. attorneys, the regional offices of tile Corps of
Engineers, and the local offices of the Federal Water Quality Administration, are

-considerably in the near future, and that if you but observe our implementation
of the guidelines-, you will be more than satisfied with the actions we tnke.

subjects which are now under discussion. I believe that

Sincerely,
SIIIRO

Assistant Attorney General.

THE CONSERVATION FOUNDATION,
Washingtom, D.C., August 7, 1070.

nom Sumo KASHIWA,
-Assistant Attorney General, Lands and Natural Resources Dirision, Department

of Justice, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MIL KASIIIWA : WO appreciate your response tO our letter of July 15 re-

garding the Justice Department Guidelines for Litigation under the Refuse Act.
Your letter has, indeed, clarified the Department's position.,

The need to inform U.S. attorney about Refuse Act remedies is, ns you ex-
plain, understandable. Certainly we agree that the Refuse Act could be used
with more effect if U.S. attorneys were made more familiar with it.

Our basic difficulty, which your letter has not dispelled, is with the underlying
policy of the guidelines. There is a difference between use of the Refuse Act as a
supplement to the Federal and State water quality program, and its use ns an
enforcement tool to pursue that program.

This difference is highlighted by the statement in your reply that water quality
standards.can be obtained without regard to the provisions of section 21 (b) of
the Water Quality Improvement Act. You note that "no person or firm at the
present time is exempt from the requirement of compliance with water quality
standards, where those standards have been established; and it is, therefore,
completely unnecessary for the Federal Govermnent to license a person's activi-
ties to subject him to those standards." Your letter goes on to say that our rec-
ommended use of section 21(b) "misses the point entirely, for it supposes that

51-539-76-11
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the States cannot impose their own laws on their citizens exeept through the
medium of it Federal license."

The imlicy you articulate disregards the theory behind the Federal Water Pol-
lution Uontrtd Act ; Federal leverage is required to force States to establish and
implement water quality standards, Mercury dumping is only one example indi-
cating that while States now have a water pollution permit system, they fre-
quently negleet it. That the Federal Government should insist On such State at
tention to individual. polintors IS VOIISIstent with current Federal water polio-
thm policy. Therefore,,section 21(1)) retutires States to imidentent their IMAM-
Hon controls under Federal supervision over all V.:4. navigable waters, whether
or liot intrastate. Federal polieing initiative limier the Federal Water IN)1111-
tion Control Act is, tit course. limited to interstate pollution.

lse Of Refuse Act permits under section 21(1)) likewise allows quick Federal
enforcement of State water quality sthmlards through injunctive remedies(
rather than under the (1-month procedures on which FWQA must rely, Where Oil.
Federal Government alone has testing facilities eapable of detecting. Iodlution,
especially the toxic variety like mercury, tliis injunctive use of Refuse Alt- reme-
dies under section 21 tin is both logleal and necessary. Once corps permits were
issued in accordance with section 21(h), the Federal Government wimid Is- in a
position to take quiek almtement action' when It determines that State water
guilty standards were being vit)lated in I".S. navigable waters.

We are hell rioted. of course, to know that the Justlec Deintrtment has taken
[teflon against certain cmmianies now dumping mercury in violation of the
Refuse Act. We hope that the Department will take similar action against the
unlawful discharge of other insidious, less notorious substances in the future,
That such actions have been difficult to bring because U.S. attorneys lack in-
formation -on Refuse -Act vlola lions should be easily Temedied. It Is true, as you
state "that the corps, because of limitations of manpower, shnply has not been
able to investigate these alleged violations or to supply the required data.'" lint
although the corps does require a larger- staff in its district permit offices. PX-
pertise on these matters resides with the FWQA and not the corps. Vigorous
effarts of the Justice Department wonid seem hest directed to) insure opthnum
eooperation from the FWQA. We look forward to early and satisfactory reports
of your current efforts to hnprove the relations between Justice and the FWQA.

We were gratified to learn that the Department will authorize actions under
the Refuse Act "unless effective measures to abate that pollution are already
being taken by the Federal Water Quality Administration or by a State throng!)
court action." As we observe the Delia rtment's implementation of the guidelines,
we share your hope that we will be satisfied with the results.

Sincerely,
ARTTILTA A. DAVIS,

Vice President for Operat ions.
_ .

.

HOEFIE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATI RAn, RESOI7IteES SUIRIOM MITTEE

OF 'FIIE CORM ITTEE ON GOVERNMF.NT OPERATIONS.
Washington, D.C., August 19, 1970,

Mr, RUSSELL E. TRAM
Chairman, Council on Environmental Quality,
Washington, D.C.

I.
DEAR Mit. TRAIN 'Die Department of Justiee issued on uly 10, 1970. to the

U.N. attorneys its "Guidelines for Litigation Under the Refuse Act (33 17.S.C.
407)." The guidelines state tlie following policy (p. 3) :

."1. The policy of the Department of .Tustice with respect to the enforeement
of the Refuse Act for Imposes other than the protection of the navigable cn .
pacity of onr national waters, is not to Attempt to use it as a pollution abate .
meta statute In competition with the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or
with the State pollution abatement procedures, but rather to tote ft to supplement
that act by bringing appropriate actions either to punish the occasional or re-
calcitrant polluter, or to abate continuing sources of pollution which for some
reason or other have not been subjected to a proceeding conducted by the Fed.
eral Water Quality Athninistratios or by a State, or where in the opinion of
the Federal Water Quality Administration thc polluter haft failed to comply
with obligations under such a procedure *." [Italic supplied.]
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As you know, section 102(C) of the National Environmentni Policy Act. of
1999 (l'ublic Lnw 91-190, approved Jan. 1, 1970) directs all Federal agencies,
including the Justice Department, to include, in nU "major Federal actions
significantly affecting t he !witty of the !num!!! environment," a detailed state-
menton

nest. the environmental impact of the proposed action;
Swim& any adverse envIrimmental effects which catillot Is' avoided should

the prolontal be implemented :
Third. alternatives to the prol KWH act ion ;
Fourth, tho relationship bet ween locn1 short4crm uses of man's environ-

ment nnd maintenance and enhancement. of long-term productivity; and
Fifth, any irreversible and irresistnble commitments ofe.,resourees which

would is' involved in the proposed acthm should it lab implemented.
Before issuing this statement, such agonies must Obtain Ow views and

clanments of those Federal agencies having "jurisdiction by law7',.iir 'special ex-
oert Ise with respect to -an. mivironmental I nil Met ill VOI VE41."

Section 5(a) Of the Council's interim guidelines of April 3, 1970 (35 FR.
7390), defined the term "aetions," for the purpose of determining whether a
"detailed statement" is required, to incinde "policy nnd procedure making"
activities of' un agmicy.

We understand that
(a) The Department. of Justice Violated the reqnirements of section

102(C) of the act by failing to prepare and with the Council a detailed
statement eimeerning the policy adopted by it In the above Guidelines : mid

(11) The Depart mmit of .Instim failed to mnsult with either the Corps
of Engineers, the Federal Water Quality Administration, or the Council
coluvrning the details of the alswe policy, the relritionship of that policy to
the programs of those agencies. or the environment!!! effect or impact of

....

We are grently poncerned about -these failures of the Justice Department to
comply with the requireimmts of the National Environnimital Policy Act.

The Guidelines were issued, necording tO t he .1114 lee DepiirtIllent, as. "intitrile-
tionm to the U.S. attorneys" in the handling of action!! under the 1899
Refuse Act. The Guidlines authorizes 11.8. attorneys to bring certain types of
actions to the attention of the Justice Department to secure auhorization to
bring suit under the 1899 laW. Included in these are continuing violations of t he
act. If it were not for the above 1)0,1 icy Statement, we could understand that, for
administrative purposes, such n procedure %yanki be desirable front the stand-
point of tile Justice Department. But the above policy statement establishes ns
a fine "policy of the Department of Justiee" that no suit will be authorized tot
"abate continuing sources of pollution"- which are subject to some mniefineei,
vague "proceeding conducted" by FWQA or a State.

Thus, with tills firm policy stated In. th' gilidella es. U.S. attorneys will be
disconraged from submitting to the Justice Department any suit to abate con7
tinning sources of pollution, particularly when no one knows what constitutes a
PWQA or State "proeeeding." The result is that the polluter gains, end the

_ _ __toddle loses. ,

We'requeStAlle Connell to-review-this violation with the Department of Justice
and to seek the prompt rescission of this milawfulif Itilopteir polier-by-that - --
Department. Please a dVise when theJustice Department rescinds this

Enelosed is it copy of my statement ((7011g. Ree., Aug..14, 1970, pp. 118362-8300)
concerning the policy of full enforcement by the Corps of Engineers, and the
!silky of abdication of enforcement, by the .Justice Department, under the 1899
net.

During the reeent hearing of the'Sennte Air and Water Subcommittee on
August 11, 1970, you stated that the Council was working with the Corps of
Engineers, the Justice Department, and FWQA to formulate n "new program"
to be announced in About n month concerning enforcement of the 1899 net.

We would appreciate your prompt response to _the following questions and
points:

1. To what extent will this "new program" differ from the full .enforcement
policy announced by the Corps of Engineers on July 30, 1970,-mentioned .in my
statement of August 14 (Cong. Rec., supra, p. 1183(14) ?

2. (a) Will the guidelines of the Justice Department be revised under this new
program?

(b) if the answer to (a) is yes, please let us know in what ways the guide-
lines will be revised.
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3. Since the 1899 act is administered by the corps, not by PWQA, what role
do you envisage PWQA should have under (a) the corps' new policy of July 30,
am! (b ) the "new program" to be announced?

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS, .

Chairman, Coasercatien and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CON SERVATION AND NAT UR AL RESOURCES SUBCOM MITTEE

OF THE COM MITTEE ON GOVERN MENT OPERATION S,
Washington, August 19, 1970.

MIL JOHN N. MITCHELL,
Attorney General of the United States,
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. AITCIIELL: Enclosed for your information is a copy of my letter 1
have today sent to the Chairman of the Council on Environmental Quality con-
cerning the Justice Department's failure to comply with the requirements of
section 102(C) of Public 91-190 in issuing its "gaidelines for litigation und6r
the Refuse Act (33 U.S. Code 407)."

'Also, enclosed is a copy of my statement (Congressional Record, August 14,
1970, pp. 118302-8360) concerning the Corps of Engineers new policy of full
enforcement of the 1899 act and the Justice Department's abdication of its
statutory duty to enforce "vigorously" that act.

We wonhl apprecinte your tbarly reply to our letter of July 8, 1970, concerning
the guidelines.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,. .

C ha irman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
Washington, D.C., Auglst 31, 1970.

HOIL HENRY S. REUSS,
Chairman., Conservation ani Natural Resources Subcommittee, Dom of Rep-

resentatives, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MB. CHAIRMAN: This will reply to your recent letters relating to our

guidelines for litigation under the Refuse Act. It is tbe iwemise of your letters
that this Department will not authorize the institution of suits under the Refuse
Act to abate continuing sources of pollution, 'But that premise Its we have
already explained in our letter to the Conservation Foundation, with which
letter you are familiar, is incorrect.

During the first 7 months of this year, approximately 170 cases have been
referred to the various U.S. attorneys for criminal prosecution under the Refuse
Act. This represents an increase of severalfold over the number of prosecutive
referrals under this act for the same period of time in any prior year. Also, the
Department has recently authorized civil suits against 10 companies to stop mer-
cury pollution of lakes and rivers in seven States. Authorization/has also been
given for civil suits against other industrial polluters.
It is our purpose to exert our best efforts to carry out through litigation all
legliTaTiVe-authorities-whic.hCongress_has made available for the improvement
of water quality and to cooperate, to the fulkiiittent-possible-consistent_with_
this objective, with local and State officials who have the same end in view.

Sincerely,
SHIRO RASHIWA,

-Assistant Attorney General.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COMMTTTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., September 22, 1970.

HOS. JOHN N. MITCHELL,
Attorney General,
Department of Justice,
Washington, D.C.

DE.ts Ms. ATTORNEY GENERAL : By letter of August 31, 1970, Assistant Attorney
General Shiro Kashiwa responded to our subcommittee's letters to you con-
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(Truing the Justice Department's "guidelines" for enforcing the 18.99 Refuse
Act (33 U.S. Code 407). His letter says* that it. "Is the premise of" our sub-.
committee's letters that tbe Justice Department "will not authorize the insti-
tution of snits under the Refuse' Act to abate continuing sources of pollution. But
that preillise * is incorrect."

Thnt is not the "premise" of our letters. Rather, as stated in our letter to
you of July 8, 1970, 2 days before your Departnient issued the "guidelines" to
all U.S. attorneys prescribing the Department's enforcement policy concerning
violations of the Refuse Act by industrial polluters," we say that-the gnidellnes
"are unduly and startlingly negative and discouraging toward any hope of
vigorous enforcement of the act" by U.S. attorneys.

We have read the statement in the guidelines which say that U.S. attorneys
will refer certain Refuse Aft vielations to Washington tor depurtmental review
and clearance. But the guidelines !lisp contain (on p. 3) Il statement of depart-
mentill policy which tells the U.S. attorneys in advance that the Justice Depart
malt will approve an action under the 189V law "to ulnae continuing sources of
pollution" only if the alleged violator has "been subjected to a [yet undefined!
proceeding cmulucted by the Federal. Wafer Quality dministration or by a Ntate,
or where in the opinion of the Federal Water Quality Administ ration the polluter
has failed. to comply with obligations under such a proredure." [Italie suppliedi
We were certain then, and we are certain now, that witb Sl1(h a volley state-
ment proceding alla modifying all Instructions found visewhore in the gilidelines.
a busy 11i4. attorney will not devote the time and energy needed to try to con-
vince Washington officials that an (xception to this general poliey is warrunted
in ally particular case. Oven though you, at the urging of Secretnry of the In-
terior nickel, did authorize prosecution in-the remit cases of mercury pollution.
We predicted thot a U.S. attorney, overloaded with cases, will probably decline.
citing the Justice Department. pelWy, to file either criminal or civil actions under
the 1899 low where there is a continuing violation.

For this and other reasons. we urged, in our July 8 letter, that the Justice
Department "IVI-NP ttIOSP * giltdMIIIPS to Maki. th011l fulfill, rather than
negate, the requirements of the 1899 law, and to encourage, rather than (Hs'
courage, the enforcement of the law."

Twt us give you a coneiTte exaMple of how our prediction is true.
Recently, Npvvral Maryland citizens. through their attorney. Mr. Hamilton P.

Fox of Salislairy. Md.. urged the U:S. nttorney for Ma ryln nd to enforce tbe
1899 Refuse Act (33 U.S.(1. 407) against Hu, Mar-del Byprothwts Co. of Sulk-
Imrs, )1(1. That compal*:.1:4 allegedly diAcluirging- shredded chlelwil offal HIld
grease into n tributary of the Whamileo River. U.S. Attorney George Beall.
in his letter of August 8,1970. to Mr. Fox, replied :

"I mnst respeetfully dipline the invitation to institute. a civil snit [against
flu' Mar-del Col under the R('filse Act [and] we are also most reluctant to inter-
vene in or join as amicus eurine In a gni tam option 1111dOr authority of tlii
MOW' .tet."

lii deelining to institute n stilt under tile .1899 luw. Mr. Beall involod the
.7ui4 ire Delia rt ment guidelines volley as follows.:

"Our office is under strict imarnetions to (blur to Stfite pollution oho tenu'ilt
proerdures Nueli as thoic administered by the 3laryland Departuunt:of Water
Resource& Sinee an investigation of this. particular riolotor IR presently being
rondueted by that agency. our loartiripation iA not timely. IS the State proPeeitIrrg
OIVIlrmvalling, we Yon ciaisidertliVoe:ltion of thy tissi:4ta nee of the Federal Water
Quality A alpinist rution." [I fa fies suppliN1.1

Thus. NIr. Beall, inhibited by the negatiN'isni of the guidelines, evidently eon-
strued just- as we awl lIlhIy others in Congress and from tlw general
public have done, to bar any action by him so tong as the* company's pollution
was being "investignted" by a *Sthte agency. His ktter plainly shows that he yon-
strued the word "pro:TP(116'g" in the guidelliws (p. 3) asincInding merely an
"111VO::tigntion",being comlueted by Oft. State ageney.

Further. if the State investigation action is "unavailing," Mr. Beall would.
under Jw.tic&s Guidelines, still not enforce the'1899 iv:t. Rather. lu. would "'con-
sider invocation of asgistance" of therFWQA2

Mr. Beall's strained construction of the guidelines certainly shows MP
IThed for revising the guidelinea and . eliminating its negative tone, aml for
issuing new guidelines which would encourage U.S. attorneys to carry out
the statutory admonition "to vigorously" enforce the 1899 law (33 U.S.C. 413).

Mr. Ka shim, in his August 311etter, also said as follows:
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"During- the first 7 months of this year, approximately 170 cases have been
referred to the various U,S. attorneys for criminal mosecutive referrals under
this act for the same period of time in any prior year. Also the Department
has recently authorized idyll sults against 10 companies to stop mercury
pollution of lakes and rivers in seven States. Authorization has also been given
for civil suits against other industrial polluters." .

We also have noted the testimony by Maj. Gen. Frank P. Koisch of the
Corps of Engineers on March 5, 1970, before the Senate Committee on Air and
Water Pollution. He stated that "last year *. we passed on to the Justice
Ihpartment 355 [violation of tlw 1899 law] * * * of which 25 were denied prosecu-
tion and 236 are pending." .

Our subcommittee desires lc fully a-nd correctly understand the work of
your Department in handling cases under the Refuse Act. We would appreciate
your cooperation in supplying the following information to us :

1:Please furnish the data requested on the attaehed table.
2. Please provide to us a copy of each of the complaints made against the

10 alleged mercury polluters.
We would appreciate receiving the foregoinrinformation as rapidly as pos-

sible. If all of the data cannot be assembled, and transmitted to us by October
1, 1970, please send to us whatever data you then have and forward the
renminder to us as soon thereafter as possible.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.
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U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES.
CONSEIWATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMIrrEE

OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., July 23, MO.

MIL DAVID D. DOMINICK,
COmmissioner, Federal Water Pollution Control Administration, Department

of the Interior, Washington, D.C.
, DEAR Ma. Dommea : The Department of Justice issued on July 10, 1970,

/ "Guidelines for Litigationunder the Refuse Act (33 U.S.C. 407)" to U.S. nttor-/ no's. These guidelines state the Justice Department policy concerning enforce-/ merit of the 1899 act as follows :
"Tiw policy of the Department of Justice with resiwct to the enforcement of

the Refuse Act for purposes other than the protection of the navigable capacity
of our national wnters, is not to attempt to use it as a pollution abatement statute
in competition with the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or with State pollu-
tion abatement procedures, but rather to use it to supplement that act by bringing
appropriate actions either to punish the occasional or recalcitrant pollutor, or to
abate continuing sources of pollution. which for some reason or other have not
been subjected to a proceeding conducted by the Federal Water Quality Admin-
istration or by a State, or Where in the .opinion of the Federal Water Quality
Administration the pollutor has failed to comply with obligations under such a
procedure" [itulles supplied].

The guidelines then go on to state that, under this policy, U.S. attorneys shall
not "initiate on their own authority * actions against manufacturing plants
which continuously discharge refuse" into navigable waterways without a Corps
of Engineers permit. Further, under this policy the Justice Department itself
will not institute such actions where such plants are subject to "proceedings con-
ducted" by FWQA or "by a State" or where, in the opinion of FWQA, the polintor
is complying with its "procedure."

We believe that this policy is contrary to the requirements of the 1S99 net,
renders meaningless the provisions of section 21 (b) of the Federal Water Pollu-
tion Control Act insofar as existing waste discharges not under corps permit are
concerned, and violates the spirit and intent of the latter statute.

We would appreciate your prompt response to each of the following questions
and requests :

1. (a ) Did the Justice Department consult with FWQA before adopting this
policy?

( h) If f40, Wild were FWQA's comments and views concerning this policy ?
2. (a ) Does FWQA agree with this policy ?
(b) If so, why?
3. Please provide to us (n) a list of each proceeding eonducted by FWQA which

would apply to continuing sources of pollution ; (b) a statement outlining the
nature of each such proceedings; and (c) the statutory citation of authority for
en(41.

4. Under what circumstances would FWQA consith%r, ami.so advise Justice, that
since a continuing pollution source is complying "with obligations" under such a
proceeding, an action to enforce the Refuse Act should not he instituted?

5. Precisely what actions bv a discharger of refuse who is a continuing
source of pollution do you consider to constitute compliance "with obligations"
under FWQA procedure?

6. Even if such a discharger is "complying with obligations" (whatever that
means) under FWQA procedure, should not the continuing discharger who lacks
a corps permit be required to apply for such a permit and thereby trigger the
certification procedure under section 21 (b) of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act 119 nmended on April 3, 1970 (Public Law 91-224) ?

7. (a ) Please provide to us a statement specifying, in detail, the procedures
established by FWQA to review and comment on proposed actitU)s by U.S. at-
torneys to enforce the 1899 act?

(h) Please provide to us a copy of the report form leveloped for this
purpose.

Enclosed for your information th a copy of my floor statement in the Con-
gressional Record (pages 116797-67018, daily issue) of July 15, 1970, concerning
the Justke Department's guidelines.

Sincerely,
HENRY R. REUSS,

Chairman, Conserva tion and Natural Resources Secomm it tee.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

WaShinglon., D.C., September 24, 1970.
HMI. HENRY S. REUSS,
Chairnum, Conservation. and Natural Resources Subcommittee, Committee on

Government Operations, House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN : This is in response to your letter of July 23, 1970; in

which you asked certain questions concerning the recent guidelines issued by
the Department of Justice concerning the enforcement of the "Refuse Act." The
answers to your questions are as follows :

1. (n) Did the Justice Department consult with FWQA before adopting this
policy?

No.
(b) If so, whnt were FWQA's comments and views concerning this policy?
See 1(n).
2. (a) Does FWQA agree with this policy?
We nre ill substantial agreement with the intent of the Justice Department

guidelines.
(b) If so, why?
We believe thnt the Refuse Act should be enforced in the rontext of other

Federal laws which also prohibit the discharge of pollutants into the navigable
waterways of United. States. One such Federal statute is the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, which provides for an orderly and systematic approach
to the abatement of polluting discharges in compliance with water quality
standards nnd within a reasonable time schedule.

The guidelines issued by the Department of .Tustice do not remove the Refuse
Act from availability ns nn enforcement tool. Instead, they require that the total
manpower resources available for enforcement of pollution control are utilized
in the most effective manner. We understand their purpose to be the achieve-
ment of consistent nnd systematic Federnl water pollution control efforts. It
would be inconsistent for n U.S. attorney to bring An action, for example,
against an industry which is constructing a waste treatment facility according
to n schedule approved by FIVQA

3. Please provide to us (a) n list of each proceeding conducted by FWQA which
would apply to eontinuing sourees of pollution ; (b) a statement outlining the nn-
ture of each such proceeding; and (c) the statutory citntion of authority for each.

Two basic enforcement procedures are provided by the _Federal Water Pollu-
tion Control Act (all citations are to thnt act). Both are applicable to continuing
sources of pollution.

The first is a three-stage procedure: a conference is first held, followed by a
public hearing nnd, if necessary, a court action.

The conference, provided for in section 1n(1), is conducted informallS, nnd is
a nonadversary action. The conferees nre the State water pollution control
agencies, interstate water pollution control agencies, if any, nnd the Department
of the Interior. At this time, the function of the conference is to inquire into the
occurrence of pollution alsitable under the act, the adequacy of the measures
being tnken, nnd the nature of the delays being encountered ; ngreement of the
conferees, if possible, is obtained on n required remedial program to abate the
pollution. Following the conference, the Secretary prepares a summary of pro-
ceedings and, if appropriate, his recommendations for remedial action.

A public henring held pursuant to section 10(f) is n formal procedure directed
toward individual alleged polluters, The Hearing Board is comprised of five or
more members, appointed by the Secretary of the Interior. The findings and rec-
ommendations made by the Hen ring Board on the basis of the evidence presented
are sent to the polluters with a stipulated time for compliance and to the state
and interstn te ngencies.

As n last resort, court action is provided for by section 10(g). The court has
jurisdiction to enter such judgment and enforcing orders ns the public interest
nnd the equities of the case may require.

The second procedure is set forth in section 10(c) (5) of the act. Under thnt
procedure, the requirements for an enforceMent conference nnd n statutory hear-
ing nre eliminated. Instend, the Secretary mny proceed directly to court action
after 130-day noti 'T to the defendant. An informal hearing is required by regu-



lotions. to allow the defendant to present his plans, if any, for voluntarily almting
the pollution.

-). Under what clreumst aneet4 Windt! FWQA consider, and So advise Just lee. tlmt
since a continuing pollution source is manplying "with obligations" under sinli a
proceeding. an nethat to enforce the Refuse Aet shonid not be instituted?

We believe that it would be Inequitable and disrupti ye Of Federal enVir011Inen-
tat cleanup efforts to pniseente dischargers under the .Refuse Act who are con-
selent Ion sly MITSIling time schedules for remedial action established HS a result. of
Federal-State water quality st a Ildiirds OT as 11 result of an miff meennant confer-
ence pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

5. Precisely what actions by a discharger of refuse who is a conthming souree
of pollution do yon consider to emistitnte compliance "with obligations" under
l''WQA Procedures?

See answer to question 4.
6. Even if a discharger is "coMplying with obligations" (whatever that means)

tinder MCA procedure, should mit the comtinning discharger who lacks a tamps
proeednre under section 21(b) of the Federal Water Polintbm Cimtrol Act, as
permit be required to apply for such a permit and thereby trigger the certification
amended. on April 3, 1970 (Public Law 91-224) ?

Yes. FWQA is cooperating with the Department of the Army to thavelop a pro-
gram for accomplishing this.

7. (a ) Please provide to us a statement specifying, in detail. the proeedures
established by FWQA to review and comment on priqmsed oetions by U.S. attor-
neys to enforce the 1899 ad.

(lit Please provide to us a copy of the, report form developed fin. this purpose.
No procedures have yet !men developed for review of referral of possible

Refuse. Act violations to FWQA by the Department of justiee. However. In this
regard. this Department and the Dmiartment of the Army, in comoultation with
tile Department ief Justice, are developind proeedures for the expeditious investi-
gation and prompt referral of Refuse Act eases to the Department. of Justice.

When those procedures ore devehmod we will forward them to you.
Sincerely yours,

DAvIn I). Domsteg. Cronmissiouvr.

DEPARTMENT OF JCSTRtE.
Wash (nglon,1).C., October 2. PM.

11011. I IEXILY S. RECSS.
Chairman, Conkerration and Natural ResoureeR Subromnittee, Jfoiea vif Reure-

sentatires, Wash ingt on. D.C.
DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN : The Attorney Generni hos referred to me pair letter

of 8eptentlier 22..1970. for reply with respect to the motters disenssed tlierein
under the jurisdiction of the Lund and Nat urn! Resources Division, As pot
knoW, rosponsibility for the enforcement of the Refuse. Aet is divided anomg
three divisions: the Civil Division SlIttervIses all fletiOns IIIV,01 ring ships, the
Criminul Division suisqvises all other criminal actions. aud the Land and Natural
Resources Division supervb-tes all other, civil aetions. Copies of your letter have
been stud: to the Criminal and Civil Divisions for sigmas-late reply.

I appreeiate your presentd Teallxat 1011 that the Spirit. or /Ile guidelines is to
eneourage 1%8. attorneys to nse the Refuse Act effectively either to lain ish or
tamte 11(11111ti al. These guidelines confer upon the U.S. attorneys antlauity to
bring nctions under the Itel'use Act where certain situations exist. mind encourage
the l'.8. attorneys to submit to this (Om requests for authorization to bring
notions where 010 matters are not within their own authority to twin:mute. Of
course, one of the emisequenros of the grants of authority given to the U.S.
attorneys under the guidelines IS that We Ilt the departniental level are luta ware
of the many day-to-day deeisimm which the 1*.S. ottorneys nulke in the imple-
mentation of their deletratosl responsibilities. However, We HIP eonfident that
these deCISIMat reflect the best judgment of the U.S. attorneys.

As requested in your letter. I out sending you a copy of each of the (low
pinints filed to enjoin the diseharge of mereury into the novigable waters of the
United States. I am also sending you a toble.showIng certain information with
respeet to the acthms filed by this Division under the Refuse Act. Since all of
these aetions are!for injunctive relief. you May assume that the Melia rges in-
volved aro either continuing. or yery frequent. Not included in this iist tire the
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DUMPS of 30 (4milmnies against which actions are muter ronsideration ; Gas Is
hi keeping wit h the 1 bpa rtment of Justire policy not to =Homer la w suits

they are artually Med.
Sincerely,

StIllto KA/411MA.
n I .4 Mow y General.

Enelosures.

NoTE.The comidaint and settlement llgreements coneerning mercury pollu-
ters are set forth in appendix 91

LIST OF POLLUTERS OF NATION'S NAVIGABLE WATERWAYS SUPPLIED TO COMMITTEE BY THE JUSTICE
DEPARTMENT

Name
D.J.

number Source Water body District

Allied Chemical 90-1-2-918 I Onondaga River Northern New York.
Cirillo Bros 90-1-2-813 CE New York Harbor Eastern New York.
Diamond Shamrock 90-1-2,914 I Tennessee River, Pond Creek Alabama.

Do 90-1-2-919 I Delaware River Delaware.
Geo.-Pac. Corp 90-1-2-913 I Bellingham Bay Western Washington.
Harshaw Chemical 90-1-2-899 U Cuyahoga River Northern Ohio.
IMC Chlor-Alkali 90-1-2-911 Penobscot River Maine.
Marathon Battery Co 90-1-2-93a U Foundry Cove Southern New York.
Olin Mathieson Corp 90-1-2-915 Niagara River Western New York.

Do 90-1-2-911 Savannah River Southern Georgia.
Oxford Paper Co 90-1-2-920 Androscoggin River Maine.
Pennwalt Chemical 90-1-2-916 Tennessee River Western Kentucky.
Weyerhaeuser Co 90-1-2-912 Columbia River Western Washington.

Note.I=Interior; C (=Corps of Engineers; U =United States Attorney.

DEPAIUMEXT op JusTicr,.
Washington, Gclobcr 19, 1970.

MI1.11E:illy S. ILV-245;
Chairman, Conservation and National lienourers Nnbrommittee. House of Repre-

iwortativca, Washington, D.C.
1W.AR CONGRESMNIAN `. This is in further resillalse to yimr letter of Seidemher 22,

1l 170. addressed to the Attorney General. which was filrwarded to us by the Laud
II lid NIlturIll Itesliurces Division after that Division had prepared its nply.

11'e are respr aiding to your request for infinanatirni concerning criminal pros-
minions tinder the lbluse Act of 1809 (33 U.S.C. 407,411).

'The only centralised SI puree for use for t he I llforluitlthm you roiliest.
is from the monthly statistical reports from the at hirneys offices which are
conquiterim (I. From the IIIM printout of these reports, we bare prepared and
enclose lists of the eases pending on August 31, 1070. and those closed Shure tile
iieginning of fiscal year 11170. Attached to each list is an explanation of the code
tin mlwrs shown under "statne and "disposition."

You will see frolll these lists thnt as of Angust 31, 1970, there are 72 criminal
cases which have been filed and are pending disposition, most of them awaiting
either arraignment or trial. There were 92 criminal cases closed, most of them
after pleas of guilty or nolo eontendere. In addition to the court eases listed, .

there were as of August 31, 1970, 105 criminal matters pending. For obvious
reasons we cannot list or comment on these while they are in the process of
consideration for criminal prosecution

11'e lire unable tll furnish all of the detailed information you requested on the
tables attached to yOur letter because it is not ovailable to us. Such 11 debiiled
breakdown is !nit !Minded In the reports which are the source /if tile st/ltistleal
information. However, In genernl, oil spills or refuse from industrial operations
which contain oil or chemical wastes constitute the majority of the diseharges
upon Whiell prosecutions are based. The usual pnietice is that the Corps of
Engineers reports violations either to us or to the U.S. attorneys based on 'Coast

Iluard investigations. The Coast Guard and the Corps of Engineers reeeh-e,
muqlla hits from a variety .of sources, lint the majority of the violations are.
discovered during routine Coast thisird patrols.

Yon will note that on the list of closed cases the disposition code. wlwre the
prirsecutlims were successfully concluded either by guilty or nolo contendere
pleas or by a guilty verdict after trial. are shown as 301. Ma 303. 354 or 385
which indieuh.s that the line has not I reels paid. Tbls only bas been erronermsly L

170
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used in most cases as the court records show payment of f'he finen imposed. We
assume that failure to show payment of the lines in the reports of disposition
omurred bemuse of the time lag between paynwnt and the report by the court
clerk to the U.S. attorneys' offices.

If we can be of further assistance, please let us know.
iThwerely,

Aysistant Attorney General.
REFUSE ACT CASES CLOSED, AUG. 1, 1970

District and name
Court

No.
Disposi-

\ lion District and name
Court

No.
Disposi.

lion I

Alaska: Hrubik 67101 325 New York, SouthernConlinued
Georgia Southern: Edwards P 690428 380

Savannah Mach 18054 333 Corp of Era 690428 14
Hunt Wesson. 18046 353 Amerada Hess 690766 361
Union Camp Cor 18044 363 Gull Oil Corp 690765 361

Illinois Northern: Cirillo Term 690764 361
Interlake St! 68077 363 Oceana Term . . . ........ ._ 700218 361
Pure Oil Corp... ...... . 700069 363 Ohio, Northern: Avenler Mar 700136 361
Abrams C 700069 359 Puerto Rico:
Gen Am Transp.... .......... 700067 363 P R Water Ros 696094 761
hat Sheet MO 700066 363 Esse Standard 690096 761
Olinkralt Inc .
Penn Central 1#t

700065
700062

353
353

South Carolina, East:
Murray W. E 690013 361

Excelsior Trk 700062 363 Murray Invest. 690013 361
Int Harvester.. ......... . - 700071 353 Carolina Dredg ... \ 696014 385

Indiana Northern: Tennessee, Middle:
Sinclair Oil 700011 362 Stotler L. 11513 381
Standard Oil 700014 342 Texaco Inc 14597 761
Phillips ripe 700015 330 Texas, Southern:
Atl Richfield 700018 359 Pontiac Refin 700032 761

Maine: Crown Central.. . ...... 700175 763
Mobil Oil Corp 690018 761 Vermont:
Resnick Oil Co 700038 761 Northern Oil_ 696630 395
Mobil Oil 700058 761 Spentonbush 706653 361

New Hampshire: Do 706652 761
Barge C 06976 763 Virginia, Eastern: Dryden E. F 690086 762
Mobil OiL 696996 363 Georgia, Northern: Southern Reg.__ 26402 363
Mobil Oil 696997 363 Illim....s, Northern:

New lersey: Lake Thy Term 700064 363
Weller Oil Inc 700081 362 US Rwy Equip 700256 363
We lien 700194 361 Materiel Serv 700257 363
We lien Oil Inc 700193 361 Illinois, Eastern:
We lien Oil Co 700224 361 Central Towin 690070 361
Gen Ainiline 700027 361 Canal Barge Co 700004 361
El Dupont 700021 363 Indiana, Northern: Dupont Chem.._ 700010 763
P.S.C. Trans 700020 362 a ne.

, Texaco Inc.. 700026 363 FlInk, C. R 700062 361
New York, Northern: Acme Oil 68118 362 Sun Oil 700063 761
New York, Eastern: Maryland: Deepwater Ter 700247 763

White Rock Cor 700022 362 New Jersey:
Consol Edison 700022 361 Howard F 700197 361
Commander Oil 700021 386 Lever Bros 700243 363
Investors Coll , 700020 330 Bayonne Ind 700051 362
Van Iderstine 700024 352 Howard Fuel 700022 361
Nick Bros Fuel 700245 361 New York, Eastern: Long 1st Ugh__ 700242 361
Mobil Oil Co 700246 361 Oregon: Union 011 Co 700181 763

New York, Southern: Illinois, Northern: Procter & Gam 700068 363
Vacar Conctr 680990 361 Indiana, Northern: Inland Steel._ _ 700016 762
Penn Cen Trans 690607 361 Maryland: Humble Oil 700248 342
Federated Home 68574 361 New Jersey.
Spearin & Burrow 68575 384 Kramer Chem. 700305 361
Cid flo Bros 68573 359 Greenpoint Dr 700029 361
Hudson Wire Co 690767 361 Tennessee, Western:
Cense! Edison 690603 361 IR Cen RR 700084 363
Col Sand Stone 690923 361 STL-SF RR 700147 363
Clark R. E 690630 351 Vermont: Spentonbush .706631 342

:See following Criminal Codes for explanation of code numbers.
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CRIMINAL CODES

Number Disposition

325 Case dismissed by court.
330 Dismissed on authority received from department.
342 Dismissed without prior authority from Department because of superseding Indictment or information filed.
359 Dismissed without prlor authorization I rom Departmentother reasons.
361 Sentenced after plea of guiltyfine not paid.
761 Sentenced after plea of guiltyfine paid.
362 Sentenced after plea of guilty as to partfine not paid.
762 Sentenced after plea of guilty as to partfine paid.
363 Sentenced after plea of nolo contendereline not paid.
763 Sentenced after plea of nolo contenderefine paid.
384 Sentencedguilty after trial by courtfine not pald.
704 Sentencedguilty after trial by courtfine paid.
385 Sentencedgullty after trial by juryfine not paid.
785 Sentencedguilty after trial by juryfine paid.
386 Sentencedguilty plea during trialfine not paid.
786 Sentencedguilty plea during trialfine paid
372 Decision rendered 28 USC 2255 (District 54 only).
380 Acquitted after trial by court.
381 Acquitted after trial by jury.
387 AcquittedInsanityafter trial by court.
388 Acquittedinsanityverdict by jury.
389 Acquittedinsanityjury trialdirected verdict.
390 Proceedings suspended indefinitely bY court (proceedings continued without day, stricken with leave to rein-

state, sentence deferred Indefinitely).

REFUSE ACT CASES PENDINGAUG, 31, 1970

District and name Court No. Status District and name Court No. Status

Alabama, Southern: New JersyContinued
Bender Welding 15532 211 Vista Chemical 700304 209

Illinois, Northern: Rollins Term 700306 209
Calumet Refin 700335 205 Breen Ind Inc 700306 209
Pure Oil Co 700351 205 Bayonne Ind 700051 209
U.S. Steel 700148 211 Standard Tank 700023 211
Kay C 700148 211 Howard Fuel 700022 211
Mathieson Chem 700070 211 Edison Amboy A 700030 211
Smith Oil & Re 700063 211 Vulcan Mtrls 700024 209
Deangeles R 700288 205 Ne,. York, Northern: Del & Hudson

Illinois. Eastern: RR 690085 209
Central Towing 690070 211 New York, Eastern:
Canal Barge Co 700004 211 Perkit Bld Box 680444 205

Indiana, Northern: Patchque Oil 700019 211
Youngstown S & 700008 211 Hernly Operati 700025 211
Citids Service 700009 211 Patchogue Oil 700241 211
DuPont Chem 700010 211 12038 23 3154 700244 291
US'Steel 700012 211 New York, Southern:
Mdbil Oil Co 700013 211 B&W Bolt & Nut 66489 211
American Oil 700017 211 Ward W E. 66489 211
Mobil Oil Inc 700019 211 Corp of the ER 680903 211
Amer Oil Co 700022 211 Edwards P 680903 211
American Oil. ...... . ..... .... 700063 213 Oregon: R & M 700179, 209
Cities Serv 700065 205 Puerto Rico:

Maine: Caribd Nitro 690095 211
Gulf Oil \ 700060 209 Catano Barge 690097 21'
Humble Oil 700961 209 Tennessee, Western: Delta Refining_ 700083 211

Flink C R 700062 709 Texas, Eastern: Mobil Oil 705876 211
Sun Oil 700063 209 Texas, Southern:
Texaco Inc 700054 209 SW Oil & Refin .. 700032 211
Bernstein & JA_ 703055 209 Suntide Refin 700033 211
Maryland: Deepwater Term 700247 209 Coastal St Ref 700031 209
Michigan, Eastern: Coastal Transp 700177 209

Chrysler Corp 45005 209 Vermont:
Shell Oil Co 45006 213 Northern Oil 06445 262
Detroit E 45004 211 Do 706648 205

New Jersey: Washington, Western: Farwest Cap. 51914, 211
Distri Center 700025 209 Florida, Middle: Sun Oil Co 700038 211
Nal Lead Co 700195 211 Texas, Southern:
Brodun I 700198 211 Coastal Transp 700177 211
Vulcan Mtrl Co 700196 211 Tenneco Mfg 700225 211
Rollins Term 700242 211 Wisconsin, Western:
Breen Industri 700244 211 St Regis Paper 700105 205
Lever Bros, _. 700243 209 Falls Dairy Co. 700166 205

See following Criminal Cedes for explanation of code numbers.
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CRIMINAL )0DDE3

Number Court matters

205 Awaiting service of warrant or summons,
209 Awaiting arraignment in court.
211 Awaiting trial.
213 Awaiting sentence including referral to probation officer.
262 Awaiting completion of investigation or report, advice or instruction from Agency.



A PDENDI x 8,C( ntREsPoxDENcE BETWEEN SuBcon3rrrrEE, DErArrniEyr
op .frsTD.E, Coiws ot ENGINEERS, AND FEDERAL 1VATR
ADM I NISTRATION CONCERNING PIMPOSED AIEMORAND UM OF; 7NDEu-
sTA s xu BETWEN THOSE AGENCIS RE ENFORCEMENT' or 1899

EFUSE A cr U.S. Com 407)

liursi: OF REpitEsENTATIvEs,
CossERVATIos AND NATURAL REsouitcEs SUBCOMMITTEE

O F T HE COMMITTEE ON GovEBNMENT OeKitAlioNs, .

Washington, D.C., Nab 12, 1970.
Mr. 1 lAvio I I. DomINIcK,
Com in issioncr, Fracral r a tcr Quality Ail minist rat ion,
rlington, Fa,

DEAR MK. DOMINICK 011 luy s, 1970, Mr. ;1..1. l.nnkhorst, Assistant General
t 'onusel for the Corps of Engineers, testified !eon' the Sulommuitt e on Energy,
National Resources. and Environment of the Senate Commrce CI minittee con-
venting the enforcement of thy 1899 Refuse Act I30 slot. I I i ) A copy of Ids
prepared statement Is enclosed.

We Bre concorned that Nit% Lankhorst's statement Implies no exiientive braneh
liolioy to limit enforcement of that Act.

Mr. Lankhorst said dint the corps is meeting with oilicink of yolur ngeney and
the Justice lieport meld "to resolve the extent to whieh the Ref nsd Act should he
used t 0 control istilutimt S land] that n memorundunt of tind4rstnmling WIll
be reached governing use of.t he !Writs(' At." nisi) said that. pooling resolution
of iolt n memorandum. reports or pollution revelved by the 1.111' us Wollid be re-
ferred lo your agency "for investigation, vomment. and m1)111111 'Mint ions Bs to
wliet her 110 (MI shffilld lu tutkiii 111111N' OW Refuse Act."

e womb) appreciate your response to I he following quest ions :
1. ( ) 1.11(kr What eircumst tutees would your agency revounmen(I that vhdn-

huts of I Itt. !Writs(' Act not he enforetql?
(11) Under who t circumstances wouhl your agency reowimend that the

Refuse Aei not be -used to coot rol paint ion?" .

( lu view .olf the provision,. In section 24 of the Federal \Voter Pollution
Control Ail. as amended. which speeilleally provides that it does not limit enforce-
ment (uf the Iternse Art. should alleged violators of that net be immunized from
prosecution for suell violation simply bceouse your ngency is ;seeking to abate
the luolliltiiult under the Federal Water Pollothm Coot rol Act?

( it What is the statutory Authority under whieh your agency may eonduct
in vi'sI igations of vhdations of the Refuse Avt? Piens(' dte such authority.

b I It' pair agency has such authority. why is the Departownt seeking specific
authority to invesfignte water pollution diselmrges as part of 'the legislation
trnnsatitted to the Congress on February 10, 1970? (See 11.1{. 17is72. see.,10(

:;. (a I I 'Hes your agetwy have satricif.af funds tt conduct such Invest /WI firms,
in addition to carrying out its responsibilities under the Federal Water Polltition
Control Act?

It t What is the estimated annual cost of such investigations?
I et Will tin' corps reimburse your agency for such costs?

1. itt S Imes your agency bay(' tillfileiVlit liPrs(111HVI to emoluct stall invektiga-
lions, in addition to parrying ont its responsibilities onder the Federal Water
l'uiltit jou Cont rol Act?

( b What is tlo. estimated number of personnel needed to conduct such Inves-
t iga nous ?

We would appreciate pint. prioviding to ns three roMes of the present draft.
:mil 'vac)) fortlwr draft, of the proposed memorandum of understanding.

Sineerely,
IIENIly S. REuBB,

Chairman, Consercal ion and Natural Resources Subcommittee,
(171)
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STATEMENT OF MR. J. J. LANKIIORST, ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL, OFFICE OF
TIIE CIHEF or ENGINEERS, BEFORE TIIE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ENEMY, NATURAL
RESOURCES, AND ENVIRONMENT OF THE COMMERCE COMMITTEE, U.S. SENATE,
MAY 8, 1970

AIr. Chairman and members of the committee, I am Mr. J. J. Lankhorst, As-
sistant General Counsel, Office of the Chief of Engineers,. Doartment of the
Army. I am accompanied by Maj. E. A. Welsh, Deputy District Engineer, and
other personnel from the U.S. Army Engineer District, Detroit. I appreciate hav-
ing the opportunity to testify before this committee on the legal enforcement
of the (datutory authorities administered by the Corps of Engineers in the interests
of pollution control.

The authority of the U.S. Army Engineers to control construction im or deposit
of refuse matter into, navigable waters of the United. States stems from laws en-
acted before the beginning of this century. These laws prohibit the dredging,
filling, erection of structures, or deposit or refuse in navigable waters unless
done umkr a permit issued by the Corps of Engineers, and as authorized by the
Secretary of the Army, or under regulations preserilwd by the Secrtary of the
Army. It is believed the law of particular interest to your committee is the
"Refuse Act," section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (O Stat. 1152;
33 U.S.C. 407), which prohibits the discharge of any nuitter of any kind other than
domestic sewage into a navigable water of the United States. The act also pro-
hibits the placing of material on the banks of a waterway where the material
is subject to washing into the water so as to endanger navigation.

Section 16 of the 1899 act provides that violators are guilty of a misdemeanor
and are subject to a fine not exceeding $2,500 nor less than $500, or to imprison-
ment not exceeding 1 year nor less than 30 days, or to both such fine and im-
prisonment, for each offense. Section 10 of the -1899 aet also provides that the
license of the master of a violating vessel may be revoked or suspended upon
conviction for a term to be fixed by the judge. The vessel is also liable for the
pecuniary penalties specified and for the amount of damage charged. Section 17
of the 1899 aet provides that the Department of Justice shall conduct legal pro-
ceedings necessary to enforce the aet's provisions.

At first the Refuse Act was enforced with a view only toward the effect a de-
posit or discharge would have on the navigable capacity of ii waterway. Later
the Refuse Aet was used to supplement the Oil Pollution Act of 1924 so as to
control oil discharges from shore facilities and discharges Into nontidal waters,
two situations not eovered by the 011 Pollution Act of 1924. Following nactment
of the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act of 1958, conshleration of permit ap-
plications was broadened to include the effects of any proposed discharge on fish
and wildlife. As water pollution became a matter of increasing awareness, the
publie interest in water quality also became a significant factor in evaluating
permit applications. Today, the regulations of the Corps of Enginers rquire
specific evaluation of the effects of a proposed discharge on navigation, fish and
wildiife, water quality, conservation, esthetics, ecology, and other environ-
swn ta I factors.

The .courts have afforded a liberal interpretation to the Refuse Act. It hos
been held that the Government need not prove that the discharge of refuse was
either willful or the result of negligence, The President Coolidge (101.F. 2d 638).
Tlw Supreme Court held that the act prohibited indastrial discharges and that
an injunctive remedy is available as a meana of enforcement, U.S. v. Republic
Steel Company (362 U.S. 482). In 1906 the U.S. Supreme Court rated that
while viditable aviation gasoline was not refuse befor an tuwideatal (41)111, it be-
came refuse when it reached navigable waters, U.S. v. Standard Oil Company
(384 U.S. 224). In the ease of U.S. v. Elmo Standard Oil Company of Puerto
Rico (375 F. 2d 621), the circuit court of appeals ruled that placing or diseharg-
lag refitse matter on the p.rotnal whre gravity will (girry .the- fign ia. into a
navigable water eonAttutes a diselthrge into navigable waters. In 19C9 the IT,S.
district court in the ease of U.S. v. Interlake Steel Corp. (297 F. Supp.
9121, in a significant deeikion ruled that-the-Department-of-Justiee-emrprosente

, vi)lators of the Refuse Aet on the complaint of any responsible person and that
the Secretary of the Army or the Corps of Engineers need not reipwst prosecu-
tion : the sime conrt ruld that compliance with the Federal Water Polintion
Cfmtroi Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 4(tft et seq.) , i.s uo defense to prosiwution
under the Rernse Act. It is expected that the courts'Atroad application of the
Refuse Aft will continue, particularly in view of section 102 of the National
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Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (83 Stat. 82), which directs that the inter-
pretation of public laws be in consonance with the goals set forth in that act.

Notwithstanding the broad powers granted by the Refuse Act, the Department
of the Army and the Corps of Engineers recognize that Congress, in the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act cited above, declared that water pollution control is
the primary responsibility of the States, with additional and supplemental Fed-
eral aid and enforcement procedures specified. The Department of the Army
recognizes that the Refuse Act should be responsibly enforced in proper juxtar
position with othfir pollution nets. To this end, an interdepartmental meeting
has been held to resolve the extent to which the Refu# Act should be used to
control pollution. At the meeting arranged by Mr. Robert E. Jordan, Special As-
sistant to the Secretary of the Army for Civil AffairS, the Criminal, Civil, and
the Land and Natural Resources Divisions of the Department of Justice, the
Department of the Interior, the Department of Commerce, and the White House
Council on Environmental Quality were represented. It is expected that n
memorandum of understanding will be reached governing use of the Refuse Act.
In the interim, the U.S. Army Engineer districts are being instructed to refer
reports of pollution to the local office of the Federal Water Quality Ackninis-
tration for investigation, comment, and recommendations as to whether action
should be taken under the Refuse Act.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman ; that compktes my statement. We will be pleased
to answer any questions you may have.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION ANTI NATURAL RESOURCES StmeomMITTEE

OF THE 90M MUTER ON CIOVERNMF:NT OPT-MATIONS,
Washington, D.C.; Ma y 13, 1970.

Lt. Gen. F. J. CLARKE,
Chief of Engineers,
Department of tlw Army, Washington, D.C.

DEAR GENERAL CLARKE: OH May 8. 1910, MT. J. J. Lankhorst. Assistant General
Counsel of the Corps of Engineers, testified before the Subcommittee on Energy,
Natural Resources, and Environment of the Senate Commerce Committee on the
enforcement of the 1899 Refuse Act (30 Stat. 1151).

As part of our continuing investigation of the economy and efficieney of the
corps administration of the Refuse Act, we are coneerned that Mr. Lankhorst's
statement implies (1) a policy of limited enforcement of the act and (2) that
the corps is apparently seeking to shift its enforcement responsibilities under timt
act to the Federal Water Quality Administration at a possibk. added cost to the
Government. Mr. Lankhorst's prepared statement states in part, ii follows:

'Notwithstanding the broad powers granted by the Refuse Act, the Department
of the Army and the Corps of Engineers recognise that Congress, in theYederal
Waterj'ollution Control Act cited above, declared that water pollution control

tlw primary responsibility of the States. with additional and supplemental
Federal aid and. enforcement procedttres specified. The Department of the Arnty
recognizes that the Refuse Act should be responsibly enforced In proper juxta-
position with other pollution acts. To this end, an interdepartmental meeting
has been held to resolve the extent to which the Refuse Act should be hsed to
control pollution. * * * J is expected that a memorandum of understanding
will be reached governing use of the Refuse Act. In the interim, the U.& Army
Engineer districts arc being instructed to refer reports of pollution to the
local other of the Federal Water Quality Administration for investigation, com-
ment, awl recommendathms as to whether action should be taken under the'
Refuse Act." (Italie supplied.1

The first part of this quote implies that the policy statements in sections 1 and
10 of the Federal Water Polution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 466 and
460g), alsh apply to the, Refuse Act.. In our opinion, they do not.

The Committee on Government Operations recently stated, is its report of
March 18. 1070 (II. Rept. No. 01-917, p. 16), that the usefulness of the Refuse
Act in controlling pollution "is not reduced by more reeent water pollution control
legislation. The Federal Water Pollution Control Act specitimlly states (33 United
States Code sec. 406k) that it shall not be construed as (1) superseding or limit ing
the functions, under any other law * * of any other officers or agency of the
United States, relating to water pollution, or (2) affecting or impairing the

51-539-76-12
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provishons of * * * sectitons 13 through 17 1 of the River and lIarlfor Act Iff 1S99,
as amended i.e.,.the Refuse Act )."

If a polluter discharges refuse matter into a navigable waterway in viohttion
of tht prohibition in se('tion 13 of the Refhse Act (33 U.S.C.. 407) against such
discharges, the Cori*: of Engineers has the responsibility to enforce the prohibi-
tion, and the U.S. attorneys have the duty -to vigorously prosecnte all offenders"
or the Itefuse Art. t 33 413). That rem ii onsibility and duty are not diminished
by any provision of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

Further, if the polluter intends to continue such.discharges, he must obtain /I
permit from OW ro rps to avoid further prosecution under the net. The permit
Oplication would then, of conrse, lie suldect to the new section 21(11) of the
Federal Water Pollution Cimtrol Art, as amended by the Water Quality Improve-
ment Art of 1970 (Public Law 91-224: S4 Stat. 91-10S) which requires the
applicant to pravide the rorps with a certifiration from the appropriate State
Gott the discharge "will not violatp applicable water quality standards."

We would theref()re appreciate your providing to us an explanation of what
the corps means or intends toy Lanjat4st's statement that the "Department
of the Army recognizes that the Reffise Act should be responsibly enforced in
proper juxtaposition with other pollution arts."

Tin second part of the quoted statement informs the Senate subronunittee of
the corps interim policY on enforrenient of the Refuse Art. Under this policy, the
corps has instrueted the District Engineers to "refer reports of pollution to the
local ofIkl, of the Federal Water Quality Administration for investigation.
comment. and recommendations as to whether action should be taken under
the Refuse Act." Pll'atilb provide to us three mples of these instrnetions.

We would a ppreela te your responses to the following quest linis :
1. i ) What Is the statutory authority for thi; corps lii transfer to the Pederal

Water Quality Administrntion responsibility for investigations of violations of
tin' Refuse Art ? Pleake ell e'such authority.

tht Why should' loWQA tookrtake such investigations? Please provide (letalls
concerning the eronomies that will accrue to the Government if EWQA, rather
t haul the corps, performed surli invest iga I ions.

trt Will the corps reintimrse EWQA for the costs of such investigations?
id) Ilas the corps been investigating pollution violations of the Refuse Art

until tiow?
(et if so. why is it net essary fir desirable for the corps to relinquish. this

responsibility to PWQA?
limy long do such itivest igat ions normally take?

Ito What 1,4 the annual ro-t of such invest igatious?
(hi Dow &any persontr.1 iii latch (list rict offwe make these investigations?
(it How much such investigations were made In each of the last' tfiree fiscal

yea rs?
2. Why is it neressary to obtain the comments and recommendations of EWQA

concerning alleged violations of the Refuse Art ?
(ii) Is it not tbe duty of (he corps 10 111:11iI. us miWil bailie:y(1(.1d itidg,oens.

to alleged violations ()I' the Refuse Art and to forward to the Department of.
Austice n11 cases where there is sufficient evident.). of such violation?

lb) Even if EWQA recommended against. prosecution of an alleged Refuse
Act violation loW:111P,e the polinter is meeting compliance schedules established
under the Federal Water Pollntion Control Act or for any other reason, should
not the rips require that the vif fla tor

(I) apply for a permit to make any furthet; discharges, and
00-furnish the rertificat ion required under section 211 lit of the PHieral

wilier pollution Control Act and, where approloriate, the data specified in
ltecolnmendation 5 of this rommit tee's report (II. Ref ft. 912.9 IT, '. I I t ?

3. (a) Will the corps seek injunctions, in mIdition to criminal sanetions,
against those pe.rsons %Om discharge refuse matter LOU a MI vigahlv waterwily
without a corps permit in violation of the Refuse Aa. and require sitylt persons'(3:
"to VPIISP future discharges und to remove the polluting substaIWP already Ilk-
cl»Irged"? (IL Rept. 91-917, 1. IS).

(b) If not, why not?
Sincerely,

11r.sny S. Itcvss,
Chairman, Conserratimt. and Natorgi Nrzonirecs Subcopumincr.
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Horst.: or liErnEsENTNTIvEs,
CONSEnvATIoN AND NATURAL ItEsorncES Suncom rrrEE

TIIE COMMITTEE ON Gin'EttNNIENT DITAATIONs,
Wa oohing f on, D.C., Ma 1.I, MTh.

Hon. JolIN,,:NEWTON
Horne,/ Gi:ncral, Dena rt taunt of .1 wilier.

Waxit inY1(on,
DEMI. MIL ATTORNEY F:N ERAL : EnclOSOd Is a copy of a prepared statement

given Mr. J. x. Lankhorst, Assistant (teneral Counsel for the Corps of Engl-
Peers, before the Subconunittee on Energy, Natural Itesour-es, and Envirt
mein of the Senate Committee on Commerce concerning enforcement of the 1S119
Itefase Act CIO t. rdl.

We are concerned that the statement itnplles lin executive branch policy to
Unlit enforcement of that act.

Mr, Lankhorst sahl Una the vont:: Is meeting with officials of the Just ice
Doportment and the Interim' Deportment "to resolve the (.XWM to which the
Itefuse Act should be used to vont rot pollution [and] that a memorandum
of understanding will be reached governing use of the Itefasq AO." I Iv also said
Dun. Itt the interimijAmt-rnethats hove been given to the corpie dist ript engineers
-to refer reports 'Tollutluil to the 1111111 litTieu of the Fedieral \Voter Quality
Administration for investigation, continent, and rerommenItions Ils fit her

shOlnd hi! alaqi Under the Refuse At.t."
We would appreciate your response to the following questions:
1. (a) Ha VI,. similar instructions been issued by the 'Justice Department
1*.S. attorneys?
t If so, please provide to us three copies of those inst nei ions.
2. (a) view of section :21 of 'Ow. Federal Water Polltaion Control Act. as

amended. by the Water Quality Inumwement Aet of 1970;1Public Law 91-224 :
S.1 Stat. 911 whleb spetitiYally provides that it does not 'limit enforcement of
I he Refuse Aet, csn't it the responsibility of U.S. (attorneys to "vigor-
ously prosecute" (see :I:1 F.,S,C. 41:i I alleged violations of the Refuse Act regard-
less of actions taken by the Interior Ihpart Intuit to abate the pollution under
laws it administers?

b) If .not , why not?
tirrninshuo." would the Refuse Aet dot hi. listql volli rid

-t. What the statutory authority for the Federal *flier Quality Adininis-
t rat hat to conduct invest igations o enforce a stal nle It does not ado] ?

t Will your I teporment seek 'injunctions, in addition to criminal proseen-
I ittn. against those persons who discharge refuse matter into a navigable wit t (T-
way without a corps permit in violation of ht. ittoftlst. All, to require such I uor-
sons "to cease future dboharges and to remove the pofintint.; stikta nip Arcady

ischn rged ( Rep. Ma r. IS, 1970, p. 1S. )
t lit If not. why not?

I Will \the instive Departtnent apply I his 'policy to the Van Itlerstine Cth
:Intl Petaluma Pachogue (HI Terminal Corp., both of New York City, whieh.
occording to the New York Times of April 1:2: 1970, ore both hying pmseNted
by the F.S. attorney for the eastern district of 'New York for surcessive recent
viobitions of the Refuse Act?

11 t If not. why not?
Please provide to ns three eopies of all instruetions, in addition to the tole

referred to above, issued by the Justice Department to I'S tillorneys concern-
ing, the eliforeentent of the Refuse AO.

Slovenly, -
Ilr.xitv ItErss.

Ch a rut a n. ronNerr t ion and Nal nod Nootrers Snloroonnt it tur.

in.:rAn.rmr.x.r oc irsTtcr,
.,:fra.sh Dogtrot. D.C. .1 sine 2, 1970.

1 lon. Ilt.Nuy- S. ItEuss,
Chairman. Cmoserration and No oral .licsonrers Subronn»ili cc. o UM. of Rep-

ro n r: irrs, ington, D.C.
DEAR MIL CHAIll V.% N : This is in reply your letter of May Et. 1970, with

which you enclose441 statement given by nr. 1.ankltorst, As!..istant, TIetivral
Counsel foe the Corps of Engineers before the Subcommitttp 'on Energy. Nat-
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ural Resources, and,Enyironment of the Senate Committee on Commerce. You
expressed concern that the statement given hy Mr. Lankhorst inipiks nn men-

' dye branch policy to limit the enforcemnt of the Refuse Act and pose several
quest ions to illuminate the Government's position.

Answering yonr expression of concern generally, we would say thut the
policy of the Exentive in the enforcenwnt of the Refnse Act is to fit that act
into the regulatory scheme devised by Congress to combat pollution most f-
fielently and effectively, bearing in mind, 8K noted by Mr. Lankhorst, that it is
the deelnred intent of Congress flat the control of water pollution be dealt with
primarily by the States, with additional and supplemental Federnl support.
It is patent that the Refuse Act isinot nnd eannot .be the weapon of choice in the
armament of antipollution lnws hi all instanees ; thus, prospective discretion is
always essential and must take into amount the possible effects whieh the nse
of th Refuse Act might have upon the progrnms of other agencies compute(l
with the broad problem. 0

In answer to your specifle questions (all of which we assume refer to en-
foreement of the Refuse Act) :

1(a) Instructions have not been issued by the Justice apartment to U.S..
attorneys to refer reports of pollution to the local office of the Federal. Water
()minty Administration for investigation, Mc. since under the specific terms of
the net, us wed as the organizational structure for the enforcement of the ant,
or primnry relationship is with the Corps of Engineers. Therefore, complaints
of violations of the Reffise Act will continue to be referred to that ngemy, as in
the pnst. The corps, of course, may choose to utilize the services and seeure the
advice and recommendations of the Federal Water Quality Administration in
appropriate circnmstanees. We understand, however, that the statement of Nil%
Lankhorst in that regard had reference to n limited class of pollution complaints,
tlmt is, those dealing with continuing industrial discharges, and not to the
isolated, noncontinuous deposits of refuse material unrelated to nu program
within the jurisdiction of the Federal Water Quality Administratimt.

tt ) . In view of the expression of congressional intent in recent enactments,
this Department will vont blue to vigorously proseente xioln flops of th act. How-
ever, it would be patiently poor prosecutlw judgnient as well as lacking in com-
monsense to bring prostsntive action under the Refuse Act where such enforce-
MPH t i etivit y would have ti disruptive or devitalizing effect upon; programs
designed or approved by the Federal Wnter Quality Administration, and we will
therefore endeavor always to tube into account. the effeet upon such programs
whieh prosecution under t he Refuse Act might hnve upon tlwm. .

3. As indicated in referenee to question 2t8 y above, the Refuse Aet would not
he used "to control pollution" whe;.e 'satisfactory results nre being aehieved
muter Stall! or Federal priarratuscwith which participating industrial producers
are in full comid ia nee. There are other circumstances where Abe Refuse Aet wohld
lie legally inapplicable, for examples where the a ffeded Itody of Nvater is not a
navigable water or tithutury Gwent where tlw Corps of Engineers has issued n
permit which eontinnes in effect or where tlw material consists of refnse matter
flowing from streets or sewers in a stnte. We do not Mend- to suggest
that the.se t.xamples i.xlian:4 the list of exceptions.

4. It is suggested that this question be addressed to tlw Federal Water Quality
A dm I n i stra H m

:1. This Delta rtnwnt will seek injunetions against twrsons dischurging refuse
neater into navigablewaters of tlw United States without a permit from the.
Corps of Engineers Where the discharge k of a eontinuing nature, mid where
the injunction proceeding wonid mit disrupt or be inconsistvnt with 1,nell admin-
istrative pripteeed ings as t he DepArt ment of the In teri or ma y be conduct ing under.
the Federal Water Pollution Conirol Act, or doplieative of such actions as
Slate may have initiated to Ii ti the same sonrce of pollution. In our opinion.
ii wouhl not he in the genuine interest of the Government to bring an action under
the Refuse Art to secure Primlunl,sanetiop against :1 comininy which admittedly
is diselta rging refuse into tlw navigable waters of I he Upited Stittes, lint whih.
pursuant-10 a program being conduchnl by tlw Federal Water Quality Admink-
trothol. Is Splendifig signifieant a11101111 ts 1.r money to secure the abatement of
tbat pollution. Nor does ir seem desirable for the Federal Government to seek to
enioin judlut hug activities 7when a 'St nte government has initiated court action
to enjoin the i.za me activity.

WI have discussed with the office of the P.S. Attorney for the Eastern District
of New York tlw two specifie cases mentioned in your letter, and we have lawn
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advised that the discharges into navigable wfiters for which these companies
are reSnonsible have not been of a continuing nature, and that there is no on-
gAing activity, therefore, which can be made the subject of a suit for an in-
junction.

°SincerelY,
Sunto KASHIWA,

Assistant Attorney General.

MUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SIIRCOMMIrr"E

OF THE COSIm IrrEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., June 8, 1970.

Holt. JOHN NEWTON MITCHELL,
At torney Gozeral, Department of Justice,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR Mn. ATTORNEY GENERAL : Enclosed for your 'information is a copy ot a
letter we have today sent to Mr. David D. Dominick, Commissioner of the Fed-
eral Water Quaiity Administration concerning enforcement of the 1899 Refuse
Aet (30 Stat. 1151). Also enclosed is a copy of our letter of May 12, 1970. to
-Connnissioner Dominick which is referred to iii our letter of this date.

We hope that our letter to Commissioner Dominick will assist you in replying
to our letter of May 13, 1070, to you concerning enforcement of the 1899 act.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. REUSS,

Chairmani conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee.

HoUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE,

OF TIIE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., June 3, 1970.

..3.tr. DAVID D. DOMINICK,
Commissioner, Federal Water Quality Administration,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR Mit. Domtmck : When ymi visited my office on May 25, 1970, we discussed
ill general the views of the Federal Water Quality Administration concerning
enforcoment by the Corps of Engineers of, the 1899 Refuse Act (30 Stat. 1151).
Prior to (Mr discussion, we had sent a letter on May 12, to you raising several
questions concerning a statement Mr. J. J. Lankhorst, Assistant General Counsel
for the corps made before a Senate subcommittee on May 8. 1970, which Mi-
en ted an executive branch policy to limit edforcement of the 1899 Bet.

We want to take this opportunity to supplement the May 12 letter and our
later discussion so that you will clearly understaild the views of this subcom-
mittee concerning enforc'ement of the 1899 act:

Mr. Lankhorst Implied in his written testimony that the policy 'statements in
sections 1 and 10 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33
U.S.C. 46C and 466g), which "recognize, preserve, and .protect the primary re-
sponsibilities and rights of the States in preventing and controlling water pollu-
tion." also apply to the 1899 Refuse Act. In our opinion, tbey do not.

The Committee on Government Operations recently stated, in its report of
March 18, 1970 Rept. No. 91-917, p.16), entitled "Our Waters and Wetlands ;
How the Corps of Engineers can help Prevent their Destruction and Pollution",
that the usefulness of the Refuse Act in controlling pollution "is not reduced
by more recent water pollution control legislation. The Federal Water Pollution
Control Act specifically states (33 U.S.C. 4t1G1c) that it 41tall 'not be construed as.
(1) supgseding or limiting the functions, under any law of any other
officer or agency of the United States, relating to water pollution, or (2) affecting
or impairing the provisions of * sections 13 through 17 of the River and
Harbor Act of 1899, as amended (i.e., the Refuse Act) ."

If a polluter discharges refuse matter into a navigable waterway in violation
of section 13 of the Refuse Act (33 U.S.C. 407), which prohibits such discharges,
the Corps of Engineers has tlie responsibility to enforce the prohibition, and the
U.S. attorneys have the duty "to vigorously prosecute all offenders" of the ReftNe
Act (33 U.S.C. 413). That responsibility and duty are not diminished by any pro-
vision of the Federal Pollution Control Act.

V:11'10
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Further, if the polluter intends to continue such discharges, he must obtain a
itermit from the corps to avoid further prosecution under the act. The tw molt
application would then, of course, he subjeet to the new seetion 21(1)) of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended by the Water Quality Improve-
ment Act of 11170 (Piddle NM 91-224; 84 Stitt, 91-108) 'which requires the appli-
cant to provide the corps with a certification from the appropriate State that the
d (who rge "will not violate apt )1 teal de water quality sta nda Hs,"

The applicant for a permit wouhl also be reqffired to provide certain infornm-
tion to the (strps under its revised regulations (ER 1 1 4 7)-2-3g of April 23, 1970)
governing new applieation for..corps' permits for outfall sewers. The corps re-
vised its regulation pursuant to, and in accord with, tile reeonnnendations of this
committee's report of March IS, 1970 (II, Rept. 91-91 7, supra ),

Thus, under the Refuse Act any person or corporation discharging refuse ma-
terial int o ft Da vigable waterway or its t rilmt a ries must obtain a Iwrmit from the
Corps of Engineers regardless of any actions taken or contemplated by your
agency or a State to enforce water pollution control laws against such person or
corporation. The fact that, under the Federal Water Pollution Ottani] Act, ir any
State In %V', such NTS( al or corporation Is InstallIng water DOI 10101 1 COD trol

umler o schedule approved by FWQA or a 8 tate does not 1 II any way affect the
oblIgatitm under the 1899 Act to obtain a permit from the corps for the (Melia rge
of refuse material into such waters,

litqw that this letter will assist you In replying to our letter of Mny 12.
Sincerely,

ih:sitr S. RErss,
Cho irman, Conserration and Natural Resources Subcommit tee.

U.S. DE.PAILTMENT 01 TIIE INTERIOR,
FEIWRAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION,

Washington D.C., June 4. 1970.
I 101I. IIENIty
House of Rewsentatires,
Washington,'D.C.

DEAR MD, RUSK Thank you for yourletter or May 12, 1970, in conneetion
with the testimony of Mr. J. J. Lankhorst of the Corps of Engineers before the
Senate Committee on Commerce, Subcommittee on Energy, Natural Resources,
and the Environment. on May 8, concerning the enforcement of tlw Refuse Act
of 1899.

We are preparing a response to the series of questions that you directed to
us relative to the nth. of this agency in the implementation of the Refuse Act.
You should be hearing from as on this matter within a very short time.

Sincerely yours,
DAVID P. DOMINICK, Commissioner.

,!. ,
- .

u.s. DEPARTMENT OF THE Ismaton:
- .. FEDERAL WATER. POLLIMON CONTROL Art INISTRATION.

Washington, D.C., September 24, 1970.
Hon, IlEsax S. REUks,
Chairman, Conservation anti Nraftwal Rcsofircrs finhconimittre, Committee on

. Gorernment Operations, House of .Represcntatires. Washington, D.C.
DEAR MIL RUSK : This fs in further response to your letter of May 12. 1970,

in which you asked for our response to a series of questions relating to the role
of tin. Federal Water Quality Administration In the implementation of the Re-
fuse Act of 1899, and your subsequent letter of June. 3 in which you clarified thP
'Views of the subcommittee. ,

We have enclosed our answe.rs to your questions. We are develotting prmedures
with tile Corps of Engineers in cOnsultation with Ow Department of Justice for
effective and (apeditions implementation of the Refuse Aet. A statement of t hose
proceillilvs will be forwarded to you as soon as they are developed. We appreCiato
the opportunity to provide you with this information and will be pleased to assist
you with any additional questions you may have on this subject.

,Sincerely yours,
DAVID D. DOMINICK, Cmnmissioner.

j..E1
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QUESTIONS AND FWQ A ANSWERS IN RESPONSE TO REPRESENTATIVE HENRY S.
ItErss, 1970t

I. (a) 17nder what cireniustances would your ngeney recommend that violat ions
of the Refuse Act unt be enforced?

We believe that violations of the Refuse Act should be enforced. In our view
811011 enforcement nnist necessarily be In the context of other Federal laws
which nlso prohiblethe discharge of pollutants into the lin vigable waterways or
the ITulted States. Om. sueh Federal 'statute is the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, ii 8 0 niendN1. whali provides for nn orderly and systematic aptiroach
to the almtement of polluting discharges in compliance with 'wnter qunlity
st nudards and within a reasonable t inie sehedule.

In view of this legol context wc do not.belleve that the proper enforcement of
tlie Refuse Act extends to those eases where dischargers n re IH compliaiwe with
rentedial sehedules of wn ter quality sill nda rds tir in compliance with the require-
nwuts of on enforcement conference held pursuant In the Federal Miter Pollution
ControlAct.

(b) Under what eircumstanees would your ngeney recommend that the Refuse
Ail not be "used to control pollution"?

Again, as we have stated abOve. we believe the Refuse Act should be used to
control pollution in the overall 1.'ederal regulatory emit ext. In (air view we eau
aggressively pursue the pal in t kIn nbatement twogram through the mechanism
of the ISflU act in eombination with 'other Federal statutes in a way that will be
equitable and orderly and yet secure effective eleanup.

CortaliwiremnstaniPs do exist. however, under which the Refuse Act is
inherentlyimore. useful than other statutes, especially in cnses which involve Ills-
elm rgeS to int rnstate wnterways for which miter quality 'standards n re not now
applicable nnd other instances III which satisfnctory standards do not exist : ftIr
cases in which dischargers are not complying with opplicable water quality
standards: and for disehnrgers who are discharging wastes on a onetime basis.

nd are therefore not subject to weer quality st a ndards.
(0 In view .of the provision in section 24 of tlw Federal Wah.r Pollution

Control Act, as rAended. whieh specilleally provides that it does not limit
enforcement of the Refuse Act, should alleged violators of that net be im-
trill nixed froill prosecution for stall violation simply !weans(' your 11g(kwy is
seeking to aluati the pollution umler the Federal Water Pollution Control Act?

We (10 not endorse the inummlzation of alleged violators of the 1 890 aet from
ibroseention becaliSe we are seeking to abate pollution under the Federal Water
Pollution Control Aet: however. we 11011ove that 11 woolli 1IP less than equitable
to iroserlite disehargers under the Refuse Act who ore conscientiously pursuing
time siliedules for remedial action established as a result of Federal-State water
guiltily standards or as a result of an enforeement conference pursuant to
the provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Aet, as amended. This
action would not only he inappropriate but also would appear to us as
being disruptive of the orderly process of water pollution control as preseribed
by the Congress. This is not to say, however, that we do not favor the proper
proseention of the Rivers and Harbors .Act.

2. (n) What Is the statutory authority under which your agency may conduct
investigations or violations of the Refuse Act? Please cite sueli authority,

nide!. the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended. the FWQA has
primary responsibility for the national program of water quality enhancement
and protection. In the execution of this mission, the Congress has directed
the FWQA. in section 3(a) of this act, to develop comprehensive programs for .
eliminating or reducing the pollution of interstate waters. For this purpose,
we are nuthorized to mnke joint investigations with Federal. State. and local
authorities on the comlition'of any waters and of the discharges af any sewam
industrial wasltes, or other substnnee whieh may adversely affect these waters
in the conduet of these in vestiiNtions. the FWQA necessarily learns a polluting
discharges eonstitnte violn t ions of the Refuse Art.

Similarly,...tunder section 5(e) or the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.
the FWQA is authorized to collect and disseminate linsic 'data on chemleal,
physienl, and biologleal watfr quality Information in cooneration with other
Federal, Stnte. and local agencies with rela tell responsibilities. In the per-
formance of this filiation; tbe FWQA eau bring to the attention of the ("orp,.;
or Engineers appropriate data for use in the proseentirvil of violators of the
Refuse Art. Moreover, seetion 10 or our net. which authorizes the 'Seeretary iif
the Interior to bring abatement actions against polluters "on the basis of re-

1 Fe.,
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poiti, survys, or studies," is still a third statutory authority whereby FIVQA
investigates polluting discharges which might also be violations of the Refuse
Act.

In the exereise of the nforementioned authorities PWQA learns of violntions
of the Refuse Act and brings its information to the attention of the corps for
use in prosecution of violators of the Refuse Act. Although the Federal Wntr
Qnnlity Administration is not designated in section 413 of the Rivers and IInr-
hors Act to request the Attorney General to bring enforcement actions under
thnt net, in U.S. v. Interlake Steel Corp., 297 F Sapp. (N.D., Ill., E.D., 1909),
the Court held that the U.S. attorneys mny bring enforcement netions under
the act on information received from agents and officers other than those identi-
fied in section 413.

(b) If your agency linS such authority, why is the Department seeking spe-
IIlc nuthority to investigate water pollution discharges as part of the legisla-

tion transmitted to the Congress on-Februnry 10, 1970? (See H.R. 15872, section
10(j).)

The authority the ndministration is seeking in section 10(j) of MR. 15372
(identical to the ndministration proposal, H.R. 15905) would strengthen that
nuthority of the Secretnry of the Interior in the enforcement process. Section
10(j) would specifically authorize the .Secretary : to investigate nny facts, cell
ditions, or prnctiees which may be necessnry to determine a violntion of the
act; to reqnire the filing of a written stntement by nny person concerning a
mntter undr investigation; to administer onths, subpenn witnesses, nnd eompel
their attendance ; to take evidence, among other functions. These nuthorities to
require the filing of ;reports; to compel the. attendance and testimony °of
nsses: and to authorize entrance of any public or privnte property diseharging
into waters subject to nn enforcement actiOn, would be new.

3. (a) Does your agency have sufficient funds to comluct such investigations,
in-addition to carrying out its responsibilities under the Federal Water Pol-
lution Control Act?

(b) Whnt is tip estilrinted annual cost of such investigation?
Investigatioa needed to support the 1899 act, as indicated above, are usually

conducted ns nh integrnl part of FIVQA's program activities. and, thus, we linve
not requested resonrces nor can we previde an estimate of the resources needed
on a separable basis. We believe that our resourees linve been ndequnte to
carry put these joint purpose investigations to dnte. However, ns we develop
more effective working relationships in utilizing the authorities of the 1309 acti

t we may laive to reassess our resources needs.
(c) Will the corps rehnburse your agency for such costs?
No provision for rermbursement has been made, as these costs nre incurred in.

the performance of our own statutory responsibilitips.
4. (a.) DOPS your agency have sufficient personnel to conduct Such investiga-

tions, in addition to carrying out its responsibilities under the Federal Wntr
Pollution Control Act?

(10 What is the estimated number of personnel needed to conduct such
investigations?

Since personnel in the performnnce of their daties nnd responsibilities under
the Federnli Water Pollution Control Act also have occasion to investigate
violations of the Refuse Act, accordingly, we cannot provide figures OS to pr-
sonnel specifically engaged in such investigntions.

In our view, the Refuse Act has not been fully utilized as a pollution control
tool: its potntial, ns such, has only recently emerged. The FNleral Water
Quality Administration is ,endeavoring in cooperation with the Corps of Engi-
neers and the Justice Department to devise h joint approach, using the Federnl
Water Pollution Control Act, and other Federal statutes. in n way that will
eliminate the confusion which separnta and independently adiffinistered Federal
pollution control laws cnn create.

3



APPENDIX 9.-MATERIALS RELATING TO MERCURY POLLUTERS OF TI 1E
NATION'S NAVIGABLE WATERWAYS

[Department of the Interior News Release, Office of the Secretary, July 14, 19701

SEMETAUY IIICSEL MOVES AGAINST ..,IERCUSY POLLUTION

Interior Secretary Walter J. nickel today declared his department is "mov-
ing aggressively to identify and eliminate industrial discharges of mercury
pollutants into the Nation's waterways."

insure immediate action," the Secretary said, "I have today designated a
special investigating team of water quality and -minerals experts from the
Federal Water Quality Administration, and the U.S. Geological Survey, to pin-
point areas of mercury contamination and to provide the basic data needed for
effective control." .

In telegrams to the Governors of 17 States in which mercury pollution is
suspected. Secretary nickel Wedged full support of the Department's water
quality monitoring expertise and legislative authority. Ile urged the Governors
to act vigorously in eliminating known discharges of the metal.

In his statement today, the Secretary said, "The administration is developing
hard evidence and will seek court action in any confirmed Case of mercury pollu-
tbm if corrective measures are not taken swiftly on local levels,"

Ile said the Interior Department will notify all industries across the Nation
which are shown by Interior investigations and data -to be responsible for
mercury pollution.

The Secretary's declaration today follows reports from the Federal Wa ter
Quality Administration which reveal that abnormal mercury con6ntrations
have been found in waste water in major waterways hi the South, Southwest,
Northeast, and Midwest areas of the Nation.

"Disclmrges of mercury," Secretary Rickel said, "present an intolerable threat
to the health and safety of Americabs. This dangerous practice must be stopped.

-"The mercury contamination problem can be solved, provided we hare suffi-
cient basic data for setting and enforcing necessary standa rds.

"Toward this end, I hav6 directed the Geological Survey, in cooperation with
FWQA. to give high priority to mercury monitoring in the Department's national
network of 4,000 water quality stations."

In a report to the Secretary, Dr. William 1'. Pecora, Director of U.S. Geological
Survey, said basic data already has been collected in 16 States using a precise
analytical method recently developed in the Geological Survey's Denver Research
Center: The remaining States will be covered at the earliest possible (late to
provide a complete picture of the mercury contamination pattern.

"We are aware? said Hickel, -that mercury is a natural component in much of
nature, including 'rain, the sea, the. earth's crust and its" Water resources. How-
ever, concentratiens from these sources generally fall below those thought to
affect human health. or those responsible for our present concern.

"Although we cannot expect to prevent inputs from these natural sources, nor
undo past damage, we are determined to stop pollution caused by manthat
'messy animal.' "

Text of Secretary Hiekel's telegram to the Governors of Alabama. Delaware,
Gffirgla, lienfecky. Louisiam. Maine. Massachusetts. Michigan. North earolina.
New York. Ohin. Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, and
Wisconsin :

Information gathered to date by Interior scientists' and technicians indicates
clearly that the presence of mercury in much of our Nation'sich ter constitutes an
imminent health hazard. Because of the toxic effects of this metal, which may be
irrev'ersible in human beings, immediate action is essential pn all levels, public
alai private.

Preliminary investigations by Interior's Federal Water Quality Adminikra-
tion lead me to conclude that certain firms in your State are discharging mercurY
into waterways. I am prepared to pursue Federal legal action if 'this proves to
he the case and if prompt corrective action is not taken.

(181)
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Information presently available indlcates that many firms in yoUr State are
users of mercury. I tirge that you determine whether any of these users are dis-
charging mercury. If they are, abatement action should be initiated at onee.

The gravity of the threat to human' health dictates this urgent action. I will
keep you advised of developments and look forward to working cooperatively with
you on this critical matter. Oar FWQA regional director stands ready to assist
you in this effort.

WALTER J. IIICICEL,
Secretary of the Interior.

(Depar;nomt of On Interior news release, Office of the Secretary, My. 22. 19701

NTnion SEMIS LEGAL ACTION AGAINST MERCURY POLLUTERS

Seemary of the' Interior Walter .T. llickel today annininced he hits submit tNI
the names of 13 U.S. industrial firms. to the 'Justice Deintrtment for pOssible
proseeution on a charge, the Secretary said, ."of diseharging intO the Nation's
Waterways sufficient quantities of mercury to constitute a serious, hazard to
public health."

The action followed the results of tests comlucted by the Federal Water Quality
Administration which Secretary nickel ordered to conduct a antionwide search
for Mercury contamination.

Secretary nickel said "these dItwharges must be stopped. They represent an
intolerable threat to the health and safety of Americans."

Mercury and merettry compounds are used in the Inanufacture of selentific ft mid
electrical instruments, in dentistry, ismer generation, solders, the manufacture
fit In mi u, as medintiliti products, disinfectants, detonators, pigments, photo-
engraving. as a catalyst in the manufacture of chlimille and caustic soda, for pro-
(holm; vinyl clorldes, and as a slimicide in the pulp and puller Industry. "Mer-
cury is a imt ural comfonent of nature as well." Secretary Dinkel said, "fmmd in
the rain, the sea, the earth's crust 'and its water resources. However, these con-.
coneentrations generally fall Indio). those thought to affect human health."

Inr present eoncer11," he added, "Is the mercury eoncentrations exceeding
acceptable limit The Void and Drug Administration's recontincmled limit in
fish is 0.1 parts

[Department of the Interior news release, Office of the Secretary, July 24. 14170I

Cu AMES FILEO.AGAINST MERCURY POLLUTERS

Serretary iff the Interim. Walter J. Dirket annifunced balay tliat the Instiet
Department will file charges against 10 I.S. Industrial plants sthich lItekel said
are "discharging sufficient munitities of mercury-in e Nation's waterways to
constitute a serlims hazard to public Seeret ury submit ted the names
of the companies to the Justice Demniment for possibli prosecution earlier this
week.

"This is just the start," the Secretary said. "We are eveloping hard evidenee
against a number id' other eompanies."

The Secretary said that the el nnixinies' failure to. comply with requests to
end the instances of mereury p ill ut ion voluntarily has resulted in the Federal
legal act iim to foree nompllance.

The :lethal fidlowed the results of tests conducted toy the Federal Water Qual-
ity AdMinist ration which Secretary Ilickel ordered to conduct a nationwide'
sea reh fuum mercury contaminat

Secretary Hickel said. "these discharges most be stopped. They represent an
hit ole ruble threat to the health and safety of Americans."

The :Instill. Department will move to take legal action against the following
firms for failure to end their discharges of mercury : Diamond Shaniroek Corp.
at Muscle Shoals. Ala.. fotmd to be diseharging between 0.11 and S.0 Pounds per
day of mercury to Pond Creek. a tributary of the Tennessee River : the Diamond
Shamrock plant at Delaware City, DeL, for discharging the Delaware River
with 11.5 pounds of mercury per day; ()lin Matbieson Chouleal Co. at An-
guish, Oa.. for disdm ming between 5.7 and 12.9 pounds per day of mereury to
the Savannah Myer: tlie Pennwalt Chemical Co.. Calvert City. Ny.. for the dis-
charge of 1.54 pounds per day of Mercury to the Tennessee the Oxford
Paper Co.. ht Rumford. Maine, for the discharging into the. Androscoggin River
of 26.2 pounds pier day of mercury.
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Also, the International Mining & Chemical Co.'s chloralkali division plant
at Orrington, Maine, for discharging 2.0 pounds per dny of mercury to the
Penobscot River; Allied Chemical Co., at Solvay, N.Y., for dumping 4.4 pounds
iler day of ntereury to Onondaga Lake; Olin Mathieson's elnomleal plant at Niag-
ara Falls, N.Y., for the discharge of 2.6.6 pounds per day of mercury to the
Niagara River, and in the State of Washington, Georgia-Pacific Corp., at Bel;
lingham, found to be pouring 41.5 pounds per day of mercury into Puget Sound,
and Weyerhaeuser Co., at Longview, \Vasil., whose pulp and paper 111111 is dis-
charging 15.1 pounds per day of mercury into the Columbia Ri Ver.

Mercury and mercury compoundS are used in the manufacture of scientific and
electrical instruments, in dentistry, power generation, -solders, the manufact lire
of lamps, as medicinal products, disinfectants, detonators, pi tents, photoengrav-
bog, as a catalyst in the manufacture of chlorine and mustl . soda, for prodming
vinyl chlorides, and as a slimicide in the pulp and paper i Oust ry. "Mercury is
a tmt oral compomont of nature as well," Secretary Hiekel said. "found in tluo
min, the sea. the earth's crust, and its water resources. However, these mneentra-
t ions Retie rally fali below those thought to affect human health."

-Our present concern," he added, "Is the mercury concentrations exceeding
amentable limits." ThW'ood and Drug Administration's remit mended limit in
fish is 0.5 pa rts lwr mill Mt.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOM M ITTEE

or TIM Cost NIMES: ON GOVERN M ENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., July 20, 1970.

Hon. DAvto D. Dow:Nick,
Commissioner. Federal Water Qoality .4tIntinistration, Department of Die In-

Drior. Wax/oh/Won.
DEsa Mu. I ioNtf (*lc : Recently your agency initiated nationwide investigations

toolovernIng the discharge of mercury into the Nation's waterways. Last week,
Secretary nickel 1111011IICPII that, as a result of these investigations, he had
recommended to the Justice Ihltnrtment that proceedings be instituted under the
1599 River and llarbor Act (30 Stilt: 1151) against such dischargers. Subse-
quently, the Justice Department announced it will instiblte sneh proceedings
against eight of I lwni, We understand, however, that there are well over 100 such
dischargers.

We art. clowerned from the standpoIni of economy and efficiency about what
further aet ions FWQA will take, as a rcsiilt of all these investigations, to insure
that applicable Feder:II laws tuki-regulktions are complied with.

We would appreciate your prompt reSvponsto to the following questions and
points:

1. Please provide the information remtested on the attached table.
2. We understand that each of the State water quality standards approved by

t he Interior Department contains the following requirement derived from the
11111S report 'of the Nn t ional Technical Advisory Comm tee to,the Secretary of t he
Interior on water rpm 1 it y criteria ( p. :

Surfitce wattorS should be free of substanees attribvtalole to discharges or
wasttos as follows:

"(d) Materials. ineluding rmlionuelides. in coneentrations or combinations
which are ttrxie or which produce undesirable physiological responses in human,
fish, and other animal life and plants.

"(o) Substuners and comditions or rombinations thereof in concentrati(in's
which produce imdesi rodde aquatic 1 ire."

(A) Please advise us when FWQA will institute proeeedings
10(r) (5) of tlw above act against each discharger' listed in column G tif lie
attached tahlto as not complying with the above requirements.

(11) With regard to each discharger so listed for which FWQA is not Payming
t o hist it ne such proceedings, please indicate to us why. .

3. We believe that FWQA should supply the Corps of Engineers With the re-
sults of ytoir investigations so that it can determine whether such dischargers
violate the 1S1o9 law and what action slonild be taken to abate these violations.
Phoase so tc the date rot which. pm informed, or will itrform, the Corps about the
results of pill!' Investgin t ions.

Sincerely.
'limn- S. RErss.

Cho irman,Ofobscrralinn and Nalaral Resnori'es 1.; lilm'oht mitt (.1'.
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TILE INTERIOR, .

FL9EItAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRAITON,
Washington, D.C., September 24, 1970.

IIon. Hmtv S. DEEM .

Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee; Committee on
Government Operations, House of Represtentatities, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. REUSS: This is in answer to your letter of July 20, '1970, raising
three specific questions on nwrcury dischargers and FWQA investigation and
ahatenamt efforts directed toward elimination of mercury disaarges.

In AMP of this year, a nationwide sampling and investigation program Was
initiated by FWQA In cooperation with other Fmleral agencies and State water
pollution control authorities. . list of all merenky Producers and users in the
United States was compiled from FWQA, Bureatt of Mines, State agencies, and
other sonrees. An investigatory program was thA instituted by MO to sam-
ple and visit all companies known to be using mercury, concentrating first upon
plants (1) known to be discharging mercury or ,nsing a process likely to result
in the discharge of mercury to the aquatic enviroinnent or (2) those firms known
to be Purchasing relatively large quantities of ,inercury annually. Cmwurrently
with the Federal tiovernment, States were encouraged to makd their own inves-
tigations and to take administrative or legal action where necessary to abate .
mercury dIseharges.

Federal action was coordinated to the greil test degree posible with that of the
States, anti where au adequate State abatenwnt wacedare was instituted, further
Federal administrative and legal action was hohl in abeyance awaiting the out,
VOIIIC of the St at e lanceedings. i

A total of 129 mercury users have been idmitilled and investigated. Of those,
79 plants were shown to be discharging no detectable mercury to the environ-
ment. A list of the remaining 50 plants which 'WO analyses have shown to be
diselmrging detectable amounts of mercury i attached as tab "A." 'This list
includes, in'summary form, most of the infor ation requested in part 1 of your
letter (i.e., the table). including what enfor ement efforts, if any, have been
taken to abate the discharges. Because of th large number of rather complex
analyses required to be performed on the offi ent of each discharger simply to
quantify mercury concentrations in the eillue t. determination of the nature and
presence of other potential pollutants in the ffluent of these companies has not
been possible. .

Your second request relates to possiole Fe eral abatement proceedings under
section 10(c) (5) of tile Federal Water Pollut on Control Act occasioned by water
quality standards violations.

All States with approved water quality standards have incorporated in similar
or identical form into their standards the general toxicity criteria which you have
set forth in your letter : ,

Surface waterS should be free of substances attributable to discharges or
wastes as follows:

(%) Materials, includ'ng radionuclides. in concentrations or combhmtions
which are toxic or which produce undesirable physiological responses in human,
fish, and otber animal life and plants. .

(c) Substances anti conditions or combinations therof in concentration. Which
produce undesirable aquatic life. ..

Mercury discharged to tlie aquatic environment may constitute a violation of
these criteria. However, as you are undoubtedly aware, the enforcement pro-
cedures under 10(c) (5) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act do not pro-
videfor immediate Injunctive reliet For this reason, alternative injunctive relief
under the Rivers. and Harbors Act of 1809 was:sought in the 10 cases referred
to the Justice Department.

One 10(c) (5) water quality standards Proceeding, however, was instituted
against the GAF Corp plant in Linden, N.J., in early June based upon the dis-
charge of mercury as well as other pollutants.

8
;77,



186

In addition to these II firms, 1111 comimides shown to be discharging any
mercury to Ow aquatic environment have been requested to meet with Interior
officials to ascertain the levels of mercury discharged and to outline their reme-
dial treatment programs. All companies, Including GAF and the 10 presently in
litigation, have cooperated extensively with Federal regulatory agencies. Reduc-
tions in amounts of mercury discharged by all firms have been substantial
P1VQA Imitations show an overall 80 percent reduction from July to mid-Sep-
tember (from 281' to- 40 pounds). Morwver, remedial treatment programs have
been submitted by almost all firms designed to aceomplish Mr more substantial
reductions by Deeember 1, 197G.

You may be, assured that any company failing to exhibit acceptahle reductions
la its disellarge of mercury or which resists the Interior policy of elimination of
manmade additions of mercury below detectable limits will be referred to tlw
Department of Justice for prosecution. Of the original 10 cases submitted to
Justice, one has closed its offending plant, three have aeeept(d stipulations setting
forth adequate remedial schedules, and two others are in the process of settle-
tnent.

Yonr third point request's FWQA to supply the Corps of Engineers with in-
vestigatory data. Since prosecutorial referrals to the Justice Department may
be made directly by the Interior Department, corps referrals have not !wen em-
ployed because of the need for immediate action and the desire to avoid compli-
cations.

Sincerely yours,

Enclosure,

IJActo I). Dommcg,
Commissioner.
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KNOWN MERCURY DISCHARGERS (ANALYSIS POSITIVE), AS DF SEPT. 4, 1970

Name and address Receiving waters Remarks

Wyandotte Chemical Co., Geismar,
La.

Mississippi River ,Discheiged 1.70 lbs per day on May 19, 1970;
reduced load to 0.911b. per day on July 18,
1970.

Company estimated earlier losses to be 40
to 50 lbs. per day; discharged 3.2 lbs. per
day on Mayi8, 1970; on July 1 5, 1970,
mercury warttot detected.

Ditch to Lake Erie Discharged 2 to 60 lbs. per day in March-
April 1970 and 3 lbs. por day on June 26,
1970; reduced load to 1.48 lbs. per day on
July 14, 1970.

Discharged approximately 1 lb. per day on
May 19, 1970; reduced load to 0.02 to
D.15 lb. per day on July 17-21, 1970.

Detroit River Discharged 11 to 74 lbs. per day f rom Mar,
27 to Apr. 10, 1970; reduced load to 0.50
to 0.35 lbs. per day on July 22-24, 1970.

Onondaga Lake Discharged 4.4 lbs. per day on July 14, 1970.
Delaware River Discharged 29.1 lbs. per day on July 14,1970;

reduced load to 3.03 lbs. per day on Aug.
21, 1970.

Pond Creek, lo Tennessee River__ Discharged 8.6 lbs. per day on May 7, 1970;
reduced load to 3.25 lbs. per day on July
15, 1970.

Puget Sound Discharged 10.5 lbs. per day on July 14,
1970, chlor-alkali plant; reduced load
to OD lb. per day on Aug. 10 to 12, 1970.

Penobscot Rivet. ...... ..... Discharged 2.65 lbs. per day on July 14,
1970; reduced load to 022 on Aug. 19,1
1970 (company value).

Savannah River Discharged 12.9 lbs. per day on May 20,
1970; reduced load to 0.51 lb. per day
on July 14, 1970:

Niagara River Discharged 26.6 lbs. per day on July 14,
1970; reduced load to 0.38 to 0.85 lb. per
cloy on Aug. 12 to 16, 1970 (company
values).

Discharged 26.2 lbs. per day on July 14,
1970; plant closed Aug, 15, 1970.

Discharged 1.54 lbs. per day on July 14,
1970.

Discharged 15.1 lbs. per day on July 14,
1970; reduction to approximately 1 lb.
per day by Aug. 17, 1970 (company
value).

Tennessee River Company claims reductions prior to July 14,
1970; on July 14. 1970, 0.05 lb. per day
of mercury was discharged.

Tombigbee River State Issued statement that discharges
were substa ntially reduced. July 13,1970;
on July 14. 1970 0.12 lb. per day of
mercury was discliarged,

oMobile River State issued statement that discharges were
substantially reduced, July 13, 1970; on
July 14, 1970, 0.07 lb. per clay of mercury
was discharged.

Discharged 3.7 lbs. per day on July 15,1970,
reduced load to 0.5 to 1 lb. per day on
Aug. 28, 1970 (company value).

Discharged 13.2 lbs. per day on May 15,1970;
reduced load to 1.72 to 6 lbs. per day on
July 18 to 2 7, 1970; on Sept. 1. 1970, dis-

° charge reduced to I to 2 lbs. per day and
expects to reach less than 0.5 lb per day by
Oct. 15, 1970 (company value).

Discharged 29.2 lbs. per clay on July 17,1970;
reduced load to 6.7 lbs. per day on Aug.7,
1970.

Discharged 2.2 lbs. per day on .1:ily 16,1970;
reduced load to 1 lb, per day an Aug. 26,
1970 (company value).

Discharged 4 lbs. per day on July 15, 1970;
reduced load to 0.5 to 1 lb. per day on
Aug. 28, 1970 (company value).

Dow Chemical Co., Plaquemine, la do

De tree Chemical Industries,
Ashtabula, Ohio!

Tenneco Chemical Co., Pasadena,
Tex.

Wyandotte CheMical Co., Wyan.
dotte, Mich.l .

Allied Chemical Co., Solv ay. N.Y.t...
Dlamond Shamrock Corp., Dela-

ware City, Del.:

Diamond Shamrock Corp.. Muscle
Shoals, Ala.a

Georgia Pacific Corp., Bellingham,
Wasb,2

international Mining & Chemicals
Co.. Chlor-Alkali !Division,
Orrington, Maine.:

'Olin Mathieson Chemical Corp.,
Augusta , Ga.a

Olin Mathiescm Chemical Corp.,
Niagara Falls, N.Y.:

Houston ship channel

Oxford Paper Co., Rumford , Maine:. Androscoggin River

Pennwalt Chemical Co., Calved Tennessee River
City. Ky.a

Weyerhaeuser Co., icriggiew,Washa. Columbia River

B. F. Goodrich Chemical Co.,
Calvert City, Ky.

Olin Mathieson Chemical Corp.,
McIntosh, Ala.

Stauffer Chemical Co., Axis, Ala

Allied Chemical Co., Moundsville, Ohio River
W. Va.

Diamond Shamrock Chemical Co., Houston Ship Channel
Deer Park, Tex.

General Anil ne & Film Corp., Arthur Kill
Linden, N.J.a

Olin Mathieson Chemical Corp., Hiawassee River
Charlestown, Tenn.

PPG Industries, Natrium, W. Va....Ohio River

1 Firms subject to State action.
a Firms subject to Feder 1 suit under 1899 Reluse Act.
3 Firm subject to 180-da notice abatement action under Federal Water Pnilution Control Act.

dr-
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KNOWN MERCURY OISCHARGERS (ANALYSIS POSITIVE), AS DF SEPT. 4, 1970Conlinued

Name and address Receiving waters Romarks

Riegel Paper Co., Riegelwood, NC.. Cape Fear River

Westinghouse, Fairmont, W. ye Monongahela River

Olin Mathleson Chemical Corp.,
Saltsville, Va.

Wyandotte Chemical Co., Port
Edwards, Wis.

NASA, Lewis Research Center,
gleveland, Ohio.

Aluminum Co. of America, Point
Comfort. Tex,

4

North Fork Holston River

Wisconsin River

Rocky River

Lavaca Bay

PPG Industries, Lake Charles, La... Bayou d nde

Hdoker Electru-Chemical Co., Niagara Falls sewer system and
iagare-Fe1104,-Y,---,...._ Niagara River.

Monochem, I nc., W.:mar, La Mjssissippi River

Woodbridge Chemical Co., Wood-
bridge, N.J..

Chesebrough Ponds, Inc., Falchney
Inst. Co., Watertown, N.Y.

Buckeye Cellulose Corp., Memphis,
Tenn.

Allied Chemical Co., Buffalo, N.Y
Buckman Laboratories, Memphis,

Tenn.
Chapman Chemical Co., Memphis,

Tenn.
Williams Gold Reining Co., Bullalo,

N.Y.
Hill Air Force Base, Ogden, Utah
Monsanto Chemical Co., Texas City,

Tex.
Garrett-Callahan Co., Millbrae,

Calif.
General Mercury Corp., Tempe,

Ariz.

NOSCO Plastics, Erie. Pa
Malinckrodt Chemical Works,

Erie, Pa.

General Electric Chemical Products
Plant. Cleveland, Ohio.

Quicksilver Products, San Francisco,
Calif.

. .

Grim! Electric Co., Edmore, Mich._

Oioneer Paint & Varnish, Tucson,.
Ariz.

Reactivd Metals, Inc., Ashtabula,
Ohio.

Berrys Cretaackensack RTYer

Black Rfver, to Lake Dritario,

Wolf River, to Mississippi River.... _

Buffalo River, to Lake Erie
Lateral sewer to Wolf River inter-

captor, to Mississippi River.
Non Connah Creek, to idississiptli
. River.

Citifivoef rBuffaloSTP, to Niagara

North Davis Co. STP_
Galveston Bay.

Millbrae STP, to San Francisco Bay..

Ground water (via leach ....

City of Erie STP, to Lake Erie
City of Erie STP, to Lake Erie

Lake Erie

City of San Francisco STP to San
Francisco Bay.

Cedar Laka, to Pine River

Santa Cruz River

West Branch Fields Brook to Fields
Brook to Ashtabula River. '

Discharged 6.32 lbs. per day on July 17. 1970;
reduced load to 0,59 lb. per day on
Aug. 10, 1970 (company value).

Early analyses not available; sediment
analyses indicate previously higher dis-
charges; on July 15, 1970, 0.19 lbs. per
day was discharged.

Early analyses not available; sediment
analyses indicate previously higher dis-
charges; on Aug. 12, 1970, 0.58 lb. per
day was discharged.

Early analyses not available; sediment
analyses indicate previously higher dis-
charges; on July 27, 1970, 0.08 lb. per
day was discharged.

Early analyses not available; sediment
analyses indicate previously higher Ells-
charges; on July 21, 1970, 0.02 lb. per
day was discharged.

Early analyses not available; sediment
analyses.indicate previously higher dis-
charges; on July 29 to Aug. 2, 1970, 1.96
to 1.45 lbs. per day were discharged.

Discharged 26.5 lbs. per day on July 2P,
1970; on Sept. 1, 1970, no mercury being
discharged; using a temporary lagoon;
permanent facilities are to reduce loading
tc, less than 0.05 lb. Icier dey by Sept. 30,
1.970 (company report).

Discharged 1.34 lbs. per day on July 23,1370;
company will report improvementSepl.
18 reporting date.

Discharged 0.91 lb. per day on July 18,1970;
Sept. 2, 1970, load less than 0.25 lb. Per
day (company report).

Sample of a discharge on Aug..12, 1970;
indicated 2.08 lbs. per day of rnercury.
(Subject to further investigation.)

Dn Aug. 5.1970, 1.50 lbs. per day of mercury
were being discharged. (Subject to further
investigation.)

Discharged 0.1Q lb. per day on Aug. 13,1970.

Dischaiged 0.66 lb. per day on July 27, 1970.
Discharged 0.06 lb. per day on Aug. 1 1, 1970.

Discharged 0.09 lb. per day on Aug. 14,1970.

Discharged 0.001 lb. per day on July 30,
1970.

Discharged 0.005 lb. per day on Aug. 6,1970.
Dischrged 0.45 lb. per day on Aug. 1, 1970.

Dn Aug. 5, 1970. found to be discharging a
small amount of concentrated waste.

Dn Aug. 14, 1970. found to be discharging a
small amount of concentrated waste
(equivalent to 0.001 lb. per day).

Discharged 0.002 lb. per day on July 28,1970.
Calculated to be discharging 0.051 ib. per

day on July 28. 1970 (load determined by
subtracting NDSCO Plastics load from
combined NDSCLI-Malinckrodt load).1

Discharged 0.003 lb. per day on Aug. \ 20,
1970. 1\

Dn Aug. 5, 1970. found to be discharging a
small amount of concentrated wade
(equivalent to 0.004 lb. per day).

Discharged 0.002 lb. per day on Aug. 3-4\
1970.

Discharged 0.006 lb. per day on Aug. 21-22,
1970.

Discharged 0.199 lb. per day on Aug. 3-4 ,
1970.
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HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COM n'TEE ON GOVERN M ENT OPERATIONS,

1VI/8h ington, October 2, Ig70.
Lt. (len. F. J. CLARKE,
Chief of Engineers,
Corps of Engineers,
Wushingfon.

Dma (;E:NERAL CLARKE: Enclosed is IL I iS1, prepared by the Federal Water
Quality Administration, of 50 "known nwreury dischargers."

We won Id aimreeiate your advising ns which of :hese have ilertnits to Hie ke
such ,iischarges under the RofIlse Act or 1899.

As to those whieh do not have such permits, we urge that the eorps notify
each of them promptly about the requirements of the avt Hod to apply for permits
under the act and the corps' !IOW regulations.

Please advise us of your action on this matter.
Sineerely,

HENRY S. REVSS.
Cho i colon, ron ser rut ion an d Nut urn! ii Rou revs S us brian at i fee.

11OU SE OF RIMBESENTATIVES,
CoNSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOM M ITTEE

OF THE COM M ITTF.F: ON IRWERN M ENT I Mg:RATIONS,
Washington, DP., ell, 197a.

Mr. DAVID D. DommcK,
roannissio»er, Federal Wafer Qualitp .4 dm in istration,
Department of the Interior, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. DOMINICK : Yesterday, according to a story in today's Washington
Post, Murray Stein, Assistant Counnissioper for Enforcement of FWQA, testified
at a Senate sabcmumittee hearing tlait '41nr prdiminary results show there are
substanthil amounts" of lead and arsenir in various waterways. lle al No sa Id
that FWQA wonhl furnish the results of its studies to that subrianmittee in 10,
days,

In addition to Om questions and points raised in this sulwommittee's letter to
you of July 29, 1970, concerning Mercury pollution, we would a ppreciate your
prompt response to t he following:

I. Please provide t(I ns eopies of the information 1,'WQA provides to the Senate
sulpeonunit tee.

2. Please. provide the information requested on the at to clued table.
its) What minerals when discharged into it waterway are known or ettny

siden.d to be t oN IC or haza nhous to (II humans. lin marine fish, ( iii) fresh water
!kb, and t iv) both marine and fresh water life?

b .Whieh of these mineral disdiarges are less toxie to fish life when dis-
charged into hard wa ter?

4. i n I I low do these minerals, when discharged into a mnnitipal Sewage sys-
I mu. affect tile operation of municiinil waste t roatment plants?

(lot Please furnish to us two copies of each slmly condueted by or for FWQA
on these effects.

5. We understand that sludge from a treatment plant at Harvey. Ill., when re-
cently used on farmland as fertiliAl, adversely affected the crops thereon be-
(ause fir minerals in the sludge.

la I Please provide to us the details alsnit this incident.
Ibt J toes FWQA have information concerning similar occurrences arising front

the use of mineral-containing sludge? If so, please provide smit information
t o us.

0. Plea So inform us when FAVQA provided or will provide to the Corps of
Engineers the information about discharges on the tinselled table so that the
corps can require such dischargers to obtain permits under the 1899 River
and Harbor Act or cease slug' discharges.

Sincerely,
HENRY S. Rerss,

Ch airman, Consecration and Natural Resourees nbrommit tee.
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U.N. DEPARTMENT OE TUE INTERIOR,
PEDERA IL WATER POLLUTION 2 CONTROL ADM IN ISTRATION,

Wash ington, D.C., September 24. 1970,
Mut. HENRI' N. REuss,
Chairman, Conservation and Natural Resources Subcommittee, Committer on

Government Operations, House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
I Wade Ms. Rauss: This is in resisalse to your letter of July 31, 1970, requesting

inftirlantIon on the dIseharge and effeets of varlinus metals and minerals In the
aquatic envindiment.

Oar answers to the six specific questions and 1eints pm raise are given
seria t :

1. PleaRe 1WOV We if) us Copies of the information FWQA provides to the Senate
Subcommittee.

Enelosed are eoples of two FWQA reports on the hazards and effects of lead
and a rsenir in the environment whieh were provided to the Senate Subcommittee
on Energy, Natural Resourees, and Environment. To date, this Is the only non-
testimonial information made available to that subeommittee on heavy metals
other than mercury.

2 and 3. Please provide the inrOrMation reqUested on the t taehed table. 3. (a )
What minerals when diseharged into a waterway are known or considered to be
tiixie or hazardous to (I) !Italians, ( ) marine fish, (Ili ) fresh water fish, and
(iv ) both marine and fresh-water life? (b) Which of these mineral disoharges
are less toxic to fish life when dIscluirged into hard water?

Because of the substantial backlog of mercury analyses and plant visits yet to
be (qaupleted and the priority set on mercury diseharges !Well use of their potential
toxieity. FWQA has recently begun investigations of the effects and discharge
sources of other metals or minerals. For this reason, WO are unable to omplete
the table you have submitted or provide comprehensive data on the toxicity of
such materials when discharged to water. When tlie data you have requested
becomes available, We Will be happy tO provide it to you. It shollid he noted that
under seetion 12 of the Federal Water Pollution Conteol Act, entitled "Control
of Hazardous Polluting Substances," a Presidential report must be submitted to
Clingross by Novender 1, Pao, denominating hazardous materials in the aquatic
environment and setting forth whether additional legislation controlling the dis-
vita rge of hazardous or tusk materials is required, This report. presently in
prelmration by the Department of Transportation, in eonsulta that with FWQA
and other agencies will in part Identify toxic and hazardous materials in the
aquatie environment.

A symposium was condueted under the anspioes of the Coast Guard in New
Orleans on September 14-16, 1970, at which extensive public discussions were held
concerning toxic and hazardous materials discharged to water. In addltion,
considerable FWQA efforts are being directed toward developing a rationale for
the categorization of toxic or hazardous materials discharged to water. This
rationale will include such traditionally recognized toxicants as materials listed
as economic poisons under the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and RodentIcIde
Act, 7 U.S.C. 135 et seq.. and materials registered under 46 CFR 146 as Class A.
B, C, and D poisons, as well as methods for the recognition of materials not
presently included within such existing classifications or substances developed
and marketed in the future. It should be noted. however, that scientific dant
relating specifically to toxicity of such materials when present in the water
environment are very minimal.

4. ,(a) Hosf do these minerals, when discharged into a nmnicipal sewage
system, affect the, operation of municipal waste treatment plants? MI Please
furnish to us two copies of each study conducted by or for FWQA on these
effects.

Existing knowledge relating to the effects of specific minerals or metals dis-
charged to municipal waste treatment plants is sparse, nor has FWQA any studies
or reports upon such effects. In a normally operating nmnicipal plant, however,
where concentrations of heavy metals or other toxic materials are not excessive,
stall substances have not caused particular difficulties with the operation of the
treatment facility. Although it is difficult to generalize, a large proportion of these
substance:4, particularly heavy metals, are removed with the sludge during the
sedimentation process. Where the substances are dissolved or are In exceedingly
large concentrations, the possibility of interference with secondary biological
treatment processes exists, particularly when these materials are in a form
toxic to bacteria essential to the process.



-

192

5. We understand that sludge from a treatment dant At Harvey, Ill., when
recently used on farm land as fertilizer, adversely' affected the crops thereon
titmouse of minerals in the sludge. (a) Please provide to us the details about this
incident. ( b) Does PWQA have information emilcerning sun liii r occurrenees
«rising from the use of mineral-containing sludgo? if so, please provide such
information to us.

FWQA has RO InforIllatio11 or ri.porls on adverse crop effects COMM by cinl-
tendert nts in the Harvey, Ill., waste treatment plant sludge nor are we aware at
present of any similar (wcurremps elsewhere. Wo will have oar technical staff
investigate the problem of mineral concentrations in sludges used as fertilizer
end prepare a report to be forwa rded to you.

1

II. Please inform us when FWQA provided or will provlde to the Ccrps of
Engineers the information about discharges on it he at niched Nide so Cuit the
corps can require such discharges to obtain permits muter the 1 SIM Rivers and
Harbors Act or cease such discharges.

As turfed ebove, FWQA data collection on discharges of toxic and hazardous
materials other than merntry is just beginning.. B'hen such data as well as the
backgroend studies delineating the toxleity of such substances
you my be assured that enforcement efforts will be quickly coordinated with the
appropriate Federal agencies.

Sincerely yours,

Enclosure.
DAvin D. Dom INICK, Commissioner.

11AZARDs or Alum.: lc IN THE ENVIRONMENT, WITH PARTICI'AR REFERENCE TO
TOR AQUATIC ENvIRONMFAT
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ABSTRACT

Arsenic is widely distributed in nature. The average mincentration in sea water
has been reported as 0.003 p.p.m. Levels are quite variable, however, because
arsenic is usually present wherever laity metal sulfides occur, and normally is
not removed from the high levels Present in pesticides and detergents before
wastes from these materials reach loeal waterways and the coastal zone. Arsenic
concentrations in water in and around Lawrenee, Kans., was reported as ranging
from 0.4 pp.b. to R p.p.h., with Mpwater ranging from the lower level of
detection 0.4 p.p.b. to 0.5 p.p.b. TherC.S. Puddle IhmIth Service drinking water
slimier& set a maximum concentratiou of 0.05 mg./1 for arsenic. At the present
time there are no tolerances established for arsenic in seafood.

V 5
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In general the organic arsenieals are not as toxic to man as the inorganic
forms and arganie arsenicals are not emumon in the environment. Acute in-
organic arsenic poisoning mutts in violent gastroenteritis, fatty degeneration
of veils, disturbames of mdrition and metabolism and in some eases direct
pa ralysis of the heart. Chi ronk poisoning nmy cause indefinite symptoms of illness
such us nephritis, neuritis. and so forth. Arsenic is a cumulative poison which
slolvly builds up in the body to levels tlmt may not be detectable for 2 to 6 years
lir longer.

A rsenic in sonic 1'01111 ION bell shovii lo lie 111xle at vu rious rolIcent rations t o
organisms in most levels of the aquatic food chain. Concentrations of arsenic
retorted as toxic to fish contrasted ngainst concentration retorted as tolerable
show relatively small differences for most forms. More long-term study is re-
quired beim use arsenic is rendily' coneentrnted by marine organisms. Nii safe
hweis for mit oral waters are reported.

Production Id arsiinie Ils a by-prodnet iii tile smelting of lead, copper, and
wild ores far exceeds the demand. Priior to lono the U.S. consumption of white
arsenic varied between 13,060 mid 40.000 short tons per year. No consumlotiom
statisties tiny(' limn published since 1019. Disposnl of the large ginintities ut
a rsenie they produee is u major problem of mining Indust ries.

I NTionit.crioN

Arsenic lins gained notoriety as n islsonfiguring in Renaissance political
plots and in lloidern fietiom Arsenie trioxide, or "Mini. arsenic," wits first dis-
elivered in the eighth centnry by an Arab alchemist. l'se of the milli sound added
Hew dimensions to the poisvmer's (Taft. lecause its presence was difficult to detect.
The symptoms that resulted from "white arsenic" intox tendon were not likely
to arouse suspicion, because they often resembled the symptoms of nephritis,
neuritis or general gastrointestinal disorders. More sophisticated procedures
for detieting a rsu'n k liii ve greatly redmd the Mildewy of intentiomd arsenic
poisoning.

Arsenir and its related ciammainds are often used In the United States. Various
in sectiddes and herbicides oontain the (lenient. Other connnon uses for arsenic
include detergents, ammunition, glass inn nufacture and pigment production.
The element is often found In assoelation with sulfur-bearing coal and eon be
released to the II i r when the fuel is combust ed.

lusTalurTioN OF MISIENIc iN, N.ParltE

The 111'1111v abundance of (he element arsenic is 1.5 parts per million in tile
cii rth's erust ( Krauskopf. 1967) . Arsenic Is present in sea 'voter at an a verage eon-
(-Nitration of 0.003 ppm I K ra uskopf, 1967).

aunkins (1963) Ims compiled the folhaving review of the distribution of ar-
senic: "Arsenie Is widely distributed in nature. It 'most Nommonly occurs as a
pyrite (FeAsS). but usually is present wherever any of the metal sulfides occur.
The priMary commercial sources or arsenic are comer and lead ores. Arsenie is
rp.overed as a byproduct during the snielting provess.

"Arsenic is also redist ributed in nature indirectly. The mining and smelting of
(ores and the burning of eo Dal are exn moles.

The arsenic content of soils varies from less (han IMO part per million to as
ni lull as 40 pa rts ppr million ( Vallee et al., 1900).

-The clweentration iii spa water apparently varies from Mont 1 to 50 micro-
grams of arsenic ter liter (Similes ad Pate. 1952), Gorgy et al. (194 51 reported
15 to 50 microgra Ins of rsonic ler liter in the Pacifle Ocean. More reeent results
indicate lower values : 2.5 to 6.6 mierograms of arskie per liter in the Pacific
( shibashi. 1954 1, and in the Atlantic OUPIIII near Great Britain. 1.0 to 5 micro-
grams ter liter (Harvey. 1955). The Atlantic Ocean nen r the Canadian shore was
reported to e(ontain about 2 mierograms per liter (holing and La ngille, 1955).
It is not elear whether a rsenir eontent *of the mean varies systema Heathy. Most
of the arsenic fonind in Sea wilier (40 to 69 isbrient 1 is inorganic and noisily
considered to be in the form of a rsenie ( Sma les and Pate, 1952: (lorgy et al..
1948).

"Early investigations of the arsenie content of Sell water were undertaken as a
supplement to studies of t he arsenic content of edible ma ri Ile organisms. Tlw work
was stimulated by an outbreak of arsenival poisoning near the turn of the cen-
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tury. Analytieal techniques at the time were rather crude. The sensitivity was
adequate for the determination of arsenic in marine organisms, which was pres-
ent in tens of parts per million. However, the application of these techniques to
sea water entailed evaporation of large sample volumes yielding results which
were of &Offal validity and often contradictory."

ARSENIC IN TIIE ENvIRONMENT.

Sources of .4r8cnio to the Environment
Sourees of arsenic to the aquatic environment inelmie national tkposits, indus-

trial discharges, acid mine drainage. pesticides, lead shot, combustion of sulfur-
bearing coals, detergents, smelting of lead. t'opper, and gold ores.

Arsenic in detergents may be one of the more significant sources to the aquatic
environment. Magnuson et al. (1970) found arm at a concentration (4 10 to 70
p.p.m. In several common presoaks and household detergents. Analysis of laundry
products by FWQA have revealed arsenic concentrations ranging up to 36 p.p.m.
According to Magnuson et al. (1970), waste treatment processes now used in ninny
sewage or waste effluents plants do not remove arsenic. Therefore, much of the
arsenie from laundry products would be discharged to Vocal waterways.

Sulfuric acid made from sulfide ores probably contains arsenic. The arsnie
either remains in the add or is removed at the sulfuric acid plant and probably
appPlIrs in the wastewater streams. Hem* arsenic could occur in the waste
streams or manufactured product of any industry using low grade sulfuric acid.

Because.arsenie is soluble in aelds, acid mine drainage containing arsenic from
active and abandoned coal mlnes is likely. Coals bearing sulfide and shale im-
purities are potential Sources. The concentrations of arsenic in typical acid mine
waters is unknown. because irml interferemes have prevented the aecunmlation
of representative data. The large quantities of arsenicbased pesticides utilized
across the country can be important sources of arsenie eontamination to th
aquatic imbit a t.

Finally, immense quantities of sulfur-bearing coals are burned for itower pro-
duction in the United States, and this industrial souree of Jimmie should not N.
overlooked. Fly ash and stack scrublwr drainage and storm runoff from tiw power-
pia nt compound could contain arsenie.

In natural waters, arsenie is most often found as an anion. either as arsenate
( AsOc.- I or arsenite I A I. la sea water it supposedly exists largely as
arsonite Hut (-Wilson 1957 )

Large aim Mit les of sodium arsenite have been applied to the aquatic habitat
as herbicides to control liquidly plants. Some extensive studies have been eon-
(1110(41 to determine the fate of their application. Mackenthim (M.S.) studied
Pewankee I Al ke )1Vilr MIlwatiker which had recivd 218,0(X) pounds of A$:( )2.
Ile stated: -If retained and evenly distributed lover tlw (mtire lake, the cherniea
wt mid amount to 87 lbs. per acre or 380 p.p.m. in the uppermost 1 inch of bottom.
We found liottoni $amples to have an AsA Is content ranging from 10 to 82 p.p.m.
with a mean if 49 p.p.m. It appeaN that intich arsenic will be stored in lake and
rivPr IluttIMISC

Wrenee 111157) studied tiw aPplication of sodium arsenate to farm ponds.
retsirt(ql : "Chemical analyses Id the water frion plaids treated with 4 p.p.nl.

AsA 18 as sodium a rsenite indicated a uni ft inn distrihut ion ( appraxi ma tely 3 p.p.m.
As2( 3) of arsenie In the upper 2.5 feet of water within 24 lumrs after treatment.
The amount of soluble ursenie was rapidly redmwd by organic and Inorganic
combination and. at the Plid of 24 days after I real ment. the concentration friun
the surface to a depth of 12 feet ranged from 0.3 to 0.8 p.p.m. AsAh."

Dupnw also studied the arseale water and soil treated with sodium
a rseniti% lie ftaind bigh initial eimeentratimis after 24 hours ranging up to 2.0
p.p.m. Approximatt.ly 10 months later no arsenic wns detected In the water. More
Imioortant were Dupree's measurements of sodium arsenite content in 1956 for
small ponds that had been drained and refilled front 2 to 3 times after treat
ment with sodium arsenite in 1955. Ile found sodium arsenite content in water
ranging up to .3 p.p.m. : in plankton up to 714 p.p.m.; and in bottom soil ranging
up to .3S p.p.m. It would seem that under many conditions arsmic is reh.ased
from Inatimi muds and ean lw a source of arsenic to water and the biota for a
considerable period after a ppileatim.
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Lawrence (1957) found that arsenic replaced phosphorus in bottom muds
and perhaps plankton : "In one large pond treated with sodium arsenite, the
phosphorus content of the water increased from a trace hamediately prior to
treatment to approximately 0.6 p.p.m. 5 days later. Similar results were obtained
in other ponda treated with sodium nrsenite. It would appear that the arsenic
replaced phosphorus in the bottom muds and perhaps in the plankton as well.
There was no death of plants during Ulla period to aecount for this release of
phosplmrus.

"It is probable that this increase in soluble phosphorus partially explains why
ponds treated with sodium arsenite often produce a heavy plankton growth with-
in a few (lays after treatment."

zi.rsenic like many other toxic substances can be biologically concentrated and
magnified through food chains.

Lomnan (1979) summarized concentration factors for arsenic in the marine
env ironment :

Organism :
Owen tra
Nan fact or

flenthic algae 2, 000
Mollusc muscle 650
Crustacean muscle 4()()
Fish muscle

7Junkins (1963) also summarized data relative to concentration of arsenic1)7
aquatic organisms and residues of arsenic in fish :

"Arsenic is concentrated by some of, the nuirine organisms. Various species
of seaweed also on the coast of Nova Scotia concentrate arsenic to 200 to 600
times the abundance in the sea water of 0.002 part per million ; range of 5 to
94 parts per million was observed in 11 species of algae; and 4 to 14 parts per
million occured in most species of seaweeds except Phaeophyceac, which range
from 30 to 70 parts Per million. No seasonal trends .were noted In monthly
analyses which extended over a 15-month period (Yonng and Langille, 195S).

"Marine organisms with a higher trophic level also contain significant Colleen-
trations of arsenic, aceumulnted through feeding on the primary concentrators.
The arsenic content of edible tissue from samples along the British Isles Is as
lunch as three parts per million in oysters aml as high as 174 parts per million
in shrimp (('hapman, 1926). Shrimp along the southeastern coasts of the United
States contain up to 42 parts Per million of iirsenic 1 (Niulson et al., 1935)." It has been shown that fish eoneentrate arsenic from the trace quantities
which are present pa turully, Ii rgemoutluol black bass I //aro Jr/without) from
the southeastern coasts of the United States emitain as much as 40 parts per

In the liver and extrnetalde oils (Ellis et al., 1941 ). Fish from the Bengal
River in India are also rich ill /I rsenic (lingehi and Ganguly. 1941

-Apparently the extent of nrsenic eoncentration by fresh water Ilsil varies
markedly with litmaihnzieal conditions. Calico bass (Paiim.ris sporoidesi front
Cassndaga Lake in New York (Ullmann et al.. 19611 contained less than al /HI rts
per mini!) of arsenic on the average, with I m 11111 coneentration of 0.14
parts per 1111 hunt. The hike water had Nawentrations of arsenie riinging from
0.04 to 0.10 inirts per million during the year preceding this study. Presumably
the arsenic content of the lnke was nuturally oeeurring Hemp. t he
(linen buss in the particular environment of Cnssa(1aga Lake Sillnved only a
slight tendency to coneentrate arsenic."

Lucas M. S.) reeently found arsenic concentrations in whole fish front the
Creat Lak s to range up to 0.043 parts per million with an average of 0.016 parts
Per million.

Coulson et al. (1935) found that shrimp a hmg the northeastern coasts of the
United States contain arsenic In a complex organic form with arsenic. content
ranging up to 42 parts per million.

Undonlitedly the form in whh.li arsenic is acenniulated in Seafood, organic.
versus inorganic and iientavalent versus trivalent forms, will intluenee Its
toxicity W111-11 ingested I iy man or other

ARSENIC CONTENT IN 1*.S. SURFACE W ATERS

Gunnerson (1966) snm inn rized results from the water quality su rveil la nee
system for the period 1957-(r. and the following is ineluded from Ids Iflihi lent
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FIGURE 1
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III Mune st minis arsenic r'ompntrations cauld bc a i vouch I rig high leyels.
Magnuson et al 0270 reported arsenic concentrations in water at La wrence,
Kans. The following table IS a hst Oncted from (heir publienth :

.

TABLE A.ARSENIC CONCENTRATION (P.P.B.) IN WATER IN LABRENCE KANS.:THE U.S. PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE
MANDATORY MAXIMUM IS 50 P.P.B.; THE RECOMMENDED MAXIMUM IS 10 P.P.B.

Sample Average Range

Input, Lawrence water plant. 3. I 2.6 to 3.6.
Lawrence tap water I... _ . .. . .4 .1100.5.

iRaw sewage (Lawrence plant) nput. 2.7 2.0 to 3.4.
Treated sewage (Lawrence plant) output to river 1. 115102.1
Kansas River at Lawrence 23.3
Kansas River at Topeka 8.0

.

Lawrence water treatment includes "cold-lime softening"; the value ol 0.4 p.p.b. is at the lower limit ol detection.
r Single determination.

SAFI: LIMITS FOR AasENIc

III 1942, the U.S. Pnbile Health Service Drinking Water Standards set a
maximum eomentra that of 0.05 p.p.m. for.a rsenie. The U.S. Public Health Serviee
1102 Dri nking Wu ter Standards sta ted :

-In light of our present knowledge coneerning the potential health hazard
fnnn the ingestion of inorganic arsenic. the concentration of a rsenle In drinking
water should not exeeINI IIA11 mg./I a ml convent ra t ions III exeess of 0.01 mg./I
a re grounds for reject Ion of the sill only."

Conventional methods for treating water supidies have little effect on re-
moving a rsenie. Magnuson et al. (PO). found tha t at an initial arsenic con-
tyntra t ion of .200 q un. cold-lime softening tn.a tment removed S5 perckt of t he
a Nettle a nd charcoal filtration removed 70 percent.

At the present time. there are no tolerances established for arsenie in sea
foodg. Inasmueh as arsenic is .2141(111y concentrated by marine organisms. there
is great need for such guidellnes for arsenic in seafood.
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TOXICITY OF ARSENICEFFECTS ON MAN

l'herm aeoThgy
The pharmacology Id arsenicals falls into two major Categories; namely,

inorganie and organic arsenic oulamunds. The hitter type has ISTH used exten-
sively in chelnotherniq, especially against protozoan infections, 1 pefore the advent
of ant ibiot les and other tin Ire effective pharmamilticals. In general. the organic
arsenicals are not as toxic to man as the inorga iii e forms and organie arsenicals
are not CI IHIMOn I a the environment. This disenssion will address itself princi-
pally to the inorganic arsenic compounds.

Arsenieals aet locally as mild and slow eompsives. Systemically, they relax
1)11. (.0dd:tries and increase their perna.ability ; thus. stimulating inflammation.
This; change is most conspiemats in the viseeral area. In acute arsenic jasisoning.
it results In violent gastroenteritis, closely resembling eholera. The dilation of
capil in ries introduces changes in the circulation which cause secondary disturb-
rances iirlhe function of more remote organs, particularly in the nervous system,
Fatty degeneration of the:cells Is seen. especially in glands and nmseles. with
other disturba Dees of nutrition and metaholi SW, particularly in chronic poisoning.
There may also he a direct paralysis of the heart.

Arsenic trioxide. As,tb, or "white arsenie" was Pirmerly used extensively for
criminal poisoning. It Is readily obtainable, and is easily administered without
suspicion, since it is ordorless and nearly tasteless. The symptoms also are not
likely to arouse suspicionthe acute and subacute course resembling that of
'a severe gastrointestinal upset. Repeated graduated administration may cause
Indefinite symptoms of illness, such as nephritis, neuritis, and so forth.
Specificphysiological react kms

A. Aoutc arsenic poisoning
The symptoms .of acute arsenic poisoning start with vomiting and profuse

and painful diarrhea. The withdrawal of water from the body leads to great
thirst. dryness of the mouth and throat, and difficulty in wwallowing and ar-
tieniation. The nervous symptoms consist of vertigo, headaehe and !min In the
limbs. The patient is cyanotic, with cold extremities. Toward the end, syncope,
coma, (ionie and toxic spasms and general paralysis occur. Death usually owars
toy exhaustion as a result of the prolonged gastroenteritis, as in cholera.

B. Subacute and chronic arsenic poisoning
Sulmente find chronic arsenic poisoning may produce chronic gastrointestinal

catarrh, sometimes ulcerative; some kidney injury and degeneration ; consid-
eraIlle tendeney to edema ; swelling of the eyelids as MI early indleation of high
intake ; and liver injury involving swelling of fatty tissue lending possibly to
acute and fatal hemititis. 'Suborn». and chronic arsenic poisoning may occur,
but be diagnosed as another ailment. Where lead arsenate has been ingested,
an unfavorable synergistic action may result friar; the two Memento.

C. Toxicity of arsenicals
Arsenie is toxic to all animals which hare a central nervous system ; also to

most of the higher plants, but not all lower organisms, The mortality in acute
clinical arsenie poisoning is high, 50 to 75 percent. The fatal dose varies, espe-
cially with the solubility of the preparation. Of the trioxide, Ast01, 5 to 50 mg .
are toxic; OIM-0.18g. or 1-3 grains are usually fatal. IIowever, tolerance of
arsenie !poisoning in man and in other animals can be-Induced through gradual
habituation.

Trivalent arsenkmis, As (arsenItes). are generally much more toxic than are
the Iwittavalent arsenic mmipounds (arsenateS). Depemling upon the route of
entry into the body the toxizity decreases in the order of : a rsenites, arsenates,
eolloidal antenic, atoxyl, and cacodyl.

The toxicity of arsenic results from its combination with certain protoiMISmic
sulfhydryl gro»ps thereby inhibiting oxidation. A konsiderable number of ani-
mal enzymes lure sensitive to arsenic.

Absorption of inorganic arsenicals occurs readily, to some extent from the
intact skin. Poisoning may reasit (rain the external use of arsenlea I cosnwtic
!preparations and hamiling. Excretion occurs by all the usual channels; urine,
feces, perspiration, and epithelium of the skin. Excretion- is always very slow
and incomplete, especially after prolonged exposure or intake, so that retention
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of arsenicals Is considerable. The highest concentrations of such compounds
are found in the liver, kidneys, and spleen. The hair has a high concentration
In cases of chronic poisoning.

The following shows the relation of the inorganic trivalent and pentavalent
compounds.

Trivalent., MO:

1. As203+ -- ll2As204 -74 2 I l AS02
(arsenous) Arsenous
(trioxide) Acid=

2: flAs02+ NaCI t NaAsO2 (sodium arsenite)

Pentavalent, Aso:

I. As205 + I 1 2 0 --- Il2AsO6 21.1 AsO3
(arstmic) arsenic
(pentoxide) acid, (mita)

2. As202+3HIO 2113AsO4
arsenic
acid, (or tho)

3. Il3As04-1- 3NaCI i NatAs04-1-4H CI
sodium arsenat e

Etiology of arsenic poiamiing
The most common causes of arsenic poisoning to Man are :

1. Accidental or suicidal ingestion.
2. Overdosage of proamged therapeutic use.
3. Absorption through handling and external use.
4. Ingestion of contaminated foods.

The last route presents the greatest public danger because arsenical in-
secticides are widely used. Arsenic is issued chiefly as Paris Green (copper

, acetoarsenite, 3Cu (As01),Cu(COOCII3)2, and as calcium arsenate (Cat (As0.) 3),
and lead arsenate PbHAsCb, the latter involving the additional risks of lead
poisoning as well. Lead crenate, The most common arsenical insecticide. is
relatively insoluble, but Is partly hydrolyzed hy wuter to basic lead acetate and
arsenous acid and may scorch foliage.

Hazards to aquatic biota may exist because arsenicals are widely used in
industry, in addition to their application in controlling insects, weeds, and
rodents. The relative insolubility of arsenicals renders them potentially harm-
ful to those organisms that aceumulate such compounds in their tissue. Arsenic
is a cumulative poison which slowly builds up in the body, According to some
medical sources, long-ternt arsenosls may not be detectable for 2 to 6 years
or longer.

Co reinogenesii
Sullivan (1969) states that the possibility that arsenic induces cancer, makes

the present levels of arsenic compounds in the air a matter of concern,
"As early as 1820, arsenical compounds were suspected of carcinogenic action.

This impression was based on the observation that skin cancer frequently cc- ,

(lured following therapeutic administration of arsenic for psoriasis and other
disorders. Aecording to Buchanan, nearly all of these cases of skin cancer
followed a prolonged period of medicinal administration (averaging IR years)
of inorganic trivalent arsenic. He states that cancer frequently (R0 percent of
published eases) follows the nonmalignant manifestation of keratosis, com-
monly on the palms of the hands or Roles of the feet.

"In 1963. Tieuper listed arsenic as one of the recognized human carcinogens.
The skin. lung.lind liver were listed as recognized sites of arsenic cancers. and
the mouth. esophagus. larynx. and bladder as suspected sites.

"The role of arsenic as a respiratory carcinogen has received some support
from the finding of above-average mortality from lung cancer in Routh Rho-
desinn miners of gold-arsenical ores and tbe frequent oceurtenee of lung ea neer
in German vineyard workers exposed to lend arsenate (Inst.
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"In oppokitirm, Frost argued that the atrOmogenie actifm was Inappropriately
attrilmted to arsenic because of the tendency hi specify arsenic as tile carcinogen
even when (inter materials were present. Nickel in particular. appears to he a
earcluogen whieh occurs together with arsenic in industrhil (lasts. The strongest
arguments against arsenic as a ea rinogn are the failure to show increased
prevalence of caneer Milling industrial workers and failure tO induce canoPr in

'exlierimental animals.
"Sneglreff and Lombard examined the reoirds of two indostrial IDliants in rela-

tion to the (moldier of emphiyees who died of cancer. In a 'Plant where t he workers
ere exposed to arsenic. ls of 140 deaths (12.3 per(ent) were caused lpy cancer.

r'n the second 'Malt where the workers were not exposed to arsenic, 12 of 109
deaths (11 percent 1 were caused by cancer. authors conelmhst that there
was no significant difference III ell neer mortality between plant ettiphiyees who
ha !Idled arsenic Duni (Mime who were not exposed.

-In another study, Pinto and Bennett eImipa red the mortality of employees
Mai handled arsenic for the American Smelting and Relining Crimp:my at
Trosa1111, WilS11.. With thOl-le Who were not eNie wed to argenk. (This smelter is
th(' I Mly plant !presently 'inducing arsenic commercially in the United States

.) They 1diserved tha t ii .r 3S deaths. (15./4 liereent ) among wrirkers who
were exposed bp arseille trioxide were caus('d I uy cancer, while 37 of 191 deaths
( 19.4 percent ) . were due to cancer among workers not. exposed to arsenic. The
ev idence that these arsenic workers excreted an average of 820 gg/liter of arsenic
of urine compared to 130 Ag/liter for unexposed workers. The :authors found no
evidence that arsenic trioxide caltsed systemic cancer or fatal cardiovascular
diseame In humans.

-"Attempts to demonstrate through animal studies that arsenic Is cal reinogenie
have often.met with failure. In fact, age study showed that arsenic suppressed
t he appearale of spontaneous tumors of the lung, However, a Yew cases have
!leen reported in whih arsenical cancer wart induced iii anhnals,

-Smile investigators have mentioned, that .the type of arsenic (smiptuunds in-
volved may play a role in the mreinogenesis.rornalius 'and Shelley suggest that
arsenie trioxide te which most smelter workers are 'exposed is pnDhably not as
ea reinogenic 055 othv Si Di u hle arsenic el impound s."

EFETers ON PIR11 AND' minium

Meliee and Wolf (1903 ) have summarized the effects of ampule conipounds ciii
tish mid pignut le life. The summary is quoted below.

"The following elincentratIons of arsenic have been reluirted as toxic to fish:

"Concentration ot arsenic, mg/I Time ol exposure Type of fish Reference

353, 465
2 days.

Fish1.1

. ......
2, 9771.1 to 2.2 Pike perch

..2.2 . 3 days Bleak 2, 977
4 to 6 days- Carp

22., 99777733. 11 . ...... . . . . . . . . ............ . _ 311 d o l ... Eels
4.3. Crabs 2, 977
7.6

36 days
Bass 311

11.6 Minnows. _
Crappies and btuegills

617
15.0

16 hours

--,-,- 900
17.8 Minnows 2, 962
60.0 do 617
234.0 .do 2, 962

"In contrast, the following concentrations have been reported as tolerable
within the period specified:

-Concerkation of arsenic, mei Time ol exposure Type of fish Reference

0.7 to 1.1 48 days Pike perch ...,.. 2977
0.76 Fish 677
11 to 1.6 11 days Bleak. 2977
15 to 5.3 1 to 7 days_ Fish 353
22 13 days. Carp 2977
2.2 do Eels 2977
3.1 90 days._ Crabs 2977-
5.3 24 to 148 hours.... Fish 313,778, 1009
6 0 . 232 hours - Bass , 900
7 6 30 days . Trout - 1012
13.0. . 1 hour Minno £1..-:-..1 - 353

'
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"With respect to lower forms of aquatic life, arsenic .itmtentratIons of 3-14
ing/I have not harmed mayfly nymphs and 10--...)0 mg/1 have been harmless tinvard
dragon II ml.damsel ffles, Cimeeld rations of 2-4 mg/I of arsenic are reported not
to interfere with the self-puritieation of streams. Bacteria grow Pren in till.
presenee of 10010 mg/I of itotassium arsenate and algae are not. killed at 1INIO
Ing/1 of arsenate. The fermentation and pr(magation of yeast are stopped at 300
mg/I of arsenate.

"Arsenie-70 occurs in the effluent front nuelear reaetors and may be concen-
trated to alimited extent in t he aquatic food chain.

"The Mersey and Severn River Boards in England imve adopted working
standa,rds limiting the total coneentration in .411tlitnts of all heavy metals, in-
chtdi ng arsenic, -to 1.0 mg/I.

"Lead. arsenate
"A concentration of 23 mg/1 of lead aisenate has killed trout within 24 hours,

but a concentration of 17.1 mg/I in stabilized tapwater did not harm minnows
during a 1-hour exposurh.
"Sodium arsenate

"It is not highly toxic to fish or other aquatic life. According to Jones the
lethal concentration of sodium arsenate toward minnows at 16-20°C. is 234
mg/I, as arsenic. It has also been rePorted that minnows survived for 16 hours
in a solution of sodium arsenite equivalent to -250 Mg./I of arsenic.

"ToWard lower forms of awn(' life, the toxicity of sodium arsenate is
variable.. The threshold concentration for immobilization of Daphnia magna In
Lake Erle water has varied from IM to 31 mg./I -as sodium 'arsenate, or 4.3 to
7.5 ing./1 as arsenic. The toxic threshold for the flatworm Polyeetis nigra, is
reported to be 670 mg./I as ARO., or 301 mg./.1 as arsenic.
"Arsenio trioxide

"The folkiwing concentrations of arsenic trioxide have been harmful to
fish or other aquatie life.

"Concentration of arsenic trioxide
ia mg4I Time of exposure (days) Type of organism Reference

. _

1.98.
2 to 3 .
2.5..

Chironus
d. Fish fo organisms...

d

574,108
1007

311
2.5 WI__ do,. 313
5.3 - 8 Pink salmon 2091
10. Fish_ 1011
10_ 10 . Bass 311
10. Bass, bluegillf, crappies 3005
16. 3 to 16_ Mussels 313
40. Flatworms 353, 313

"Saber and Meehan carried out a comPrehensive study of the toxicity of
arsenic trioxide to many different fish food organisms. Their results indicated
that intportant fish food organisms can tolerate 2.0 tng./1 of arsenic trioxide,

'The following concentrations of arsenk ttioxide have not been harmful to
501111* aquatic organisms in t he time specifieq :

"Concentration of arsenic
trioxide in mg/1 Time ,f, expoure Type of organism Reference

1
. Fish. 677

1.9 Chironomus larvae 574

2 Food organisms 353,1008
Food organisms 313

2 to 6.. 4 .. Bass, bluegills, crappies 3005
2 to 7 . . 1 to 7 days Fish_ 353

3 to 14 Mayfly nymphs 574
Some zooplankton 574

24 hours Trout. bluegills, sea lamprey.... 2976

5 Fish 353

5 to 10 15 to 30 minutes Coho salmon 2988

7 24 to 148 hours Fish . 1009, 778,313
8 Mussels 313
10 1 month .. Trout 1012

10 to 20 Insect larvae 574

17.1 1 hour__ .. Minnows 353

2 3
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"sodium arsenIte
"Sodium ars:Amite Juts been Issed. extensively as a herbicide for the 01ontrol of

mixed submerged vegetation in static Witter. Commercial sodium arsenitp con-
tusions varying amounts of other ampule compounds and impurities; hence it is
labeled in terms of e(pdvalent arsenic trioxide (A !O ),11 . Fur the control of sub-
merged Vegetation in ponds and lakes, applications of 2 to 5 mg/I as arsenic tri-
oxith- (1.r, to IS mg/I ils As) have been found effective. Although these concentra-
tions are generally eonsidered to he safe for fish aml other a qua tic anima I s. it is
inlviSoltiu to spray only a part of the pond oi lake at 010' MM. NO that fish may
avoid the sprayed a ren. Fish nre reported to be sensithe to sublethal doses of So-
11111111 arsenite and will generally swim away into fresh, wit ter. Co/lumen-MI sodium
arsenite in concentrations up to 10 mg/1 (nrsenii eontent not stated) have been
used for weed constrol in Wiseonsin lakes without harm to the fish population.

"Tlw f( on owing. coswentrations of s(odiuns timeline, expressed its arsenic. have
Is.en relowted its lethal, toxic. (or (otherwise deleterious to aquatic organisms:

"Concentration, as arsenic,
mgi Time of exposUre ' Organism Reference .

1.0 to 2.0 Fish... f 1692
1.4 to 2.3 Fish food organism . 574,1007
1.9 to 3.0 Midges, mayflies, emphipods... 3009
4.6 48 hours ''.., Daphnia 2158
5 10 days Pink salmon 2091
5 48 hours Microregma (prcazoan) 3343
5,2 Daphnia magna 352
8,1 48-hour TI. v, Chum salmon fry.. 2900
15 48- and 72-hour TL .. Fingerling channel catfish 2981
17.8 Minnow 2920
20 36 hours Rainbow trout, minnows 3005
20 - ,.., lo. x, 1 Minnows 617
27 72-hr ar TL ,,, do 3672
27,6 . 24-hour TL a, Fingerling channel catbsh...... 2981
29 48-hour TL a, Minnows 3672
35 to 46.... .......... .. .. 48 hours . Scenedesmus 2158
45 .. 24-hour TL .,, ......... .. .... Minnows 3672
290 . 48 hours Scherichia coli 2158

;The literature on weed eont rol contains stntements thnt applications of sodium
arsenite up to 10 Ing/I as AO), (7.0 mg/I as As) 11 re not harmful to fisls. but the
foregoing table would indIcate that the threshold level is somewhat lower than

expwted. Furthersmore, tishfmal organisms are suselptible at ('oneentrations as
low as 1A) mg/I.

"I In tin. (other band. the fiillinylog concentrations Id' sodium a rsenite, expressed
as arsenic. have been reported to have no harmful effects on the organism motet]:

"Concentration, as arsenic,
ms/1 Time of exposure Organism Reference

1.3 Fish or lishfood organism 1007
1.3 to 1.5 Fishlood organisms 1007,1008
1..4 to 2.9 Fish 416
2.9 Chironomus larvae 574
5 24 hours Trout, bluegitls, sea lamprey.. ..... . 2976
8 to 18 Damselflies, dragonflies, sowbugs, water

mites.
3009

15 96 hours !Conon 3672

"Lawrence reports that two applications of 4 mg/1 of sodium arsenite applied
1 month »part in experimerrtal ponds reduced the number of bottom organisms
an average of 34 permnt and reduced bluegill production an average of 42
percent as compared with control ponds. Two applications of 1; mg/I of sodium
arsenite applied 1 month .apart reduced the number of bottom organisms an
average of 95 percent and Taluegills 65 percent as compared with control 'winds.
An application 4 mg/I killed all mIcrocrustacea and greatly reduced thst-popula-
tion of rotifers."
Effects on sleek and wildlife watering

McKee and Wolf (1963) have summarized the effects of arsenic compounds on
stock and Wildlife from drinking water containing arsenic compounds. Their
summary is quoted below:
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"In New Zealand, sickness and death among cattle have been caused by
arsenic of natural origin in water supplies (1002, 1049).* t'he lethal dose of
arsenic for animals hi' believed to be about 20, milligrams per animal pound
41003 0' Fowl and pigs imve (11ed after eating one feed of contaminated pig meal
containing I milligrams of arseffic per ounce (1004 ).*"

"On the other hand, selenium poisoning among cattle, dogs and chickens has
been treated-by feeding arsenic in concentrations of 12 to 15 ,mdlIgrams/liter
in water (1003) ; and 5 milligrams/liter arsenic in drinking water has counter-
acted seleffinth ptdisming among pigs, dogs. and rats (921 ).*"'

"in brief outline of the toxic effects of some common poisons, Wadsworth
(3108)* gires the following toxic doses for a rsenie :

Animal
Toxic dome,
in grams

Fowl 0. 05-0. 10
Dogs 0. 10-0. 29
Swine 0. 5-1. 0
Sheep, goats, horses 10. 0-15. 0
Cows 15-30

For rats and mice, 96-hour 1.1),v, doses of arsenic trioxide varied from 15.1 to
214 milligrams per kilogram based on oral administration (3341). Another refer-
MM. 299? ) reporte(l the. W., for female rats was 21)8 milligrams per kilogram
based on calcium arsenate, or 112 milligrams per kiiogram as arsenic. The mini-
mum lethal dose of arsenic trioxide for various laboratory animals ranged from
5 to 100 milligrams INT kilogram of body weight. solution being more lethal than
powders (3141)1'. 1 ioses of 324 milligram have-killed exisTimental chickens in 24
hours (1014)*.
Lunt (sown a lc

"in (Wises of 1.3 to 50.7 grams per day, lead arsenate killed 18 out of 31 chickens,
hut the survivors showed no symptoms of poisoning. Drinking water containhig
about 4,800 milligrams per liter of hmd arsenate caused no harm fo 10 birds
after a 611-day toeriod. Toward male ruts, the Llly, value of lead arsenate has peen
rellorled Ils 1.II50 milligrams iwr kilogram. The daily consumption by mit. cow
of 6.48 grains of lead arsenate for an unspeeified iteriod was not harmful."

I .S. ARMEN ITE INDUSTRY,
hil's of arsenic compounds

Arsenic compounds are used in medicine, giass manufacture, pigment produc-
tion, steelmaking, pesticides, insecticides, fungicides herbicides, textile printing,
Miming, and taxhlermy preservatives, antifouling paints, the control of sludge
fornmtion. the petroleum industry, and a imnunitian.

K irk-Ot h me). (190:3) contains this summary on the use of arsenic :
"The major nse of arsenic is in the agricultural field In the form of calcium

arsenate. arsenic aid, lead arsenate, and sodium arsenite. Calcium arsenate,
during the past severai years, has regained its position as a potent compound
for the control of boll weevil infestation in cotton. Starting in 1949 there was a
trend toward the nse of chlorinated organiccompounds for the control of boll
weevils. By 1936 it.was noted that the weevils Imd developed a resistance to the
chlorinated compounds and the cotton growers were advised to change either to
Caldunt arsenate or met hylpara thion.

"The demand for arsenic acid as a cotton defoliant is relatively new but over
the last 2 or 3 years lots assumed major proportions and now ranks second to
that for calcium arsenate. The demand for lend arsenate, although stili widely
used, especially-in the cultivation' of apples is diminishing. The use of sodium
arsenate in the control of weed)) and as a soil sterilizer continues to hold a
large portion of the market, especially in the rubber plantations of Malaya and
along railroad right-of-ways in both the United States and Europe. Arsanilie
acid is commonly used as a feed additive for poultry in the United States.

"Arsenic trioxide and some of its derivatives are also used in glass manufacture,
,:attle and sheep dips, wood, preservatives, debarking of trees, crabgrass control,
and aquatic weed control."

Junkins_(1963) states: "Increased uses in the paper, pulp, textiles, and plastic
industries are also foreseen. Some of the newer uses of arsenic are based on
the natnre of reactions of arsenic with organic_ compounds. Arsenic frequently

*Numbers represent sources cited by McKee and Wolf.
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reayts to form a compound that preserves the organic compound in its original
state but adds the pesticidal properties of arsenic to the product. This phenome-
non can be utilized to produce plastics which inhibit molds. Arsenic is also
used in the yemoval of tree bark and in the manufacture of hide preservatives.
Arsenic eompounds have been used as pigments."

V. COMMERCIAL COMPOUNDS OF ARSENIC: 1

Compounds (commercial 'taws)
1. o-Arsenic acid, II:As03.1/2 ILO

2. Arsenir trichloride, AsCh

3. A rsenie trioxide, 15203 (white
arsenic).

4. Arsenic pent oxide, 15302 ( a nhy-
drkle of arsenic acid).

5. Calcium arsenate, Ca,(As0,12

0. Copper mYtoarsenite, 3Cu(A140:):
Cu el approximate for-
milt (copper acetate meta rsen-
ate, I ia I ivria I, Schweinfurth,
Vienna, Parrot, or l'aris Green).

7. t pri c a rsetti t e, C1111:1140. ; a pproxi-
Ma t e formula. ( Scheele's Green,
Swedish II reen ).

5, Lead a rsena to, Nil lASO,

9. bead arsenite, Pb ( Asta():

10. Sodium arsonite, Na Asa, (sodium
meta rsenite

11. Arsine, AsI13

Solubility in water
10.7g. in 100 ntl. of ILO at 20° C; 50

is-reent As.
Dissoives in I1:0 and decomposes to

As:0, and IICI ; 76 percent As.
2g. in 100 mi. of ILO at 25° C and

11.5g. in 100 mi. at 100' C ; 76 per-
cent As.

150g. in 100 mi. of water at 16° C; in-
creasingiy soluble with temperature
rise: 05 perrent As.

Slightly soinble in 11,0, soluble in di-
lute acids; 3,4 percent As.

Insoluble in 11,0, sohibie in dilute
acids; 44.3 per(('nt As.

Insoluble in 11,0 and alealead, soluble
in dilute acids and in NI-1,011 I 44)

ltercent As.
Approximate formula insoluble in

110, soiubie in dilute GM), and in
Ilstle alkalies ; 21.0 percent As; 60

percent Ph.
Approximate form& insoluble in

water, soluble in dilute IINO,; 35
Percent As; 49 percent Pb.

Very soluble ht hot or cold water; 57.0
percent As.

20 mi. in 100 mi. of 11,0 at 20° C.
commercial iweparation. phyakol and Chemical properties of arsenic

.4. Coin in ereial. preparation
Arsenical pyrite, FeSAs, a mineral similar to pyrite FeS:, but ointaining

arsenic in place af half of the sulfur, is one of the commonest ores of arsenic.
When this mineral is heated in absence of air, arsenic passes off as vapor and
condenses as a crystalline metallic powder, the so-called gray arsenic. The re-
action is

FeSAs -- FeS+ As
Most Other naturally occurring sulfides also contain more or less arsenic. When

these ores are roasted, the metal, sulfur, and arsenic are all converted into
.oxides. The sulfur dioxide passes .off as gas, bat the arsenic trioxi(le, AsA),.
settles In the flues. By distillation of the deposit with carbon, free arsenic is
attained according to the following reaction :

As:03+3C 2As +300
Phoical and chemical properties

Arsenic is a silvery substance, but tarnishes slowly in moist air, receiving a
film of white oxide, As,(:),. The element can react as metal as well as nonmetal.
Thus the free element finds little commercial utilization. The greatest use in-
volves the trioxide, Which is the source of all manufactured compounds of ar-
senic' (Ehret 1946).

2 Patty, F. A.. "Industrial Hygiene and Toxicology." Second edition. Vol. II: Toxicology.
Intersclence Publishers, New York. N.Y., 1962.

Ehret. W. I. Smiths' College Chemistry, 1946.

ZOG



A rsenie trioxhie (White a rsenk, arsenious oxide, As203) is the eommon C0111-
inertial form of arsenic. Most compounds of arsenic, when heated in air, are con-
verted to this tasteless, toxic white powder. Arsenic metal. arsenic sulfides. arsine,
arsenic oxides (in the presence of a reducing agent) and organie arsenates, are
all converted by heat and oxygen to arsenic trioxide. Because trioxide sublimes
at 193° C., it is easily suspended as small partieles In the air. When heated. the
free element burns in tlas air, producing white poisonous vapors of As.,03. Like-
wise, when warmed, it unites directly with the halogens (F2, C12, 1112, TO, with
sulfur, and with many of the imta Is."

U.S. PRODUCTION 01,' ARSEN IC

Sullivan (19(1)) summarized the prithiction of arsenic in the United States.
His summau is quoted below :

'Virtually all of the a rsenic produced is recovered as a by-product in the smelt-
ing of lend, copper, and gold ores. The production of white arsenic as a by-
product has been so great that the supply usually exeeeds the demand. UntiNhis
year, the United States' domestic needs have been supplied by the Anaconda Co.
at Allaeonda, Mont., and the American Smelting and Refining Co. at Tacoma.
Wash., supplemented by some imports. However, the Bureau of Mines reports that.
the Anaconda Co. suspended its sale of arsenic in 1965.

"In order to avoid disclosing company confidential data, the U.S. eonsump;
-tion or production ef White arsenic has not been reported since 1959. Prior th
that, the U.S. consumption varied between 13,000 and 40,000 short tons per year.
The price of arsenic has declined from approximately 6.5 cents per pound to
about 4 cents.

"One of the problems faeing mining industries has been the disposal of the
large quantities of arsenic they produce. A gold smelter in a small western town
produced 14,600 tons pet-year, ahnost enough to supply all our domestic weds.
These industries are also faced with the disposal of the very poisonous arsenic
trioxide.

"The high volatility of arsenic trioxide (sublimes at 193° C.) requires that
most arsenic-containing ores be specially treated to remove arsenic front the
exhaust gases. Lead, copper, and gold ores may contain up to 3 percent arsenic.
Arsenic is also a contaminant in some nickel and cadmium ores, and must be
removed to improve the quality of the metal. In some processes the arsenic is
removed chemically, while In others it is removed by taking advantage of the
high volatility of the arsenic trioxide.

"In the commercial production of arsenic, arsenic trioxide is volatilized dur-
ing the smelting process and concentrated in the fine gases. Crude flue gas dust
may contain up to 30 percent arsenic trioxide, the balance being oxides of copper
or lend and perhaps of other metals, such as antimony, tin, and sine. To upgrade
the flue dust, a small amount of pyrite or galena is nAed with the concentrate and
the mixture roasted. The gases are finally passed through a series of brick cool-
ing chambers called kitchens. The teinwratures of the gas and vapor are con-
trolled ; they enter the first kitchen at approximately 220° C., and by the time
the gas and vapor reneh the last kitchen, they have been cooled to 100° C.. or less.
The cosalensed crude product is 90 to 95 percent arsenic trioxide. Restiblimation
at about 295° C., and recondensing in kitchens at 180 to 120° C., produce 99 to 99.9
percent arsenic trioxide.

Even in the smelters where arsenic is not recovered for commercial use, the
tonnges involved are very large. A reverberatory furnace, for einmple, may
sinelt as much as 2,100 tons of charge per day, and in doing so, burn 240 tons
of coal. The furnace would produce about 90 million eubic feet of gas per day,
containing 180 tons of solids. This means that it would be necessary to dispose of
up to 60 tons of arsenic daily." ' /
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APPENDIX : ARSENIC IN THE LOWER MISSISR:PPI RIVER

A preliminary survey by FWQA of certain discharges of arsenic indicates that
at least 1(10 pounds of arsenic or arsenic eompamds are discharged (laily to the
lower Mississippi River. Baton! Rouge and 'stints downstream from the eity an'
the present areas of concern. Untionbtt4ily. still-unklittwo quantities of arsenic
are discharged to the river from other sources. The baekgromni level of orseith.
in the river above Baton Rouge is unknown and requires measurement before
the industrial discharges can be f ally eva hutted.

The Mississippi River has minimum flows of 730)0 c.f.s. based on measure-
ments front 1927-62. Discharge of 100 pounds of arsenic per day at perhsis of
minimum Of av %timid result in an overal concentration of .2 p.p.b. Thu ealcuiated
roneentration of arsenic in the river is below the UspIIS nmndatory minimum
level of 50 p.p.b. for drinking water or the recommended level of 10 p.p.b. The
calculated level is far below drinking water standards, however other discharges,
as well as the background level of arsenic in the river, must lie considered.

Some forms of arsenic are ...eadily incorporated with sediments and bottom
material. The large volumes of water and heavy flows in the Mississippi would
appear to carry Amyl] of this material downstream, either in association with
sediments or iii solution and may reach the delta nod estuarips areas.

The eity of New Orleans, downstream front Baton Rougeitilizes the Missis-
sippi River for domestie water supplies. Water from the river is also siphoned
to oyster-producing areas downstream from New Orleans. It is possible that the
total level of arsenic (background levels. plus discharges) could affect these
beneficial 1NPS of the river wain.. The arsenic in the river may also reach other
shellfish areas. where the element is ingested and concentrated in r:teliflsh tissue.
Additional data are essential to evaluate these possibilities.

Estimates of arsenic concentrations for shellfish in the Mississippi estuary
are Hot avniiiuhite. Little data on residuew in fish from tbe area are available. At
present, no guidelines for safe levels of arsenic in shellfish, fish or other sea-
foods have been established by the Food and Drug Administration. It is our
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understanding that such guidelines are being developed. Evaluations of con-
tamination of shellfish and fish should include the FDA guhlelim-s when they
become available.

The data available are inadequate concerning the amount of arsenic in the
Mississippi River and assdelated estuarine areas and the movement of the ele-
ment in the river eeosystem. Further information is urgently needed in order to
evaluate the effects of known and unknown disharges.

(For releas 00. 1. 19701

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIORGEOLOGICAL SURVEY

PLAN NATIONWIDE RECONNAISSANCE FOR METALS IN SURFACE WATER RESOURCES

During the period October 1-15, 1970, hydrologists of the U.S. Geological
Survey, Department of the Interior, will conduct a nationwide reconnaissance
for selected metals and minor elements in the Nation's surface waters. A major
target will be surface water sources of metropolitan areas.

Nunwrous representative "raw-water" samples will be analyzed from principal
surface-water sources used for the public water supply of each city of more than
100,000 population and in several smaller cities to determine the content of
arsenic, cadmium, ehromium (hexavalent), cobalt, kw], zinc, and mercury.

E. L. Hendrieks, chief hydrologist, U.S. Geologleal Survey, Washington, D.C.,
said that national reconnaissance is spurred by current concern about merorry
and other toxic metals and minor elements in surface water.

"While many data on the oecurrence of heavy metals in rivers have ben
collected by the Geological Survey," Hendricks said, "they do not provide all
the information needed by those involved in pollution cOntrol, inirtieularly itt
metropolitan areas. The new measurements will be made using 4rategically
located stations of our national water data network, and will provide baseline
data that will supplement basic information on the metal content of water
gathered over the past several years."

To implenwnt this new study, 41; district offices of the Survey's Water Resourc s
Division covering the 50 States, Puerto RWo, and tlw Ditrict of Columbia will

tp:Ited t
Obtain raw-water samplek from major local surface water sourms. If

the district has no city with a population of over 100,000, then the largest
eity ill the district will be selected. Samples will be colleeted near the point
of intake where possible; if a large lake or reservoir is the source, the
samples will be taken from the intake line before the water readies
point of storage.

Obtain a wellLmixed water sample, representative of the water resouree
downstream front major municipal or industrial complexes. These samples
will lw colleeted hamediately downstream of the zone of mixing.

Obtain a sample at each "hydrologic lwachmark" station in each district.
(Benchmark stations are part of the Survey's network established to collect
data where water resources have not been affeetNi significantly by man, and
where the resourees are expected to remain in a natural state. They serve as
baselines for (letermining changes in other areas.)

obtain samples (luring the period when the stmin is at medium- or low-flow.conditions. If flow conditions are not suitable during the period Oc-
tober 1-15, sampling may be delayed, but will not be later than Octo)er 31.

"The water samples," Hendricks, said, "will be analyzed with the help of newly
developed techniques that will allow detectIon of extremely small amounts of
toxic metals. For example, in the case of mercury, we are now able to detect
dissolved mercury eoncentrations as small as 1 part per 10 billion parts of water,
using a technique in which mercury is collected from acidified water sample by
amalgamation on a silver wire. The wire is then electrically heated in an absorp-
tion cell plaeed in the light beam of an atomic absorption spectrophotometer. The
mercury vapors are drawn through the cell with' an aspirator, and the absorp-
tion is idotted on a recorder. Universally accepted proeednres also will be nsed
for arsenic, cadmium, chromium, cobalt, lead, and zine."
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"The 'synoptic' look at trace metals in streams throughout the Nation is being
done with the endorsements of several other Federal agencies," the USGS spokes-
man said.

"The Geological Survey is well equipped o make a special reconnaissance of
this kind," Hendricks said, "because of its many district offices and laboratories
and its water data network which involves all of !the states."

"The U.S. Geological Survey does not Manage. develop, regulate or carry out
pollution control programs. Rather, It Is the Survey's responsibilitiesthrough
its national networkto gather the basic hydrologic data needed by those who
are attawking such problems."

"The national water data system of the USGS," Hendricks explained, "is made
up of several individual networks consisting of thousands .of stations designed
to collect basic facts about surface water, ground water, Mul quality character-
istics of both. The network is principally a means or monitoring the response of
the hydroligic system to nattfrol and map-marde influences."-

HOUSE UF REPRESENTATIVES,
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.C., October 8, 1970.

MT. DAVID D. DOMINICK,
Commissioner, Federal Water Quality Administration,
Building No. 2, Crystal Plaza, Arlington, Ira.

DEAR MR. DOMINICK : Thank you for your letter of September 24, 1970, in
reply i0 Our letter of July 29, 1970, concerning mercury discharged into the
Nation's waterways.

Your letter states as follows:
"All States with approved water quality standards have incorporated In similar

'or identical form into their standards the general toxicity criteria which you
have set forth in your letter :

Surface water should be free of substances attributable to discharges or
wastes as follows:

(d) Materials, including radionuclides, in concentrations or combinations
which are toxic or which produce undesirable physiological responses in human,
flsh, and other animal life and plants.

(e) Substances and conditions or combinations thereof in concentrations
which produce undesirable aquatic life.

Mercury discharged to the aquatic environment may constitute a violation of
these criteria. However, As you are undoubtedly aware, the enforeement proce-
dures under 10(c) (9) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act do not provide
for immediate injunctive relief. For this reation, alternative injunctive relief
under the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 was sought in the 10 cases referred
to the Justice Department."

In view of the extreme toxicity of mercury to human and other life, it would
seem that every one of the dischargers listed in the attachment to your letter
was, In fact, violating the foregoing.criteria. Moreover, the Department of Justice,
in each of the complaints It filed against 10 of the 50 dischargers, stated n8
follows:

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substances, and, therefore, are not
and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued by
the Chief of Engineers.

Thus, even if any discharger bad had a corps permit (and apparently none
had), each discharger of the 50 dischargers was also violating the Refuse Act.

I.

Please advise us why you "referred to the Justice Department" only "ten cases,"
and did not refer all 50 cases.

We note that the 10 polluters against whom suits were instituted discharged
mercury afl follows :
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Pounds of mercury
discharged on 1st

dale mentioned in
your attachment

Pou nds of mercury
discharged on in

date mentioned 2n
your attachmetd

after company re-
duced its load

Allied 4.4
Diamond 29. 1 3.03

Do 8.6 3.25
Georgia 10. 5 .17
International 2. 65 .22
Olin 12. 29 .51

Do 26.6 .38-.85
Oxford. 26.2 (I)
Pennwolt 1. 54
Weyerhauser 15.1 1

I Plant closed. .

If you moved against these polluters on the basis of the size of their discharges,
why did you not recommend suit against the following dischargers whose
discharges were as Billows :

Pounds of mercury
discharged on 1st

date mentioned in
your attachment

Pounds of mercury
discharged on 2d

date mentioned in
your attachment

after company re-
duced its load

PPG 4. 0 0. 5-1
Riegel Paper 6.32 .59
Aluminum 1.96-1,45
Hooker 1.32 (I)
Chesbrough 1. 5

I Company will report improvement tont Sept. 18.

Your letter states that you instituted a section 10(e) (5) water quality
standards proeeeding against GAP Corp., rather than a Refuse Act suit. Yet
GAF was discharging 29.2 pounds mercury on July 17, and "reduced load" of
6.7 pounds on August 7, 1970, both diseharges substantially in excess of those by
several of the companies against whom you recommended Refuse Act suits.

Yet the seetion 10(c) (r) procedures, as you correctly stated, "do not provide
for inmiediate injunctive relief" whereas such relief is available under the Refuse
Act.

Please advise why GAP was given different, nod amarently more lenhmt,
t rest tment.

Ir.

We understand tiutt the Government, with your concurrence, "settled" five of
the 10 suits, under terms withdi allow continued discharge of reduced loads of
Memory.

Mose advise us ns follows:
(a) In view of the faet that mercury discharges violate both the water quality

standards and the Refuse Act, what is the legal basis for such "settlements?"
(1) Why did the Government "settle" these eases rather titan obtain an

injunction to insure cessation of the mereury discharges?
(e) With restswt to each of the "settled" cases, precisely when will each

discharger cease emitting mercury?

Your letter states:
"Since proseeutorial referrals to the Justice Department nmy be made directly

by the Interior Department, corps referrals have not been employed because of
the need for immediate action and the desire to avoid complications."

You are, of coarse, correct that Interior can refer cases for action under the
Refuse Act directly to the Justice Department, and we applaud your so referring
10 or the 50 cases. But the corps has the duty of requiring dischargers to obtain
permits under that act. The corps, which is short of manpower, would certainly
have appreciated receiving the information you developed.

Please advise us as follows:
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1. Why did you not refer the 710 eases to the eortis tor its appropriate action
with regard to its duty to require permits?

2, (a1 Do the settlements provide that any mintinning Iliercury discharge must
require a ('orps' permit?

(It) If not, why not?
Please advise ns when you tni moult these 50 MI ses to the corps.

4. What is meant hy the phrase "the desire to avoid coutplications" in your
sentlqIce quoted above?

Si neerely,
11E:var S. Ilzuss,

Chairman, Conservation am! Nat ural Resources Subcommittee.

U.S. DorraPuT Corm% Nola II ERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

( Civil n('tion No. ---)
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, MAI STIFF,

ALLIED CHEMICAL CORPORATION, III:PENDANT.

cost ebAtsr
tl

The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by authority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interior, alleges
that :

rids IS, a Civil action to enjoin defendant Allied Chemical Corp, from dis-
charging mercury or mercury compounds into Onondaga Lake, a navigable
water of the United States, in violatIOn of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act of 18110 (30 Stat. 1152, 33 U.S.('. See. 407). Authority to bring this action is
vested in the Department of justice by Section 17 of the above named act (30
Stat. 1153, 33 U.S.C. See. 413)..

Defendant, Allied Chemical Corp., is a corporation doing business in the
State of New York.

Defendant. in the operations of its plant at Solvay, N.Y., is and has loben dis-
charging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the s, ,?.ters of
Onondaga Lake. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities of mercury
or mercury compounds suspended or in solution.

IV

Defendant's distil:ages of mercury or mercury cmnpounds into the waters of
Onondaga Lake (onstitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter" within the
meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stitt. 1152; .

33 IT.S.C. See. 407). This act provides :
It shall not be lawful to throw, discharge, or *deposit, or pause, suffer,

or procure to be thrown, discharged, or deposited * from the shore,
wharf, manufacturing establishment, or mill of any kind, any refuse matter
of any kind or description whatever other1han that flowing from streets and
sewers therefrom in a liquid state, into any navigable water of the United
States, or into any tributary of any navigable water from which the same
shall float or be washed into such navigable water; * provided further,
That the Secretary of the Army, whenever in the judgment of the Chief of .

Engineers anchorage and navigation will not be impeded thereby, may permit
the deposit of any material aboVe mentioned in navigable waters, withiti
limits to be defined and under conditions to be prescribed hy him, provided
applieation is made to him prior to depositing such material. * *

Defendant has never applied for And does not now hold the statutorily re-
quired permit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refiiSe matter into nav-
igable waters of the United States. "I AI
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VI

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substances, and, therefore, are not
and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued by
the Chief of Engineers.

VII

Onondaga Lake is a navigable water of the United States within the meaning
a section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

VIII

The acts of the defendant described in paragraph III above constitute a pres-
ent and continuing violation of section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

Wherefore, the United States prays:
(1) That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forthwith from discharging

any mercury or mercury compounds In any form Into the navigable waters of the
United States or tributaries thereof.

(2) That defendant be directed to take such affirmative action as the court
determines to be required in order to eliminate any continuing consequences
from defendant's previous unlawful discharges of mercury or mercury com-
pounds into the navigable waters of the United States or tributaries thereof.

(3) For such other relief as may be appropriate in the circumstances.
SII/RO KASIMVA,

Assistant ttarney General.
WALTER KIIicchEL, Jr..

Deputy Assistant Attorney General.
MARTIN DREEN,
THOMAS C. LEE,

t torncys, Land and Natural ResollreCR Division,
Department of Justice,

Washington, D.C. 2000.
ity
United States Attorney.

ttorneyx for the Plaintiff.

ALIJED CHEMICAL CORP., SOLVAY, N.Y.

on September 15, 1970, the company agreed to the entry of a stipulation in
the case providing that the company's two plants were to discharge less than

1 one-half pound per day each on a weekly combined average and that the company
was to further reduce its mercury discharges where possible and to submit a
plan by December 1, 1970, outlining steps to further reduce discharges. A eouy
of the stipulation is attached.

U.N. DISTRICT COURT NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NM YORK

(Civil action No.70CV-259Stipulition)

UNITED STATES OF A ERICA, PLAINTIFF

V.

ALLIED CHEM ICA I. CORPORATION, DEFENDANT

It is stipulated by the attorneys for the parties in this action that the plain-
tiff's application for a preliminary injunction and the trial of the action be
adjourned until December 7, 1970, or until such date after that as the Court may
fix.

This stipulation and adjournment is made upon these conditions:
1. The defendant shall, by September 13, 1970, reduce the average total net

discharge of mercury from Its two chlorine plants in Solvay, N.Y. Into the
Onondaga Lake or any other navigable water of the United States, or tributary
thereof, to an amount not more than the equivalent of 8 ounces per day per plant
from Its said chlorine plants :

2. The defendant shall thereafter continue to make all efforts further to
reduce the total discharge of mercury from its said chlorine plants into the
Onondaga Lake, or any other navigable water of the United States, or tributary
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thereof, and on or before December 1, 1970, defendant shall submit to plaintiff
a proposed schedule of future reductions of mercury discharge from said idants ;

3. The defendant shall measure or cause to be measured daily the mercury
content of its effluent from its said chlorine plants and no less often tlmn (Itch
period of 7 consecutive days shall send by mail to the United States Attorney
at Federal Building, Syracuse, N.Y., and also to tlw Great Lakes Regional
Office, Federal Water Quality Administration, 40134 Lake Avenue, Rochester.
N.Y., or its successor in intcrest, the daily readings covering the 7-day period
ending on the prior day ; the daily average shall be computed for the purposes
of paragraph 1 above upon the binds of a 21-consecutive-day period;

4. The defendant shall permit, at any time that Rs said chlorine plants are
in operation, employees and agents of the plaintiff to enter upon the premises here
involved to measure or to cause to be measured daily the mercury .content of
the effluent being dhwharged into .the Onondaga Lake or any other navigabh.
water of the United States, or tributary thereof ;

5. Should the amount of mercury in the defendant's effluent not be reduced to
the average total amount set foith in paragraph 1. or should the amount of
mercury at any time exceed such amount (except in isolated cases of accidental
dis(.harges), or should the plaintiff decide that. its consent to this stipulation
should be withdrawn, then the plaintiff may bring on for determination its
pending application for a preliminary injunction upon not less tlmn days.
written notice to defendant through its attorneys herein :

0. This stipulation is without prejudice to the claims of either party with
respect to any issue in this action, including the demand of plaintiff set. forth
in paragraph No. 2 of plaintiff% prayer for relief set forth in the complaint.

7. This stipulation and any order hereon shall not preclude plaintiff from bring-
ing any future action under the Refuse Act with respect to substances other
than mercury or its compounds diseharpd by the defendant's said plants into
tiw mivigahl e waters of the United States.

Done this day of September, 1970.
N1TFA) STATES or AMERICA,
By :

1%8..4 ttornry,
BOND, SCHOENECK & KING,

;

Attorneys for Defendant, Allied CheMfral Corp.

F.S. DIRTR1CT Couwr, DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

Civil Action No.

UNITED STATER OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

V.

nA M ON D SHAMROCK CORP., DEFENDANT

COMPLAIKT

Tlw United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by authority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interior, alleges
that:
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This is a civil action to enjoin defendant Diamond Shamrock Corp from
disclmrging mercury or mercury compounds into the Delaware River, a navigable
water of the United States, In violation of section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152, 33 I.: .S.C. see. 407). Authority to bring this agtion is
vested in tile Department of Justice by section 17 of the above-nam(d act (30
Stat. 1153, 33 U.S.C. sec. 413).

Defendant, Diamond Shamrock Corp., is a corporation doing business in the
State of Delaware.

III

Defemlent. in the operations of its plant at. Delaware City, Del., is 'and has
been discharging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the waters
of the Delaware River. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities of
mercury or mercury compounds suspended or in solution.

IV

Defendant's discharges of mercury onmercury compounds into the waters
of the Delaware River constitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter"
within the menning of section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stat.
1152, 33 U.S.C. see. 407). This act provides

It shall not be lawful to throw, discharge, or deposit, or cause, suffer,
or procure to be thrown, discharged, or deposited *. from the shore, wharf.
manufacturing establishment, or mill of any kind, any refuse matter of any
kind or defieription whatever other than thnt flowing from streets nnd
sewers nnd passing therefrom in a liquid state, into nny navigable water
of the United States, or into nny tributary of any navigable water from
which the same shnll float or be washed into such navigable water
provided further, Thnt the Secretary of the Army, whenever in the judgment
of the Chief of Engineers anchorage and navigation will not be impeded
thereby, may permit the deposit of nny material above mentioned in navigable
waters, within limits to be defined mid under conditions to be prescribed
by him. torovided nppliention is made to him tirior to thliositing ruich mate-
rial. 4'

V

I hgendant has never applied for and does not now hold the statutorily required
permit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refuse matter into navigable
waters of the United States.

VI

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substanees, and, therefore, are
not and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued
by t he Chief of Engineers.

VII

Delaware River is n navigable water of the United States within the
meaning of section 13 of the Rivers nnd ilarbors Act.

The arts of the defendant described in paragraph III above constitute a present
and continuing violation of section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

NVherefore. the United States prays :
(1) That a decree he entered enjoining defendant forthwith from diselmrging

any mereury or mercury compounds in any form into the navigable waters of
the United States or tributaries thereof.

(2) That defendant be directed to take such affirmative nction as the court
determines to 1 ie required in order to eliminate nny continuing consequences
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from defenda firs prey lolls Mil awful diseharges (if mereury or mercury emu-
!salads i Id 0 t he navigable waters of the Cn ited. t4t ates or tribota ries theremif.

(31 For Mich other relief as may he appropriate In the circumstances.
SHIRO KASIIIWA,
Anniston/ .4 Itorndy Gcncrol.
WALTER KIEC IIEL,

Ih'Imft/ sninfant tforncy ticncrok
MARTIN thtEEN,
THOM AS V. LEK;

.4 ttorncyn, Land and Natural 1?nourcen
Department of Justice,

Washington, DJ%
By:

rnited Mates .4 Minim
_4 florneys for thr

l)IAM oNn-SitA mime I: CORP., DELAWARE ('ITT., CIILOR-ALKALI PLANT

As of August 20, 1970. the firm alleged that It was discharging less than 1.7
pounds of mercury per day to the I)ela ware River.

A impting held September 4.1970. resulted in no progre.ss toward settlemMit.
However, at. a subsequent meeting at Justice on September 28, 1970, the com-
pany agreed to the entry of a stipulation providing that the firm is tfi reduce Its
mercury diselmrges to one-half pound or less per day on a weekly average by (le-
totter 1, 1970, exeept that if tests indicate residual mercury in the st'wer system of
the plant increases the discharge above one-half pound per day, the 1111111m ny will
be given an mIdltit Mal 30 days to correct the situation or replace the sewer
system. The eompany also agreed tim make efforts to reduce its mercury discharges
to less than one-half pound per day and to sal MI it a plan to Justiee on or before
December 1, 1970. Indleating efforts to further reduee discharges. Tile St 11 mlat ion
was entered in court on Septemlwr 29,1970 : a copy is not yet available.

UNITED STATES DISTRIVr COURT, NORTHERN Ins'ourr Al.mwiLt

Civil Aethm No.

l N ITED STATES OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

DIAMOND SHAMROCK CoRPORATION, DEFENDANT

COMPLAINT

1.111ted States of America, Ity its undersigneNtltorneys, by authority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interior, alleges
that :

This is a civil actitm to enjoin defendant Diamond Shamrock Corporation
from discharging mercury or mercury compounds 'Into Pond Creek, a tributary
of the TenneSSee liver. in violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act
of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152. 33 Il.S.(". SPC. 407). Authority to bring this action Is vested
in the Department of Justice by Section 17 of the above-1111mA Aet (30 Stat.
1153.33 1.7.8.4'. Sec. 4131.

II

Defendant. Diamond Shamrock Corpora Him. ls a corporation doing business
in the State of Alabama.

rit

Defendant. in the operations of its plant at Muscle Shoals, Alabama, is and has
been discharging effluent wastes (In a daily and continuous basis into tbe waters
of Pond Creek. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities of mercury
or mercury compounds susitended or in solution.
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Defendant's discharges of mercury or mercury compounds into the waters of
Plaid Creek constitute prohibited discharges I if "refuse nuater" within the mean-
ing of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30. Stat. 1152 ; 33
U.S.('. Sec. 407). This Act provides :

It shall not be lawfnl to throw, discharge, or deposit, or cause, suffer, or pro-
cure to he thrown, discharged, or deposited from the shore, wharf, ummt-
facturing establishment. or mill of any kind, any refwie matter of anj kind or
description whatever other than that flowing from streets and sewers and passing
therefrom in a liquid state. Into any navigable water of the United States, or
into any tributary of any navigable water from which the Same shall dont or be
washed into such navigable water ; * provided further, That the Secretary
I if the Army, whenever in the judgment of tfle Chief of Engineers anchorage and
navigation will not be impeded thereby, :oay permit the deposit of any material
alowe mentkmed In navigable waters, within limits to be defined and under
conditions to lie iorescrihed by him, provided application is mach. to him prior
to depositing such material. *

Defendant has never applied for and does not now bold the statutorily required
liermit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refuse matter into navigable
waters of the United States.

VI

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substances, and, therefore, are not
and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued by
the Chief of Engineers.

vit

Pond Creek is a tributary Of the Tennessee River, which is a navigable water
of the United States within the meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act.

yin

The acts of the defendant described in Paragraph 111 above constitute a
present and continuing violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

WHEREFORE, the United States prays:
I 11 That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forthwith from discharging

.any mercury or mercury compounds in any form into the navigable waters of the
United States or tributaries thereof.

(2) That defendant he directed to take such affirmative action as the court de-
termines to be required in order to eliminate any continuing consequences from
defendant's previous unlawful discharges of mercury or mercury compounds into
the navigable waters of the United States or tributaries thereof.

(3) For such other relief as may be appropriate in the circumstances.
SHIRO KASHINVA,

Assistant Attorney General.
WALTER KIECHEL, Jr.,

Deputy Assistant Attorney General.
MARTIN GREEN,
THOMAS C. LEE,

Attorneys,
Land and Yatitral Resourers

Department of Justice,
Washington, D.C.

By:
United Rtates Attorney.

Attorneys for the Plaintiff.
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U.S. DISTRICT Collar WESTERN DISTRICT OF KENTUCKY

Civil Action No. -

UNITED STATES or AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

r.

PENNWALT CIIEMIcAI. Co., DEFENDANT

comPtIAINT

The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by authority of
tile Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of die Interior, alleges
that :

This is a ('ivil action to enjoin defendhnt Pennwalt Chemhal Cb. rrom discharg-
ing mercury or mercury compounds into the Tennessee River, a navigable water
of the United States, in violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act
of. MI 430 Stat. 1152, 33 U.S.C. -Sec. 407). Authority to bring this action is
vested in the Department of Justice by Section 17 of the above-named-Act (30
Stat. 1133. 33 U.S.C. Sec. 413 ).

II

Defendant, Pennwalt Chemical Co., is a tqaporat ion doing business in the State
of Kent lo.ky.

III

Defendant, in the operations of its plant at Calvert City, Kentucky, is and has
lapti disAarging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the waters
of the Tennessee River. Said effluent wasteS contain significant quantities of
mereury compounds suspended or in solution.

IV

Defendant's discharges of mercury or merct, y compounds into the waters of
the Tennessee River constitute- prollthited disch,:rges of "refuse matter" within
the meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1599 (30 Stat. 1152;
33 U.S.( . See. 407 ). This Act provides :

"It shall not be lawful to throw, discharge. or deposit, or cause, suffer, or pro-
cure to be thrown, discharged. or delmited from the shore, wharf, manu-
facturing establishment. or mill of any kinds any refuse matter of ally kind or
&script ion whatever other than that flowing from streets and sewers and passing
therefrom in a liquid state, into,any navigable water of the United States. or
into any tributary of any navigable water from which the same shall float or be
ivashed into such navigable water prorlded further. Tb. t th Secretary
of the Army, whenever in the jadgment of thp Chief of Enginee. anchorage and
navigation will not be impeded thereby, nmy permit the deposit of any material
above mentioned in navigable waters, within limits to be defined and under con-
ditions to be prescribed by, him, !provided application is made to him prior to
depositing such material. "

V.

Defendant has never applied for and does not now hold the statutorily re-
quired . permit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refuse matter into
'navigable waters of the United Stoles.

VI

Mercury and mercury Lanpounds are toxic substances, and, therefore, are
not and could not be within the scope pf any statutorily required permit issued
by the Chief (it. Engineers.
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VII

Tennessee River is a II:Isla:aide waiter of the l'hited States within the
meaning of Solion 13 (if the Rive-ri: and Iiarbors Act.

The nets of the defendant described in Paragraph III above C011stinHe ii pres-
ent aml (4/Whaling riolathm of Section13 of the Rivers and liarlors AO.

Wherefore. the United States prays:
(1) That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forthwith from dba-harg-

Ng any mercury or ineroiry l'OlnIHMIHIS In any fairill MO the Ililvigable waiters
of the United States or tributaries thereof.

(2) That defendant be direeted to take such affirmative action as the court
determines to lie required in order to eliminate any continuiing consequences
from defendant's previous unlawful discharges of mercury or mercury cone
jmunds into the navigable waiters of the United States or tributaries thereof.

(3) For such other relief as may be apr.ropriate in the circumstances.
Sumo liouutwA,

Assistant .4 f orney
WALTER KIECHEL, Jr.,

Deindll A sitistant Attorney General.
MARTIN DREEN.
THOMAS I.!, LEE. .

Afforneyx.
Land and Natural Rryoureem Di rision.

Department of .lusfler.
'Washington. D.C.

By :
I 'WNW Ntate« Attorney.

A ttorneys for thr Phi in t iff.

U.S. DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF MAINE

Civil Action No.

l'NITF.D STATES OF A M ERICA, PLAINTIFF

V.

INTERNATIONAL MINING AND CHEMICAL CO., OF.FENDANT

COMPLAINT

The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by euthority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Sevretary of the Intorior, alleges
that:

This is a civil action to enjoin defendant international Mining and Chemical
CO., from discharging mercury or mercury compounds into t lie. Penoleeot River,
a navigable water of the United States, in violation of Section 13 of the Rivers
and Ilarbors.Act of 1890 (30 Stat. 1152. 33 U.S.O. See. 407). Authority to bring
this action is vested in the Department of Justice by Section 17 of the above-
named Act (30 Stat. 1153,13 TT.5.0. Sec. 413 ) .

Defendant. International Mining and Chemical Co., is a corporation doing
business in the State of Maine.

Defendant, in the operations of its plant at Orrington, Maine, 15 and has been
discharging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the waters of
tlw Penobscot River. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities of mercury
or mercury compounds suspended or in solution.
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. IV

Defendant's diseharges of mercury or memory compounds IWO the waters of
the Penobscot River constitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter" within
the inclining of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of POO (30 Stat. 1152;
33 U.S.C. Sec. 4(17). This Act provides

"It shall not la. lawful to throw, discharge, or deposit, or catnap, suffer, or
proeure to be thrown, discharged, or deposited * * from the shore, wharf, ma n n-
fact ming establishment, or mill of any kind. any refuse matter of any kimi or
deseription whatever other than that flowing from streets and sewers and
passing therefrom in a liquid state, into any navigable water of the United
States, or hdo any tributary of nny navigable water from which the same shall
Moat or be washed into such navigable water; * * * provided further, That
the Seereta ry of the Army, whenever in the judgment of the Chief of Engineers
a nehorage and navigation will loot be impeded thereby, may permit the deposit
of any material above mentioned in navigable waters, within limits no Ito
defined and water conditions to be prewribed by his, proovided application is
made to him prior to del onsh ing such material. * *"

Defendant has never applied for and does not now hold the sta tonally
required p4.rmit from t he Chief of Engineers to diseharge refuse matter into
navigable waters of the United States.

VI

Mereury and nwrcury colalloillids arc toxic sabstances, alld, therefore, arc
not and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued
by the Chief of Engineers.

VII

The Penobseot River is a nav;gable water of the United States within the
imemoning of Seetion 13 I of the Rivera and lla Omni Act.

The acts of the defendattt deserilwd in paragraph III above constitate ii
present and camtinning violatbm of Section 13 of the Rivers and Ha rhors Act.

Wherefore, the United t-ttittea prays:
( I) That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forthwith fnun discharging

any mercury i ir menury comisounds III any floret into the navigable waters of
the United $ tates or tributaries t hereof.

(2) That defendant be directed to take such affirmative action as the court
determines to be required In order to elimina te any continuing conRequenees friont
defendant's lorevions unlawful discharges of memory or mercury compounds
into the na vigable waters of the United Stater: or tributaries thereof.

(3) For such other relief as may be aporopriate in the eircumstamps.
Sunto

Assistant Attorney General.
WALTER. KIECHEL, Jr.,

Deputy Assistant. Attorney General.
MARTIN dams,
THOMAS C. LEE.

.4 tforneys,
Land and Natural Resources

Department of Justice,
Washington, D.C.

By:
United States Attorney.

AtIorneys for the Plaintiff.

INTERNATIoNAL MINEIIALS AND CHEMICAL C111.01t-A.LitALI CoMPANV,
OlULINGT0N, MAINE

At a meeting held September 17, 11)70, al. the Justiee Department. IMC offi-
cials agreed to tbe entry of a stipniariondn the ease. The stipulation provides
that IMC is to discharge less than 1,i la mercury per day to the Penobscot River,

23?)°
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that the firm is to make efforts to further reduce mercury discharges, and is
to submit a report on or before December 1, 1970, outlining a pingram for further
reduction& The decree was entered On September 15, 1970, a copy ofwhieli is
at tached.

.U.S. DISTRICT COURT, DISTnIC1 or MAIss:

Civil Action No, 1842

VNITED STATES OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

V.

1MC CIII.OR-ALKALI, INC, DEFENDANT

STIPULATION

It is stipulated by the attorneys for the parties in this action that the plaintiff's
application for an injunction and other proceedings in the trial of this sct ion
he adjourned until the 14th duy of December, 1970, or until such date after that
as the Court may fix.

The stipulation and a diournment is made upon the following conditions :
1. TIIP plaintiff, at the request of the Secretary of the Interior, Med this suit

on the 27th day of July, 1970, incorrectly naming International Mining & Chemi-
cal Co. as defemlant. On the 21st day of August, 1070, plaintiff amended the com-
plaint and made IMC Chlor-Alkali, Ine., the defendant The amended complaint is
a civil action to enjoin the defendant from discharging mercury, or mercury com-
pounds, Into the Penobscot firer, and alleges violation of Section 13 of the Rivers
and Harbors Act of 1899. The amended complaint sought an injunvtion, On Sep-
tember 14, the defendant filed an answer denying material allegations of the roan-
pia int, and denying that the plaintiff wax entitled to the injunctive relief sought
by the amended complaint. On August 18th and 19th, representatives of the
FWQA took water samples, the results of which showed that the discharge
from the company's plant according to the samples contained only 0.145 lbs. of
mercury per day, On the same day, the defendant took similar samples, and the
results furnished to the plaintiff showed that the amount of discluirge was ap-
proximately 0.2402 lbs. per day, and when snmples from intake water which
showed 0.0206 lbs. per day are deducted from this amount, the results showed ii _as
discharge of 0.2196 lbs. per day chargeable to the plant operation according to the
sample result. Since that time the defendant bas sampled regularly, and the
result of the samples have been furniohed to the plaintiff. The result of samples
show that the disdiarge of mercury in lie effluent has been substantially redmed
from 3.80 pounds per da y, as measured :ty the FWQA, on July 14-15, 1970. feeeut
samples show eonthmed redueed lev As of discharge.

The defendant has shown nr.lch progress in the reduction of the discharge
of mercury from its chlorine plant into the Penobscot River, and has agreed to
make reasonable effort to continue to limit the discharge from its plant.

2. The defendant shall continue to make reasonable effort to further reduce
its total discharge of mercury from its chlorine plant into the Penobseot River,
or any other navigable waters of the U.S., or tributary thereof, and on or
before the 1st day of December, 1970, the defendant shall submit to plaintiff
the result of its work now being done and its further plans to reduce and limit
mercury discharge from its plant into the Penobscot River.

3. Defendant shall take samples daily, and measure or cause to be measured
the mercury content of its water effluent from its said chlorine plant being dis-
charged into the Penobscot River, and once each week ,( seven consecutive days)
shall mall to the U.S. Attorney, 156 Federal St., Portland, Me. 04112, and also
to the Northeast Regional Office, Federal Water Quality Administration, Room
2303, John F. Kennedy Federal Office Auilding, Boston, Mass. 02203, or its
suceessor in interest, the composite readings covering the seven-day period
ending on the prior day.

4. The defendant shall permit at any reasonable time, that its plant is in
operation, employees and agents of -the plaintiff to enter upon the premises
to measure or cause to be measured the mercury content of the effluent being
discharged into the Penobscot River, or any other navigable waters of the
United States, or tributary thereof ; provIded that at any time employees and
agents of the plaintiff desire to enter npon the premises that they shall give
the plant manager or defendant reprz-sentative in charge of the plant reason-
able notice.
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5. Should the amount of mercury in defendant's effluent exceed eight ounces
per day .(except in isolated cases of accident discharge) or should the plain-
tiff flecide that its consent to this stipulation should be withdrawn, then
the plaintiff may request a hearing on its pending application for preliminary
injunction upon not to exceed Ten (10) days written notice to the defendant
through its attorneys herein.

6. This stipulation is without prejudice to the claims of either party with
respect to any issue in this action, including the demand of plaintiff set forth
in paragraph 2 of the plaintiff's prayer for relief set forth in the complaint :
and including the denials of the defendant's made in its answer to the amended
complaint.

7. This stipulation and order shall not prevent plaintiff from bringing future
actions under the Refuse Act with resiswt to substances other than mercury
or Its compounds.

This 17th day of September,1970.
By : PETER MILLS,

U.S. Attorney, Portlan d, Maine.
MACFARLAND, CoLLEY, BLANK. & JACK,

Attorneys at Law, Columbia, Tenn.
Mrrcum, & BAUM

Attorneys at Law, Bangor, Maine.
By : Lox P. MACFARLAND,

ttorneys for defendant, IMC Chlor-Alkall, Inc.

U.S. DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF MAINE

Civil Action No. -

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

ORFORD PAPER COMPANY, DEFF.NDANT

COMPLAINT

The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by authority
of the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interior, al-
leges that :

This in a civil action to enjoin defendant OxfIrd Paper Company from dis-
charging mercury or mercury compounds into the Androscoggin River. a navigable
water of the United States, in violation of Section 13 of the Rivm.s and Harbors
Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152, 33 U.S.C. Sec. 407). Authority to bring this action is
vested in the Deportment of Justice by Section 17 of the above-named Act (30
Stat. 1153. 33 U.S.C. Rec. 413).

II

Defendant. Oxford Paper Company, is a corporailon doing business in the
State of Maine.

III

Defendant, in the operations of its plant at Rumford, Maine. Is and has heen
discharging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the waters of the
Androscoggin River. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities of mercury
or mercury compounds suspended or in solution.

IV

Defendant's discharges of mercury or mercury compounds into the waters
of the Androscoggin River constitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter"
within the meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30
Stat. 1152; 33 U.S.C. Sec. 407i. This Act provides:

It shall not be lawful to throw, discharge, or deposit, or cause, suffer, or pro-
cure to be thrown, discharged, or dvosited * from the shore, wharf, menu-
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facturing establishment, or mill of any kind, any refuse matter of any kind,or
description whatever other than that flowing front streets and sewers and pass-
ing therefrom in a liquid state, into any navigable- water of the United States,
or into any tributary of any navigable water from which the same shall float
or be washed into such navigable water ; tkroeided further, That the Sec-
retary of the Army. whenever in the judgment of the Chief of Engineers an-
chorage and navigation will not be impeded thereby, may permit the deposit of
any material above mentioned in navigable waters, within limits to be defined
and under conditions to be preseribed by him, provided application is made to him
prior to depositing such material.

Defendant has never applied for and does not now hold tile statutorily re-
quired permit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refuse matter into
navigable waters of the United States.

vI

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substances, and, therefore, are not
and could not be within the scope of any katutorily required permit issued by the
Chief of Engineers.

VII

The Androscoggin River is a navigable water of the United States within the
meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act..

VIII

The acts of the defendant described in Paragraph III above constitute a
present and continuing violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

Wherefore, the United States prays:
(1) That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forthwith from discharging

any mercury or mercury compounds in any form into the navigable waters of the
United States or tributaries thereof.

(2) That defendant be directed to take such affirmative action as the court
determincs to be required In order to eliminate any continuing consequences
from defendant's previous unlawful diseltarges of mercury or mercury POOP
pounds into the navigable waters of the United States or tributaries thereof.

(3) For such other relief as may he appropriate in the cirCumstances.
SHIRO KASHIWA,
Assistant Attorney General.

WALTF:R KIECHEL, Jr.,
Deputy Assittant Attorney General.

MARTIN GREEN,
THOMAS C. LEE,

Attorneys,
Land and Xatural Resources Division,

Department of Justice,
Washington, D.C.

By
United States Attorney.

Attorneys for the Plaintiff.

U.S. DISTRICT COURT, SOUTHERN DISTRICT OE GEORGIA

UWE!) STATES OF AMERICA, pLAINTIFF

OLIN MATIIIESON CHEMICAL CORPORATION, DEFENDANT

COMPLAINT

The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by authority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interior, alleges
that :

27
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This is a civil action to enjoin defendant Olin Mathieson Chemical Corpora-
tion from discharging mercury or mercury compounds into the Savannah River,
a navigable water of the United States, in violation of Section 13 of the Rivers
and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152, 33 U.S.C. See. 407). Authority to bring
this actimi is vested in the Department of Justice by Section 17 of the above-
named Act (30 Stat. 1153, 33 U.S.C. See. 413),

Defendant, Olin Mathieson Chemical Corporation, is a corporation doing
business in the State of Georgia.

Ill

Defendant, in the operations of its plant at Augusta, Georgia, is and has been
discharging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the waters of
the Savannah River. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities of mer-
cury orpercury compounds suspended or in solution.

IV

Defendant's discharges of mercury or nwrcury compounds into the waters of
the Savannah River constitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter" within
the meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152;
33 U.S.C. Sec. 407). This Act provides :

It shall not be lawful to throw, discharge, or deposit, or cause, suffer, or pro-
cure to be thrown, discharged, or deposited from the shorc, warf, manu-
facturing establishment, or mill of any kind, any refuse matter of any kind or
description whatever other thini that flowing from streets and sewers and pass-
ing therefrom in a liquid state, into any navigable water of the United States,
or into any tributary of any navigable water from which the same shall float
or be washed into such navigable water; * provided further, That the
Secretary of the Army, whenever in the judgment of the Chief of Engineers
anchorage and navigation will not be impeded thereby, may permit the.deposit
of any material above mentioned in navigable waters, within limits to be dethied
and under conditions to be prescribed by him, provided application is made to
him prior to depositing such material. *

V

Defendant has never applied for and does not now hold the statutorily re-
quired permit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refuse matter into
navigable waters of the United States.

t ,

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substances, and, therefore, are
not and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued
by the Chief of Engineers.

VII

The ,Savannah River is a navigable water of the United States within the
meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

The acts .of the defendant described in Paragraph HI above constitute a pres-
ent and ilintinning violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

Wheret'ore, the United States prays :
(1) That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forwith from discharging

any mercury or mercury commands in any form into the navigable waters of
the United States or tributaries thereof.

51-539-70-15
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(2) That defendant be directed to take such affirmative action as the court de-
termines to be required in order to eliminate any continuing consequences from
defendant's previous unlawful discharges of mercury or mercury compounds into
the navigable waters of the United States or tributaries thereof.

(3) For such other relief rts may be appropriate in the circumstances.
SHIRO KASHIWA,

Assistant Attorney General,
WALTER KIECHEL. Jr.,

Deputy Assistant Attorney Gcmral.
MARTIN GREEN,
THOMAS C. LEE,

Attorneys,
Land and Natural Resources Division,

Department of Justice,
Washington, D.C.

By :
United States Attorney.

Attorneys for the Plaintiff.

United States District Court, Western District of New York

Civil action No.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

V.

OLIN MATHIESON CHEMICAL CORP., DEFENDANT

COMPLAINT

The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by authority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interior,
alleges that :

This is a civil action to enjoin defendant Olin Mathieson Chemical Corpora-
tion from discharging mercury or mercury compounds into the Niagara River,
a navigable water of the United States, in violation of Section 13 of the Rivers
and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 115:!, 33 U.S.C. Sec. 407). Authority to bring
this action is vested in the Department of Justice by Section 17 of the above-
named Act (30 Stat. 1153, 33 U.S.C. Sec. 413).

II

Defendant, Olin Mathieson Chemical Corporation, is a corporation doing
business in the State of New York.

III

Defendant, in the operations of its plant at Niagara Falls, New York, is and
has been discharging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the
waters of the Niagara River. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities
of mercury or mercury compounds suspended or in solution.

Iv

Defendant's discharges of mercury or mercury compounds into the waters of '
the Niagara River constitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter" within
the meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152;
33 U.S.C. Sec. 407), This Act provides :

It shall not be lawful to throw, discharge, or deposit, or cause, suffer, or
procure toThe thrown, discharged, or deposited * from the shore, wharf,
manufacturing establishment, or mill of any kind, any refuse matter of any
kind or description whatever other than that flowing from streets and
sewers and passing therefrom in a liquid state, into any navigable water of
the United States, or into any tributary of any navigable water from which
the same "shall float or be washed into such navigable water, provided
further, That the Secretary of the Army, whenever in the judgment of the

2.;::5
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Chief of Engineers anchorage and laivigntion will not be impeded thereby,
may permit the deposit of any niaterial above mentioned in navigable waters,
within limits to be defined and under conditions to be prescribed by him
provided andication is made to him prior to depositing stall material. *

Defendant has never applied for and does not now hold the statutorily re-
quired permit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refuse matter into
navigable waters of the United States.

IV

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substanCes, and, therefore, are
not and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued
by the Chief of Engineers.

VII

The Niagara River is a navigable water of the United States within the mean-
ing of Section 13 of the Rivers. and Harbors Act.

The acts of the defendant described in Paragraph III above constitute a
present and continuing violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and IIarbors Act.

WHEREFORE, the United States prays;
(1) That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forthwith from discharging

any mercury or mercury compounds in any fOrm into the navigable waters of
the United States or tributaries thereof.

(2) That defendant be directed to take such affirmative action us the court
determines to be required in order to eliminate any continuing masequetwes from
defendant's previous unlawful discharges of mercury or mercury compounds
into the navigable waters of the United States or tributaries thereof.

(3) For such other relief al may be appropriate in tlie circumstances.
Sam ICASIIIWA.
Assistant Attorney General,

WALTER KIECHEL. Jr.,
Deputy Assistant Attorney General.

MARTIN GREEN,
Tuostes C. LEE,

Attorneys, Land and Natural Resources Division,
Department of Justice. 'Washington, D.C.

By :
17.5. Attorney,

Attorney for the Plaintiff.

OLIN Co Re., NIAGARA FALLS, N.Y., Cnum-Amma PLANT

The ease was beard in U.S. District Court, Buffalo, New York before Judge
Henderson on September 3 eml 1; September S and Was concluded on September
21, when the company agreed to the entry of a stipulation. The stipulation
provides that the plant will discharge less than one-halt lb/day of mercury
computed on a 21-day average. The company whit make efforts to further reduce
its mercury and is to submit a plan by December 1, 1970. On further reductions.

The Government's case survived preliminary dismissal on jurisdictional
grounds and the judge reserved ruling on defendant's motion for preliminary
judgment at the close of the plaintiff's ease until defendant presented its
evidence.

The stipulation was entered in -court on September 21, 1970; copy is at-
tached. A transcript of the bearing will be available to Interior shortly.

1-
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

Cht Action No. 1970-338

UNPCED STATES OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

V.

OLIN CORP., DEFENDANT

STIPULATION

The United States of America, the plaintiff in the above action, without
prejudice to its right at a later time, as hereinafter set forth, to pursue all
the remedies legally available to it, and Olin Corporation, the defendant in the
above action, without preujdiee to its right at any time in this action to assert
any defenses, jurisdictional or otherwise, available to it in this matter, hereby
stipulate as follows:

(1) More than three months prior to the institution of this action, Olin
Corporation instituted a crash program to reduce the amount of mercury dis-
charged in the effluent from its plant at Niagara Falls, New York and has
succeeded in reducing such amount to an average of less than one-half pound
per day, and, in cooperation with the plaintiff, is continuing its efforts to reduce
such amount even farther ;

(2) Olin Corporation will continue to maintain an average daily discharge of
less than one-half pound per day of mercury in the waste water from its plant
at Niagara Palls, New York;

(3) On or before December I, 1970, defendant shall submit to plaintiff a
proposed schedule of future reductions of mercury discharge from said plant ;

(4) The defendant shall measure or cause to be measured daily the mercury
content of its ellluent from Its said chlorine plant and no less often than each
period of seven consecutive days shall send by mall to the Great Lakes Re-
gional Office, Federal Water Quality Administration, 4064 Lake Avenue, Roches-
ter, New York, or its successor in interest, the daily readings covering the
seven day period ending on the prior day; the daily average shall be computed
for the purposes of Paragraph 2 above upon the basis of a twenty-one (21)
consecutive-day period;

(5) The defendant shall permit, at any time that its said chlorine plant is
in operation, employees and agents of the plaintiff to enter upon the premises
here involved to measure or to cause to be measured daily the mercury content
of the effluent being discharged provided that the results thereof shall promptly
be made available to defendant;

(6) Should the amount of mercury discharge from defendant's Niagara Falls
plant at any time exceed the amount specified in Paragraph 2 above (except
in isolated cases of accidental discharges resulting from loss of power or mal-
functioning of equipment), then the plaintiff may bring on.for determination
its pending application for a preliminary injunction upon not less than five (5)
days' written notice to defendant through its attorneys herein.

Dated this 21st day of September, 1970.
IL KENNETH SCHROEDER. JP.,

U.S. Attorney,
Counsel for Plaintiff.

RTTNALS, BRODERICK.; SHOEMAICER,
RICKERT, RUNALS & BERRIGAN,

CLARENCE R. RUNAL.
Attorneys for Defendant.
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United States District Court, Western District of Washington

Civil Action No.

U x ITED STATES OF AMERICA, PI.AI N TIFF

1'.

GEolua.t-P.Acanc Conn, DEFENDA NT

comPLAINT

.The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, by authority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interior, alleges
that :

This is a civil action to enjoin defenlant GeorgitePaci tic Corporation from dis-
charging mercury or mercury compounds into Bellingham Bay, a navigable
water of the United States, in violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152, 33 U.S.C. Sec. 407). Authority to bring this action
is vested in the Ihynrtment of Justice by Section 17 of the above-named Act
(30 Stat. 1153, 33 U.S.C. Sec. 413).

II

Defendant, Georgia-Pacific Corporation, is a corporation doing business in
the State of Vashington.

III

Defendant. In tbe operations of its plant at Bellingham, Washington, is and
has been discharging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the
waters of Bellingham Bay. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities
of mercury or mercury compounds suspended or in solution.

iv

Dfendont's diseharges of mercury or mercury compounds into the waters of
Bellingham Bay constitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter" within the
meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stnt. 1152;
33 U.S.C. See. 407). This Act provides :

It shall not he lawful to throw, discharges, or deposit, or cause, suffer, or
procure to be thrown, discharged. or dposited from the shore, wharf.
manufacturing establishment, or mill of any kind, any refuse matter of
any kind or description whateVer other than that flowing from streets and
sewers and passing therefrom in a liquid state, into any navigable Water
of the United States, or into any tributary of any navigable water from
which the same shall float or be washed into such navigable water,
provided That the Secretary of the Army, whenever in the Judg-
ment of the Chief of Engineers anchorage and navigation will not be im-
peded thereby, may permit the. deposit of any material above mentioned in
navigable waters, within limits to he defined and under conditions to be
preseribed by him, provided application is made to him prior to depositing
such material.

Defendant has never applied for and does not now hold the statutorily required
permit froin the Chief of Engiceers to discharge refuse matter into navigable
waters of the United States.

vi

Mercury and mercury vompounds are toxic substances. and. therefore, are
not and could not be within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued
by tbe Chief of Engineers.

VII

Bellingham Bay, which is an arm of Puget Sound, is a navigable water of
the United States within the meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act.
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The acts of the defendMir described In paragraph III above et oistitnte ii
present and continuing VinIntIon of section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

WITEREFORK the United States prays :
(1) That (h4Tee 1i oil tinil elljelningdef entlani fie b with frail] IllsChariling

any mereury or mercury compounds in any form into the navigable waters of
the Failed States or t Mit itaries thereof.

(2) Timt defendant he directed to take such °ninon tive action ii s the court
determines to be required in order tot eliminate any (Nntinuing consequences
from defemlant's previous unlawful diseharges of merenry or merenry com-
pounds Into the navigable Waters of the Unite(1 States or tributaries thereof.

(3) For siteh other relief as nlay he appropriate in the Cimelansfilnees.
SHIRO KARR YWA,

Assistant .ittoracy General.
WALTER KIECIIEL, Jr..

Deputy Assistant Attorney General.
MARTIN GREEN,
THOMAS C. LEE,

A ttorneys,
Land and Natural Resources Division.
Department of Justice,
Washington, 20530.

By:
United. States Attorney.

Attorneys far the Plaintiff.

GEORGIA PACIFIC Cone., ItEmsonANt, WASH.

A meeting held at the Justice Department on Melitemiser 2. 1970, resulted in
the company's agreement to enter a stipulation in tile case. The stipul a t bin
provides that the conqm ny is to discharge no mire t ban lb/da y of mercury
from its chlor-alkall plant on a weekly average, to make efforts to reduce its
merenry discharges to below V.: lb/day an(l to submit a plan on or before 1)e-
cember 1, 1970, &scribing efforts to further r oi Ii op Its discharges.

The stipulation, however, covers only mercury diseha rged font its (Nor-all:all
plant. The principal source of mercury is presently its pulp and paper opera-
tionswhich nre coot riblithm about 1.00 lbs/day as of August 27. 1970, ( the
ehlor-alkali plant was discharging about .17 Ihs/day on the salm. date i .

The company agreed to sulanit a program for rediwthm of memory in the
effluent from these operations as part of its December 1. 1070, submission.

Georgia Pacific officials allege that the FWQA sampling result:: on the pulp
and paper operations are too high, that It is not possible to nectinitely measn re
the amount of mercury in this (diluent been Ilse of high suspended solid (mitent
and that a large proporthm of the mereury comes from the trees it uses and
its water intake.

The stipulation has not yet been entered in.court ; copies nre not yet available.

In the DistrIct.Court of the United States for the Western District of
WaShington at Seattle

17N MO STATES OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

G mom-PACIFIC CORP., DEFENDENT

No. 330, stipulation

It is stipulated by the attorneys for the parties in this action that the plaintiff's
application for injunction and other proceedings in connection with this matter
be adjourned until the fourth day of December 1970 or until sUch date after that
as the Court may fix.

This stipulation and adjournment is made on the following conditions:
1. The complaint initiated a civil action brought at the request of the Seeretary

of Interior seeking to enjoin defendant from discharging mercury from its plant
in Bellingham, Washington.
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2. The defendant has answered the complaint denying its material allegations
and denying that the plaintiff is entitled to the relief sought by the complaint.

3. On August 10, 11 and 12, representatives of the Federal Water Quality Ad-
ministration, from water samples taken by them, reported an average of .33
pond of mercury per day was being discharged from defendant's chlor-alkali
facility. Defendant's samples taken front August 20 through September 20, 1970,
IndicaS. the normal daily discharge of mercury from defendant's Odor-alkali'
facility to be .47 pound per day. NOIR. of the foregoing samples make allowance
for any mercury which may come into defendant's phmt from its supply water
or other natural sources. Analyses of defendant's effluent indicate that defend-
ant's discharge of mercury from defemiant's chloralkali facility has been reduced
to the present kwels from approximately 10.5 pounds a day on July 14, 1970.
Stub reduction resulted from defendant's installation of a mercury recovery sys-
tem which was completed July 23, 1970, This system was engineered during the
last months of 1969 and the required parts and equipment were ordered com-
mencing in November 1969, and work on installation progressed phase by phase

the system was completed on .1 uly 23, 1970.
4. Defendant will continue to make reasonable efforts to further reduce its

total discharge of mercury into Bellingham Bay, am! will maintain a discharge
level of not more than 0.5 pounds per day from its chlor-alkall facility. On or be-
fore December 1, 1970, defendant will submit to plaintiff a description of any
additional work it has done to that date and its further plans to reduce and limit
mercury diseharge from its Want into Bellingham Bay.

5. Defendant will take daily samples of the mercury emdent of the effluent
from its plant hieing discharged into Bellingham Bay, and will once each 31 days,
mail to the U.S. Attorney, Federal Building. Seattle, Washington, readings of the
composite samples covering u:1i period. Copies will also mailed to the Re-
gional Office. Federal Water Quality Administration in Portland, Oregon.

(1. Employees and agents of the plaintiff may at any reasonable time, enter
Maintiff's premises to nwasure mercury content in defendant's effluent being
discharged' into Bellingham Bay, I lrovidol sueh employees and agents adequately
identify t hemselves and give reasonable notice to defendant's plant manager or
his designated representative.

7. If the amount of niercury in defendant's effluent from its chlor-alkall facility .

should exceed 8 ounces per day. computed upon a daily average over any period
of 21 el mserlitlye da ys, (except in isolated eases resulting from neddental dis-
charge) or should the plaiutiff decide that its consent to this stipulation should
be withdrawn, then the plaintiff may request that the hearing on a motion for
Iseliminary injancti(m or its comidaint I e held after ten days written notice
to the defendant's attorneys herein.

S. This stipulation is without prejudice to the claims or either party with
respect to any issue in this action, including the demand of paragraph 2 of plain-
tiff's prayer for relief. and including the denials of the defendant made in its
a timer t o the coattail int.

9, This stitmlation and any order entered hereon shall not prevent phOntiff
from bringing future aetions under the Refuse Act with respect to substances
other than mercury or its emnpounds.

Dated this (lay of September, 1970.
STAN l'ITKIN,

U.S. Attorney.
LANK, POWELL, MOSS & 31n.Lea,

Attorneys for Thlendant, Goon/fa-Pact/lc Corp.

United States District Court, Western District of Washington
Civil Action No.

tNITF.D STATES OF AMERICA, PLAINTIFF

WETF.RILAECRER Co., DEFENDANT

coMPLAINT

The United States of America, hy its undersigned attorneys, by authority of
the Attorney General and at the request of the Secretary of the Interioil alleges
that:
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This Is a civil action to enjoin defendant Weyerhaeuser Company from dis-
charging mercury or mercury compounds into the Columbia River, a navigable
water of the United States, in violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152, 33 U.S.C., Sec. 407). Authority to bring thia action is
vested In the Department of Justice by Section 17 of the above-named Act (30
Stat. 1153, 33 U.S.C. Sec. 413).

II

Defendant, Weyerhaeuser Company, Is a corporation doing business in the
State of Washington.

III

Defendant, in the operations of its plant at Longview, Washington, is and has
been discharging effluent wastes on a daily and continuous basis into the waters
of the Columbia River. Said effluent wastes contain significant quantities of
mercury or mercury compounds suspended or in solution.

IV

Defendant's discharges of mercury or mercury compounds into the waters of
the Columbia River constitute prohibited discharges of "refuse matter" within
the meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (30 Stat. 1152 ;
33 U.S.C. Sec. 407). This Act provides:

It shall not be lawful to throw, discharge, or deposit, or cause, suffer, or
procure to he thrown, discharged, or deposited * * from the shore, wharf,
manufacturing establishment, or mill of any kind, any refuse matter of any
kind or description whatever other than that flowing from streets and sewers
and passing therefrom In a liquid state, into any navigable water of the
United States, or Into any tributary of any navigable water from which the
same shall float or be washed into such navigable water * provided
farther, Timt the Seeretary of the Army, whenever in the judgment of the
Chief of Engineers anchorage and navigation will not be Impeded thereby,
may permit the deposit of any material above mentioned in navigable waters,
within limits to be defined and under Conditions to-he .prescribed hy lihn,
provided application is made to him prior to depositing such material. * * *

Defendant bas never applied for and does not now hold the statutorily required
permit from the Chief of Engineers to discharge refuse matter into navigable
waters of the United StateS.

VI

Mercury and mercury compounds are toxic substances, and, therefore, are not
and could not he within the scope of any statutorily required permit issued by
the Chief of Engineers. .

vir

The Columbia River is a navigable water of the United States within the
meaning of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

vitt

The acts of the defendant described in Paragraph III above constitute a pres-
ent and continuing violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

WHEREFORE, Ur United States prays :
(1) That a decree be entered enjoining defendant forthwith from discharging

any mercury or mercury compounds in any form into the navigable waters of
the United States or tributaries thereof.

st1


